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This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the Mgament’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cbadiand Results of
Operations, contains forward-looking statementthiwithe meaning of the Private Securities LitigatReform Act of 1995, that reflect our
views about future events and financial performaki¢een used in this report, the words “may,” “Willshould,” “anticipate,” “estimate,”
“expect,” “plan,” “believe,” “feel,” “predict,” “pioject,” “potential,” “intend” and similar expressis are intended to identify forward-looking
statements, which are generally not historicaldature. Forward-looking statements include, butnatgimited to, financial projections and
estimates and their underlying assumptions; stateswegarding plans, objectives and expectatiots iespect to future operations, products
and services; and statements regarding future qpeafoce. Forward-looking statements are subjechtwvk and unknown risks and
uncertainties, many of which are difficult to pretdand generally beyond our control, that couldseaactual results to differ materially from
those expressed in, or implied or projected by fdinerardiooking information and statements. You are cawibnot to place undue reliance
these forward-looking statements that speak onbf #ise date hereof. You are also urged to carefeNiew and consider the various
disclosures made by us, which attempt to advisreésted parties of the factors that affect ourrmss, including “Risk Factors” set forth in
Part | Item 1A hereof and our reports filed witle thecurities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, i to time. Except to the extent
otherwise required by federal securities laws, waot undertake any obligation to republish revited/ard-looking statements to reflect
events or circumstances after the date hereof @flect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

References in this Annual Report on Form 10-K &témms “we”, “our”, “us”, “WellPoint” or the “Comp any” refer to WellPoint, Inc.,
an Indiana corporation, and its direct and indiresttbsidiaries, as the context requires.
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
General

We are the largest health benefits company in tefmsedical membership in the United States, sgr@®.7 million medical members as
of December 31, 2009. We are an independent lieeofsthe Blue Cross and Blue Shield AssociatiorBGBSA, an association of indepenc
health benefit plans. We serve our members as ltiee Gross licensee for California and as the Blues€ and Blue Shield, or BCBS, licensee
for: Colorado, Connecticut, Georgia, Indiana, Kekiy Maine, Missouri (excluding 30 counties in tansas City area), Nevada, New
Hampshire, New York (as BCBS in 10 New York citytmgolitan and surrounding counties, and as Blues€or BCBS in selected upstate
counties only), Ohio, Virginia (excluding the Noetin Virginia suburbs of Washington, D.C.), and VWgizsin. In a majority of these service
areas we do business as Anthem Blue Cross, AntHeenx®@oss Blue Shield or Empire Blue Cross Blueetsh{in our New York service aree
We also serve our members throughout much of thatopas UniCare. We are licensed to conduct imsigaperations in all 50 states throi
our subsidiaries.

Our mission is to improve the lives of the peopkeserve and the health of our communities. Outegfyais to simplify the connection
between health, care and value. We strive to aeloew mission and strategy by creating the bedttheare value in our industry, excelling at
day-to-day execution, and capitalizing on new opputies to drive growth.

We offer a broad spectrum of netwdsksed managed care plans to the large and smdbwenpindividual, Medicaid and senior mark:
Our managed care plans include: preferred prowidgannizations, or PPOs; health maintenance orgémiza or HMOS; point-of-service plans,
or POS plans; traditional indemnity plans and othdarid plans, including consumer-driven healtmgleor CDHPs; and hospital only and
limited benefit products. In addition, we provider@ad array of managed care services to self-filiedstomers, including claims processing,
underwriting, stop loss insurance, actuarial sesjiprovider network access, medical cost managetisaase management, wellness
programs and other administrative services. We @isvide an array of specialty and other produnts services including life and disability
insurance benefits, dental, vision, behavioral thela¢nefit services, radiology benefit managemamajytics-driven personal health care
guidance, long-term care insurance and flexiblendjpgy accounts.

For our fully-insured products, we charge a premamd assume all of the health care risk. Undeffaalied and partially-insured
products, we charge a fee for services, and thdogmpor plan sponsor reimburses us for all or nebshe health care costs. Approximately
93% of our 2009 operating revenue was derived fpoemium income, while approximately 7% was derifredh administrative fees and other
revenues.

Through December 31, 2009, our medical memberslgpmer base primarily included Local Group (inahgdUniCare) (those with le:
than 5% of eligible employees located outside efftadquarter state, as well as customers with thare5% of eligible employees located
outside of the headquarter state with up to 2,%i@ibke employees, accounting for 47% of our metimambers at December 31, 2009) and
Individuals under age 65 (including UniCare) aneiititovered dependents (6% of our medical memizeof Becember 31, 2009). Other me
customer types included National Accounts (gengralliti-state employer groups primarily headquartien a WellPoint service area with at
least 5% of the eligible employees located outsifdihe headquarter state and with more than 2,50ble employees, accounting for 20% of
our medical members at December 31, 2009), BlueBasd (enrollees of Blue Cross and/or Blue Shidéahg not owned by WellPoint who
receive health care services in our BCBSA licemsadkets, accounting for 14% of our medical membéiBecember 31, 2009), Senior
(Medicare-eligible individual members age 65 androvho have enrolled in Medicare Advantage, a medagre alternative for the Medicare
program, or who have purchased Medicare Supplebesrgfit coverage, accounting for 4% of our medicambers at December 31, 2009),
State- Sponsored Programs (primarily state-spodsaenaged care alternatives in Medicaid and Sthilei@€n’s

3



Table of Contents

Health Insurance programs, accounting for 5% ofroedical members at December 31, 2009) and the&damployee Program, or FEP
(United States government employees and covereiliyfammbers, accounting for 4% of our medical merats December 31, 2009).

We market our products through an extensive netwbikdependent agents and brokers for Individual Senior customers, as well as
certain Local Group customers with a smaller emgdolpase. Products for National Accounts and Localiscustomers with a larger
employee base are generally sold through indepéilekers or consultants retained by the customémeorking with industry specialists
from our in-house sales force.

The aging of the population and other demographé&acteristics and advances in medical technologtirtue to contribute to rising
health care costs. Our managed care plans andgisoaie designed to encourage providers and mentpessticipate in quality, costffective
health benefit plans by using the full range of inmovative medical management services, qualitiatives and financial incentives. Our
leading market share and high business retenties emable us to realize the long-term benefitawasting in preventive and early detection
programs. Our ability to provide cost-effective lle®denefits products and services is enhanceditira disciplined approach to internal cost
containment, prudent management of our risk exgoand successful integration of acquired businesses

Our results of operations depend in large partamuiately predicting health care costs and ouitghd manage future health care costs
through adequate product pricing, medical managémenduct design and negotiation of favorable ftercontracts.

Our future results of operations may also be imgrhbly certain external forces and resulting chaigesr business model and strategy.
During 2009, the U.S. Congress proposed severalpieves of legislation aimed at reforming the Uh&alth care system. None of these
proposals have yet been enacted; however, cefttéie @rovisions could have a material adversecefiea our business model and results of
operations. For additional discussion, see P#erm 1A. Risk Factors in this Form 10-K.

In addition to external forces discussed in the@déng paragraph, our results of operations areatga by levels and mix of
membership. During 2009, we experienced membeg#ifines due to current economic conditions. Wesekpnemployment levels will
remain high throughout 2010, which may impact duilitg to increase or maintain current memberskeigels. These membership trends could
have a material adverse effect on our future resiilbperations. For additional discussion, se¢IPdiem 1A. Risk Factors in of this Form 10-
K.

We believe health care is local and feel that weehbhe strong local presence required to understaddneet local customer needs. We
believe we are well-positioned to deliver what ousérs want: innovative, choice-based productsindite service; simplified transactions;
and better access to information for quality c@rer local presence and national expertise havaeztempportunities for collaborative programs
that reward physicians and hospitals for cliniazlity and excellence. We feel that our commitmertiealth improvement and care
management provides added value to customers aiith lsare professionals.

In January 2007, we unveiled a comprehensive pldrelp address the growing ranks of the uninsu®@esl.plan is a blend of public and
private initiatives aimed at ensuring universaleage for children and providing new and more etitre options for the uninsured. This plan
is part of our mission to improve the lives of ffeople we serve and the health of our communitiefurtherance of our plan, we have
launched an interactive website for the uninsureti@pened community resource centers to assisirtimsured to obtain health insurance
coverage.

We believe that an essential ingredient for prattnd sustainable health care reform is improguality, which can help manage costs.
We have identified solutions that we believe wélider better health care while reducing costs.sehaclude promoting evidence-based
medicine and determining real-world outcomes;



Table of Contents

advancing health care quality by disseminatingrimfation throughout the system; focusing on prewenéind managing chronic illness;
improving effective use of drug therapies to prevard manage illness; promoting strategies to redoedical errors and adverse drug events;
reducing costs through eliminating fraud; redudingts related to litigation; and improving admirason.

We continue to expan860° Health the industry’s first program to integrate all esfs of care management into a centralized, consume
friendly resource that assists patients in naviggtihe health care system, using their health ltsreeid accessing the most comprehensive and
appropriate care available.

In addition, we continue to supplement interactiotith customers, brokers, agents, employees aret sthkeholders through web-
enabled technology and enhancing internal opermtidfe continue to develop our e-business stratetjytiie goal of becoming widely
regarded as an e-business leader in the healtffitséndustry. The strategy includes not only salad distribution of health benefits products
on the Internet, but also implementation of advdreapabilities that improve service benefiting oustrs, agents, brokers, and providers while
optimizing administrative costs. These enhancemailitalso help improve the quality, coordinationcasafety of health care through incree
communications between patients and their physician

We intend to continue our expansion and will foonsearnings per share, or EPS, growth through azgaembership gains, strategic
acquisitions and capital transactions, while purguiur mission to improve the lives of the peopéeserve and the health of our communities.

We are a large accelerated filer (as defined ireR@b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934mended, or Exchange Act) and are
required, pursuant to Item 101 of Regulation SeKpitovide certain information regarding our websitel the availability of certain documents
filed with or furnished to the SEC. Our Internethsite is www.wellpoint.coniWe make available, free of charge or through oteriret
website, our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quart&sports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8xtl amendments to those reports
filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) ord)5(f the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably pedité after we electronically file such
material with or furnish it to the SEC. We alsolude on our Internet website our Corporate Goveradduidelines, our Standards of Ethical
Business Conduct and the charter of each standimgnittee of our Board of Directors. In addition, iméend to disclose on our Internet
website any amendments to, or waivers from, oundgtads of Ethical Business Conduct that are reduode publicly disclosed pursuant to
rules of the SEC and the New York Stock Exchang®\6SE. WellPoint, Inc. is an Indiana corporatioorporated on July 17, 2001.

Significant Events

Listed below are the more significant events tteatehoccurred over the last five years:

»  We regularly review the appropriate use of capAakordingly, under our Board of Direct’ authorization, we maintain a comm
stock repurchase program. Repurchases may be maddifme to time at prevailing market prices, sabje certain restrictions on
volume, pricing and timing. The repurchases arectdd from time to time in the open market, throngfotiated transactions and
through plans designed to comply with Rule 10b5idar the Exchange Act, as amended. During thegmded December 31, 2009,
we repurchased and retired approximately 57.3 onilihares at an average per share price of $46102) aggregate cost of $2.6
billion. On March 5, 2009, our Board of Directorgtiaorized an increase of $1.5 billion in our stoegurchase program. On
October 23, 2009, our Board of Directors authoriaedidditional increase of $0.5 billion in our &eepurchase program, subject to
completion of the Express Scripts transaction, garting current market and industry conditionsoABecember 31, 2009, $0.4
billion remained authorized for future repurchas@s.January 26, 2010, our Board of Directors ineeedathe share repurchase
authorization by $3.5 billion. Subsequent to Decen81, 2009, we repurchased and retired approxiyn@tg million shares for an
aggregate cost of approximately $0.4 billion, legvapproximately $3.5 billion for authorized futuspurchases at February 10,
2010. Our stock repurchase program is discretioaamye are under no obligation to repurchase shéfesepurchase shares when
we believe it is a prudent use of capi
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* On December 1, 2009, we sold our prescription hnefanagement, or PBM, business to Express Schipts or Express Script
and received $4.7 billion in cash. The pre-tax aftértax gains on the sale were $3.8 billion and $2libhi respectively. During tt
first quarter of 2010, we will make tax paymentsapproximately $1.2 billion relating to the PBMasalWe also entered into a 10-
year contract for Express Scripts to provide PB&ises to our members. We expect this alliancertwide our members with mo
cost effective solutions as well as access to-statbe-art PBM services. The results of operatiohsur PBM business have been
included in our consolidated results through Noveng, 2009

* On October 28, 2009, we announced that we entatechiimember transition agreement with Health Gamwice Corporation, ¢
HCSC, which operates as Blue Cross and Blue Shidltinois and Texas. Under this agreement, HCSICoffer guaranteed
replacement coverage to our UniCare commercialmend individual members in those states. Stadimdanuary 1, 2010, certain
of our membership began transitioning to HCSC eesalt of this agreement. The member transitioe@gient did not have a
material effect on our consolidated cash flowsafficial condition or results of operatio

* On April 9, 2009, we completed our acquisition af@are Dental, LLC, or DeCare, a wholly-owned subsydof DeCare
International. DeCare is one of the country’s latgglministrators of dental benefit plans and plesiservices directly and through
partnerships and administrative agreements withlégrtal insurance brands, primarily as a thirdypadministrator. DeCare manages
benefits for over four million people and is expetto provide our customers with innovative deptadducts and enhanced customer
service.

» During 2008 and 2009, we worked with The Centerdffedicare and Medicaid Services, or CMS, to res@bsues identified as a
result of our internal compliance audits and figdifirom a 2008 CMS audit. Our work included dethéetion plans to remediate
such findings. In addition, we engaged an indepehtihérd party to provide CMS with on-going assessts regarding our
compliance, including verification of systems, psses and procedur:

On January 12, 2009, CMS notified us that we waspsnded from marketing to and enrolling new membeour Medicare
Advantage and Medicare Part D health benefit prteductil remediation efforts had been fully implertexl and confirmed. On
September 9, 2009, CMS notified us that the sansti@d been lifted. We began marketing our Medidaheantage and Medicare
Part D products on October 1, 2009 and began @mgolew members on November 15, 2009 for the 2@h@ract year. However,
we are not currently eligible to receive auto-elmneht or reassignment of Medicare Part D Low Incubsidy, or LIS,
beneficiaries. We continue to work with CMS to dersimate that our operations related to the MediParé D LIS programs have
been corrected so that we will again be alloweplaticipate in the Medicare Part D LIS auto-assigntiprocess.

» During the year ended December 31, 2008, we setitgulites with the Internal Revenue Service, or, liRiting to certain tax yea
and industry issues which we had been discussitigtihe IRS for several years. As a result of thdesaents, we recorded additional
tax benefits that had previously been denied byR® In addition, tax litigation in the U.S. Taxo@t concluded adversely to us
during 2008. The case has been appealed to thedF€iecuit Court of Appeals and oral argumentssoieeduled for February 201

* On August 1, 2007, we completed our acquisitiomtdging Management Holdings, LLC, whose sole bussinie the holding
company parent of American Imaging Management, brcAIM. AIM is a leading radiology benefit managent and technology
company and provides services to us as well ag otrstomers nationwide, including several othereBluoss and Blue Shield
licensees. The acquisition supports our stratedpetmme the leader in affordable quality care lopiiporating AIM’s services and
technology for more effective and efficient useadiology services by our members. The purchase ffor the acquisition was
approximately $300.0 million in cas
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* On December 28, 2005 (December 31, 2005 for acowuptirposes) we completed our acquisition of WedliCe, Inc., o
WellChoice. Under the terms of the merger agreentbatstockholders of WellChoice received consitle@naof $38.25 in cash and
0.5191 of a share of WellPoint common stock fothesttare of WellChoice common stock outstandingddition, WellChoice stock
options and other awards were converted to WellRoirmrds in accordance with the merger agreeméetplirchase price including
cash, fair value of stock and stock awards andnestid transaction costs was approximately $6.mbilWellChoice merged with
and into WellPoint Holding Corp., a direct and wiawned subsidiary of WellPoint, with WellPoint liing Corp. as the surviving
entity in the mergel

* OnJuly 11, 2005, we announced that an agreementeaahed with representatives of more than 70Q896icians nationwide
involved in two multi-district classction lawsuits against us and other health benefimpanies. As part of the agreement, we a
to pay $135.0 million to physicians and to conttéb$5.0 million to a not-for-profit foundation whesission is to promote higher
quality health care and to enhance the deliveigaoé to the disadvantaged and underserved. Ini@audite paid $61.3 million in
legal fees, including interest, on October 6, 2080¥ a result of the agreement, we incurred a preexpense of $103.0 million during
the year ended December 31, 2005, which represémdihal settlement amount of the agreementwlzest not previously accrued.
Appeals of the settlement initially filed by certgihysicians have been resolved. Final cash payuerer the agreement totaling
$209.5 million, including accrued interest, weredman October 5 and 6, 20(

e OnJune 9, 2005, we completed our acquisition @hémos, Inc., or Lumenos, for approximately $185ilian in cash paid to th
stockholders of Lumenos. Lumenos was recognizedmsneer and market leader in const-driven health program

» On April 25, 2005, our Board of Directors approwetivo-for-one split of shares of common stock, whias effected in the form of
a 100% common stock dividend. All shareholdersecbrd on May 13, 2005 received one additional shiWellPoint common
stock for each share of common stock held on theg.d he additional shares of common stock weteiloliged to shareholders of
record in the form of a stock dividend on May 3@02. All applicable historical weighted averagershend per share amounts an
references to stock compensation data and mariketspsf our common stock for all periods preseietiis Annual Report on Form
10-K have been adjusted to reflect this -for-one stock split

Industry Overview

The health benefits industry has experienced sagmit change in the last decade. The increasingsfon health care costs by employers,
the government and consumers has led to the grofnghiernatives to traditional indemnity healthursnce. HMO, PPO and hybrid plans, such
as POS plans and CDHPs, are among the various fafrmanaged care products that have been devel®pealgh these types of products,
insurers attempt to contain the cost of health bgreegotiating contracts with hospitals, physisiand other providers to deliver health care to
members at favorable rates. These products udieallyre medical management and other quality astigmiimization measures such as pre-
admission review and approval for certain non-emecy services, pre-authorization of outpatient isatgrocedures, network credentialing to
determine that network doctors and hospitals hbeeequired certifications and expertise, and warievels of care management programs to
help members better understand and navigate theeahsgistem. In addition, providers may have ino@stto achieve certain quality measu
may share medical cost risk or have other incestivaleliver quality medical services in a coseefive manner. Also, certain plans offer
members incentives for healthy behaviors, suchmakig cessation and weight management. Membershargied periodic, pre-paid
premiums and pay co-payments, coinsurance and tleldisovhen they receive services. While the didioms between the various types of
plans have lessened over recent years, PPO, POSEAR products generally provide reduced bendfitoiit-of-network services, while
traditional HMO products generally provide littke ho reimbursement for non-emergency out-of-netwailization. An HMO plan may also
require members to select one of the network pyroare physicians to coordinate their care andapany specialist or other services.
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Recently, economic factors and greater consumeremgas have resulted in the increasing populafipraducts that offer larger, more
extensive networks, more member choice relatedterage, physicians and hospitals, and a desimgréater flexibility for customers to
assume larger deductibles and co-payments in réaatower premiums. CDHPs, which are relativelgthideductible PPO products and which
are often paired with some type of member health eapenditure account that can be used at the erésrtiscretion to help fund member
out-of-pocket costs, help to meet this demand. C®&lBo usually incorporate member education, weinand care management programs, to
help customers make better informed health carisides. We believe we are well-positioned in eatbuw regions to respond to these market
preferences.

Each of the BCBS companies, of which there wers88pendent primary licensees as of December 319,2@orks cooperatively in a
number of ways that create significant market athges, especially when competing for very largetinstite employer groups. As a result of
this cooperation, each BCBS company is able to saalkentage of other BCBS licensees’ substantialigeo networks and discounts when any
BCBS member works or travels outside of the statehich their policy is written. This program ifeged to as BlueCar®l , and is a source of
revenue for providing member services in our stiiesmdividuals who are customers of BCBS plansaféliated with us.

Competition

The managed care industry is highly competitivehlationally and in our regional markets. Compatitontinues to be intense due to
aggressive marketing, business consolidationspligration of new products and increased quahtiaeeness and price sensitivity among
customers.

Health benefits industry participants compete fstomers mainly on the following factors:

» quality of service

* access to provider networks;

* access to care management and wellness prograchsaliig health informatior

* innovation, breadth and flexibility of products anehefits;

* reputation (including National Committee on Qualtysurance, or NCQA, accreditation stati
* brand recognition;

e price; anc

» financial stability.

Over the last few years, a health plan’s abilitynteract with employers, members and other thadips (including health care
professionals) via the Internet has become a rmopeitant competitive factor. During the last sel/gears, we have made significant
investments in technology to enhance our electriméaction with providers, employers, members @i parties.

We believe our exclusive right to market producatder the most recognized brand in the industry, BOB our most significant markets
provides us with an advantage over our competitioaddition, our provider networks in our regi@mable us to achieve cost-efficiencies and
service levels enabling us to offer a broad rarfgeealth benefits to our customers on a more cffstiéve basis than many of our competitors.
We strive to distinguish our products through pdeviaccess, service, care management, product aatubrand recognition.

To build our provider networks, we compete withesthealth benefits plans for the best contracts titspitals, physicians and other
providers. We believe that physicians and othevigers primarily consider member volume, reimbureatirates, timeliness of reimbursem
and administrative service capabilities along wlith reduction of non-value added administrativkdaghen deciding whether to contract with
a health benefits plan.
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At the sales and distribution level, we competedfaalified agents and brokers to recommend andflis¢ our products. Strong
competition exists among insurance companies aalihhieenefits plans for agents and brokers withalestrated ability to secure new busir
and maintain existing accounts. We believe thatityuand price of our products, support serviceputation and prior relationships, along v
a reasonable commission structure are the facginsts and brokers consider in choosing whetheratidet our products. We believe that we
have good relationships with our agents and broleerd that our products, support services and cgsiari structure compare favorably to our
competitors in all of our regions. Typically we dhe lead competitor in each of our markets and thalosely watched target by other
insurance competitors.

Reportable Segments

We manage our operations through three reportagments: Commercial, Consumer, and Other. Segngzibsures for 2007 have be
reclassified to conform to the 2009 and 2008 prizsiem.

Our Commercial and Consumer segments both offareagified mix of managed care products, includiROs, HMOs, traditional
indemnity benefits and POS plans, as well as atyadf hybrid benefit plans including CDHPs, hoapanly and limited benefit products.

Our Commercial segment includes Local Group (iniclgdUniCare), National Accounts and certain othezildary business operations
(dental, vision, life and disability and workergimpensation). Business units in the Commercial segmffer fully-insured products and
provide a broad array of managed care servicesltdunded customers, including claims processimglerwriting, stop loss insurance,
actuarial services, provider network access, médst management, disease management, wellnegsapre and other administrative
services.

Our Consumer segment includes Senior, State-Spethsod Individual businesses. Senior businessdaslservices such as Medicare
Part D, Medicare Advantage, and Medicare Supplemdrite State-Sponsored business includes our neahegre alternatives for the
Medicaid and State Children’s Health Insurance Blagrams.

Our Other segment includes the Comprehensive H&alliitions Business unit, or CHS, that brings tbgebur resources focused on
optimizing the quality of health care and costafecmanagement. CHS included our PBM businessitmshle to Express Scripts on
December 1, 2009, and also includes provider melaticare and disease management, employee assiptaigrams, including behavioral
health, radiology benefit management and analytiosen personal health care guidance. Our Othensegalso includes results from our
Federal Government Solutions, or FGS, business. li@Bess includes the Federal Employee PrograffEBr and National Government
Services, Inc., or NGS, which acts as a Medicargraotor in several regions across the nation.Qtieer segment also includes other
businesses that do not meet the quantitative toldsHor an operating segment as defined in Firrdaicounting Standards Board, or FASB,
segment reporting guidance, as well as intersegeaes and expense eliminations and corporate sgperot allocated to the other reportable
segments.

For additional information regarding the operatiagults of our segments, see the Management’s igmuand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations and Note l@utoaudited consolidated financial statements asdffor the year ended December 31,
2009, included in this Form 10-K.

Products and Services

A general description of our products and servisgsovided below:

Preferred Provider Organization. PPO products offer the member an option to selechealth care provider, with benefits reimbur
by us at a higher level when care is received faoparticipating network provider. Coverage is sabje co-payments or deductibles and
coinsurance, with member cost sharing usually &ohity out-of-pocket maximums.
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Consumer-Driven Health Plans. CDHPs provide consumers with increased financiepoasibility, choice and control regarding how
their health care dollars are spent. Generally, EBEombine a high-deductible PPO plan with an eygpttunded and/or employee-funded
personal care account, which may result in tax fitsrie the employee. Some or all of the dollarma@ing in the personal care account at
year-end can be rolled over to the next year for futealth care needs.

Traditional Indemnity. Indemnity products offer the member an option feceany health care provider for covered serviGzsierage
is subject to deductibles and coinsurance, with beroost sharing usually limited by out-of-pocketxdimums.

Health Maintenance Organization. HMO products include comprehensive managed carefitengenerally through a participating
network of physicians, hospitals and other provddérmember in one of our HMOs must typically sekeprimary care physician, or PCP,
from our network. PCPs generally are family prémtiers, internists or pediatricians who provideassary preventive and primary medical
care, and are generally responsible for coordigaither necessary health care services. We offeDHblns with varying levels of co-
payments, which result in different levels of pramirates.

Point-of-Service. POS products blend the characteristics of HMO, BR@indemnity plans. Members can have comprehe h8il@-
style benefits through participating network prarslwith minimum out-of-pocket expenses (co-paysieand also can go directly, without a
referral, to any provider they choose, subjecatnpng other things, certain deductibles and coarsie. Member cost sharing is limited by out-
of-pocket maximums.

Administrative Services. In addition to fullyinsured products, we provide administrative ses/toelarge group employers that maint
self-funded health plans. These administrativeisesvinclude underwriting, actuarial services, matimanagement, claims processing and
other administrative services for self-funded ergpts. Self-funded health plans are also able tous@rovider networks and to realize
savings through our negotiated provider arrangespevtiile allowing employers the ability to desigertain health benefit plans in accordance
with their own requirements and objectives. We alsderwrite stop loss insurance for self-fundedhpla

BlueCard. BlueCard host members are generally members widergsor travel to a state in which a WellPoinbsidiary is the Blue
Cross and/or Blue Shield licensee and who are eovender an employer sponsored health plan serbig@dnon-WellPoint controlled BCBS
licensee, who is the “home” plan. We perform certdministrative functions for BlueCard host mensb&or which we receive administrative
fees from the BlueCard members’ home plans. OttienirgEstrative functions, including maintenance of@lment information and customer
service, are performed by the home plan.

Senior Plans. We offer a wide variety of senior plans, productd aptions such as Medicare supplement plans, Meglisdvantage
(including private fee-for-service plans) and Medée Part D Prescription Drug Plans, or Medicare PaMedicare supplement plans typically
pay the difference between health care costs iadly a beneficiary and amounts paid by Medicaredibhre Advantage plans provide
Medicare beneficiaries with a managed care alter#b traditional Medicare and often include a Nbade Part D benefit. Medicare Part D
offers a prescription drug plan to Medicare andl éligible (Medicare and Medicaid) beneficiaries.3eptember 2005, we were awarded
contracts to offer Medicare Part D to eligible Meate beneficiaries in all 50 states. We began ioffehese plans to customers through our
health benefit subsidiaries throughout the courg.served as the exclusive point of sale facddagnrollment provider as defined by CMS
for 2009, 2008 and 2007. On January 12, 2009, Cbtiied us that we were suspended from marketingnis enrolling new members in our
Medicare Advantage and Medicare Part D health litgmefducts until remediation efforts had beenyfuthplemented and confirmed. On
September 9, 2009, CMS notified us that the sanstiad been lifted. We began marketing our Mediéaheantage and Medicare Part D
products on October 1, 2009 and began enrollingmewbers on November 15, 2009 for the 2010 conyest. However,
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we are not currently eligible to receive auto-elmeht or reassignment of Medicare Part D Low Inc@ubsidy, or LIS, beneficiaries. We
continue to work with CMS to demonstrate that goerations related to the Medicare Part D LIS progr&iave been corrected so that we will
again be allowed to participate in the Medicare PatlS auto-assignment process.

Individual Plans. We offer a full range of health insurance planswaitvariety of options and deductibles for indiatbuunder age 65
who are not covered by employer-sponsored covefzgme of our products target certain demographiuladions such as the uninsured,
“young invincibles,” (individuals between the ag#sl9 and 29), families and those transitioningaestn jobs or early retirees.

Medicaid Plans and Other State-Sponsored Programéle have contracts to serve members enrolled in d4édli State Children’s
Health Insurance programs and other publicly funtealth care programs for low income and/or higldicsd risk individuals. We provide
services in California, Indiana, Kansas, Massadisiddew Hampshire, New York, South Carolina, Texégginia, West Virginia and
Wisconsin.

Pharmacy Products. Until December 1, 2009, we offered pharmacy and P#&ices directly to our members through our PBM
subsidiaries. Subsequent to the December 1, 2009taur PBM subsidiaries, these services are managed for us by Express Scripts under
our ten-year contract. Pharmacy services incorpdestures such as drug formularies, a pharmaeyonktand maintenance of a prescription
drug database and mail order capabilities. PBMisesvinclude management of drug utilization throogtpatient prescription drug
formularies, retrospective review and drug educefis physicians, pharmacists and members. TwapoP®8M subsidiaries were licensed
pharmacies and made prescription dispensing sareialable through mail order for PBM clients. ®iBM companies also included
Precision Rx Specialty Solutions, a full servicedplty pharmacy designed to help improve qualityf eost of care by coordinating a relativ
new class of prescription medications commonlyrrefito as biopharmaceuticals, also known as sipeaedications.

Life Insurance. We offer an array of competitive individual and gpdife insurance benefit products to both largd amall group
customers in conjunction with our health plans. Titeeproducts include term life and accidental theend dismemberment.

Disability. We offer short-term and long-term disability pragis usually in conjunction with our health plans.

Behavioral Health. We offer specialized behavioral health plans amelieEmanagement. These plans cover mental headth a
substance abuse treatment services on both aneinpahd an outpatient basis. We have implementgaa@yee assistance and behavioral
managed care programs for a wide variety of busggthroughout the United States. These prograensffared through our subsidiaries.

Radiology Benefit Management.We offer outpatient diagnostic imaging managementises to health plans. These services include
utilization management for advanced diagnostic imagrocedures, network development and optimipatatient safety, claims adjudication
and provider payment.

Personal Health Care Guidance.We offer leading analytics-driven personal headtheauidance. These services help improve the
quality, coordination and safety of health cardyaarte communications between patients and thesighps, and reduce medical costs.

Dental. Our dental plans include networks in certain stateghich we operate. Many of the dental benefites@ovided to customers
enrolled in our health plans and are offered ot laotinsured and self-funded basis. Additionallg,offer managed dental services to other
health care plans to assist those other healthptans in providing dental benefits to their cuséom

Vision Services. Our vision plans include networks within thates we operate. Many of the vision benefits aogiged to customers
enrolled in our health plans and are offered ot laotinsured and self-funded basis.
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Long-Term Care Insurance. We offer long-term care insurance products to aalif@nia members through a subsidiary. The lorrgate
care products include tax-qualified and non-taxifjgd versions of a skilled nursing home care pdaadl comprehensive policies covering
skilled, intermediate and custodial long-term camd home health services.

Medicare Administrative Operations. Through our subsidiary, NGS, we serve as a fistatinediary, carrier and Medicare
administrative contractor providing administratservices for the Medicare program, which genenaidbyvides coverage for persons who art
or older and for persons who are disabled or wiith stage renal disease. Part A of the Medicarerarogrovides coverage for services
provided by hospitals, skilled nursing facilitiesdeother health care facilities. Part B of the Magé program provides coverage for services
provided by physicians, physical and occupatiohetapists and other professional providers, asagetlertain durable medical equipment and
medical supplies. CMS is currently conducting cotitipe procurements to replace the current fisotgrimediary and carrier contracts with
contracts that conform to the Federal Acquisiti@g®Rations. These new contracts, referred to asddesl Administrative Contracts, or MAC
will combine most of the administrative activitiesrrently performed by the existing intermedia@esl carriers. At year end 2008, NGS held
two MACs as a prime contractor and supported oneC8lAs a subcontractor. Additionally, NGS was awaua® prime contract and two
subcontracts under other MAC awards, but those dswaere protested and sustained by the governiiemtate, the protested awards have
been awarded by CMS. Compensation under the MAGs & cost plus award fee basis while compensatider the fiscal intermediary and
carrier contracts is on a cost reimbursement basis.

Customer Types

Our products are generally developed and markeitdan emphasis on the differing needs of our wericustomers. In particular, our
product development and marketing efforts take auwount the differing characteristics betweenvéimious customers served by us, including
individuals, employers, seniors and Medicaid remifs, as well as the unique needs of educatiomgpablic entities, labor groups, federal
employee health and benefit programs, national epepps and state-run programs servicing low-incdmgh-risk and under-served markets.
Each business unit is responsible for product aegigcing, enrolling, underwriting and servicingstomers in specific customer types. We
believe that one of the keys to our success has tn@efocus on distinct customer types, which bettebles us to develop benefit plans and
services that meet our customers’ unique needs.

Overall, we seek to establish pricing and prodesighs to achieve an appropriate level of profiitglfior each of our customer categol
balanced with competitive objectives. Our custodedinitions were revised in the first quarter o080n accordance with our new
organizational structure. Prior periods have beefassified to conform to the 2009 and 2008 prediemt. As of December 31, 2009, our
medical membership customer types included theviallg categories:

» Local Group consists of those employer custometis l&#ss than 5% of eligible employees located detsif the headquarter state, as
well as customers with more than 5% of eligible tappes located outside of the headquarter statewpitto 2,500 eligible
employees. In addition, Local Group includes Uni&Clacal group members. These groups are genemthtisrough brokers or
consultants working with industry specialists froor in-house sales force. Local Group insurancenpn@s may be based on claims
incurred by the group or sold on a self-insuredshdhe customer’s buying decision is typically &sipon the size and breadth of
our networks, customer service, the quality of medical management services, the administrativeigdsided in our quoted price,
our financial stability, reputation and our abiltty effectively service large complex accounts.dldgroup accounted for 47% of our
medical members at December 31, 2(

» Individual consists of individual customers undge %5 (including UniCare) and their covered depatgiéndividual policies are
generally sold through independent agents and bspker in-house sales force or via the Intermetividual business is sold on a
fully -insured basis and is usua
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medically underwritten at the point of initial igswe. Individual customers are generally more sigadb product pricing and, to
lesser extent, the configuration of the networld tire efficiency of administration. Account turnov& generally higher with
Individual as compared to Local Groups. Individoasiness accounted for 6% of our medical membebge¢mber 31, 200!

» National Accounts generally consist of m-state employer groups primarily headquarteredWediPoint service area with at le:
5% of the eligible employees located outside oftbadquarter state and with more than 2,500 efigibiployees. Some exceptions
are allowed based on broker relationships. Semfiea is defined as the geographic area in whichrevdicensed to sell BCBS
products. National Accounts are generally soldubloindependent brokers or consultants retainetidgustomer working with our
in-house sales force. We have a significant adgentehen competing for very large National Accoutus to the size and breadth of
our networks and our ability to access the natipnavider networks of BCBS companies and take atdggnof their provider
discounts in their local markets. National Accourgsresented 20% of our medical members at Decegihx009

» BlueCard host customers represent enrollees of 8foes and/or Blue Shield plans not owned by WétPwho receive health care
services in our BCBSA licensed markets. BlueCardhbvership consists of estimated host members usagational BlueCard
program. Host members are generally members wilder@sor travel to a state in which a WellPoinbsidliary is the Blue Cross
and/or Blue Shield licensee and who are covereemaa employer-sponsored health plan issued byaMellPoint controlled
BCBSA licensee (i.e., the “home plan”). We perfarertain administrative functions for BlueCard mensbéor which we receive
administrative fees from the BlueCard members’ hptaas. Other administrative functions, includingimeenance of enrollment
information and customer service, are performethbyhome plan. Host members are computed usinghyguatber things, the
average number of BlueCard claims received per md@iueCard host membership accounted for 14% ohwadical members at
December 31, 200!

» Senior customers are Medicare-eligible individuaihmbers age 65 and over who have enrolled in Megliddvantage, a managed
care alternative for the Medicare program, or wheehpurchased Medicare Supplement benefit covekdgdicare Supplement
policies are sold to Medicare recipients as supptemto the benefits they receive from the Medipaiogiram. Rates are filed with
and in some cases approved by state insurancetohepas. Most of the premium for Medicare Advantagpaid directly by the
Federal government on behalf of the participant wiay also be charged a small premium. Medicare IBopmt and Medicare
Advantage products are marketed in the same mapnerarily through independent agents and brokeesior business accounted
for 4% of our medical members at December 31, 2

» State-Sponsored membership represents eligible membénsStat-Sponsored managed care alternatives in Medicaidtatd
Children’s Health Insurance Plan programs. Totate&sEponsored program business accounted for 5%rahedical members at
December 31, 200!

» FEP members consist of United States governmentogegs and their dependents within our geograplaidets through ot
participation in the national contract betweenBI@BSA and the U.S. Office of Personnel ManagemeBE business accounted for
4% of our medical members at December 31, 2

In addition to reporting our medical membershipchgtomer type, we report by funding arrangementraiag to the level of risk that v
assume in the product contract. Our two principatling arrangement categories are fully-insuredsatidfunded. Fully-insured products are
products in which we indemnify our policyholdersaatst costs for health benefits. Self-funded preslace offered to customers, generally
larger employers, who elect to retain most or fithe financial risk associated with their employedweealth care costs. Some self-funded
customers choose to purchase stop-loss coverdigeitttheir retained risk.
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The following tables set forth our medical membgrdly customer type and funding arrangement:

December 31

2009 2008
(In thousands)
Customer Type:
Local Group 15,64: 16,63:
Individual 2,131 2,27:
National:
National Account: 6,81: 6,72(
BlueCard 4,744 4,73¢€
Total National 11,557 11,45¢
Senior 1,21¢ 1,30«
State-Sponsore( 1,73 1,99
FEP 1,391 1,39:
Total medical membership by customer t 33,67( 35,04¢
Funding Arrangement:
Self-Fundec 18,23¢  18,52(
Fully-Insured 15,43 16,52¢
Total medical membership by funding arrangen 33,67( 35,04¢

For additional information regarding the changeniedical membership between years, see the Managisrdescussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations ideldiin this Form 10-K.

In addition to the above medical membership, we aé&ve customers who purchase one or more oftbar products or services that are
often ancillary to our health business. Examplethe$e other products or services include lifegalie management and wellness, personal
health care guidance, radiology benefit managem&iban, and dental. We also provide some of tlwker products to unaffiliated BCBS or
other health plans which contract with us for dertervices.

Networks and Provider Relations

Our relationships with physicians, hospitals amfgssionals that provide health care services tormmbers are guided by regional and
national standards for network development, reiraioment and contract methodologies.

We attempt to provide market-based hospital reisdment along industry standards. We also seekstarethat physicians in our
network are paid in a timely manner at appropniates. We use multi-year contracting strategiesduding case or fixed rates, to limit our
exposure to medical cost inflation and increas¢ prelictability. We seek to maintain broad providetworks to ensure member choice, b:
on both price and access needs, while implemeptiograms designed to improve the quality of caceireed by our members.

It is generally our philosophy not to delegate fidkancial responsibility to our physician providen the form of capitation-based
reimbursement. However, in certain markets we bel@apitation can be a useful method to lower castsreduce underwriting risk, and we
therefore have some capitation contracts.

Depending on the consolidation and integrationtgfgician groups and hospitals, reimbursement gfiegesary across markets. Fee-for-
service is our predominant reimbursement methogologphysicians. Physician fee schedules are dpeel at the state level based on an
assessment of several factors and conditions,dimgju
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CMS resource-based relative value system, or RBRW&)ges, medical practice cost inflation and ptigsisupply. We utilize CMS RBRVS
fee schedules as a reference point for fee schel@wleopment and analysis. The RBRVS structuredeasloped and is maintained by CMS,
and is used by the Medicare program and other npajgers. In addition, we have implemented and naetio expand physician incentive
contracting, which recognizes clinical quality gefformance as a basis for reimbursement.

Our hospital contracts provide for a variety olmbursement arrangements depending on local maykeingics and current hospital
utilization efficiency. Most hospitals are reimbesa fixed amount per day or per case for inpatieméred services. Some hospitals, primarily
sole community hospitals, are reimbursed on a discfyom approved charge basis for covered servides “per case” reimbursement
methods utilize many of the same attributes coethin Medicare’s Diagnosis Related Groups, or DR@thodology. Hospital outpatient
services are reimbursed by fixed case rates, fesdsibes or percent of approved charges. Our hbspitdracts recognize unique hospital
attributes, such as academic medical centers omeority hospitals, and the volume of care perforfoedur members. To improve
predictability of expected cost, we frequently asmulti-year contracting approach and have beesitianing to case rate payment
methodologies. Many of our hospital contracts hammbursement linked to improved clinical perforroanpatient safety and medical error
reduction.

Medical Management Programs

Our medical management programs include a broay afractivities that facilitate improvements irethuality of care provided to our
members and promote cost effective medical cares@imedical management activities and programadiménistered and directed by
physicians and trained nurses. One of the goadsioimedical management strategies is to ensurehtatare delivered to our members is
supported by appropriate medical and scientifidence.

Precertification. A traditional medical management program ineglassessment of the appropriateness of certgpitdlasations and
other medical services prior to the service beerglered. For example, precertification is useceterinine whether a set of hospital and
medical services is being appropriately applietheomember’s clinical condition, in accordance vetheria for medical necessity as that term
is defined in the membexr’benefits contract. Most of our health plans hiey@emented precertification programs for certaghhcost radiolog
studies, addressing an area of historically sigaift cost trends. As previously described in Sigaift Transactions, on August 1, 2007, we
completed our acquisition of AIM. We continue taanporate AIM’s services and technology for morfedive and efficient use of diagnostic
imaging services by our members.

Concurrent review. Another traditional medical management strat@gyuse is concurrent review, which is based oionally
recognized criteria developed by third-party meldspeecialists. With concurrent review, the requiesnts and intensity of services during a
patient’s hospital stay are reviewed, at timestypumasite skilled nurse professional in collabomatigth the hospital medical and nursing ste
in order to coordinate care and determine the mibsttive transition of care from the hospital et

Formulary management. We have developed formularies, which are sielestof drugs based on clinical quality and effestiess. A
pharmacy and therapeutics committee of physiciaes gcientific and clinical evidence to ensure dhiatmembers have access to the
appropriate drug therapies. This function remaivéd us after the sale of our PBM business.

Medical policy. A medical policy group comprised of physiciaaders from various areas of the country, workingaoperation with
academic medical centers, practicing community fgieyss and medical specialty organizations sudh@#®\merican College of Radiology a
national organizations such as the Centers foradBs€ontrol and the American Cancer Society, détesyour national policy for the
application of new medical technologies and treatise
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Quality programs. We are actively engaged with our hospital and gligsinetworks to enable them to improve medicalsandical
care and achieve better outcomes for our membezseMlorse, encourage and incent hospitals andgidaysito support national initiatives to
improve the quality of clinical care, patient outoes and to reduce medication errors and hospfidtions. We have demonstrated our
leadership in developing hospital quality programs.

External review procedures. We work with outside experts through a proacdssxternal review to provide our members sciecuify
and clinically, evidenced-based medical care. Wihemeceive member concerns, we have formal appeatgdures that ultimately allow
coverage disputes related to medical necessitgides under the benefits contract to be settleithdgpendent expert physicians.

Service management. In HMO and POS networks, primary care physigis@rve as the overall coordinators of memberdttheare
needs by providing an array of preventive healthises and overseeing referrals to specialistafqropriate medical care. In PPO networks,
patients have access to network physicians witaqutmary care physician serving as the coordinataare.

Anthem Care Compare. We educate members about high-quality, costediffe procedures that are covered by their beplits.
Members are able to access via the internet a aisopeof the cost of care, quality ratings and lietevels for common services at specified
facilities, including the facility and professioratd ancillary service costs. This allows membemake an educated decision about quality
cost before choosing a provider for these commongatures.

Personal Health Care Guidance. These services help improve the quality, cowtibn and safety of health care, enhance
communications between patients and their physiciand reduce medical costs. Examples of servimbsde member and physician
messaging, providing access to evidence-based alaggicelines, physician quality profiling, and etfconsulting services.

Care Management Programs

We continue to expand 0860° Healthsuite of integrated care management programs ats] wffered through our wholly-owned
subsidiary, Health Management Corporati®®0° Healthoffers the following programs, among others, thatehbeen proven to increase qui:
and reduce medical costs for our members:

ConditionCareandFutureMomsare care management and maternity management preghat serve as excellent adjuncts to physician
care. A dedicated nurse and added support fronteann of dietitians, exercise physiologists, phatisiachealth educators and other health
professionals help participants understand theidition, their doctor’s orders and how to beconieetier self-manager of their condition.

24/7 NurseLineffers access to qualified, registered nurses argytimhis allows our members to make informed dexngsabout the
appropriate level of care and avoid unnecessaryywdhis program also includes a robust audiotépary, accessible by phone, with more
than 400 health topics, as well as on-line healtication topics designed to educate members apmgtems and treatment of many common
health concerns.

ComplexCarés an advanced care management program that reashgsparticipants with multiple health care issuvho are at risk for
frequent and high levels of medical care in ordesfter support and assistance in managing theilthheare need€€omplexCaredentifies
candidates through claims analysis using predictieeleling technigues, the use of health risk agsessdata, utilization management reports
and referrals from a physician or one of our offregrams, such as tf2d/7 NurseLine

MyHealth Advantagetilizes integrated information systems and soptastd data analytics to help our members imprbeé t
compliance with evidence-based care guidelinesjigirtg personal care notes that alert members terpial gaps in care, enable more prudent
health care choices, and assist in the realizationember out-of-pocket cost savings.
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MyHealth Coactprovides our members with a professional guide iwlps them navigate the health care system and betier
decisions about their well-beinglyHealth Coaclproactively reaches out to people who are at oslsérious health issues or have complex
health care needs. Our health coaches help paniiunderstand and manage chronic conditionsdang health and wellness related
services they need and make smart lifestyle choices

HealthyLifestylefielps employees transform unhealthy habits intatigesones by focusing on behaviors that can hapesitive effect o
their health and their employer’s financial wellfige HealthyLifestyleprograms include smoking cessation, weight manageragess
management, physical activity and diet and nutxitio

MyHealth@Anthens our secure web-based solution, complementingrgitograms by reinforcing telephonic coaching arzd
campaigns. The website engages participants inaggassessing their health status, gives themibf@ek about their progress, and tracks
important health measures such as blood presseightiand blood glucose levels.

Employee Assistance Prograp®vide many resources that allow members to balamark and personal life by providing quick andye
access to confidential resources to help meettiblemiges of daily life. Examples of services aafalit in person as well as via telephone or
internet are counseling for child care, health aetiness, financial issues, legal issues, adoiwhdaily living.

Health Care Quality Initiatives

Increasingly, the health care industry is abledbrg quality health care based on preventive heatasurements, outcomes of care and
optimal care management for chronic disease. At@ur success has been our ability to work withratwork physicians and hospitals to
improve the quality and outcomes of the health sargices provided to our members. Our abilityrianpote quality medical care has been
recognized by the NCQA, the largest and most réefdetational accreditation program for managed bagdth plans.

Several quality health care measures, includindHsalth Plan Employer Data and Information SetlBDIS, have been incorporated
into the oversight certification by NCQA. HEDIS nseaes range from preventive services, such asrsageemammography and pediatric
immunization, to elements of care, including desiegithe complications of diabetes and improviegitment for patients with heart disease.
For the HMO and POS plans, NCQA's highest accréditds granted only to those plans that demorsirtels of service and clinical quality
that meet or exceed NCQA's rigorous requirementeémsumer protection and quality improvement. Plkaarning this accreditation level
must also achieve HEDIS results that are in thadsgrange of national or regional performance.tRrePPO plans, NCQA'’s highest
accreditation is granted to those plans that hagelkent programs for quality improvement and cansuprotection and that meet or exceed
NCQA'’s standards. Overall, our managed care plans bese rated “Excellent”, the highest accreditatmnNCQA.

We have committed to measuring our progress inawipg the quality of care that our members andammmunities receive through ¢
proprietary Member Health Index, or MHI, and Stidtalth Index, or SHI. The MHI is comprised of 2thidally relevant measures for our
health plan members and combines prevention, carmgement, clinical outcome and patient safetyioseffhe SHI measures the health o
the residents in our BCBSA licensed states, natgus members, using public data from the Centar®fsease Control and Prevention.

Our wholly-owned clinical research and health outcomes researsidiary, HealthCore, has supported biopharuoteed manufacturer
health professionals, and health plans by enaltioge effective medical management and increasesigiby adherence to evidence based
care, and creating new knowledge on the valueioical therapies, resulting in better care decision
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Our wholly-owned radiology management subsidiarjvl Ahas supported quality by implementing utilizetimanagement programs for
advanced imaging procedures that are based onyadekpted clinical guidelines. These programs pterthe most appropriate use of these
procedures to improve the quality of overall heatthe delivered to our members and members of béwdth plans that are covered under
AIM’s programs. In addition to utilization managemeAIM has also implemented i@ptiNet® program, which promotes more informed
selection of diagnostic imaging facilities by prdiwig cost and facility information to physiciangla¢ point that a procedure is ordered. AIM
also provides education on radiation exposure &sgacwith advanced diagnostic procedures to mesrdned physicians.

Our wholly-owned analytics-driven personal heaklthecguidance subsidiary, Resolution Health Incs,wpported quality by helping our
members take action to get healthy, stay healtlybatter manage chronic illness. Our analysis dhdividual member’s health data identifies
opportunities to improve health care quality anfétya we then send personalized messages to théberetheir doctor and care manager to
take action. For example, our drug safety messiaf@sn a member’s doctor, pharmacist or care manafpotentially dangerous drug-drug,
drug-condition, drug-age, or drug-dose interactiolesitified in our Drug Safety Scan. This helps ioye safety, drug effectiveness and
medication adherence.

Pricing and Underwriting of Our Products

We price our products based on our assessmentreintinealth care claim costs and emerging healté cost trends, combined with
charges for administrative expenses, risk and pMfe continually review our product designs anidipg guidelines on a national and regio
basis so that our products remain competitive amsistent with our profitability goals and stratgyi

In applying our pricing to each employer group andtomer, we maintain consistent, competitivecstnnderwriting standards. We
employ our proprietary accumulated actuarial datdeitermining underwriting and pricing paramet@véiere allowed by law and regulation,
we underwrite individual policies based upon thelica history of the individual applying for covei® small groups based upon case specific
underwriting procedures and large groups basedioh group’s aggregate claim experience. Also, weleyrcredit underwriting procedures
with respect to our self-funded products.

In most circumstances, our pricing and underwritiegisions follow a prospective rating process Imch a fixed premium is determined
at the beginning of the contract period. For fuligured business, any deviation, favorable or wrade, from the medical costs assumed in
determining the premium is our responsibility. Sasheur larger groups employ retrospective ratiegiews, where positive experience is
partially refunded to the group, and negative elgnee is charged against a rate stabilization fsteblished from the group’s favorable
experience, or charged against future favorableéspce.

BCBSA Licenses

We have filed for registration of and maintain sevservice marks, trademarks and trade namee détteral level and in various states
in which we operate. We have the exclusive righige the BCBS names and marks for our health hemebtiducts in California (Blue Cross
only), Colorado, Connecticut, Georgia, Indiana, teky, Maine, Missouri (excluding 30 counties i tkansas City area), Nevada, New
Hampshire, New York (as BCBS in 10 New York Citytnepolitan and surrounding counties, and as Blues€or BCBS in selected upstate
counties only), Ohio, Virginia (excluding the Noetin Virginia suburbs of Washington, D.C.) and Wissia. In a majority of these service
areas we do business as Anthem Blue Cross, AntHeenx®@oss Blue Shield or Empire Blue Cross Blueetsh{in our New York service aree

Our license agreements require an annual fee paioeto the BCBSA. Through 2007, the fee was bageth enrollment and net revenue
as defined by BCBSA. Beginning in 2008, the fee ased on enroliment only. BCBSA is a nationaléradsociation of Blue Cross and Blue
Shield licensees, the primary function of
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which is to promote and preserve the integrityhef BCBS names and marks, as well as provide cartairdination among the member
companies. Each BCBSA licensee is an independgal tegganization and is not responsible for oblga of other BCBSA member
organizations. We have no right to market prodaots services using the BCBS names and marks oukitie states in which we are licensed
to sell BCBS products.

We believe that the BCBS names and marks are Meligdntifiers of our products and services inrterketplace. The license
agreements, which have a perpetual term, contaiaioceequirements and restrictions regarding @arations and our use of the BCBS names
and marks. Upon termination of the license agre¢mere would cease to have the right to use the B&&8mes and marks in one or more of
the states in which we are authorized to use thiésrend the BCBSA could thereafter issue licensesé the BCBS names and marks in those
states to another entity. Events that could causeermination of a license agreement with the BEB®Iude failure to comply with minimui
capital requirements imposed by the BCBSA, a charfigentrol or violation of the BCBSA ownership liision our capital stock, impending
financial insolvency, the appointment of a trusteeeceiver or the commencement of any action agaiticensee seeking its dissolution.

The license agreements with the BCBSA contain tereguirements and restrictions regarding our afgems and our use of the BCBS
names and marks, including:

minimum capital and liquidity requirements;

enrollment and customer service performance remérgs;

participation in programs that provide portabilifymembership between plans;

disclosures to the BCBSA relating to enroliment &indncial conditions

disclosures as to the structure of the BCBS sy#terontracts with third parties and in public staénts;
plan governance requirements;

a requirement that at least 80% (or, in the caglu# Cross of California, substantially all) ofigense’s annual combined n
revenue attributable to health benefit plans wiitdrservice area must be sold, marketed, admreidter underwritten under the
BCBS names and mark

a requirement that at least 863% of a licensee’s annual combined national reverttributable to health benefit plans must be sold,
marketed, administered or underwritten under th&8@ames and mark

a requirement that neither a plan nor any of isrised affiliates may permit an entity other thauhaa or a licensed affiliate to obtain
control of the plan or the licensed affiliate oratquire a substantial portion of its assets rdladdicensable service

a requirement that limits beneficial ownership of oapital stock to less than 10% for institutiomatestors and less than 5% for -
institutional investors

a requirement that we divide our Board of Direciots three classes serving staggered three-ygaste
a requirement that we guarantee certain contraatuwhfinancial obligations of our licensed affiat anc

a requirement that we indemnify the BCBSA against @daims asserted against it resulting from thetreactual and financial
obligations of any subsidiary that serves as afistermediary providing administrative services Medicare Parts A and |

We believe that we and our licensed affiliatesameently in compliance with these standards. Taadards under the license agreem
may be modified in certain instances by the BCBSA.
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Regulation

General

Our operations are subject to comprehensive arallelétstate, federal and international regulatioughout the jurisdictions in which
we do business. Supervisory agencies, includirtg st@alth, insurance and corporation departmeatss hroad authority to:

grant, suspend and revoke licenses to transactdussi
regulate many aspects of our products and sen
monitor our solvency and reserve adequacy; and

scrutinize our investment activities on the basiguality, diversification and other quantitativeteria.

To carry out these tasks, these regulators pedtidiexamine our operations and accounts.

Regulation of Insurance Company and HMO Businesisif\c

The federal government, as well as the governnaritse states in which we conduct our operatioasghadopted laws and regulations
that govern our business activities in various w&ysther, pending health care reform legislatiaymesult in increased federal regulation that
could have a significant impact on our businesgséhHaws and regulations, which vary significabtfystate, may restrict how we conduct our
businesses and may result in additional burdensasitd to us. Areas of governmental regulatioruielbut are not limited to:

licensure;

premium rates

underwriting and pricing;

benefits;

eligibility requirements;

guaranteed renewability;

service areas

market conduct;

sales and marketing activitie

quality assurance procedures;

plan design and disclosures, including mandateeéfiisr

underwriting, marketing and rating restrictions $omall group products;
utilization review activities

prompt payment of claims;

requirements that pharmacy benefit managers passfa@urer’ rebates to customet
member rights and responsibilities;

collection, access or use of protected health imé&tion;

data reporting, including financial data and stadddor electronic transactior
payment of dividends;

provider rates of paymer
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e surcharges on provider paymer

e provider contract forms;

» provider access standari

* premium taxes and assessments for the uninsurédramtierinsured;

 member and provider complaints and appe

» financial condition (including reserves and minimuaapital or risk based capital requirements andstments);
» reimbursement or payment levels for government édnolisiness; ar

. corporate governance.

These laws and regulations are subject to amendnaent changing interpretations in each jurisdiction
Our Medicare plans, Medicaid plans and other Ssgtersored programs are subject to extensive fededastate laws and regulations.

States generally require health insurers and HMQ@btain a certificate of authority prior to commgry operations. If we were to
establish a health insurance company or an HMOynjarisdiction where we do not presently operate,generally would have to obtain such
a certificate. The time necessary to obtain sucérgficate varies from jurisdiction to jurisdictioEach health insurer and HMO must file
periodic financial and operating reports with tketes in which it does business. In addition, helsurers and HMOs are subject to state
examination and periodic license renewal. The hd@hefits business also may be adversely impéstedurt and regulatory decisions that
expand the interpretations of existing statutesragdlations. It is uncertain whether we can rectlupugh higher premiums or other
measures, the increased costs of mandated beorefitter increased costs caused by potential ksl regulation or court rulings.

HIPAA and Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act

The federal Health Insurance Portability and Acc¢ability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, imposes obligatiofsr issuers of health insurance
coverage and health benefit plan sponsors. Thigéauires guaranteed renewability of health care@age for most group health plans and
certain individuals. Also, the law limits exclus®hased on preexisting medical conditions.

The Administrative Simplification provisions of HAA imposed a number of requirements on coverediestfincluding insurers, HMC
group health plans, providers and clearinghoudd®se requirements include uniform standards ofrcomelectronic health care transactions;
privacy and security regulations; and unique idemtrules for employers, health plans and prowid&ecently, additional federal privacy and
security requirements, including breach notificationproved enforcement and additional limitatiemsuse and disclosure of protected health
information were passed through the HITECH provisiof the American Recovery and Reinvestment AQOS0O and corresponding
implementing regulations. Additional implementirggulations relating to HITECH are expected in 2010.

The federal Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act generally placestrictions on the disclosure of non-public imfiation to non-affiliated third
parties, and requires financial institutions, imtthg insurers, to provide customers with noticeardgng how their non-public personal
information is used, including an opportunity tgteut” of certain disclosures. State departmehissurance and certain federal agencies
adopted implementing regulations as required bgr@daw. A number of states have adopted datarisgtaws and/or regulations, regulating
data security and/or requiring security breachfivation, which may apply to us in certain circuargtes. Federal laws and regulations
concerning health care and health insurance maylbject to significant change. See Part |, Item Rk Factors of this Form 10-K.
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Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974

The provision of services to certain employee weltzenefit plans is subject to the Employee Retmatinincome Security Act of 1974, as
amended, or ERISA, a complex set of laws and réigula subject to interpretation and enforcementhigyinternal Revenue Service and the
Department of Labor. ERISA regulates certain agpetthe relationships between us, the employeis waintain employee welfare benefit
plans subject to ERISA and participants in suclhql&ome of our administrative services and otbgvides may also be subject to regulation
under ERISA. In addition, certain states requicerisure or registration of companies providingdtipiarty claims administration services for
benefit plans. We provide a variety of products serices to employee welfare benefit plans thatcavered by ERISA. Plans subject to
ERISA can also be subject to state laws and thstigueof whether and to what extent ERISA preeraptate law has been, and will continue
to be, interpreted by many courts.

HMO and Insurance Holding Company Laws

We are regulated as an insurance holding compashya@nsubject to the insurance holding companydaddtse states in which our
insurance company and HMO subsidiaries are dordicilaese acts contain certain reporting requiremasitwell as restrictions on transacti
between an insurer or HMO and its affiliates. Thieskeling company laws and regulations generallyiregnsurance companies and HMOs
within an insurance holding company system to tegisith the insurance department of each stateeviey are domiciled and to file with
those states’ insurance departments certain regestsibing capital structure, ownership, financiahdition, certain intercompany transactions
and general business operations. In addition, wanmtice and reporting requirements generallyyafaptransactions between insurance
companies and HMOs and their affiliates within masuirance holding company system, depending onizbeand nature of the transactions.
Some insurance holding company laws and regulatiequsire prior regulatory approval or, in certaircemstances, prior notice of certain
material intercompany transfers of assets as watkatain transactions between insurance compatid€s, their parent holding companies
and affiliates. Among other provisions, state iasiwe and HMO laws may restrict the ability of cegulated subsidiaries to pay dividends.

Additionally, the holding company acts of the ssatewhich our subsidiaries are domiciled resttiet ability of any person to obtain
control of an insurance company or HMO without prigulatory approval. Under those statutes, witlsogh approval (or an exemption), no
person may acquire any voting security of an insceaholding company, which controls an insurancegamy or HMO, or merge with such a
holding company, if as a result of such transacsiach person would “control” the insurance holdmognpany. “Control” is generally defined
as the direct or indirect power to direct or catigedirection of the management and policies ofragn and is presumed to exist if a person
directly or indirectly owns or controls 10% or markthe voting securities of another person.

Guaranty Fund Assessments

Under insolvency or guaranty association laws iststates, insurance companies can be assesswddants paid by guaranty funds
policyholder losses incurred when an insurance @mecomes insolvent. Most state insolvency oranig association laws currently
provide for assessments based upon the amounewfiypms received on insurance underwritten withithsstate (with a minimum amount
payable even if no premium is received). Under mafiprese guaranty association laws, assessmegitssagisurance companies that issue
policies of accident or sickness insurance are metlespectively.

While the amount and timing of any future assessmegmnnot be predicted with certainty, we beliha future guaranty association
assessments for insurer insolvencies will not fewreaterial adverse effect on our liquidity and tapesources.
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Risk-Based Capital Requirements

The states of domicile of our regulated subsidgahiave statutory risk-based capital, or RBC, resménts for health and other insurance
companies and HMOs based on the RBC Model Act. @ REC requirements are intended to assess thekagéquacy of life and health
insurers and HMOs, taking into account the riskrabiristics of a company’s investments and pradddie RBC Model Act sets forth the
formula for calculating the RBC requirements, whick designed to take into account asset risksranse risks, interest rate risks and other
relevant risks with respect to an individual comparbusiness. In general, under these laws, amanse company or HMO must submit a
report of its RBC level to the insurance departnwgrihsurance commissioner of its state of domifdteeach calendar year.

The law requires increasing degrees of regulataeyight and intervention as a company’s RBC deslifThe RBC Model Act provides
for four different levels of regulatory attentioekending on the ratio of a company’s total adjustguital (defined as the total of its statutory
capital, surplus and asset valuation reserveytosk-based capital. The level of regulatory oigrisranges from requiring the company to
inform and obtain approval from the domiciling in@ence commissioner of a comprehensive financial fdaincreasing its RBC, to mandatory
regulatory intervention requiring a company to tecpd under regulatory control in a rehabilitatriquidation proceeding. As of
December 31, 2009, the RBC levels of our insuramceHMO subsidiaries exceeded all RBC thresholds.

Employees

At December 31, 2009, we had approximately 40,50pleyees. As of December 31, 2009, a small podfoemployees were covered
collective bargaining agreements: 170 employedisdrSacramento, California area with the Office Bnafessional Employees International
Union, Local 29; 53 employees in the greater D&tMichigan area with the International Brotherhaddreamsters, Chauffeurs,
Warehousemen and Helpers of America, Local No. @34&mployees in the New York city metropolitansawdth the Office and Professional
Employees International Union, Local 153; and 29kayees in Milwaukee, Wisconsin with the Office dPifessional Employees
International Union, Local 9. Our employees arénaportant asset, and we seek to develop them toftliepotential. We believe that our
relationship with our employees is good.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

The following factors, among others, could caugeaaesults to differ materially from those contd in forward-looking statements
made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and presgeisewhere by management from time to time. $aatbrs, among others, may have a
material adverse effect on our business, finar@abition, and results of operations and you sheafefully consider them. It is not possible
predict or identify all such factors. Consequengiyy should not consider any such list to be a detagstatement of all our potential risks or
uncertainties. Because of these and other fagiast,performance should not be considered an itialicaf future performance.

Health care reform legislation being considered by ongress may adversely affect our business, cashuls, financial condition and
results of operations.

The 2008 elections resulted in a renewed focuseatltth care issues and many key legislators andyrapylointed and elected officials,
including President Obama, have proposed significeform to the health care system. The U.S. Hofis®epresentatives and the U.S. Senate
passed separate health care reform bills late 09 .2Both chambers are seeking to reconcile thig &ind it is possible that the reconciled bill
may contain the following elements:

* A special assessment on health insurance providdéusd the legislation.

» An excise tax on high cost employer-provided heattherage to fund the legislation.
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* A health care exchange to facilitate uninsureadviitdials’ access to health care coverage from private corap:
« Elimination of certain caps on health care coverage
* The requirement that all citizens must carry heiglurance or be subject to a pene

* New regulations around health plan operationswhatld greatly limit the ability of health plans &ocurately price the risk, requi
health plans to pay a certain percentage of evemyiim dollar as a medical claim and reduce theetsaof product offerings

» Guaranteed coverage for individuals with-existing medical condition:

We do not currently know the ultimate outcome @& thconciliation process or the legislation. Depeg@n the provisions contained in
the final law, this legislation could have a matkddverse impact on our business, cash flowsndiahcondition or results of operations.

Changes in state and federal regulations, or the gication thereof, may adversely affect our busines cash flows, financial
condition and results of operations.

Our insurance, managed health care and HMO subisisliare subject to extensive regulation and sugiervby the insurance, managed
health care or HMO regulatory authorities of eaettesin which they are licensed or authorized tddsiness, as well as to regulation by
federal and local agencies. We cannot assure widtture regulatory action by state insurance BiHauthorities or federal regulatory
authorities will not have a material adverse eftatthe profitability or marketability of our helalbenefits or managed care products or on our
business, financial condition and results of openat In addition, because of our participatiogavernment-sponsored programs such as
Medicare and Medicaid, changes in government réigaksor policy with respect to, among other thinggmbursement levels, eligibility
requirements and additional governmental parti@patould also adversely affect our business, firgrcondition and results of operations. In
addition, we cannot assure you that applicatiotheffederal and/or state tax regulatory regime ¢hatently applies to us will not, or future tax
regulation by either federal and/or state goverrtaleuthorities concerning us could not, have senedtadverse effect on our business,
operations or financial condition.

Congress and state legislatures continue to fogueealth care delivery and financing issues. Sofiteeoreforms call for universal health
care regulation including, but not limited to, teailability of a government sponsored health pfanumber of states, including California,
Colorado, Connecticut, Maine, New York, and Penveyia, are contemplating significant reform of thealth insurance markets. These
proposals include provisions affecting both pupliograms and privately-financed health insurancangements. Broadly stated, these
proposals attempt to increase the number of indoyedising or expanding the eligibility levels foublic programs and compelling individuals
and employers to purchase health coverage. Ataime dime, they seek to reform the underwriting mnadketing practices of health plans. As
these proposals are still being debated in theuariegislatures, we cannot assure you that, iftedanto law, these proposals would not he
negative impact on our business, operations onéigh condition. In addition, several states anesidering legislative proposals to require [
regulatory approval of premium rate increases taidish minimum benefit expense ratio thresholdsalfy, Congress and several state
legislatures are contemplating the imposition afoiss taxes and fees on health plans and on inseremverage and arrangements. If enacted,
these federal or state proposals could have a imlad€eliverse impact on our business, cash flowanfifal condition or results of operations.

From time to time, Congress has considered vafmuss of managed care reform legislation whictadbpted, could fundamentally al
the treatment of coverage decisions under ERISAlithahally, there have been legislative attemptbniit ERISA’s preemptive effect on state
laws and litigants’ ability to seek damages beythedbenefits offered under their plans. If adopgeath limitations could increase our liability
exposure, could permit greater state regulatioouofoperations, and could expand the scope of dasyacluding
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punitive damages litigants could be awarded. Opheposed bills and regulations, including thosatesl to consumer-driven health plans and
health savings accounts and insurance market refirthe state and federal levels may impact cegspects of our business, including
premium receipts, provider contracting, claims pagta and processing and confidentiality of pro¢tealth or other personal information.
While we cannot predict if any of these initiatiwesl ultimately become effective or, if enactedhat their terms will be, their enactment could
increase our costs, expose us to expanded liabilitgquire us to revise the ways in which we catndusiness. Further, as we continue to
implement our e-business initiatives, uncertaintyaunding the regulatory authority and requireraéntthis area may make it difficult to
ensure compliance.

Our inability to contain health care costs, implemat increases in premium rates on a timely basis, niatain adequate reserves for
policy benefits, maintain our current provider agreements or avoid a downgrade in our ratings may advsely affect our business and
profitability.

Our profitability depends in large part on accusafgedicting health care costs and on our abibitynanage future health care costs
through underwriting criteria, medical managemprwduct design and negotiation of favorable provntracts. Government-imposed
limitations on Medicare and Medicaid reimbursenteante also caused the private sector to bear aegr&adre of increasing health care costs.
Changes in health care practices, demographic ceaistics, inflation, new technologies, the cdsprescription drugs, clusters of high cost
cases, changes in the regulatory environment antraus other factors affecting the cost of headtie enay adversely affect our ability to
predict and manage health care costs, as wellrdsusiness, financial condition and results of afiens. Relatively small differences between
predicted and actual health care costs as a pagenf premium revenues can result in significéiainges in our results of operations. If it is
determined that our assumptions regarding costisrand utilization are significantly different thactual results, our income statement and
financial position could be adversely affected.

In addition to the challenge of managing healtle @arsts, we face pressure to contain premium r@@scustomer contracts may be
subject to renegotiation as customers seek to itothtair costs. Alternatively, our customers mayweto a competitor to obtain more favore
premiums. Further, federal and state regulatoryeige may restrict our ability to implement changegremium rates. Fiscal concerns
regarding the continued viability of programs sashMedicare and Medicaid may cause decreasing vegeiment rates or a lack of sufficient
increase in reimbursement rates for governmentssped programs in which we participate. A limitatian our ability to increase or maintain
our premium or reimbursement levels or a signifidass of membership resulting from our need tegase or maintain premium or
reimbursement levels could adversely affect ouinass, cash flows, financial condition and resofteperations.

The reserves that we establish for health insurpotiey benefits and other contractual rights aaddjits are based upon assumptions
concerning a number of factors, including trendkealth care costs, expenses, general economidticmsdand other factors. To the extent the
actual claims experience is less favorable thameastd based on our underlying assumptions, owriad losses would increase and future
earnings could be adversely affected.

In addition, our profitability is dependent uporr ability to contract on favorable terms with hdafs, physicians and other health care
providers. The failure to maintain or to secure mest-effective health care provider contracts megylt in a loss in membership or higher
medical costs. In addition, our inability to comtravith providers, or the inability of providers poovide adequate care, could adversely affect
our business.

Claims-paying ability and financial strength raingy recognized rating organizations are an impoftctor in establishing the
competitive position of insurance companies andthd&enefits companies. Each of the rating ageneieiews its ratings periodically and th:
can be no assurance that our current ratings withhintained in the future. We believe our straatngs are an important factor in marketing
our products to customers, since ratings infornmagsdoroadly disseminated and generally used througthe industry. If our ratings are
downgraded or placed under review, with possiblgatiee implications, such actions could adversely
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affect our business, financial condition and resaftoperations. These ratings reflect each ratggncy’s opinion of our financial strength,
operating performance and ability to meet our @ila@ns to policyholders and creditors, and areewatuations directed toward the protection
of investors in our common stock.

A reduction in the enrollment in our health benefis programs could have an adverse effect on our bugiss and profitability.

A reduction in the number of enrollees in our healenefits programs could adversely affect ourrmss, financial condition and results
of operations. Factors that could contribute teduction in enroliment include: reductions in wankfe by existing customers; general
economic downturn that results in business failueegployers no longer offering certain health careerage as an employee benefit or ele:
to offer this coverage on a voluntary, employeedfahbasis; state and federal regulatory changids;efdo obtain new customers or retain
existing customers; premium increases and berwitges; our exit from a specific market; negativiligity and news coverage; and failure
attain or maintain nationally recognized accreatite.

There are various risks associated with participatig in Medicare and Medicaid programs, and contractig with CMS to provide
Medicare Part C and Medicare Part D Prescription Diug benefits.

We offer Medicare approved prescription drug plévisdicare Part D) and Medicare Advantage plans (bed Part C) to Medicare
eligible individuals nationwide. In addition, wegmide various administrative services for otheite® offering medical and/or prescription
drug plans to their Medicare eligible employees @ettiees through our affiliated companies. We gladicipate in Medicare fiscal
intermediary and Medicaid programs and receivemmags from the Medicare and Medicaid programs teigeobenefits under these programs.

Revenues from the Medicare and Medicaid programsi@pendent, in whole or in part, upon annual fogdiom the federal government
and/or applicable state governments. Funding feselprograms is dependent upon many factors ouwsilér control including general
economic conditions and budgetary constraintseafatieral or applicable state level and generafigallissues and priorities. An unexpected
reduction or inadequate government funding foreélegrams may adversely affect our revenues aaddial results.

Risks associated with the Medicare Advantage andidaee prescription drug plans include potentialaliectability of receivables
resulting from processing and/or verifying enrolliheénadequacy of underwriting assumptions, inaibtlh receive and process correct
information (including inability due to systemstgs by the federal government, the applicable giaternment or us), uncollectability of
premiums from members, increased medical or phauteal costs, and the underlying seasonality isfliisiness. While we believe we have
adequately reviewed our assumptions and estimegesding these complex and wide-ranging progrardsukledicare Part C and D,
including those related to collectability of recalives and establishment of liabilities, the actaaults may be materially different than our
assumptions and estimates and could have a magdriatse effect on our business, financial conaliéiod results of operations.

The laws and regulations governing participatioMedicare and Medicaid programs are complex, stilijeinterpretation and can
expose us to penalties for non-compliance. If viledacomply with the applicable laws and regulasonve could be subject to criminal fines,
civil penalties or other sanctions which could haveaterial adverse effect on our ability to piptite in these programs, financial condition
and results of operations. In addition, legislatveegulatory changes to these programs could hawaterial adverse effect on our business,
cash flows, financial condition and results of Gtiens.

During 2008, we worked with CMS to resolve isswEmntified as a result of our internal compliancditsuand findings from a 2008 CN
audit. Our work included detailed action planseémediate such findings. In addition, we engagethd@pendent third party to provide CMS
with on-going assessments regarding our complianckiding verification of systems, processes amat@dures.
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On January 12, 2009, CMS notified us that we waspended from marketing to and enrolling new mesbeour Medicare Advantage
and Medicare Part D health benefit products uatiediation efforts had been fully implemented amwficmed. On September 9, 2009, CMS
notified us that the sanctions had been lifted.B&gan marketing our Medicare Advantage and MediareD products on October 1, 2009
and began enrolling new members on November 13 &fithe 2010 contract year. However, we are natently eligible to receive auto-
enroliment or reassignment of Medicare Part D Lowome Subsidy, or LIS, beneficiaries. We contirmeork with CMS to demonstrate that
our operations related to the Medicare Part D Lt®mms have been corrected so that we will agaiallowed to participate in the Medicare
Part D LIS auto-assignment process.

Adverse securities and credit market conditions magignificantly affect our ability to meet liquidity needs.

The securities and credit markets have been expénig higher than normal volatility. In some casbs, markets have exerted downward
pressure on availability of liquidity and creditpeeity for certain issuers. We need liquidity ty jpair operating expenses, make payments on
our indebtedness and pay capital expenditurespfiiheipal sources of our cash receipts are premi@hsinistrative fees, investment income,
other revenue, proceeds from the sale or matufibppinvestment securities, proceeds from borrgsjmproceeds from the exercise of stock
options and our employee stock purchase plan.

Our access to additional financing will depend oragety of factors such as market conditions,géeeral availability of credit, the
volume of trading activities, the overall availatyilof credit to our industry, our credit ratingsdacredit capacity, as well as the possibility that
customers or lenders could develop a negative pgoceof our long- or short-term financial prospeimilarly, our access to funds may be
impaired if regulatory authorities or rating agessctake negative actions against us. If one omebawation of these factors were to occur, our
internal sources of liquidity may prove to be irf&iént, and in such case, we may not be able toessfully obtain additional financing on
favorable terms.

One of our sources of liquidity is our $2.5 billiocommercial paper program. The commercial papeketsihave recently experienced
higher than normal volatility, which has influencear use of commercial paper. As a result, we adaced the amount of commercial paper
outstanding, with $0.5 billion outstanding at Dek@m31, 2009 as compared to $0.9 billion and $1li®m outstanding as of December 31,
2008 and 2007, respectively. We continue to moritercommercial paper markets and will act in alprit manner. Should commercial paper
issuance be unavailable, we intend to use a comidinaf cash on hand and/or our $2.4 billion sexiedit facility to redeem our commercial
paper when it matures. While there is no assuramties current economic environment, we believeléneers participating in our senior credit
facility will be willing and able to provide finaimg in accordance with their legal obligations.

The value of our investments is influenced by varyig economic and market conditions, and a decrease value may result in a los:
charged to income.

The market values of our investments vary from tim#me depending on economic and market conditiéior various reasons, we may
sell certain of our investments at prices thatlese than the carrying value of the investmentsdiition, in periods of declining interest rates,
bond calls and mortgage loan prepayments genénallgase, resulting in the reinvestment of theselduat the then lower market rates. We
cannot assure you that our investment portfolidspsdbduce positive returns in future periods.

Current and long-term available-for-sale investrrssaurities were $17.0 billion at December 31, 2808 represented 33% of our total
consolidated assets at December 31, 2009. In aacoedvith FASB guidance for debt and equity investits, we classify fixed maturity and
equity securities in our investment portfolio agd#able-for-sale” or “trading” and report thosecgsdties at fair value.
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In accordance with applicable accounting standaves,eview our investment securities to determfrteclines in fair value below cost
are other-than-temporary. This review is subjectind requires a high degree of judgment. We conthisteview on a quarterly basis
analyzing both quantitative and qualitative fact@wsch factors considered include the length oétand the extent to which market value has
been less than cost, financial condition and rexan fprospects of the issuer, recommendations efstnvent advisors and forecasts of
economic, market or industry trends. This revieacpss also entails an evaluation of our ability iateht to hold individual equity securities
until they mature or full cost can be recovered.

The current economic environment and recent vilatf securities markets increase the difficulfyassessing investment impairment
and the same influences tend to increase the figltential impairment of these assets. We beliggdhave adequately reviewed our
investment securities for impairment and that ouestment securities are carried at fair value. élew, over time, the economic and market
environment may provide additional insight regagdihe fair value of certain securities, which cocitinge our judgment regarding
impairment. Given the current market conditions #relsignificant judgments involved, there is couning risk that further declines in fair
value may occur and material other-than-temponaairments may be charged to income in future dericesulting in realized losses.

Regional concentrations of our business may subjeas to economic downturns in those regions.

The national economy has experienced a recent downwith the potential for continued higher uneayphent. Most of our revenues i
generated in the states of California, Coloradmr@aticut, Georgia, Indiana, Kentucky, Maine, MigsoNevada, New Hampshire, New Yo
Ohio, Virginia and Wisconsin. Due to this concetitma of business in these states, we are exposeatémtial losses resulting from the risk of
an economic downturn in these states. If econowmclitions continue to deteriorate, we may expegeaceduction in existing and new
business, which could have a material adverseteffeour business, cash flows, financial condiow results of operations.

The health benefits industry is subject to negativeublicity, which can adversely affect our businesand profitability.

The health benefits industry is subject to neggpivielicity. Negative publicity may result in incisead regulation and legislative review of
industry practices, which may further increaseaasts of doing business and adversely affect afitability by: adversely affecting our
ability to market our products and services; requgius to change our products and services; oeasing the regulatory burdens under which
we operate.

In addition, as long as we use the Blue Cross dad Bhield names and marks in marketing our hémttefits products and services, any
negative publicity concerning the BCBSA or otherEEA licensees may adversely affect us and thecdalar health benefits products and
services. Any such negative publicity could advigraffect our business, cash flows, financial ctiodi and results of operations.

We face competition in many of our markets and custmers and brokers have flexibility in moving betwee competitors.

As a health benefits company, we operate in a highinpetitive environment and in an industry tisaturrently subject to significant
changes from business consolidations, new stragdiggnces, legislative reform, aggressive marlgepractices by other health benefits
organizations and market pressures brought aboahlgformed and organized customer base, partlgidanong large employers. This
environment has produced and will likely continagotoduce significant pressures on the profitabdithealth benefits companies.

We are dependent on the non-exclusive servicesdepiendent agents and brokers in the marketingrdfi@alth care products,
particularly with respect to individuals, seniorglamall employer group members. We face intensgetition for the services and allegiance
of these independent agents and brokers, who rsay al
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market the products of our competitors. We canestige you that we will be able to compete succgsfgainst current and future
competitors or that competitive pressures facedswill not materially and adversely affect our ingss, cash flows, financial condition and
results of operations.

We face intense competition to attract and retainmployees. Further, managing Chief Executive Officeand key executive
succession and retention is critical to our success

We are dependent on retaining existing employedstracting additional qualified employees to mzetent and future needs and
achieving productivity gains from our investmemtgeéchnology. We face intense competition for digaiemployees, and there can be no
assurance that we will be able to attract andmetach employees or that such competition amongngiat employers will not result in
increasing salaries. An inability to retain exigtiemployees or attract additional employees coaicla material adverse effect on our busii
cash flows, financial condition and results of @tiems.

We would be adversely affected if we fail to adeglyaplan for succession of our Chief Executivei@f, and senior management and
retention of key executives. While we have sucoesplans in place and we have employment arrangesméth certain key executives, these
do not guarantee that the services of these exesutiill continue to be available to us.

A change in our health care product mix may impacbur profitability.

Our health care products that involve greater gatensk generally tend to be more profitable ttedministrative services products and
those health care products where the employer graspume the underwriting risks. Individuals andlsemployer groups are more likely to
purchase our higher-risk health care products Isscauch purchasers are generally unable or ungvillirbear greater liability for health care
expenditures. Typically, government-sponsored @ogralso involve our higher-risk health care preslug shift of enrollees from more
profitable products to less profitable productsiddwave a material adverse effect on our finarmiaidition and results of operations.

As a holding company, we are dependent on dividendiom our subsidiaries. These dividends are necesyao pay our
outstanding indebtedness. Our regulated subsidiargeare subject to state regulations, including restctions on the payment of dividends
maintenance of minimum levels of capital and restdtions on investment portfolios.

We are a holding company whose assets includé #ibooutstanding shares of common stock of ousislidries including our
intermediate holding companies and regulated imagand HMO subsidiaries. Our subsidiaries areragpsegal entities. As a holding
company, we depend on dividends from our subs&Bafurthermore, our subsidiaries are not obligitedake funds available to us, and
creditors of our subsidiaries will have a supediaim to certain of our subsidiaries’ assets. Amotiger restrictions, state insurance and HMO
laws may restrict the ability of our regulated ddizsies to pay dividends. In some states we haadarspecial undertakings that may limit the
ability of our regulated subsidiaries to pay divids. In addition, our subsidiaries’ ability to makey payments to us will also depend on their
earnings, the terms of their indebtedness, busimeddax considerations and other legal restristi@ur ability to repurchase shares or pay
dividends in the future to our shareholders andtrmeeobligations, including paying operating expesiand debt service on our outstanding
and future indebtedness, will depend upon the peodidividends from our subsidiaries. An inabildfour subsidiaries to pay dividends in the
future in an amount sufficient for us to meet doafcial obligations may materially adversely affear business, cash flows, financial
condition and results of operations.

Most of our regulated subsidiaries are subjectB&€Rtandards, imposed by their states of domi€tese laws are based on the RBC
Model Act adopted by the National Association afurance Commissioners, or NAIC, and require ounleegd subsidiaries to report their
results of risk-based capital calculations to the
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departments of insurance and the NAIC. Failure &ntain the minimum RBC standards could subjectregulated subsidiaries to corrective
action, including state supervision or liquidati@ur regulated subsidiaries are currently in coamae with the risk-based capital or other
similar requirements imposed by their respectiagest of domicile. As discussed in more detail belve are a party to license agreements
the BCBSA which contain certain requirements arstrigtions regarding our operations, including mioim capital and liquidity requirements,
which could restrict the ability of our regulatadbsidiaries to pay dividends.

Our regulated subsidiaries are subject to state &wl regulations that require diversification of mvestment portfolios and limit the
amount of investments in certain riskier investneategories, such as below-investment-grade fixetlirity securities, mortgage loans, real
estate and equity investments, which could gendiigteer returns on our investments. Failure to dgmyith these laws and regulations might
cause investments exceeding regulatory limitattorise treated as non-admitted assets for purpdsasasuring statutory surplus and risk-
based capital, and, in some instances, requireaieeof those investments.

We have substantial indebtedness outstanding and méancur additional indebtedness in the future. Suchindebtedness could also
adversely affect our ability to pursue desirable beiness opportunities.

As of December 31, 2009, we had indebtedness adlisig.of approximately $8.4 billion and had avaiéaborrowing capacity of
approximately $2.4 billion under our revolving citddcility, which expires on September 30, 2011Lr@ebt service obligations require us to
use a portion of our cash flow to pay interest prnidcipal on debt instead of for other corporateppses, including funding future expansior
our cash flow and capital resources are insuffidierservice our debt obligations, we may be foriweseek extraordinary dividends from our
subsidiaries, sell assets, seek additional equitebt capital or restructure our debt. Howeverséhmeasures might be unsuccessful or
inadequate in permitting us to meet scheduled skefvice obligations.

We may also incur future debt obligations that migiibject us to restrictive covenants that couldcafour financial and operational
flexibility. Our breach or failure to comply witmg of these covenants could result in a defauleudir credit agreements. If we default under
our credit agreements, the lenders could ceasake fiurther extensions of credit or cause all af@ustanding debt obligations under our
credit agreements to become immediately due andhp@ytogether with accrued and unpaid intereshdfindebtedness under our notes or our
credit agreements is accelerated, we may be ut@abdpay or finance the amounts due. Indebtedragd also limit our ability to pursue
desirable business opportunities, and may affecability to maintain an investment grade ratingdar indebtedness.

We face risks related to litigation.

We are, or may in the future, be a party to a Waé legal actions that affect any business, agkbmployment and employment
discrimination-related suits and administrativergieas before government agencies, employee beteifits; breach of contract actions, tort
claims and intellectual property-related litigatidm addition, because of the nature of our busineg are subject to a variety of legal actions
relating to our business operations, includingdbsign, management and offering of our productssandices. These could include claims
relating to the denial of health care benefits;rsrission of health insurance policies; develagme application of medical policy; medical
malpractice actions; allegations of anti-compegithnd unfair business activities; provider dispotesr compensation; provider tiering
programs; termination of provider contracts; salfided business; disputes over co-payment calcnfgttbe PBM business, which was sold on
December 1, 2009; reimbursement of out-of-netwdeaikts; the failure to disclose certain businessarporate governance practices; and
customer audits and contract performance, inclugmgrnment contracts.

Recent court decisions and legislative activity rimyease our exposure for any of these typesaifngl. In some cases, substantial non-
economic, treble or punitive damages may be soMgatcurrently have insurance coverage for sombexfd potential liabilities. Other
potential liabilities may not be covered by insu@n
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insurers may dispute coverage or the amount oféam&e may not be enough to cover the damages asvdrdaddition, certain types of
damages, such as punitive damages, may not beetblgrinsurance, and insurance coverage for aikdain forms of liability may become
unavailable or prohibitively expensive in the fltuAny adverse judgment against us resulting it slaenage awards could have an adverse
effect on our cash flows, results of operations famahcial condition.

In addition, we are also involved in pending ane#tened litigation of the character incidentath® business transacted, arising out of
our operations and our 2001 demutualization, aadram time to time involved as a party in varigavernmental investigations, audits,
reviews and administrative proceedings. These tigatfons, audits and reviews include routine goectal investigations by various state
insurance departments, state attorneys generahand.S. Attorney General. Such investigations deabult in the imposition of civil or
criminal fines, penalties and other sanctions. Wlehke that any liability that may result from amiye of these actions, or in the aggregate, is
unlikely to have a material adverse effect on @ashcflows, results of operations or financial goait

For additional information concerning legal acti@&ffecting us, see Part I, Item 3, Legal ProceegJin§this Form 10-K.

We are a party to license agreements with the BCBSthat entitle us to the exclusive and in certain aas non-exclusive use of the
Blue Cross and Blue Shield names and marks in oureggraphic territories. The termination of these liense agreements or changes in
the terms and conditions of these license agreemsrdould adversely affect our business, financial odition and results of operations.

We use the Blue Cross and Blue Shield names ankkraaridentifiers for our products and servicesentidenses from the BCBSA. Our
license agreements with the BCBSA contain certguirements and restrictions regarding our operatémd our use of the Blue Cross and
Blue Shield names and marks, including: minimumitedgnd liquidity requirements imposed by the B@B$&nrollment and customer service
performance requirements; participation in progrémas provide portability of membership betweempleadisclosures to the BCBSA relating
enrollment and financial conditions; disclosurescathe structure of the Blue Cross and Blue Stegktem in contracts with third parties an
public statements; plan governance requirememneg@irement that at least 80% (or, in the caselaé Bross of California, substantially all)

a licensee’s annual combined local net revenudefised by the BCBSA, attributable to health benglfins within its service areas must be
sold, marketed, administered or underwritten utideBlue Cross and Blue Shield hames and marleqjiirement that at least 863% of a
licensee’s annual combined national net revenudefised by the BCBSA, attributable to health bémgans must be sold, marketed,
administered or underwritten under the Blue CroskBlue Shield names and marks; a requirementiititer a plan nor any of its licensed
affiliates may permit an entity other than a plaradicensed affiliate to obtain control of themplar the licensed affiliate or to acquire a
substantial portion of its assets related to liebles services; a requirement that we guaranteaigantractual and financial obligations of our
licensed affiliates; and a requirement that we indiéy the BCBSA against any claims asserted agdimsesulting from the contractual and
financial obligations of any subsidiary that serass fiscal intermediary providing administratbegvices for Medicare Parts A and B. Failure
to comply with the foregoing requirements couldutes a termination of the license agreements.

The standards under the license agreements maydigied in certain instances by the BCBSA. For eglenfrom time to time there
have been proposals considered by the BCBSA tofgndu terms of the license agreements to resteadbus potential business activities of
licensees. These proposals have included, amoeg thiings, a limitation on the ability of a licelest® make its provider networks available to
insurance carriers or other entities not holdigjuee Cross or Blue Shield license. To the exteat fuch amendments to the license agreer
are adopted in the future, they could have a natadverse effect on our future expansion plangsults of operations.

Upon the occurrence of an event causing terminatidhe license agreements, we would no longer fzeeight to use the Blue Cross
and Blue Shield names and marks in one or moreio$ervice areas.
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Furthermore, the BCBSA would be free to issue enlie to use the Blue Cross and Blue Shield nantemarks in these service areas to
another entity. Events that could cause the terioin®f a license agreement with the BCBSA inclfaiire to comply with minimum capital
requirements imposed by the BCBSA, a change ofrabot violation of the BCBSA ownership limitatioms our capital stock, impending
financial insolvency and the appointment of a gasbr receiver or the commencement of any actiaimaga licensee seeking its dissolution.
We believe that the Blue Cross and Blue Shield rsaamel marks are valuable identifiers of our proslacid services in the marketplace.
Accordingly, termination of the license agreemearusld have a material adverse effect on our busjrigmncial condition and results of
operations.

Upon termination of a license agreement, the BCB®AId impose a “Re-establishment Fee” upon us, whiould allow the BCBSA to
“re-establish” a Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield pree in the vacated service area. Through Dece&ih@009 the fee was set at $91.23 per
licensed enrollee. As of December 31, 2009 we tepd28.3 million Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield diees. If the Re-establishment Fee was
applied to our total Blue Cross and/or Blue Shaidollees, we would be assessed approximatelyl$#ich by the BCBSA.

Large-scale medical emergencies may have a materadverse effect on our business, cash flows, findakccondition and results of
operations.

Large-scale medical emergencies can take many fanti€an cause widespread illness and death. Bonpg, federal and state law
enforcement officials have issued warnings abotemt@l terrorist activity involving biological anather weapons. In addition, natural disas
such as hurricanes and the potential for a wideagsppandemic of influenza coupled with the lackwHilability of appropriate preventative
medicines can have a significant impact on thethexdlthe population of wide-spread areas. If thgtétl States were to experience widespread
bioterrorism or other attacks, large-scale natdigdsters in our concentrated coverage areasange-cale pandemic or epidemic, our covered
medical expenses could rise and we could experiamsaterial adverse effect on our business, casisflfinancial condition and results of
operations or, in the event of extreme circumstaneger viability could be threatened.

We have built a significant portion of our current business through mergers and acquisitions and we gect to pursue acquisitions
in the future.

The following are some of the risks associated @&@uisitions that could have a material adverfecebn our business, financial
condition and results of operations:
» some of the acquired businesses may not achieigpated revenues, earnings or cash flow;

* we may assume liabilities that were not disclogedstor which were unc-estimated

* we may be unable to integrate acquired businesseessfully, or as quickly as expected, and reaizeipated economic,
operational and other benefits in a timely manmich could result in substantial costs and detaysther operational, technical or
financial problems

* acquisitions could disrupt our ongoing businesstract management, divert resources and makdittudifto maintain our current
business standards, controls and proced

* we may finance future acquisitions by issuing comratmck for some or all of the purchase price, Wihiculd dilute the ownersh
interests of our shareholde

* we may also incur additional debt related to futarquisitions; and

* we would be competing with other firms, some of ethinay have greater financial and other resoutoes;quire attractive
companies

The value of our intangible assets may become impad.

Due largely to our past mergers and acquisitioasdwill and other intangible assets represent ataunkial portion of our assets.
Goodwill and other intangible assets were approsetyeb21.5 billion as of December 31,
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2009, representing approximately 41% of our tossk#s and 87% of our consolidated shareholder#fyeguDecember 31, 2009. If we make
additional acquisitions it is likely that we wikcord additional intangible assets on our constditiaalance sheets.

In accordance with applicable accounting standavesperiodically evaluate our goodwill and othaammgible assets to determine whe
all or a portion of their carrying values may nader be recoverable, in which case a charge tavieamay be necessary. This impairment
testing requires us to make assumptions and judtgmegarding the estimated fair value of our répgrtinits, including goodwill and other
intangibles (with indefinite lives). In additionextain other intangible assets with indefinite §vsuch as trademarks, are also tested separately
Estimated fair values developed based on our agsamsmnd judgments might be significantly differérother reasonable assumptions and
estimates were to be used. If estimated fair vadwedess than the carrying values of goodwill atheér intangible assets with indefinite lives
future impairment tests, or if significant impainrméndicators are noted relative to other intangjdsssets subject to amortization, we may be
required to record impairment losses against futuwreme.

Any future evaluations requiring an impairment af goodwill and other intangible assets could maligraffect our results of operatio
and shareholders’ equity in the period in whichithpairment occurs. A material decrease in shadshiel equity could, in turn, negatively
impact our debt ratings or potentially impact oompliance with existing debt covenants.

We may not be able to realize the value of our defed tax assets.

In accordance with applicable accounting standavdsseparately recognize deferred tax assets dadrelt tax liabilities. Such deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities repredentax effect of temporary differences betweenrfaia reporting and tax reporting measured at
tax rates enacted at the time the deferred tax as$ability is recorded.

At each financial reporting date, we evaluate @feded tax assets to determine the likely reatimadf the benefit of the temporary
differences. Our evaluation includes a review eftypes of temporary differences that created #ferced tax asset; the amount of taxes paid
on both capital gains and ordinary income in ppieriods and available for a carry-back claim; trec¢asted future taxable income, and
therefore, the likely future deduction of the dedertax item; and any other significant issues thigiht impact the realization of the deferred
tax asset. While we have certain tax planning exgjiat that we believe will enable us to fully aliall remaining deferred tax assets, if it is
“more likely than not” that all or a portion of tlieferred tax asset may not be realized, we wil#sh a valuation allowance. Significant
judgment is required in determining an appropriaieiation allowance

Any future increase in the valuation allowance wiodsult in additional income tax expense and aedse in shareholdersquity, whict
could materially affect our financial position arabults of operations in the period in which theréase occurs. A material decrease in
shareholders’ equity could, in turn, negatively aopour debt ratings or potentially impact our ctiame with existing debt covenants.

An unauthorized disclosure of sensitive or confideiml member information could have an adverse efféacon our business,
reputation and profitability.

As part of our normal operations, we collect, psscand retain sensitive and confidential memberimétion. We are subject to various
federal, state and international laws and ruleandigg the use and disclosure of sensitive or denfiial member information, including
HIPAA and the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act. Despite tleesgrity measures we have in place to ensure congdiwith applicable laws and rules,
our facilities and systems, and those of our thady service providers, may be vulnerable to sgchreaches, acts of vandalism, computer
viruses, misplaced or lost data, programming anlfonan errors or other similar events. Any secungach involving the misappropriation,
loss or other unauthorized disclosure of sensiiveonfidential member information, whether by udp one of our vendors, could have a
material adverse effect on our business, reputatihresults of operations.
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The failure to effectively maintain and upgrade ourinformation systems could adversely affect our busess.

Our business depends significantly on effectiverimfation systems, and we have many different inédiom systems for our various
businesses. As a result of our merger and acansittivities, we have acquired additional systegng. information systems require an
ongoing commitment of significant resources to rteaimand enhance existing systems and develop ystems in order to keep pace with
continuing changes in information processing tetbug evolving industry and regulatory standarasl ehanging customer preferences. In
addition, we may from time to time obtain signifitgortions of our systems-related or other ses/@efacilities from independent third
parties, which may make our operations vulnerabkuth third parties’ failure to perform adequately

Our failure to maintain effective and efficientanfnation systems, or our failure to efficiently aféectively consolidate our information
systems to eliminate redundant or obsolete apitsitcould have a material adverse effect on asiress, financial condition and results of
operations. If the information we rely upon to ur business were found to be inaccurate or utneliar if we fail to maintain our informatic
systems and data integrity effectively, we couldena decrease in membership, have problems inmdigieg medical cost estimates and
establishing appropriate pricing and reserves, llisutes with customers and providers, have régylgroblems, sanctions or penalties
imposed, have increases in operating expensedfer sther adverse consequences. In addition, asomeert or migrate members to our more
efficient and effective systems, the risk of digroip in our customer service is increased durirggrttigration or conversion process and such
disruption could have a material adverse effeabnbusiness, cash flow, financial condition arglites of operations.

We are working towards becoming a premier e-busineganization by modernizing interactions withtousers, brokers, agents,
providers, employees and other stakeholders thraughienabling technology and redesigning interparations. We cannot assure you that
we will be able to fully realize our e-businessatis The failure to maintain successful e-busiregsbilities could result in competitive and
cost disadvantages to us as compared to our cdogeti

We are dependent on the success of our relationshigth a large vendor for a significant portion of aur information system
resources and certain other vendors for various otbr services.

We have an agreement with International Businesshivies Corporation, or IBM, pursuant to which wesourced a significant portion
of our data center operations and certain cordagijfins development. We are dependent upon IBMHhfese support functions. The IBM
agreement includes service level agreements, oisStefated to issues such as performance and $obypdion, with significant financial
penalties if these SLAs are not met, as well awit@ation assistance provisions obligating IBM toyde services during periods following
transitions or terminations. If our relationshighviBM is significantly disrupted for any reasone way not be able to find an alternative
partner in a timely manner or on acceptable firgiterms. As a result, we may not be able to nfeetiemands of our customers and, in turn,
our business, cash flows, financial condition agslits of operations may be harmed. We also outsaicomponent of our data center to
another vendor, which could assume much of the vk and mitigate business disruption should a teation with IBM occur. We may not
be adequately indemnified against all possibledsdkrough the terms and conditions of the IBM agrent. In addition, some of our
termination rights are contingent upon payment fafea which may be significant.

We have also entered into a ten year contractXprdss Scripts to provide PBM services to our mesilveconnection with the sale of
our PBM business to Express Scripts in Decembe®.28this relationship was terminated for any m@asve may not be able to find
alternative partners in a timely manner or on atadglp financial terms. As a result, we may not ble &0 meet the full demands of our
customers, which could have a material adversetefife our business, reputation and results of dipars
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We have also entered into agreements with largdarsmursuant to which we have outsourced certaintions such as data entry rele
to claims and billing processes and call centeratmns for member and provider queries as wetleatain Medicare Part D sales. If these
vendor relationships were terminated for any reag@nmay not be able to find alternative partnera timely manner or on acceptable
financial terms. As a result, we may not be ablmé&et the full demands of our customers and, im, tour business, cash flow, financial
condition and results of operations may be harmed.

Indiana law, and other applicable laws, and our aricles of incorporation and bylaws, may prevent or gscourage takeovers and
business combinations that our shareholders mightomsider in their best interest.

Indiana law and our articles of incorporation agthtvs may delay, defer, prevent or render moreatiff a takeover attempt that our
shareholders might consider in their best interégisinstance, they may prevent our shareholders feceiving the benefit from any premi
to the market price of our common stock offeredallyidder in a takeover context. Even in the abseheegtakeover attempt, the existence of
these provisions may adversely affect the prevgifirarket price of our common stock if they are \eevas discouraging takeover attempts in
the future.

We are regulated as an insurance holding compashg@nject to the insurance holding company acteettates in which our insurance
company subsidiaries are domiciled, as well aslairprovisions included in the health statutes aagilations of certain states where these
subsidiaries are regulated as managed care conspaniéMOs. The insurance holding company acts agdlations and these similar health
provisions restrict the ability of any person tdaib control of an insurance company or HMO withprior regulatory approval. Under those
statutes and regulations, without such approvah(oexemption), no person may acquire any voticgrity of a domestic insurance company
or HMO, or an insurance holding company which calstan insurance company or HMO, or merge with subblding company, if as a result
of such transaction such person would “control”itteirance holding company, insurance company oOHMontrol” is generally defined as
the direct or indirect power to direct or causedfrection of the management and policies of agreend is presumed to exist if a person
directly or indirectly owns or controls 10% or markthe voting securities of another person.

Further, the Indiana corporation law contains beséncombination provisions that, in general, prioffido five years any business
combination with a beneficial owner of 10% or mofeur common stock unless the holder’s acquisitibthe stock was approved in advance
by our Board of Directors. The Indiana corporatinw also contains control share acquisition pravisithat limit the ability of certain
shareholders to vote their shares unless theira@asttare acquisition is approved in advance. bfitaah, pursuant to a recent amendment to the
Indiana corporation law, we are required to divide Board of Directors into three classes serviaggered three-year terms. Our license
agreement with the BCBSA requires, and our artioféacorporation and by-laws provide, the same.

Our articles of incorporation restrict the benefi@wnership of our capital stock in excess of gmeownership limits. The ownership
limits restrict beneficial ownership of our votingpital stock to less than 10% for institutionaldstors and less than 5% for non-institutional
investors, both as defined in our articles of ipowation. Additionally, no person may beneficiadlywn shares of our common stock
representing a 20% or more ownership interest.imhsse restrictions are intended to ensure ouptiante with the terms of our licenses v
the BCBSA. Our articles of incorporation prohibitmership of our capital stock beyond these ownerbimits without prior approval of a
majority of our continuing directors (as definedbur articles of incorporation). In addition, asalissed above in the risk factor describing our
license agreements with the BCBSA, such licenseeagents are subject to termination upon a changentfol and re-establishment fees
would be imposed upon termination of the licenseagents.

Certain other provisions included in our articlésncorporation and bylaws may also have anti-take@ffects and may delay, defer or
prevent a takeover attempt that our shareholdeghtreonsider in their best interests. In particutawr articles of incorporation and by-laws:
permit our Board of Directors to determine the
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terms of and issue one or more series of prefesti@zk without further action by shareholders; iesthe maximum number of directors; limit
the ability of shareholders to remove directorgase restrictions on shareholders’ ability tovfdlcancies on our Board of Directors; prohibit
shareholders from calling special meetings of di@ders; impose advance notice requirements faesloéder proposals and nominations of
directors to be considered at meetings of sharehmlimpose restrictions on shareholders’ abibtamend our articles of incorporation; and

prohibit shareholders from amending our bylaws.

We also face other risks that could adversely affeour business, financial condition or results of perations, which include:

any requirement to restate financial results ingbhent of inappropriate application of accountimagiples;

a significant failure of our internal control oviamancial reporting;

our inability to convert to international financi&@porting standards, if require

failure of our prevention and control systems edab employee compliance with internal policesluding data security;
provider fraud that is not prevented or detectedliarpacts our medical costs or those of-insured customer:

failure to protect our proprietary information; and

failure of our corporate governance policies orcpaures.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED SEC STAFF COMMENTS.

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

We have set forth below a summary of our princgdfite space (locations greater than 100,000 scfiesit.

Amount (Square Feet) of
Building Owned or Leased

Location and Occupied by WellPoint Principal Usage
220 Virginia Ave., Indianapolis, I 557,000 Operations
2015 Staples Mill Rd. (DCS & DCN), Richmond, \ 544,000 Operations
21555 Oxnard St., Woodland Hills, Ct 448,000 Operations
700 Broadway, Denver, C 411,000 Operations
370 Basset Rd., North Haven, ¢ 378,000 Operations
1831 Chestnut St., St. Louis, v 349,000 Operations
11 Corporate Woods, Albany, Nt 271,000 Operations
3350 Peachtree Rd., Atlanta, 252,000 Operations
13550 Triton Office Park Blvd., Louisville, K1 234,000 Operations
4241 Irwin Simpson Rd., Mason, Ct 224,000 Operations
2000 & 2100 Corporate Center Drive, Newbury Park,! 218,000 Operations
4361 Irwin Simpson Rd., Mason, C 213,000 Operations
4553 La Tienda Drive & 1WellPoint Way, Thousand ©akA1 208,000 Operations
2 Gannett Dr., South Portland, N 208,000 Operations
400 S. Salina St., Syracuse, It 203,000 Operations
120 Monument Circle, Indianapolis, 202,000 Principal executive office
2221 Edward Holland Drive, Richmond, \! 193,000 Operations
3000 Goff Falls Rd., Manchester, M 192,000 Operations
15 MetroTech Center, Brooklyn, Nt 182,000 Operations
6740 N. High St., Worthington, O 178,000 Operations
85 Crystal Run, Middletown, N 173,000 Operations
1351 Wm. Howard Taft, Cincinnati, O 167,000 Operations
811£-8125 Knue Road, Indianapolis, 1 149,000 Operations
51515155 Camino Ruiz, Camarillo, Ct 149,000 Operations
2357 Warm Springs Rd., Columbus, ( 147,000 Operations
233 S. Wacker Drive, Chicago, ! 143,000 Operations

602 S. Jefferson St., Roanoke, 131,000 Operations

' Leased propert

Our facilities support our various business segmefe believe that our properties are adequatesaitable for our business as presently
conducted as well as for the foreseeable future.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

Prior to the acquisition of WellPoint Health Netksrinc., or WHN, the group benefit operations, & of John Hancock Mutual Life
Insurance Company, or John Hancock, entered intmgber of reinsurance arrangements, including reisipect to personal accident insurance
and the occupational accident component of worl@sipensation insurance, a portion of which wagimated through a pool managed by
Unicover Managers, Inc. Under these arrangemeoits), Blancock assumed risks as a reinsurer and éraedfcertain of such risks to other
companies. Similar reinsurance arrangements weegezhinto by John Hancock following WHN’s acquigit of the GBO of John Hancock.
These various arrangements have become the sobjisputes, including a number of legal proceeditgwhich John Hancock is a party. '
were in arbitration with John Hancock regardingstharrangements. The arbitration panel’s Phadsgraddressed liability. In April
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2007, the arbitration panel issued a Phase llguating the amount we owe to John Hancock fadssnd expenses John Hancock paid
through June 30, 2006. The panel further outlinpdoaess for determining our liability for losseslaxpenses paid after June 30, 2006, which
liability has not yet been determined. We filedatition to Confirm, which was granted by the Coddhn Hancock filed an appeal with the
Seventh Circuit Court of Appeals. The Seventh Gingpheld the order from the district court confing the arbitration awards. John Hancock
then filed a petition for rehearing en banc, whigks unanimously denied by the Seventh Circuit. @&ehed a commutation and settlement
agreement with John Hancock that resolves all gradtpotential future liability. The settlement diot have a material effect on our cash flows,
financial condition or results of operations.

In various California state courts, we are defegdimumber of individual lawsuits, including onledi by the Los Angeles City Attorney,
and four purported class actions alleging the whaingscission of individual insurance policies.eT$uits name WellPoint as well as Blue
Cross of California, or BCC, and BC Life & Healtiislirance Company, or BCL&H (which name changedrithém Blue Cross Life and
Health Insurance Company in July 2007), both WéfiPsubsidiaries. The lawsuits generally allegeabheof contract, bad faith and unfair
business practices in a purported practice of megwg new individual members following the submissof large claims. The parties agreed to
mediate most of these lawsuits and the mediatisuited in the resolution of some of these lawslitsddition, the California Department of
Managed Health Care and California Department sfilance conducted investigations of the allegatisndune 2007, the California
Department of Insurance issued its final repowimich it issued a number of citations alleging &t@ns of fair-claims handling laws.

On July 17, 2008 a settlement was reached witlCdigornia Department of Managed Health Care reiggrthe Department’s
investigation of rescission practices. Pursuati¢osettiement, BCC offered prospective coveragowt medical underwriting, to
approximately 1,770 rescinded members. BCC alseeato a procedure whereby these individuals cawider certain circumstances, be
reimbursed for past medical expenses. BCC alseddrepay a $10.0 million fine, which was paid omgiist 12, 2008. On February 10, 2009,
a settlement was reached with the California Depant of Insurance regarding its audit of rescisgiattices. Pursuant to the settlement,
BCL&H will offer prospective coverage, without medl underwriting, to approximately 2,330 formerureds. BCL&H also agreed to
reimburse eligible out of pocket medical expenddh@former insureds. BCL&H also agreed to payl@3$nillion fine, which was paid on
May 28, 2009. None of these settlements, indivigua collectively, have had or are expected toehawmaterial adverse effect on our
consolidated financial condition or results of ggiems.

On February 12, 2008, Empire Blue Cross Blue Shalthg with 15 other health benefit companies, sexsed with a subpoena by the
New York Attorney General. The subpoena was pasinohdustr-wide investigation of how insurance companiesdeabases maintained by
Ingenix, Inc., or Ingenix, a wholly-owned subsigiaf UnitedHealth Group, in determining out-of netlk reimbursement. Since the beginning
of the investigation, we have been cooperating fwith the Attorney General’s office and have coiglwith the Attorney General’s requests
for information regarding out-afetwork reimbursement in New York. On February 2@)9, we announced that we reached an agreemér
the New York Attorney General regarding the marinavhich out-of-network reimbursement to providesii be determined. We agreed to
discontinue the use of the Ingenix database, wéiche of our subsidiaries use in determining outeifvork reimbursement for certain
products and in certain states. We also agreedrtibute $10.0 million towards the funding of a-fiar profit entity that will develop a
database of provider charges that can be accestlethphealth care plans and their members. Thimpat was made on October 2, 2009.
settlement did not have a material effect on omsotidated financial position or results of opeyas.

We are currently defending several putative clasims filed as a result of the 2001 Anthem Insuea@ompanies, Inc., or
AICI, demutualization. The suits name AICI as wadlAnthem, Inc., or Anthem, n/k/a WellPoint, IntieTsuits are captioned BRenald Gold,
et al. v. Anthem, Inc. et al.; Mary E. Ormond, ketva Anthem, Inc,. et al.; Ronald E. Mell, Sr.aétv. Anthem, Inc., et al; and Jeffrey D.
Jorling, et al., v. Anthem, In
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(n/k/a WellPoint, Inc.) et aAICI’ s 2001 Plan of Conversion, or the Plan, providedHe conversion of AICI from a mutual insurancengany
into a stock insurance company pursuant to IndiawaUnder the Plan, AICI distributed the fair valaf the company at the time of convers
to its Eligible Statutory Members, or ESMs, in fbem of cash or Anthem common stock in exchangelfeir membership interests in the
mutual company. The lawsuits generally allege A&t distributed value to the wrong ESMs or distried insufficient value to the ESMs. In
Gold, cross motions for summary judgment were grameehit and denied in part with regard to the isgusovereign immunity asserted by
co-defendant, the State of Connecticut (the “S)aiHie State has appealed this denial to the CoicneSupreme Court. We filed a cross-
appeal. Oral argument was held in November 2008lamngarties are awaiting a ruling. In tdemondsuit, our Motion to Dismiss was granted
in part and denied in part on March 31, 2008. Towtcdismissed the claims for violation of fedemal state securities laws, for violation of
Indiana Demutualization Law and for unjust enricn®n September 29, 2009, a class was certifitkde®rmondsuit. The class consists of
all ESMs residing in Ohio, Indiana, Kentucky or @enticut who received cash compensation in conmeetith the demutualization. The cli
does not include employers located in Ohio and @oticut that received compensation under the RariNovember 4, 2009 a class was
certified in theMell suit. That class consists of persons who were grapkoor retirees who were continuously enrollethinhealth benefit
plan sponsored by the City of Cincinnati betweendhtes of June 18, 2001 and November 2, 2001.révgegking an appeal of this class
certification order to the Sixth Circuit Court oppeals. We intend to vigorously defend these shdwgjever, their ultimate outcome cannot be
presently determined.

We are currently a defendant in a putative claismcelating to Out-of-Network, or OON, reimbursent of dental claims called
American Dental Association v. WellPoint Healthwatks, Inc. and Blue Cross of Califorr. The lawsuit was filed in March 2002 by the
ADA and three dentists who are suing on behalhefriselves and are seeking to sue on behalf ofi@madle class of all non-participating
dental providers who were paid less than theiraatharges for dental services provided to WellPdental members. The complaint alleges
that WellPoint Health Networks Inc., Blue CrosGaflifornia and other WellPoint affiliates and sutiafies (collectively, WellPoint)
improperly set usual, customary and reasonable patfor OON dental services based on HIAA/Ingeraad The plaintiffs claim, among
other things, that the HIAA/Ingenix databases t@ificcount for differences in geography, provigecsalty, outlier (high) charges, and
complexity of procedure. The complaint further géle that WellPoint was aware that this data wasprapriate to set usual, customary and
reasonable rates. The dentists sue as assigngesrgiatients’ rights to benefits under WellPaindfental plans and assert that WellPoint
breached its contractual obligations in violatidrERISA by routinely paying OON dentists less tllaeir actual charges and representing that
its OON payments were properly determined usuatornary and reasonable rates. The suit is currgetigling in the United States District
Court for the Southern District of Florida. We @lla motion for summary judgment, which is pendWge intend to vigorously defend this
lawsuit; however, its ultimate outcome cannot bespntly determined.

We are currently a defendant in eleven putativescktions relating to out-oetwork reimbursement. The cases have been matefa
WellPoint-only multi-district litigation calledh re WellPoint, Inc. Out-of-Network “UCR” Ratestigationand are pending in the United States
District Court for the Central District of Califoin The first lawsuit Darryl and Valerie Samsell v. WellPoint, Inc., Viealint Health Network:
Inc. and Anthem, In¢) was filed in February 2009 by two former membmisehalf of a putative class of members who reckout-of-
network services for which the defendants paid fleas billed charges. The plaintiffs in that cakkege that the defendants violated RICO, the
Sherman Antitrust Act, ERISA, and federal regulasidoy relying on databases provided by Ingenixetednining out-of-network
reimbursement. The second lawsu{NIA et al. v. WellPoint, Incyas brought in March 2009 by the American Medicatdciation, or AMA,
four state medical associations and two indivigurgisicians on behalf of a putative class of outefiwork physicians. The third lawsuit
( Roberts v. UnitedHealth Group, Inc. et alids brought in March 2009 by a WellPoint membea asitative class action on behalf of all
persons or entities who have paid premiums forofutetwork health insurance coverage. The fountystat (JBW v. UnitedHealth Group, Ir
et al.) was brought in April 2009 by a WellPoint membsraaputative class action on behalf of all perseig have paid premiums for out-of-
network health insurance coverage. The fifth latv@'Brien, et al. v. WellPoint,
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Inc., et al.) was brought in May 2009 by three WellPoint merskaes a putative class action on behalf of allgessvho received out-of-
network services. The sixth lawsuit{gashi, D.C. d/b/a Mar Vista Institute of HealthBlue Cross of California d/b/a WellPoint, Ifcwas
brought in June 2009 by an out-of-network chiropisaes a putative class action on behalf of altautetwork chiropractors. The seventh suit
( North Peninsula Surgical Center v. WellPoint,Iret.al.) was brought in June 2009 by an out-of-networlgisal center as a putative class
action on behalf of all out-of-network surgical tens. The eighth lawsuitAmerican Podiatric Medical Association, et al. veN#oint, Inc.)

was brought in June 2009 by the American Podiddedical Association, California Chiropractic Assatidn, California Psychological
Association and an out-of-network clinical psyclgi$t as a putative class action on behalf of outeifvork podiatrists, chiropractors and
psychologists. The ninth lawsMichael Pariser, et al. v. WellPoint, Inayas brought in July 2009 by an out-of-network p®jobist as a
putative class action on behalf of all out-of-netkvproviders who are not medical doctors or doctdrssteopathy. The tenth lawsuitérold

S. Bernard, Ph.D., et al. v. WellPoint, Inavas brought in July 2009 by an out-of-networkgsylogist as a putative class action on behalf of
all non-medical doctor health care providers. Tlegenth lawsuit Ken Unmacht, Psy.D., et al. v. WellPoint, Ihevas brought in August 2009
by an out-of-network licensed psychotherapist patative class action on behalf of all non-medd@dtor health care providers. A
consolidated complaint has been filed for the etesases. We filed a motion to dismiss, which isdeg, and a motion to enjoin the claims
brought by the M.D.s and D.O.s based on priordiiimn releases. We intend to vigorously defendetlsests; however, their ultimate outcomes
cannot be presently determined.

Other Contingencies

From time to time, we and certain of our subsigisidre parties to various legal proceedings, mamhih involve claims for coverage
encountered in the ordinary course of business.IM&EHMOs and health insurers generally, excluddain health care and other services 1
coverage under our HMO, PPO and other plans. Weratkee ordinary course of business, subject éocthims of our enrollees arising out of
decisions to restrict or deny reimbursement foroweced services. The loss of even one such cléitrgsults in a significant punitive damage
award, could have a material adverse effect oiusddition, the risk of potential liability undpunitive damage theories may increase
significantly the difficulty of obtaining reasonabdettlements of coverage claims.

In addition to the lawsuits described above, weadse involved in other pending and threatenedditbn of the character incidental to
our business, arising out of our operations andewision of earnings guidance in 2008, and ammftie to time involved as a party in vari
governmental investigations, audits, reviews andiattrative proceedings. These investigationsjtauceviews and administrative
proceedings include routine and special inquiriesthte insurance departments, state attorneysajetie U.S. Attorney General and
subcommittees of the U.S. Congress. Such invegtiggtaudits, reviews and administrative proceeslomuld result in the imposition of civil
or criminal fines, penalties, other sanctions additéonal rules, regulations or other restrictiamsour business operations. Any liability that
may result from any one of these actions, or inafpgregate, could have a material adverse effeotioconsolidated financial position or
results of operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.
We did not submit any matters to a vote of secunitiers during the fourth quarter of 2009.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Market Prices

Our common stock, par value $0.01 per share,tidlisn the NYSE under the symbol “WLP”. On Februbby 2010, the closing price on
the NYSE was $60.01. As of February 10, 2010, thene 108,208 shareholders of record of our comstock. The following table presents
high and low sales prices for our common stockhenNY SE for the periods indicated.

High Low

2009

First Quarte! $46.4¢ $29.3:2
Second Quarte 52.0( 36.41
Third Quartel 55.7: 46.9¢
Fourth Quarte 60.8¢ 44.0¢
2008

First Quarte! $90.0( $43.0:2
Second Quarte 57.0¢ 44.3(
Third Quartel 57.8¢ 43.1¢
Fourth Quarte 48.1: 27.5(

Dividends

No cash dividends have been paid on our commok.stée declaration and payment of future dividewdkbe at the discretion of our
Board of Directors and must comply with applicalale. Future dividend payments will depend uponfimancial condition, results of
operations, future liquidity needs, potential asgiigns, regulatory and capital requirements ameiotactors deemed relevant by our Board of
Directors. In addition, we are a holding companyséprimary assets are 100% of the capital stockhar equity instrument of Anthem
Insurance Companies, Inc., Anthem Southeast, Amthem Holding Corp., WellPoint Holding Corp., Wedint Acquisition, LLC, WellPoint
Insurance Services, Inc., ATH Holding Company, LIA€cus Financial Holding Corp. and SellCore, Inair@bility to pay dividends to our
shareholders, if authorized by our Board of Direst@s significantly dependent upon the receipdisfdends from our insurance subsidiaries.
The payment of dividends by our insurance subsalawrithout prior approval of the insurance deparitrof each subsidiary’s domiciliary
jurisdiction is limited by formula. Dividends in egss of these amounts are subject to prior apphyvtile respective insurance departme

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Corpensation Plans

The information required by this Item concerningsiies authorized for issuance under our equiygensation plans is set forth in
incorporated by reference into Part Il Item 12hi§ Form 10-K.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table presents information relatedtw repurchases of common stock for the periodisdtied.

Total Number Approximate
Dollar Value
of Shares of Shares tha
Purchased as
Total Number Average Part of May Yet Be
Price Paid Publicly Purchased
of Shares Announced Under the
Period Purchased! per Share Programs 2 Programs
(In millions, except share and per share dat
October 1, 2009 to October 31, 2C 9,241,10. $ 46.3¢ 9,237,233l $ 783
November 1, 2009 to November 30, 2( 2,478,19 50.0¢ 2,465,501 65¢
December 1, 2009 to December 31, 2 4,816,95! 57.1¢ 4,813,80! 384
16,536,25 16,516,53

Total number of shares purchased includes 19,7&¢%sldelivered to or withheld by us in connectidgthwwmployee payroll ta

withholding upon exercise or vesting of stock awga®tock grants to employees and directors andt &éeaed for stock option plans and

stock purchase plans in the consolidated statenoéstsareholde’ equity are shown net of these shares purchi
Represents the number of shares repurchased thoaughpurchase program authorized by our Boafdirgctors. During the year end

December 31, 2009, we repurchased approximate8/raiflion shares at a cost of $2.6 billion undex irogram. On March 5, 2009, our
Board of Directors authorized an increase of $1llb in our stock repurchase program. On Octd®r2009, our Board of Directors
authorized an additional increase of $500 milliorour stock repurchase program, subject to congpieif the Express Scripts transact
and pending current market and industry conditi®fesnaining authorization under the program was@pprately $384 million as of

December 31, 200!

42



Table of Contents

Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related infdiamacompares the cumulative total return to shalagrs of our common stock for
the period from December 31, 2004 through Decer@be2009, with the cumulative total return overtsperiod of (i) the Standard & Poor’s
500 Stock Index (the “S&P 500 Index”) and (ii) theandard & Poor's Managed Health Care Index (th&P'$anaged Health Care Index”).
The graph assumes an investment of $100 on Dece3b&004 in each of our common stock, the S&PI5@@x and the S&P Managed
Health Care Index (and the reinvestment of alldéivids). The performance shown is not necessadlgative of future performance.

The comparisons shown in the graph below are baséistorical data and we caution that the stoaegrerformance shown in the
graph below is not indicative of, and is not inteddo forecast, the potential future performanceuwfcommon stock. Information used in the
graph was obtained from D.F. King & Co., Inc., arse believed to be reliable, but we are not resjba for any errors or omissions in such
information. The following graph and related infation shall not be deemed “soliciting materialst@be “filed” with the SEC, nor shall sut

information be incorporated by reference into amyife filing under the Securities Act of 1933 oe tixchange Act, except to the extent tha
specifically incorporate it by reference into stitihg.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return

5200 -
5150 4
5100

550

—— WellPgint, Inc. ——5&P 500 Index
—ie— 58P Managed Health Care Index

December 31

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
WelPoint, Inc. $ 10C $ 13¢ $ 137 $ 15¢ $73 $ 101
S&P 500 Inde» 10C 10E 121 12¢ 81 10z
S&P Managed Health Care Ind 10C 143 138 154 69 88

Based upon an initial investment of $100 on DecerBtie 2004 with dividends reinvest
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The table below provides selected consolidatedhfiz data of WellPoint. The information has beenived from our consolidated
financial statements for each of the years in ithee year period ended December 31, 2009. You shread this selected consolidated financial
data in conjunction with the audited consolidatedrcial statements and notes and Management'sif8gm and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations included is #orm 10-K.

(In millions, except where indicated and except srare
data)

Income Statement Date
Total operating revent?
Total revenue:

Net income

Per Share Data
Basic net income per she
Diluted net income per sha

Other Data (unaudited)

Benefit expense rati?

Selling, general and administrative expense 1

Income before income taxes as a percentage of
revenues

Net income as a percentage of total revel

Medical membershi(ln thousands

Balance Sheet Dat:

Cash and investmen

Total asset

Long-term debt, less current porti
Total liabilities

Total shareholde’ equity

1

As of and for the Years Ended December 3

20091 2008 20071 2006 20051
$60,828.¢ $61,579. $60,155.¢ $56,179. $43,994.:
65,028.: 61,251.: 61,167.¢ 57,058.. 44,617..
4,745.¢ 2,490.7 3,345.¢ 3,094.¢ 2,463.¢
$ 9.9¢ $ 47¢ $ 5.64 $ 4.9 $ 4.0:
9.8¢ 4.7¢ 5.5€ 4.8z 3.94
82.6% 83.6% 82.4% 81.2% 80.1%
15.% 14.€% 14.5% 15.7% 16.5%
11.4% 5.1% 8.6% 8.6% 8.7%
7.3% 4.1% 5.8% 5.4% 5.8%
33,67( 35,04¢ 34,80¢ 34,101 33,85¢
$22,588.« $17,402.¢ $21,249.¢ $20,812.: $20,336.(
52,125.. 48,403.. 52,060.( 51,574.¢ 51,123.¢
8,338.! 7,833.¢ 9,023.t 6,493.: 6,324."
27,262.. 26,971. 29,069. 26,999.. 26,130.¢
24,863.. 21,431” 22,990. 24,575.¢ 24,993.:

The net assets for WellChoice, Inc. and the nedtasd and results of operations for DeCare Dehtdl; Imaging Managemer

Holdings, LLC; and Lumenos, Inc. are included frimair respective acquisition dates of Decembe2P85 (effective December 31,
2005 for accounting purposes), April 9, 2009, Audy2007, and June 9, 2005. The results of opersifior our PBM business are
included until its sale on December 1, 2009. Tiselts of operations for the year ended Decembe2@19 includes pre-tax and after-tax
gains related to the sale of our PBM business gf%33 million and $2,361.2 million, respective

operating revenut

Operating revenue is obtained by adding premiuchs\jr@istrative fees and other reven
The benefit expense ratio represents benefit exgsess a percentage of premium reve
The selling, general and administrative expense rapresents selling, general and administratigereses as a percentage of total

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

References to the terms “we”, “our”, or “us” usédaughout this Management’s Discussion and Analysisinancial Condition and
Results of Operations, or MD&A, refer to WellPoihtig., an Indiana corporation, and unless the ctrttherwise requires, its direct and

indirect subsidiaries.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiedhform to current year presentation.
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The structure of our MD&A is as follows:
l. Executive Summar

II.  Overview

lll.  Significant Event:

IV. Membershi—December 31, 2009 Compared to December 31,

V. Cost of Care

VI. Results of Operatio—Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to the YededDecember 31, 20!
VIl. Membershi—December 31, 2008 Compared to December 31,

VIII. Results of Operatio—Year Ended December 31, 2008 Compared to the YededDecember 31, 20!
IX. Critical Accounting Policies and Estimal

X.  Liquidity and Capital Resourct

Xl. Safe Harbor Statement under the Private Secultitigmtion Reform Act of 199!

This MD&A should be read in conjunction with ourdited consolidated financial statements for the pemled December 31, 2009,
included in this Form 10-K.

I. Executive Summary

We are the largest health benefits company in tefmsedical membership in the United States, sgr@®.7 million medical members as
of December 31, 2009. We are an independent liecofsthe Blue Cross and Blue Shield AssociatiorBGBSA, an association of indepenc
health benefit plans. We serve our members as ltiee Gross licensee for California and as the Blues€ and Blue Shield, or BCBS, licensee
for: Colorado, Connecticut, Georgia, Indiana, Kekiy Maine, Missouri (excluding 30 counties in tk@nsas City area), Nevada, New
Hampshire, New York (as BCBS in 10 New York Citytnapolitan and surrounding counties, and as Blues€pr BCBS in selected upstate
counties only), Ohio, Virginia (excluding the Noetin Virginia suburbs of Washington, D.C.), and Wgizsin. In a majority of these service
areas we do business as Anthem Blue Cross, AntHeen@oss Blue Shield or Empire Blue Cross Blueelshiin our New York service aree
We also serve customers throughout much of thetopas UniCare. We are licensed to conduct inswamperations in all 50 states through
our subsidiaries.

Operating revenue for the year ended December(®B @as $60.8 billion, a decrease of $0.8 billimn1%, over the year ended
December 31, 2008. The decrease was primarily nltyefully-insured membership declines across cam@ercial and Consumer businesses
resulting from the current economic conditionswadl as our strategic withdrawal from certain St&ponsored programs. These decreases
were partially offset by premium rate increasesalbmedical lines of business and increased reisguent in the Federal Employees Prog
or FEP.

Net income for the year ended December 31, 20094 asbillion, an increase of $2.3 billion, or 9%er the year ended December 31,
2008. Our fully-diluted earnings per share, or EfeSthe year ended December 31, 2009 was $9.88camase of $5.12, or 108% over the
year ended December 31, 2008. Our i-diluted shares were 480.5 million for the year enDecember 31, 2009, a decrease of 42.5 millic
8% compared to the year ended December 31, 2008.
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The results included the following after-tax items:
For the year ended December 31, 2—net income of $4.7 billion or EPS of $9.
» Gain on sale of our prescription benefits managenoeriPBM business, of $2.4 billion or EPS of $4.91

e Otherthar-temporary impairment losses, net of realized gamswvestments of $(255.2) million or EPS of $(0.
e Restructuring charges net of other items of $(2)028lion or EPS of $(0.21)
« Impairment of goodwill and other intangible ass#t$(184.6) million or EPS of $(0.3i

For the year ended December 31, 2008—net incorfi2.bfbillion or EPS of $4.76
¢ Otherthar-temporary impairment losses, net of realized gaimswvestments of $(759.6) million or EPS of $(J.

« Impairment of goodwill and other intangible ass#t$(90.8) million or EPS of $(0.17)
* Income tax benefits from favorable resolution ata@ federal and state tax matters of $473.0 anilbr EPS of $0.9

See “Results of Operations—Year Ended Decembe2@19 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 280Rided in this MD&A
for further discussion of our operating resultstfagse two years.

Operating cash flow for the year ended Decembe2309 was $3.0 billion or 0.6 times net income,ahhivas driven by the gain on sale
of our PBM business and is included in investinghcliow. Excluding the after-tax impact of the gamsale of our PBM business from net
income, operating cash flow was 1.3 times net ireoDperating cash flow for the year ended DecerBbe2008 was $2.5 billion or 1.0 times
net income. The increase in operating cash flomfB®08 was driven primarily by the favorable nedrofpe in provider advances, decrease(
payments, lower experience-rated refunds to celdagre customers and decreased incentive paynigmtse favorable operating cash flow
drivers were partially offset by unfavorable opieragtcash flows related to the transitioning of &M business to Express Scripts, higher
discretionary benefit plan contributions and thiagén receipt of certain State-Sponsored busipessiiums until early 2010.

We intend to continue expanding through a comhbamadif organic growth, strategic acquisitions angitedtransactions in both existing
and new markets. Our growth strategy is designeshédle us to take advantage of additional ecormafiscale as well as providing us access
to new and evolving technologies and productsdutiteon, we believe geographic diversity reducesexiposure to local or regional regulatc
economic and competitive pressures and providegthdgncreased opportunities for growth. While wavl achieved strong growth as a result
of strategic mergers and acquisitions, we haveatsieved organic growth in our existing marketsrdime by providing excellent service,
offering competitively priced products and effeetiv capitalizing on the brand strength of the Bliress and Blue Shield names and marks.

Il.  Overview

We manage our operations through three reportagments: Commercial, Consumer, and Other. Segngzibsures for 2007 have be
reclassified to conform to the 2009 and 2008 prizsiem.

Our Commercial and Consumer segments both offéreagified mix of managed care products, includimgferred provider
organizations, or PPOs; health maintenance orgémiza or HMOs; traditional indemnity benefits gmaint-of-service plans, or POS plans;
and a variety of hybrid benefit plans including somer-driven health plans, or CDHPs, hospital @mig limited benefit products.

Our Commercial segment includes Local Group (inicigdUniCare), National Accounts and certain othasiliary business operations
(dental, vision, life and disability and workergmapensation). Business units in the
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Commercial segment offer fully-insured products pravide a broad array of managed care servicesltdunded customers, including claims
processing, underwriting, stop loss insurance,a@liservices, provider network access, medical octanagement, disease management,
wellness programs and other administrative services

Our Consumer segment includes Senior, State-Spathsmd Individual businesses. Senior businessdaslgervices such as Medicare
Part D, Medicare Advantage, and Medicare Supplemérite State-Sponsored business includes our negheare alternatives for the
Medicaid and State Children’s Health Insurance Plagrams.

The Other segment includes our Comprehensive H&allitions Business unit, or CHS, that brings tbgebur resources focused on
optimizing the quality of health care and costafecmanagement. CHS included our PBM businessitssiale to Express Scripts on
December 1, 2009, and also includes provider mlaticare and disease management, employee assiptaigrams, including behavioral
health, radiology benefit management and analytiosen personal healthcare guidance. Our Other sagaiso includes results from our
Federal Government Solutions, or FGS, business. fiGBess includes the FEP and National Govern®emnices, Inc., or NGS, which acts
as a Medicare contractor in several regions ad¢hessation. The Other segment also includes otheinbsses that do not meet the quantitative
thresholds for an operating segment as definednian€ial Accouting Standards Board, or FASB, gudafor disclosures about segments o
enterprise and related information, as well aggstgment sales and expense eliminations and céepaxpenses not allocated to the other
reportable segments.

Our operating revenue consists of premiums, adtnatige fees and other revenue. Premium revenuesdrom fully-insured contracts
where we indemnify our policyholders against céstovered health and life benefits. Administratfees come from contracts where our
customers are self-insured, or where the fee isthas either processing of transactions or a peafemetwork discount savings realized.
Additionally, we earn administrative fee revenuesrf our Medicare processing business and from dtbalth-related businesses including
disease management programs. Other revenue isgaliyagyenerated from member co-payments and dédestassociated with the maitder
sale of drugs by our PBM business prior to its sal®ecember 1, 2009.

Our benefit expense primarily includes costs oédar health services consumed by our members, asiclitpatient care, inpatient
hospital care, professional services (primarilygbian care) and pharmacy benefit costs. All famponents are affected both by unit costs
and utilization rates. Unit costs include the afsbutpatient medical procedures per visit, inpatleospital care per admission, physician fees
per office visit and prescription drug prices. Zltion rates represent the volume of consumptfdrealth services and typically vary with the
age and health status of our members and thealsaail lifestyle choices, along with clinical protds and medical practice patterns in each of
our markets. A portion of benefit expense recoghineeach reporting period consists of actuariheges of claims incurred but not yet paid
by us. Any changes in these estimates are recamdée period the need for such an adjustmentsristile we offer a diversified mix of
managed care products, including PPO, HMO, POSCIAP products, our aggregate cost of care canufatetbased on a change in the
overall mix of these products. In recent periods,have seen an increase in COBRA coverage witksetbroduct offerings that can further
impact our cost of care. COBRA is named for the €dtidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 19&8ich provides unemployed group
members with coverage for up to 18 months afténgptheir job. On February 17, 2009, the Americat®ery and Reinvestment Act of 20
or ARRA, was signed into law. ARRA provides foreanporary subsidy of COBRA premiums for individutidat were involuntarily terminate
from employment (for reasons other than gross midaot) between September 1, 2008 and Februarydd®, Zhere have also been
discussions among lawmakers regarding extensiéfR&tA through December 31, 2010. The COBRA subsiutyen ARRA has caused more
individuals to elect COBRA coverage.

Our selling expense consists of external brokerrn@sion expenses, and generally varies with prendumembership volume. Our
general and administrative expense consists ofl fatel variable costs. Examples of fixed costs apgetiation, amortization and certain
facilities expenses. Other costs are variable sgrdtionary in nature. Certain variable costs, agphremium taxes, vary directly with premium
volume. Other variable

47



Table of Contents

costs, such as salaries and benefits, do not vagtly with changes in premium, but are more aigimvith changes in membership. The
acquisition or loss of a significant block of busss would likely impact staffing levels, and thesariate compensation expense. Examples of
discretionary costs include professional and cdimgubexpenses and advertising. Other factors cgadtour administrative cost structure,
including systems efficiencies, inflation and chesign productivity.

Our cost of drugs consists of the amounts we pgh&smaceutical companies for the drugs we soldnad order through our PBM and
specialty pharmacy companies until their sale tprEss Scripts on December 1, 2009. This amounué&slthe cost of drugs related to
affiliated health customers recorded in benefitemge. Our cost of drugs was influenced by the velofrprescriptions at our PBM companies
until the sale to Express Scripts, as well as chahges, driven by prices set by pharmaceuticapeoies and mix of drugs sold.

Our results of operations depend in large partwrability to accurately predict and effectively mage health care costs through effec
contracting with providers of care to our memberd aur medical management programs. Several ecarfactors related to health care costs,
such as regulatory mandates of coverage as wdites-to-consumer advertising by providers andrptaeutical companies, have a direct
impact on the volume of care consumed by our mesalv€hile we price our business so that premiundygsiceeds total cost trends, the
potential effect of escalating health care costwalsas any changes in our ability to negotiatmpetitive rates with our providers may impose
further risks to our ability to profitably underdeiour business, and may have a material impaotionesults of operations.

Our future results of operations may also be imgrhbly certain external forces and resulting chaigesr business model and strategy.
During 2009, the U.S. Congress proposed severalpieves of legislation aimed at reforming the U&alth care system. The proposals vary
widely and encompass certain new taxes and fegsgding an excise tax on high value insurance fesiand new fees on companies in our
industry which may not be deductible for income paxposes, as well as the establishment of a phbhdth insurance plan that would comg
with private health insurance plans, guarantee@ia@e requirements, establishment of minimum lass requirements and greater limitatic
on premiums we could charge. In addition, therenairaerous other provisions and proposals beingidered in Congress and at the state |
that could impact our operations and financial itestNone of these proposals have yet been enawb@eever, certain of the provisions could
have a material adverse effect on our business Inaoderesults of operations. Also see Part |, lfgfRisk Factors in this Form 10-K.

In addition to external forces discussed in the@déng paragraph, our results of operations areatga by levels and mix of
membership. During 2009, we experienced both funsured and self-funded membership declines. Gikrercurrent economic conditions in
the U.S., it is expected that unemployment levelsramain high throughout 2010, which may impaat ability to increase or even maintain
current membership levels. These membership tremalsl have a material adverse effect on our futeselts of operations. Also see Part |,
Item 1A. Risk Factors in this Form 10-K.

Partially in response to these factors, we conttoueview our business model and explore variass reduction activities to make us
more efficient and effective. As a result of stgiteactions we are taking to achieve this objective recorded a pre-tax charge of $171.6
million for restructuring costs during the fourthagter of 2009. The outcomes of these initiativesamticipated to benefit us in the future.

lll.  Significant Events
Sale of PBM Business

On December 1, 2009, we sold our PBM business pdss Scripts and received $4.7 billion in caste pie-tax and after-tax gains on
the sale were $3.8 billion and $2.4 billion, redpety. During the first quarter of 2010, we willake tax payments of approximately $1.2
billion relating to the PBM sale. We also enteneihia 10year contract for Express Scripts to provide PBIises to our members. We exp
this alliance to provide
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our members with more cost effective solutions alf as access to state-of-tag-PBM services. The results of operations ofPBM busines
have been included in our consolidated resultautiindNovember 30, 2009.

Announcement of Member Transition Agreement foCdre Busines

On October 28, 2009, we announced that we entatedaimember transition agreement with Health Gamice Corporation, or HCSC,
which operates as Blue Cross and Blue Shieldimoid and Texas. Under this agreement, HCSC wiirgfuaranteed replacement coverage to
our UniCare commercial group and individual membieithose states. Starting on January 1, 2010gaicenf our membership began
transitioning to HCSC as a result of this agreenaet we expect them to experience significant benéficluding gaining access to HCSC's
extensive provider networks and leading discourite. member transition agreement did not have ariahédfect on our consolidated cash
flows, financial condition or results of operations

Acquisition of DeCare Dental, LL

On April 9, 2009, we completed our acquisition ef@Care Dental, LLC, or DeCare, a wholly-owned subsydof DeCare
International. DeCare is one of the country’s latgelministrators of dental benefit plans and gesiservices directly and through
partnerships and administrative agreements witlilégmal insurance brands, primarily as a thirdypadministrator. DeCare manages benefits
for approximately four million people and is exptto provide our customers with innovative deptaducts and enhanced customer service.

The acquisition was accounted for using the actpiismethod of accounting. Accordingly, the reswolt®perations of DeCare have been
included in our consolidated results for period®feing April 9, 2009.

Suspension by The Centers for Medicare and MediBaidices

During 2008, we worked with The Centers for Medécand Medicaid Services, or CMS, to resolve isgilestified as a result of our
internal compliance audits and findings from a 2Q08S audit. Our work included detailed action plamsemediate such findings. In additit
we engaged an independent third party to provideS@hth on-going assessments regarding our comg@iancluding verification of systems,
processes and procedures.

On January 12, 2009, CMS notified us that we waspsnded from marketing to and enrolling new mesbeour Medicare Advantage
and Medicare Part D health benefit products uatiediation efforts had been fully implemented amwficmed. On September 9, 2009, CMS
notified us that the sanctions had been lifted.B&gan marketing our Medicare Advantage and MedieareD products on October 1, 2009
and began enrolling new members on November 15 ffithe 2010 contract year. However, we are natently eligible to receive auto-
enroliment or reassignment of Medicare Part D Loeome Subsidy, or LIS, beneficiaries. We contirmeork with CMS to demonstrate that
our operations related to the Medicare Part D Li®ymms have been corrected so that we will agaiallowed to participate in the Medicare
Part D LIS auto-assignment process.

Stock Repurchase Program

We regularly review the appropriate use of capAatordingly, under our Board of Directolithorization, we maintain a common st
repurchase program. Repurchases may be made frantditime at prevailing market prices, subjeatddain restrictions on volume, pricing
and timing. The repurchases are effected from tortene in the open market, through negotiatedsmations and through plans designed to
comply with Rule 10b5-1 under the Securities ExgjeaAct of 1934, as amended, or Exchange Act. Duhiegyear ended December 31, 2009,
we repurchased and retired approximately 57.3anilihares at an average per share price of $46102n aggregate cost of $2.6 billion. On
March 5, 2009, our Board of Directors authorizedramease of $1.5 billion in our stock repurchasggpam. On October 23, 2009, our Board
of Directors authorized an additional increase@bdillion in our stock repurchase program, sutjecompletion of the Express Scripts
transaction, and pending current market and ingustnditions. As of December 31, 2009, $0.4
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billion remained authorized for future repurchasgs.January 26, 2010, our Board of Directors ineeelathe share repurchase authorization by
$3.5 billion. Subsequent to December 31, 2009,epeirchased and retired approximately 6.5 millioarel for an aggregate cost of
approximately $0.4 billion, leaving approximatel§.$ billion for authorized future repurchases atriiary 10, 2010. Our stock repurchase
program is discretionary as we are under no olitigab repurchase shares. We repurchase shareswehbalieve it is a prudent use of capital.

Tax Resolutions

During the year ended December 31, 2008, we setitgrlites with the Internal Revenue Service, or, iiREating to certain tax years and
industry issues that we had been discussing wghRI$ for several years. Also relating to the indussues that were settled, we recorded
additional tax benefits that had previously beemiet by the IRS. In addition, tax litigation in theS. Tax Court concluded adversely to us
during 2008. The case has been appealed to thedt&iecuit Court of Appeals and oral argumentssaieeduled for February 2010.

IV. Membership—December 31, 2009 Compared to Dember 31, 2008

Our medical membership includes seven differentocusr types: Local Group, Individual, National Acods, BlueCard, Senior, State-
Sponsored and FEP. BCBSA-branded business refensitabers in our service, or geographic, areasdeby the BCBSA. Non-BCBSA-
branded business refers to UniCare members pre@dehiroutside of our BCBSA service areas.

» Local Group (including UniCare) consists of thosg#yer customers with less than 5% of eligible Eappes located outside of the
headquarter state, as well as customers with rhare3% of eligible employees located outside ofttbadquarter state with up to
2,500 eligible employee

» Individual consists of individual customers undge &5 (including UniCare) and their covered depatsle

» National Accounts generally consist of m-state employer groups primarily headquarteredWediPoint service area with at lei
5% of the eligible employees located outside offteadquarter state and with more than 2,500 edigibiployees. Some exceptions
are allowed based on broker relationsh

» BlueCard host members represent enrollees of BinesCand/or Blue Shield plans not owned by WellPwimo receive health ca
services in our BCBSA licensed markets. BlueCardhbvership consists of estimated host members usagational BlueCard
program. Host members are generally members wider@sor travel to a state in which a WellPoinbsidliary is the Blue Cross
and/or Blue Shield licensee and who are covereemad employer-sponsored health plan issued byameallPoint controlled
BCBSA licensee (i.e., the “home” plan). We perfarertain administrative functions for BlueCard mensbéor which we receive
administrative fees from the BlueCard members’ hptaas. Other administrative functions, includinginmtenance of enroliment
information and customer service, are performethbyhome plan. Host members are computed usingaguaothier things, the
average number of BlueCard claims received per mi

» Senior members are Medicare-eligible individual rbers age 65 and over who have enrolled in Mediddrantage, a managed
care alternative for the Medicare program, or wheehpurchased Medicare Supplement benefit cove

» State-Sponsored membership represents eligible exsmbith State-Sponsored managed care alternativdedicaid and State
Childrer’'s Health Insurance Plan progratr

» FEP members consist of United States governmentogegs and their dependents within our geograplaidkets through ot
participation in the national contract betweenBI@BSA and the U.S. Office of Personnel Managenr

In addition to reporting our medical membershipchgtomer type, we report by funding arrangementralicg to the level of risk that v
assume in the product contract. Our two fundingragement categories are fully-insured and selfédnéullyinsured products are products
which we indemnify our policyholders against cdstshealth benefits. Self-funded products are effieto customers, generally larger
employers, who
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elect to retain most or all of the financial ridsaciated with their employees’ health care c&ime selffunded customers choose to purck
stop-loss coverage to limit their retained risk.

The following table presents our medical membergligustomer type, funding arrangement and replersdgment as of December 31,
2009 and 2008. Also included below are other bssieg’ key metrics, including prescription volumedar PBM companies, which were sold
to Express Scripts on December 1, 2009, and otleenbership by product. The medical membership anerdtusinesses’ metrics presented
are unaudited and in certain instances includenastis of the number of members represented byaeenthact at the end of the period.

December 31

2009 2008 Change % Change
(In thousands)
Medical Membership
Customer Type
Local Group 15,64: 16,63: (989 (6)%
Individual 2,131 2,27 (141) (6)
National:
National Account: 6,81: 6,72( 93 1
BlueCard 4,744 4,73¢€ 8 —
Total National 11,557 11,45¢ 101 1
Senior 1,21t 1,304 (89 @)
State-Sponsorel 1,73¢ 1,992 (259) (13
FEP 1,391 1,39¢ (2 —
Total medical membership by customer t 33,67( 35,04¢ (1,379 4
Funding Arrangement
Selt-Funded 18,23¢ 18,52( (2849 2
Fully-Insured 15,43 16,52¢ (1,095 @)
Total medical membership by funding arrangen 33,67( 35,04¢ (1,379 4
Reportable Segmen
Commercial 27,35¢ 28,30¢ (94¢) ()]
Consume 4,92 5,352 (429) (8)
Other 1,391 1,39¢ (2) —
Total medical membership by reportable segn 33,67( 35,04¢ (1,379 4
Other Membership
Behavioral healtl 22,96¢ 23,56¢ (603) 3
Life and disability 5,39¢ 5,47 (84) 2
Dental? 4,28¢ 4,56( (276) (6)
Managed denté! 3,94¢ — 3,94¢ NM?2
Vision 3,08¢ 2,61« 474 18
Medicare Part [ 1,50¢ 1,87(¢ (361) (19
PBM Prescription Volume Paid (Year-to-Date) 3
Retail Scripts 217,38: 240,98. (23,60) (10)
Mail Order Scripts# 23,84¢ 25,98 (2,132 8
Specialty Pharmacy Scrig 73€ 687 51 7
Total Paid Script 241,96¢ 267,65. (25,687 (20

! Dental membership as of December 31, 2009 inclD@#€3are members not included in managed dental maiipewhich were acquire

on April 9, 2009. Managed dental membership inctugembers acquired through the DeCare acquisitiowliich we provide
administrative services onl

NM = Not meaningful

PBM business was sold to Express Scripts on Deceii#909 resulting in eleven months of PBM volumported for 200¢

Mail order scripts generally cover a 60 or 90 daypdy with a weighted average supply of 86 days ifail order script volume shown
the above table has been adjusted to reflect ag@ubply.
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Medical Membership

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2@28l, medical membership decreased 1,379,000, opditharily due to decreases in
Local Group (including UniCare), State-Sponsoredjvidual and Senior businesses, partially offseiricreases in our National Accounts
membership. The majority of the decline was inloaral Group business and primarily reflects lapsed net unfavorable in-group change
caused by higher unemployment resulting from theeti economic downturn partially offset by newesalln-group enroliment change
represents membership changes within a group tilaesains our customer.

Self-funded medical membership decreased 284,00 primarily due to declines in self-funded LbGaoup membership resulting
from lapses and net unfavorable in-group changeethby higher unemployment and withdrawal fromGoanecticut Medicaid program,
partially offset by an increase in self-funded Na#l Account membership resulting from additioredés and ongoing conversions to self-
funded arrangements.

Fully-insured membership decreased by 1,095,000eesnor 7%, primarily due to declines in fullydimed Local Group membership
resulting from lapses and net unfavorable in-grenmliment change caused by higher unemploymetigpgoffset by new sales, reduced
Individual membership, partially caused by the eatreconomic downturn, lower membership in cer@Gatifornia State-Sponsored programs
and ongoing conversions to self-funded arrangements

Local Group membership decreased 989,000, or 6hapty due to membership declines in our BCBSAHuiad business, and to a
lesser extent, our UniCare business. These dealiess primarily related to lapses and net unfavierabgroup enrollment changes associated
with the current economic downturn partially offegtnew sales. Certain of our UniCare members bégasitioning to HCSC on January 1,
2010.

Individual membership decreased 141,000, or 6% taleempetitive pricing pressures and overall ecoicaonditions. This decline was
weighted slightly more toward our BCBSA-brandedibess, but was also driven by UniCare. CertainurfniCare members began
transitioning to HCSC on January 1, 2010.

National Accounts membership increased 93,000%rprimarily driven by additional sales, reflectivkour extensive and cosffective
provider networks and a broad and innovative progodfolio. These increases were partially oftsgtapses and net unfavorable in-group
enroliment changes due to the current economic tlown

BlueCard membership increased 8,000, or less t#@mplimarily due to increased utilization by otiBELBSA licensee members who
reside in or travel to our licensed areas.

Senior membership decreased 89,000, or 7%, priyndui to the loss of membership from product péidfohanges implemented in
2009 for certain Medicare Advantage plans, inclgdirithdrawal from selected plans and lower membprshMedicare Supplement.

State-Sponsored membership decreased 259,000%gmitBnarily due to our strategic withdrawal frohetConnecticut and Nevada
Medicaid programs and certain California State-Spoed programs partially offset by growth in Indiaas a competitor exited the state.

Other Membership

Our Other products are often ancillary to our Hehlisiness, and can therefore be impacted by gameing changes in our medical
membership.

Behavioral health membership decreased 603,0@%oiprimarily due to higher unemployment resultiram the current economic
downturn, partially offset by growth in certain prects.
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Life and disability membership decreased 84,00@%y primarily due to lapses and net unfavorablgroup enrollment changes
associated with the current economic downturn aoceasing unemployment. Life and disability produaxte generally offered as a part of
Commercial medical fully-insured membership sales.

Dental membership decreased 276,000, or 6%, ptirdure to net unfavorable in-group enrollment chemgnd lapses due to the current
economic downturn, partially offset by new salesaweral groups and members acquired with DeCa¥dgoih9, 2009.

Managed dental membership increased 3,949,00@tiefleour acquisition of DeCare on April 9, 2009.

Vision membership increased 474,000, or 18%, piilyndue to continued sales and market penetratiaupBlue View vision product,
partially offset by lapses and net unfavorablerioug changes.

Medicare Part D membership decreased 361,000,%r &8 the CMS sanctions prevented us from captsales from new business to
offset declines, including those from normal atirit

PBM Prescription Volume

PBM prescription volume was completely transfetieé&xpress Scripts as a result of the sale of &M Business to Express Scripts on
December 1, 2009. For the eleven months ended NoseB®, 2009 as compared to November 30, 2008¢ypéen volume decreased
2,009,000, or 1%, primarily due to a decreasetalrscripts resulting from lower membership drivgnthe current economic conditions and
the exit from a joint venture in the Northeast. Teelines were partially offset by increases inpgarolume as our PBM business began
servicing approximately one million members transfd from an outside vendor on January 1, 2009.

V. Cost of Care

The following discussion summarizes our aggregatketlying cost of care trends for the rolling 12ntits ended December 31, 2009 for
our Local Group fullyinsured business only. As previously discussedéltests are influenced by our mix of managed ar@ucts, includin
PPO, HMO, POS and CDHP products, in addition tangka in the unit costs and utilization levels.

Our cost of care trends are calculated by compdhagear-over-year change in average per membengeth claim costs, including
member co-payments and deductibles. While ourafostre trend varies by geographic location, basednderlying medical cost trends our
aggregate cost of care trend was 8.9%.

Overall, our medical cost trend continued to beefhiby unit costs. Inpatient hospital trend wathlow double digit range and was
primarily related to increases in cost per admissizeveloping trend indicates that approximatel9696f the inpatient trend is cost driven,
while 10% is utilization driven. Primary contribugoto unit cost trends include elevated average aasity (intensity) as well as higher
negotiated rate increases with hospitals. As wesaceessful in moving lower intensity procedurekteer cost outpatient services, the
remaining inpatient procedures are of higher aweratgnsity. A portion of the recent inpatient tleacceleration is attributable to utilization.
Both the inpatient admission counts per thousanchibees and the inpatient day counts per thousandomemvere higher than the prior year.
The average length of inpatient stays also incaeaser prior year levels. Continued clinical marraget and re-contracting efforts are in place
to help mitigate the inpatient trend increasesgRnms such as the enterprise-wide enhaf6€d Healthcare management programs, the
industry’s first program to integrate all care mgaaent programs and tools into a centralized, coesdriendly resource, continue to aid our
members in accessing the most comprehensive amd@jgie care available. Efforts also include famliseview of neo-natal intensive care
unit cases, spinal surgery cases and enhancedatlinanagement of chronic kidney disease/end-stagd disease cases. New pilot programs
are being introduced for readmission managemewelisas focused utilization management at high €astities.
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Outpatient trend was in the low double digit raage was 65% cost driven and 35% utilization driv@atpatient costs are a collection
different types of expenses, such as outpatiefiitias, labs, x-rays, emergency room, and occupei and physical therapy. Per visit costs are
still the largest contributor to overall outpati¢rgnd, influenced by price increases within cerfaiovider contracts. Utilization increases are
spanning multiple categories of outpatient careameddriving some of the increased trend in repsariths. ER management programs and
initiatives to help optimize site of service degaiss are serving to encourage appropriate utilimatiooutpatient services. Additionally, we
continued to see the positive impact of incorpagathe technology of our American Imaging Managetmieic., or AIM, subsidiary. This is
allowing us to achieve greater efficiencies in liigh trend area of radiology, ensuring that conssmeceive the quality tests they need.
Expanding AIM’s platform to nuclear cardiology mgeaent and specialty pharmacy reviews is aidingefforts to mitigate trend increases.

Physician services trend was in the mid singletdagige and was 55% cost driven and 45% utilizadidven. Increases in the physician
care category were partially driven by contractthgnges. Recent increases in utilization trendsi@gven at least in part by recent HIN1
activity. We are continually monitoring HIN1 andasenal flu experience (both internal and natiompkeience) to ensure that trend estimates
reflect the best information available. Additioryallve continue to collaborate with physicians t@iove quality of care through pay-for-
performance programs.

Pharmacy trend was in the mid-to-high single digitge and was primarily unit cost (cost per prgsiom) related. Recent inflation in the
average wholesale price of drugs is applying upvgaedsure to the overall cost per prescriptiorsdle increased use of specialty
drugs. Specialty drugs, also known as biotech draigsgenerally higher cost and are being utilinede frequently. The increase in cost per
prescription measures were mitigated by increaseslii generic usage rates, benefit plan designggdsaand continued management of
contracting arrangements and fee schedules.

In response to cost trends, we continue to pursn&acting and plan design changes, promote anttimgnt performance-based
contracts that reward clinical outcomes and qugadihd expand our radiology management, diseasegearent and advanced care
management programs. Expansion continue368i Healthwhich assists patients in navigating the healtle sgstem, using their health
benefits and accessing the most comprehensivepprd@iate care available. Additionally, our Resioln Health, Inc. subsidiary is allowing
us to fully integrate their suite of products taend the range and quality of services for our mensibAs a leading data analytics-driven
personal health care guidance company, Resolutéaith] Inc. continues to expand its efforts to ioyer healthcare quality and reduce
healthcare costs. The sale of our PBM businesshancesulting strategic alliance with Express Ssnipill bring with it greater capabilities and
resources, allowing members to leverage more désttve solutions and state-of-the-art PBM sersida addition to these efforts, we
continuously evaluate our drug formulary to engheemost effective pharmaceutical therapies aréadole for our members.
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VI. Results of Operations—Year Ended December 32009 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2008
Our consolidated results of operations for the yesded December 31, 2009 and 2008 are discus#gel fiollowing section

(In millions, except per share dat¢
Premiums
Administrative fee:
Other revenur
Total operating revent
Net investment incom
Gain on sale of busine
Net realized gains on investmel
Othel-thar-temporary impairment losses on investme
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment losses on investme
Portion of othe-thar-temporary impairment losses recognize
other comprehensive incor
Othel-thar-temporary impairment losses recognized in inci
Total revenue
Benefit expens
Selling, general and administrative exper
Selling expens
General and administrative expel
Total selling, general and administrative expe
Cost of drugs
Interest expens
Amortization of other intangible asst
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible ass
Total expense
Income before income tax exper
Income tax expens
Net income

Average diluted shares outstand

Diluted net income per sha

Benefit expense rati

Selling, general and administrative expense #

Income before income taxes as a percentage ofreatahue
Net income as a percentage of total reve

Year Ended December 3:

2009

$56,382.(
3,840.!
606.S
60,828.1
801.C
3,792
56.4

(538.9)

88.c

(450.7)
65,028.:
46,571.

1,685.f
7,973.¢
9,659.

419.(
4474
266.(
262.F
57,625.
7,403.(
2,657.
$ 4,745.¢
480.F
$ 98¢
82.6%
15.9%
11.0%
7.%%

2008

$57,101.(
3,836.¢
641.€
61,579.!
851.1

28.1

(1,207.9

(1,207.9
61,251.;
47,742..

1,778.
7,242
9,020.!
468.t
469.¢
286.1
141.¢
58,128.
3,122..
631.5
$ 2,490.
523.(
$ 4.7¢
83.t%
14.€%
5.1%
4.1%

$ Change % Change
$ (719.0 (1)%
3.7 —
(35.9) (6)
(750.6) (1)
(50.1) (6)
3,792.: NM1
27.7 NM1
669.5 NM1
88.2 NM1
757.1 NM1
3,777.( 6
(1,171.9) @)
(92.9 (5)
731.t 10
638.€ 7
(49.5) (11)
(22.9) (5)
(20.1) (7
121.1 86
(503.6) 1)
4,280.¢ 137
2,025.¢ NM1
$ 2,255.: 91
(42.5) (8
$ 5.12 10¢€
(100)bp 3
13Cbp3
63Cbp3
32Cbp3

Certain of the following definitions are also applble to all other results of operations tablethis discussion:

NM = Not meaningfu
Benefit expense ratio = Benefit expense + Premit
bp = basis point; one hundred basis points =

A W N P

Selling, general and administrative expense raflmtal selling, general and administrative expen3®tal operating revenu
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Premiums decreased $719.0 million, or 1%, to $66li4n in 2009, primarily due to fully-insured mdrarship declines across our
Commercial and Consumer businesses resulting fnencurrent economic conditions, as well as outesgia withdrawal from certain State-
Sponsored programs. These decreases were paofiziiy by premium rate increases for all medigzdi of business and increased
reimbursement in the FEP program.

Administrative fees remained level at $3.8 billior2009, primarily due to increased pricing in dacal Group self-funded business, self-
funded membership growth in National Accounts, nexefrom DeCare following the acquisition and ireed State-Sponsored fees, partially
offset by lower revenues in our NGS Medicare bussrend our withdrawal from the Connecticut Medigaiogram.

Other revenue is comprised principally of co-payteemd deductibles associated with the sale of-ardér prescription drugs by our
PBM companies, which provide services to membesuofCommercial and Consumer segments and thitgt péents. Other revenue
decreased $35.3 million, or 6%, to $606.3 millior2D09, primarily due to one less month of PBM rexeas compared to 2008, resulting fi
the sale of our PBM business to Express Script@egember 1, 2009 and decreased mail order scripmefrom third parties prior to the se
partially offset by proceeds from the UniCare mentkensition agreement with HCSC and DeCare reveflbowing the acquisition of
DeCare on April 9, 2009.

Net investment income decreased $50.1 million %r & $801.0 million in 2009, primarily resultingpm reduced investment balances,
prior to the receipt of the PBM sale proceeds, laner yields on short-term investments.

Gain on sale of business of $3.8 billion repres#rggpre-tax gain on the sale of our PBM busine$sxpress Scripts. We received $4.7
billion in cash.

A summary of our net realized gains (losses) oestments for the years ended December 31, 2002G08&lis as follows:

Years Ended
December 31
2009 2008 $ Change
(In millions)
Net realized gains on investment
Net realized gains (losses) from the sale of fixedurity securitie:! $ 22.¢ $ (46.9 $ 69.7
Net realized gains from the sale of equity seas 35.C 28.8 6.7
Other net realized (losses) gains on investm (1.9 47.3 (48.7)
Net realized gains on investme| 56.4 28.7 27.0
Other-than-temporary impairment losses recognized in incom
Otherthar-temporary impairment loss—equity securitie: (232.6 (728.) 495k
Othel-thar-temporary impairment loss—fixed maturity securitie (217.6) (479.9 262.2
Othel-thar-temporary impairment losses recognized in inci (450.7) (1,207.9 757.
Net realized gains on investments and c-thar-temporary
impairment losses recognized in inco $(393.9 $(1,179.9) $ 785.¢

Net realized gains on investments increased in pdid8arily due to increased gains from the saléx&fd maturity securities, partially
offset by declines in realized gains on other itwents.
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Other-than-temporary impairment losses recogniaeéddome in 2009 were equally related to impairmarfixed maturity securities,
primarily from declines in credit ratings and deek in equity securities. There was no individuaignificant other-thatemporary impairmer
of investments by issuer during the year ended Dbee 31, 2009. Net realized gains/losses on investsrand other-than-temporary
impairment losses recognized in income for the pealed December 31, 2008 were primarily driven thgiethan-temporary impairments
related to the deterioration in equity markets, tind lesser extent, other-than-temporary impaitmeffixed maturity securities. The other-
than-temporary impairment losses recognized infmeincluded $135.0 million, $106.6 million, and $nillion, respectively, for Federal
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, or Freddie Mac gfald\ational Mortgage Association, or Fannie M Lehman Brothers Holdings
Inc., or Lehman (or their respective subsidiaréssappropriate) that were recorded in 2008. Sestital Accounting Policies and Estimates”
within this MD&A for a discussion of our investmentpairment review process.

Benefit expense decreased $1.2 billion, or 2% 4@ &billion in 2009, primarily due to fully-insutenembership declines across our
Commercial and Consumer businesses, includingtsesam our strategic actions taken with State-Spoad programs that led to the
withdrawal from certain programs. In addition, wegerienced higher than anticipated prior year falbt# reserve releases of an estimated
$262.0 million during 2009 that were not reestdigdis at December 31, 2009. Finally, lower benefitese in our Senior business contributed
to the overall decrease in benefit expense. Theldgnefit expense in the Senior business inclueédced benefit expense for Medicare
Advantage, which primarily reflected product politachanges and pricing adjustments that were implged in 2009. These decreases were
partially offset by increases in benefit costsim bocal Group and FEP businesses. The increasedal Group benefit costs were driven by
higher unit costs and the impact of the recessiohusiness mix changes, including higher COBRA mexsthip and increased utilization. We
are refining our product offerings, expanding membip retention programs, driving cost of carei@ites and implementing pricing actions
to favorably impact our Local Group business.

Our benefit expense ratio decreased 100 basisswii®2.6% in 2009, due to improvements in our Qores segment, partially offset by
increases in our Commercial segment. Both our Qorsiand Commercial segments benefited from hidiear anticipated prior year favora
reserve releases of an estimated $262.0 milliomg®009 that were not reestablished at Decembgeg2(19, which favorably impacted the
benefit expense ratio by 46 basis points. The dedh the Consumer segment benefit expense rasaiga driven by improvements in our
Senior business, primarily due to product portfal@nges and pricing adjustments in Medicare Ac&gmthat were implemented for 2009,
improved results in State-Sponsored business doertain strategic actions that have been undertakeese decreases in the benefit expense
ratio were partially offset by a higher ratio fondal Group business, reflecting higher unit cost$ the impact of the recession on business mix
changes, including higher COBRA membership anceimeed utilization.

Selling, general and administrative expense ine@&638.6 million, or 7%, to $9.7 billion in 200ur selling, general and
administrative expense increased due to highenthacompensation costs and outside serviceddditian, as further described in Note 19 to
the audited financial statements included in tluie#10-K, we recorded $171.6 million of restruatgricosts during the fourth quarter of 2009.
These expenses were partially offset by lowerrsgkixpenses. These drivers, as well as lower dpgnegvenue resulting from declining
membership, caused our selling, general and adinzitiiee expense ratio to increase 130 basis ptint$.9% in 2009.

Cost of drugs sold decreased $49.5 million, or 1t4$419.0 million in 2009, primarily due to onessemonth of PBM activity as
compared to 2008, resulting from the sale of ouMRRISIness to Express Scripts on December 1, 2668%acreased mail order prescription
volume from third parties prior to the sale.

Interest expense decreased $22.4 million, or 5%44Y.4 million in 2009, primarily due to a reduaesk of commercial paper and the
repurchase of our zero coupon notes, partiallyeothy slightly higher interest rates on new dafatiuding the issuance of $1.0 billion of long-
term debt in February 2009.
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Amortization of other intangible assets decrea@ii®million, or 7%, to $266.0 million in 2009, prarily due to reductions in
amortization of certain other intangible assetaiaeq in prior years and ceasing amortization egldb PBM intangible assets due to the sa
our PBM business to Express Scripts on Decemhb2009.

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assetseased $121.1 million, or 86%, to $262.5 milliar009. As further discussed in
Note 9 to the audited consolidated financial statetsincluded in this Form -K, the anticipated closing of the PBM sale, thpested decline
in 2010 Medicare Part D auto-assigned memberstdgtaanticipated transition of our Illinois andx@e UniCare commercial group and
individual members to HCSC, triggered an interinp&inment review of our UniCare tradenames as ofedelper 30, 2009. As a result, we
identified and recorded a pre-tax impairment chaelgting to our UniCare tradenames during thedthirarter of 2009, the majority of which
was driven by the loss of the 2010 low margin MadicPart D auto-assigned membership. Subsequprithyarily in connection with the
December 2009 closing of the PBM sale and the ai@tof the HCSC agreement, we initiated an impaintrreview of goodwill associated
with our UniCare subsidiaries during the fourth geand also updated a previous impairment rewiEeur UniCare tradename. These
reviews resulted in an impairment charge of $57l0am in the fourth quarter of 2009 to adjust tterrying values of the goodwill and
intangible assets to their estimated fair valuesaesult, total impairments of goodwill and otimtangible assets were $262.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 20

During 2008, due to ongoing changes in the econamitregulatory environment in our State-Sponsbresiness, including California
budgetary cuts, we revised our outlook for thisilbess in certain states. This revision triggereéhgrim impairment review of our indefinite
lived intangible assets related to State-Sponsliwedses in certain states, and we identified @&ednded a pre-tax impairment charge relating
to certain intangible assets of $141.4 million dgr2008.

Income tax expense increased $2.0 billion to $2lidhin 2009. During 2009 income tax expense wagher as we recorded income tax
expense of $1.4 billion related to the sale ofBM business and as a result of increased incofieeebmcome tax expense. During 2008,
income tax expense was lower due to a combinafieetiement of disputes with the IRS relating ¢otain prior tax years, lower state income
taxes due to changes in the composition of the dippment factors in our combined state incomer&urns, settlements of disputes on state
audits and lower income before income tax experise effective tax rates in 2009 and 2008 were 358#20.2%, respectively. The lower
effective tax rate in 2008 was primarily due to sie¢tlement of the outstanding IRS disputes.

Our net income as a percentage of total revenueased 320 basis points, from 4.1% in 2008 to 482009, primarily due to the gain
on the sale of our PBM business. Excluding the gaisale, our net income as a percentage of ®tahue was 3.9% in 2009.

Reportable Segmen

We use operating gain to evaluate the performahoerareportable segments, which are CommerciahsGmer and Other. Operating
gain is calculated as total operating revenuebesgfit expense, selling, general and adminisgaikpense and cost of drugs. It does not
include net investment income, net realized gaissé#s on investments, other-than-temporary impairfosses recognized in income, interest
expense, amortization of other intangible assetpairment of goodwill and other intangible asset;icome taxes, as these items are managec
in a corporate shared service environment andatrehe responsibility of operating segment managenier additional information, see Note
19 to our audited consolidated financial statemaatsf and for the year ended December 31, 2008ded in this Form 10-K. The discussions
of segment results for the years ended Decembe&2(BB, and 2008 presented below are based on apegain, as described above, and
operating margin, which is calculated as operatiaig divided by operating revenue. Our definitiofi@perating gain and operating margin
may not be comparable to similarly titled measueg®rted by other companies.
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Commercial

Our Commercial segment’s summarized results ofadjmers for the years ended December 31, 2009 ad8 2@ as follows:

Year Ended
December 31
2009 2008 $ Change % Change
(In millions)
Operating revenu $37,363. $38,009.: $(645.9) (2)%
Operating gait $ 2,430.: $ 3,392.° $(962.9) (28)%
Operating margi 6.5% 8.5% (240bp

Operating revenue decreased $645.9 million, ort2%37.4 billion in 2009, primarily due to fully-$ured membership declines in our
Local Group, UniCare and National businesses deednomic factors. These decreases were partifiiigtdy premium rate increases for all
medical lines of business, increased memberstopiirself-funded National business, increased fe@sii Local Group self-funded business
and revenues from DeCare following our acquisitibeCare in April, 2009.

Operating gain decreased $962.4 million, or 28%2d billion in 2009 primarily due to higher beitexpenses in our Local Group
business, overall increased administrative cosidaty-insured membership declines resulting fritva current economic conditions. The
higher benefit expenses in our Local Group busimese driven by higher unit costs and businessahanges, including higher COBRA
membership and increased utilization. Administetiests primarily increased due to a fourth quagstructuring charge of $127.0 million ¢
higher overall compensation costs. These operggirydeclines were partially offset by premium riatreases and the impact of an estimated
$81.0 million in higher than anticipated favoraplér year reserve releases that were not reeskauliat December 31, 2009.

The operating margin in 2009 was 6.5%, a 240 st decrease from 2008 primarily due to the fectbscussed in the preceding two
paragraphs.

Consumer

Our Consumer segment’s summarized results of dpasator the years ended December 31, 2009 and &@08s follows:

Year Ended
December 31
2009 2008 $ Change % Change
(In millions)
Operating revenu $16,141. $16,437.. $(295.5) 2)%
Operating gair $ 1,279.° $ 585.1 $ 694.¢ 11%
Operating margi 7.5% 3.€% 43(Cbp

Operating revenue decreased $295.5 million, ort2%16.1 billion in 2009, primarily due to our witfawal from certain Stat8ponsore
programs, most notably the Ohio Medicaid programsmbership declines in Senior business and dedhinasr fully-insured Individual
membership, partially offset by premium rate inse=ain all lines of business.

Operating gain increased $694.6 million, or 11981.3 billion in 2009, primarily due to higher thanticipated prior year favorable
reserve releases of an estimated $181.0 milli@DDD that were not reestablished at December 39,26 well as improved results in our
Senior business as we implemented benefit designggs and modified pricing for 2009. We also hagrowed results in our State-Sponsored
business due to strategic actions taken, includiitigdrawal from certain unprofitable contracts aslvas working with individual states on
certain benefit design changes.
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The operating margin in 2009 was 7.9%, a 430 l@si#t increase over 2008 primarily due to the fextdiscussed in the preceding two
paragraphs.

Other

Our summarized results of operations for our Otfegiment for the years ended December 31, 2009G0&i&e as follows:

Year Ended
December 31
2009 2008 $ Change % Change
(In millions)
Operating revenu $7,323.¢ $7,132.¢ $190.¢ 3%
Operating gait $ 469.¢ $ 370.( $ 99.£ 27%

Operating revenue increased $190.8 million, or 847.3 billion in 2009, primarily due to higherganiums in our FEP business,
partially offset by lower administrative fees inrddGS business and one less month of PBM reven@800 as compared to 2008, resulting
from the sale of our PBM business to Express Script

Operating gain increased $99.4 million, or 27%$469.4 million during the year ended December BD92 This increase was due to
improved results for the first eleven months of 2@®our PBM business, primarily with respect ta cetail and specialty pharmacy operatic
and as NextRx began servicing approximately onéamitustomers transferred from an outside vendadanuary 1, 2009. Our PBM business
was sold to Express Scripts on December 1, 2088jteeof the PBM business are included in our tesuitil the sale date. In addition,
operating gain in our disease management and toat®businesses increased. These increases argigdly offset by higher unallocated
incentive compensation expense.

As a consequence of the PBM sale, the future adpgregsults of the Other segment will no longerdferirom the operating revenue and
operating gain associated with the PBM business.
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VIl.  Membership—December 31, 2008 Compared to @ember 31, 2007

The following table presents our medical member$lyipustomer type, funding arrangement and replersggment as of December 31,
2008 and 2007. Also included below are other bissiag key metrics, including prescription volumedar PBM companies and other
membership by product. The medical membership #mer dusinesses’ metrics presented are unauditktharertain instances include
estimates of the number of members representeddiy @ntract at the end of the period.

December 31

2008 20071 Change % Change
(In thousands)
Medical Membership
Customer Type
Local Group 16,63: 16,66: (32) 0%
Individual 2,272 2,39( (118) (5)
National Account: 6,72( 6,38¢ 331 5
BlueCard 4,73¢€ 4,56: 173 4
Total National 11,45¢ 10,95 504 5
Senior 1,304 1,25( 54 4
State-Sponsore 1,992 2,17¢ (182 (8)
FEP 1,39¢ 1,38( 13 1
Total medical membership by customer t 35,04¢ 34,80¢ 24C 1
Funding Arrangement
Self-Fundec 18,52( 17,73: 783 4
Fully-Insured 16,52¢ 17,072 (543) 3
Total medical membership by funding arrangen 35,04¢ 34,80¢ 24C 1
Reportable Segmen
Commercial 28,30¢ 27,88¢ 41€ 1
Consume! 5,352 5,54: (197) 3
Other 1,39¢ 1,38( 13 1
Total medical membership by reportable segn 35,04¢ 34,80¢ 24C 1
Other Membership
Behavioral healtl 23,56¢ 20,23( 3,33¢ 17
Life and disability 5,471 5,59¢ (1273) (2
Dental 4,56( 5,01« (454) 9)
Vision 2,61« 2,401 213 9
Medicare Part [ 1,87( 1,61« 25€ 16
PBM Prescription Volume Paid (Year-to-Date)
Retail Scripts 240,98! 223,147 17,83t 8
Mail Order Scripts2 25,98: 27,67: (1,6972) (6)
Specialty Pharmacy Scrig 687 40¢ 282 70
Total Paid Script 267,65: 251,22! 16,42¢ 7

! Medical membership data for 2007 has been recleddid conform to the 2008 presentation, exceptiferchange in National Accounts

membership definition, which was applied on a peasipe basis
Mail order scripts generally cover a 60 or 90 dagy with a weighted average supply of 86 days Tiail order script volume shown
the above table has been adjusted to reflect @ag@ubply.
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Medical Membership

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2@18] tmedical membership increased approximately(d) or 1%, due to increases
in our National, Senior and FEP businesses, plgrtiffiset by declines in State-Sponsored, Indivicarad Local Group membership.

Self-funded medical membership increased 783,008%g primarily due to an increase in self-fundeatibhal Accounts membership
resulting from additional sales, BlueCard growtld &ncal Group growth and ongoing conversions téfselded arrangements.

Fully-insured membership decreased 543,000, om@¥harily due to declines in fully-insured Local @p membership, our exit from
the Ohio Medicaid program and ongoing conversiorsetf-funded arrangements.

Local Group membership decreased 31,000, or lesslbn, primarily due to the loss of 224,000 membemur UniCare business,
partially offset by overall increases of 193,000mbers in our BCBSA-branded business.

Individual membership decreased 118,000, or 5% witr UniCare business declining slightly more tB&BSA-branded business. The
decline was due to competitive pricing pressures)petitive broker compensation in certain regiomd @verall economic conditions.

National Accounts membership increased 331,008%arprimarily driven by additional sales as emplsyare increasingly attracted to
the benefits of our distinctive value propositiarich includes extensive and cost-effective provitktworks and a broad and innovative
product portfolio. These increases were partiaffged by lapses and negative in-group-change dtieetoecent economic downturn.

BlueCard membership increased 173,000, or 4%, piliyrdue to increased sales by other BCBSA liceageeaccounts with members
who reside in or travel to our licensed area.

Senior membership increased 54,000, or 4%, prigndtie to additional sales of our Medicare Advantageluct, partially offset by a
slight decline in Medicare Supplement membership.

State-Sponsored membership decreased 182,000, qarBfrily due to our exit from the Ohio Medicaidbgrams.
Other Membership

Our Other products are often ancillary to our Heblisiness and can therefore be impacted by chamges medical membership.

Behavioral health membership increased 3,338,0007%, primarily due to the conversion of 2,415,008mbers from a third-party
vendor in January 2008 and growth in membershiptduew sales of our behavioral health products.

Life and disability membership decreased 121,00@Q9%, primarily due to overall membership declifresn a very competitive
marketplace, reduction of members following empleytdeclines at certain large customers and laghgeso the current economic
environment. Life and disability membership is gatig offered as part of Commercial medical fullysured membership activity.

Dental membership decreased 454,000, or 9%, ptiyrdure to the loss of several large customers afesontinue to lag due to a
slowing economy.

Vision membership increased 213,000, or 9%, prifpdide to continued market penetration of our Blliew Vision product.
Medicare Part D membership increased 256,000, %r, pimarily due to growth from new sales during #8008 marketing period.
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PBM Prescription Volume

Prescription volume for paid scripts in our PBM qmanies increased by 16,426,000, or 7%. Paid sodptases were primarily due to
increase in retail scripts resulting from highemnbership, partially offset by lower utilization ofir mail order business. The lower utilization
of our mail order business resulted primarily frtiva introduction of four dollar generic drug progsoffered by certain large retailers and the
introduction of Zyrte® as an over-the-counter di@Qgr PBM business was sold to Express Scripts areéer 1, 2009.

VIIl. Results of Operations—Year Ended DecembeB1, 2008 Compared to the Year Ended December 31,00

Our consolidated results of operations for the yesded December 31, 2008 and 2007 are discus#gel fiollowing section

Year Ended
December 31

(In millions, except per share data)
Premiums
Administrative fee:
Other revenu
Total operating revent
Net investment incom
Net realized gains on investmel
Othel-thar-temporary impairment losses on investme
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment losses on investme
Portion of other-than-temporary impairment lossEognized in
other comprehensive incor
Othel-thar-temporary impairment losses recognized in inc
Total revenue
Benefit expens
Selling, general and administrative exper
Selling expens
General and administrative expel
Total selling, general and administrative expe
Cost of drug
Interest expens
Amortization of other intangible asst
Impairment of intangible asse
Total expense
Income before income tax exper
Income tax expens
Net income

Average diluted shares outstand

Diluted net income per sha

Benefit expense rati

Selling, general and administrative expense 1

Income before income taxes as a percentage ofreatahue
Net income as a percentage of total reve

2008

$57,101.(
3,836.¢
641.¢
61,579.:
851.1
28.7

(1,207.9

(1,207.9
61,251
47,742

1,778.4
7,242
9,020.t
468.5
469.¢
286.1
141.¢
58,128.
3,122«
631.7
$ 2,490.
523.C
$ 4.7¢
83.€%
14.€%
5.1%
4.1%

2007

$55,865.(
3,673.¢
617.C
60,155.
1,001.:
270.¢

(259.7)

(259.7)
61,167.
46,037.;

1,716.¢
6,984.
8,701t
4327
447 .¢
290.7
55,910.(
5,257.¢
1,912.¢

$ 3,345

602.(

$ 5.5¢
82.4%
14.5%
8.6%
5.8%

$ Change % Change
$1,236.( 2%
163.C 4
24.€ 4
1,423.¢ 2
(150.0) (15)
(242.2) NM1
(948.2) NM1
— NM1
(948.2) NM?
83.2 —
1,705.: 4
61.€ 4
257.¢ 4
319.C 4
35.¢ 8
21.¢ 5
(4.6) 2
141.¢ NM1
2,218." 4
(2,135.5 (41)
(1,280.9 (67)
$ (854.7) (26)
(79.0 (13)
$ (0.80 (14)
12Cbp3
1Cbp3
(350)bp3
(140bps3

Certain of the following definitions are also applble to all other results of operations tablethis discussion:

NM = Not meaningfu
Benefit expense ratio = Benefit expense + Premit
bp = basis point; one hundred basis points =

A W N P

Selling, general and administrative expense raflotal selling, general and administrative expen3®tal operating revenu
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Premiums increased $1.2 billion, or 2%, to $57Illoi in 2008, primarily due to premium rate incsea for all medical customer types,
growth in our Medicare Advantage business and asad reimbursement in the FEP program. These sesaegere partially offset by the loss
of the New York State prescription drug contract; exit from the Ohio Medicaid program, fully-ingar membership declines in UniCare and
National Accounts, the conversion of the ConnettiMadicaid program from full-insured to self-funded in December 2007 and filured
membership declines in Local Group business.

Administrative fees increased $163.0 million, or,486$3.8 billion in 2008, primarily due to selfrffded membership growth in National
and Local Group and increased revenue for mediealagement programs offered by CHS. Self-funded reeship growth was driven by
successful efforts to attract large self-fundedaots and was attributable to our network breadiitounts, service and increased focus on
health improvement and wellness. Self-funded mesityergrowth also increased due to the conversighefConnecticut Medicaid program
from fully-insured to self-funded in December 200ese increases were partially offset by lowes feeour Blue Card business.

Other revenue is comprised principally of co-payteemd deductibles associated with the sale of-ardér prescription drugs by our
PBM companies, which provide services to membeuofCommercial and Consumer segments and thitgt péents. Other revenue
increased $24.6 million, or 4%, to $641.6 millien2008, primarily due to increased specialty piipson volume, partially offset by decreased
mail order script volume. The lower utilizationanr mail order business, as previously describesllted primarily from the introduction of
four dollar generic drug programs offered by certarge retailers and the introduction of Zyrtec anover-the-counter-drug.

Net investment income decreased $150.0 milliord,586, to $851.1 million in 2008 primarily resultifi@m reduced investment balances
and lower yields on short-term investments duri6g&

A summary of our net realized (losses) gains oestments for the years ended December 31, 2008G0Wis as follows:

Years Ended
December 31

2008 2007 $ Change

(In millions)
Net realized gains on investment
Net realized (losses) gains from the sale of fixedurity securitie: $ (46.9 $ 11t $ (58.9
Net realized gains from the sale of equity se@s 28.5 254.2 (225.9
Other net realized gains on investme 47.% 5.2 42.1
Net realized gains on investmel 28.7 270.¢ (242.2)
Other-than-temporary impairment losses recognized in incom
Othel-thar-temporary impairment loss—equity securitie: (728.]) (105.6) (622.5)
Otherthar-temporary impairment loss—fixed maturity securitie (479.9 (154.0 (325.9)
Other-thar-temporary impairment losses recognized in inci (1,207.9) (259.7) (948.2)
Net realized (losses) gains on investments and-thar-temporary

impairment losses recognized in inco $(1,179.9) $ 11z $(1,190.9)
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Net realized losses in 2008 were primarily drivgrother-than-temporary impairments related to thedoration in equity markets and,
to a lesser extent, other-than-temporary impairsiehfixed maturity securities. Significant oth@ah-temporary impairments recognized for
the year ended December 31, 2008 included $133li@mi$106.6 million, and $90.2 million, respedctly, for Freddie Mac, Fannie Mae, and
Lehman (or their respective subsidiaries, as apat®). Recent market concerns related to thosgemhffinancial condition and liquidity
prompted the U.S. government to seize control efllie Mac and Fannie Mae and resulted in Lehmang fibr bankruptcy protection. In
addition, other-than-temporary impairments recogditor the year ended December 31, 2008 includacgels for fixed maturity securities and
equity securities for which, due to credit downgradnd/or the extent and duration of their deghirfair value in light of the current market
conditions, we determined that the impairment weenged other-than-temporary. These securities cdwwereimber of industries, primarily led
by the banking and financial services sectors.rigtized gains in 2007 were primarily driven byesabf equity securities at a gain, partially
offset by interest rate related impairments ofdixeaturity securities and other-than-temporary iimpeants of equity securities. Se€fitical
Accounting Policies and Estima” within this MD&A for a discussion of our investmentpairment review process.

Benefit expense increased $1.7 billion, or 4%,4@.% billion in 2008, primarily due to overall highmedical costs in our Local Group
fully-insured and Medicare Advantage businesses.igher benefit expense in Local Group resultethfhigher medical costs and less
favorable prior period development, as well as mensitip changes, including lower fully-insured menshé. Higher medical costs in
Medicare Advantage resulted from both membershovtr and increases in medical costs due to higtileration resulting from adverse
selection in certain of these products, which weanesed by benefit design. We have addressed ttiiemfiar 2009 through pricing and benefit
design changes. These increases were partiallgtdffsthe loss of the New York State prescriptiaigdcontract, the conversion of the State-
Sponsored Connecticut Medicaid program from futigtired to self-funded in December 2007, fully-irsumembership declines in UniCare,
our exit from the Ohio Medicaid program and fulhsured membership declines in National Accountslanoél Group businesses.

Our benefit expense ratio increased 120 basis ptr$3.6% in 2008, primarily due to higher medimasts in our Local Group fully-
insured business, as well as higher medical cosisii Consumer segment. The benefit expense ratiogal Group fully-insured business
increased due to higher medical costs in certaiggamhies. The medical costs in our Consumer segweme primarily driven by Medicare
Advantage and Medicare Part D. As previously disedswe are addressing these Medicare Advantageind®09 by changing the benefit
design. The increase in the benefit expense rakitad to our Medicare Part D business was driyemémbership increases in 2008 as this
business carries a higher benefit expense ratiodbaoverall company average. These overall ir@®# our benefit expense ratio were
partially offset by the loss of the New York Statescription drug contract which had a higher thaerage benefit expense ratio.

Selling, general and administrative expense ine@&819.0 million, or 4%, to $9.0 billion in 20Q&jmarily due to higher salary and
related benefits as a result of merit increasesrployees, outside services, selling expense aratatce, offset by lower incentive
compensation costs. Our selling, general and adinative expense ratio increased 10 basis poirtd &% in 2008. The increase in our sell
general and administrative expense ratio was pifyndue to the higher costs mentioned above offgegrowth in operating revenue, which
allows for leveraging of general and administratiests over a larger revenue base, and lower iiveecbmpensation costs.

Cost of drugs sold increased $35.8 million, or 88%468.5 million in 2008, primarily due to increasprescription volume in our
specialty pharmacy companies. These specialty ppéisn drugs generally carry a higher cost thareoprescription drugs. These increased
costs were partially offset by decreased mail osdeipt volume.

Interest expense increased $21.9 million, or 59$4%0.8 million in 2008, primarily due to the issea of $2.0 billion of long-term debt
during 2007, partially offset by lower rates paidaur commercial paper and other variable rate.debt
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Amortization of other intangible assets decreae@ fhillion, or 2%, to $286.1 million in 2008, prarily due to reductions in
amortization of certain intangibles acquired iropsrears, partially offset by amortization of ingéisles acquired with the AIM acquisition
during 2007.

During the third quarter of 2008, due to ongoingrmfes in the economic and regulatory environmeatimState-Sponsored business,
including California budgetary cuts, we revised outiook for this business in certain states. Taigsion triggered an interim impairment
review of our indefinite lived intangible assettated to State-Sponsored licenses in certain stateswe identified and recorded a pre-tax
impairment charge of $141.4 million during the ¢hijuarter of 2008.

Income tax expense decreased $1.3 billion, or G8%631.7 million in 2008, resulting from a comMtioa of settlement of disputes with
the IRS relating to certain prior tax years, lowtte income taxes due to changes in the composifithe apportionment factors in our
combined state income tax returns, settlementssplites on state audits and lower income beforenirectax expense. The reduction in incc
before income tax expense included amounts recdottexther-than-temporary investment impairmentd tire impairment of certain
intangible assets. The effective tax rates in 28082007 were 20.2% and 36.4%, respectively. Theedse in the effective tax rate in 2008
was primarily due to the settlement of outstandiR§ disputes.

Our net income as a percentage of total revenuedsed 140 basis points, from 5.5% in 2007 to 4rl2008. The decrease in this
metric reflected a combination of all factors dissed above.

Reportable Segmen

We use operating gain to evaluate the performahoeraeportable segments, which are CommerciahsGmer and Other. Operating
gain is calculated as total operating revenuebesgfit expense, selling, general and adminisgaikpense and cost of drugs. It does not
include net investment income, net realized gdossés) on investments, other-thtemporary impairment losses recognized in incomteyés
expense, amortization of other intangible assetpairment of intangible assets or income taxethese items are managed in a corporate
shared service environment and are not the redubtysof operating segment management. For additionformation, see Note 19 to our
audited consolidated financial statements includetis Form 10K. The discussions of segment results for the yeaded December 31, 20
and 2007 presented below are based on operatingagédescribed above, and operating margin, whichlculated as operating gain divided
by operating revenue. Our definitions of operatjiagn and operating margin may not be comparabdntdarly titled measures reported by
other companies. Our reportable segments’ restitiperations for 2007 have been reclassified tdayomto the 2009 and 2008 presentation.

Commercial

Our Commercial segment’s summarized results ofajmers for the years ended December 31, 2008 abd &@ as follows:

Year Ended
December 31
2008 2007 $ Change % Change
(In millions)
Operating revenu $38,009.: $38,133." $(124.9) 0%
Operating gait $ 3,392.° $ 3,855.¢ $(463.2) (12)%
Operating margil 8.9% 10.1% (120)by

Operating revenue decreased $124.4 million, ortless 1%, to $38.0 billion in 2008, primarily duethe loss of the New York State
prescription drug contract and fully-insured mensbg declines in Local Group, including UniCareg &fmational Accounts businesses, almost
fully offset by premium rate increases in all mediiines of business.
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Operating gain decreased $463.2 million, or 12983 billion in 2008 due to higher benefit experessulting from higher medical costs
and less favorable prior period development, as ageinembership changes in Local Group, includavegk fully-insured membership. In
addition, the decrease in operating gain refleutseiased selling, general and administrative exp#rscompensation, selling and severance
costs.

The operating margin in 2008 was 8.9%, a 120 hasist decrease primarily due to the factors diseds$s the preceding two paragraphs.
Consumer

Our Consumer segment’s summarized results of dpasator the years ended December 31, 2008 and &@0ds follows:

Year Ended
December 31
2008 2007 $ Change % Change
(In millions)
Operating revenu $16,437.. $15,285." $1,151.¢ 8%
Operating gair $ 585.1 $ 789.1 $ (204.0) (26)%
Operating margil 3.€% 5.2% (260)by

Operating revenue increased $1.2 billion, or 8%%16.4 billion in 2008, primarily due to growth@ur Senior business, particularly in
Medicare Advantage. These increases were part#fhet by declines in operating revenue due toexitrfrom the Ohio Medicaid program a
the conversion of the State-Sponsored Connecti@did4id business from fully-insured to self-fundiedecember 2007.

Operating gain decreased $204.0 million, or 26946585.1 million in 2008, primarily due to highemedit expense within Medicare
Advantage and lower margins in Medicare Part Drimss, primarily attributable to a higher percentafggual eligible membership in 2008
than 2007. Higher benefit expense in Medicare Athgewas primarily due to higher utilization resgtfrom the benefit design of certain of
these products which resulted in adverse seledfitmhave addressed this matter for 2009 througtingriand benefit design changes.

The operating margin in 2008 was 3.6%, a 160 hasist decrease primarily due to the factors diseds$s the preceding two paragraphs.
Other

Our summarized results of operations for our Otfegiment for the years ended December 31, 2008G0W&e as follows:

Year Ended
December 31
2008 2007 $ Change % Change
(In millions)
Operating revenu $7,132.¢ $6,736.: $396.4 6%
Operating gair $ 370.( $ 339.. $ 30.¢ 9%

Operating revenue increased $396.4 million, or 847.1 billion in 2008, primarily due to highergpniums in FEP business, as well as
revenues generated by AIM, which was acquiredénttiird quarter of 2007.

Operating gain increased $30.8 million, or 9%, 3@ 0 million in 2008. This increase was due torowed results in our PBM and
behavioral health businesses. PBM results impraedto higher retail sales and rebate retentiochvhiigned with market rates. Results for
our behavioral health business improved due todrighrembership and improved administration rates.
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IX. Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our consolidated financial statement®iriormity with U.S. generally accepted accounfinigiciples, or GAAP. Application
of GAAP requires management to make estimates ssuhgptions that affect the amounts reported irconsolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes and within this MD&A. We consiseme of our most important accounting policies tequire estimates and
management judgment to be those policies with tgpdiabilities for medical claims payable, incerraxes, goodwill and other intangible
assets, investments and retirement benefits, wariehliscussed below. Our significant accountingcped are summarized in Note 2 to our
audited consolidated financial statements as offanthe year ended December 31, 2009, includedignForm 10-K.

We continually evaluate the accounting policies astimates used to prepare the consolidated fiabsigitements. In general, our
estimates are based on historical experience, &vatuof current trends, information from third gyaprofessionals and various other
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable whdémown facts and circumstances.

Medical Claims Payabl

The most judgmental accounting estimate in our alifeted financial statements is our liability foedical claims payable. At
December 31, 2009, this liability was $5.5 billiand represented 20% of our total consolidatedliigs. We record this liability and the
corresponding benefit expense for incurred butpadd claims including the estimated costs of preicgssuch claims. Incurred but not paid
claims include (1) an estimate for claims thatinceirred but not reported, as well as claims regzbtd us but not yet processed through our
systems, which approximated 99.7%, or $5.5 billmfgur total medical claims liability as of Deceent81, 2009; and (2) claims reported to us
and processed through our systems but not yet waidh approximated 0.3%, or $16.9 million, of tie¢éal medical claims payable as of
December 31, 2009. The level of claims payablegssed through our systems but not yet paid mayuthbe from one period end to the next,
from 0% to 3% of our total medical claims liabiligue to timing of when claim payments are made.

Liabilities for both claims incurred but not repedtand reported but not yet processed throughysterss are determined in aggregate,
employing actuarial methods that are commonly uselealth insurance actuaries and meet Actuaraidétrds of Practice. Actuarial
Standards of Practice require that the claim litdsl be adequate under moderately adverse ciremtess. We determine the amount of the
liability for incurred but not paid claims by folldng a detailed actuarial process that entailsgubisth historical claim payment patterns as
as emerging medical cost trends to project our és@hate of claim liabilities. Under this procesistorical paid claims data is formatted into
“claim triangles,” which compare claim incurred e&to the dates of claim payments. This informaiscemalyzed to create “completion
factors” that represent the average percentagatafincurred claims that have been paid througtven date after being incurred. Completion
factors are applied to claims paid through theqekend date to estimate the ultimate claim expamsared for the period. Actuarial estimates
of incurred but not paid claim liabilities are théetermined by subtracting the actual paid clairmmfthe estimate of the ultimate incurred
claims.

For the most recent incurred months (typicallyniest recent two months), the percentage of claimd for claims incurred in those
months is generally low. This makes the completamtor methodology less reliable for such montheer&fore, incurred claims for recent
months are not projected from historical completiod payment patterns; rather they are projectezsbgnating the claims expense for those
months based on recent claims expense levels atlith lvare trend levels, or “trend factors”.

Because the reserve methodology is based upomib@étmformation, it must be adjusted for knownsmspected operational and
environmental changes. These adjustments are nyaolgr lactuaries based on their knowledge and #stimate of emerging impacts to ben
costs and payment speed. Circumstances to be eoadith developing our best estimate of reserveade changes in utilization levels, unit
costs, mix of
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business, benefit plan designs, provider reimbuesgevels, processing system conversions and elsactaim inventory levels, claim
processing patterns, claim submission patternpedational changes resulting from business contibima A comparison of prior period
liabilities to re-estimated claim liabilities based subsequent claims development is also considenmaking the liability determination. In
our comparison of prior year, the methods and apsons are not changed as reserves are recalcutatbdr the availability of additional paid
claims information drives our changes in theestimate of the unpaid claim liability. To the extappropriate, changes in such developmer
recorded as a change to current period benefitresepe

In addition to incurred but not paid claims, trebility for medical claims payable includes ressri@ premium deficiencies, if
appropriate. Premium deficiencies are recognizegnwhis probable that expected claims and admatise expenses will exceed future
premiums on existing medical insurance contractsawit consideration of investment income. Deteritidmaof premium deficiencies for
longer duration life and disability contracts indés consideration of investment income. For purpo$@remium deficiencies, contracts are
grouped in a manner consistent with our method:qtiming, servicing and measuring the profitabitifysuch contracts. No premium
deficiencies were established at year end 2009.

We regularly review and set assumptions regardis) trends and utilization when initially estabirgclaim liabilities. We continually
monitor and adjust the claims liability and benefipense based on subsequent paid claims activitys determined that our assumptions
regarding cost trends and utilization are signiftbadifferent than actual results, our incomeestatnt and financial position could be impacted
in future periods. Adjustments of prior year estiesamay result in additional benefit expense @daction of benefit expense in the period an
adjustment is made. Further, due to the considenrzdiability of health care costs, adjustmentslaim liabilities occur each quarter and are
sometimes significant as compared to the net incaoerded in that quarter. Prior period developnentcognized immediately upon the
actuary’s judgment that a portion of the prior pdriiability is no longer needed or that an additibliability should have been accrued. That
determination is made when sufficient informatisravailable to ascertain that the re-estimate efidtbility is reasonable. In 2009, higher than
anticipated favorable reserve releases of apprdeign&262.0 million were recognized and not redi&thbd at December 31, 2009. The
majority of that release is due to recognitiorcofisiderable improvements in our processing enment and continued better transparency
claims payments.

While there are many factors that are used astabptre estimation of our medical claims payad®ility, the two key assumptions
having the most significant impact on our incurbed not paid liability as of December 31, 2009 wie completion and trend factors. As
discussed above, these two key assumptions carflbericed by other operational variables includiggtem changes, provider submission
patterns and business combinations.

There is variation in the reasonable choice of detign factors by duration for durations of threenths through 12 months where the
completion factors have the most significant impAst previously discussed, completion factors tenle less reliable for the most recent
months and therefore are not specifically utilif@dmonths one and two. In our analysis for thénclkabilities at December 31, 2009, the
variability in months three to five was estimatede between 80 and 120 basis points, while masixhthrough twelve have much lower
variability ranging from 20 to 60 basis points.

Over the period from December 31, 2008 to DecerBtheP009, completion factors have increased aBsripacts of faster processing
have been fully reflected in the historical pateeith consideration of claim payments during 2068 completion factors used to determine
the incurred but not paid claim liability estimdbe the December 31, 2008 valuation period haveslbged slightly higher than those used at
December 31, 2008. The increase in completion fadtas been taken into consideration when detengithie completion factors used in
establishing the December 31, 2009 incurred bupat claim liability by choosing factors that esft the more recent experience. The
difference in completion factor assumptions, assgnmoderately adverse experience, results in viitjabf 5%, or approximately $279.0
million, in the December 31, 2009
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incurred but not paid claim liability, depending thre completion factors chosen. It is importanmidte that the completion factor methodology
inherently assumes that historical completion ratidse reflective of the current period. Howeviris possible that the actual completion r.
for the current period will develop differently frohistorical patterns and therefore could fall @eghe possible variations described herein.

The other major assumption used in the establishofehe December 31, 2009 incurred but not paaihtliability was the trend factors.
In our analysis for the period ended December 8@92there was a 610 basis point differential tiilgh and low trend factors assuming
moderately adverse experience. This range of ti@etdrs would imply variability of 9%, or approxinedy $478.0 million, in the incurred but
not paid claims liability, depending upon the tréactor used. Because historical trend factoroéen not representative of current claim
trends, the trend experience for the most recenbsiine months, plus knowledge of recent evakédyl affecting current trends, have been
taken into consideration in establishing the inedrput not paid claim liability at December 31, 200

As summarized below, Note 11 to our audited codatdid financial statements as of and for the yede@ December 31, 2009 included
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K provides histatiinformation regarding the accrual and paymémiuo medical claims liability.
Components of the total incurred claims for eaddr yeclude amounts accrued for current year eséichalaims expense as well as adjustments
to prior year estimated accruals. In Note 11 toaudited consolidated financial statements, the llbeled “Net incurred medical claims: Prior
years redundanci” accounts for those adjustments made to prior ggimates. The impact of any reduction of “Netimed medical claims:
Prior years redundancies” may be offset as we Esitahe estimate of “Net incurred medical clair@strrent year”. Our reserving practice is to
consistently recognize the actuarial best estirohteir ultimate liability for our claims. When weaognize a release of the redundancy, we
disclose the amount that is not in the ordinaryrsewf business, if material. We believe we havesistently applied our methodology in
determining our best estimate for unpaid claimisiliy at each reporting date.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending bakfar medical claims payable for the years endecebBder 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007

is as follows:
Years Ended December 3
2009 2008 2007
(In millions)
Gross medical claims payable, beginning of pe $ 6,184.} $ 5,788.( $ 5,290.!
Ceded medical claims payable, beginning of pe (60.9 (60.7) (51.0
Net medical claims payable, beginning of pei 6,124.. 5,727.; 5,239.!
Business combinations and purchase adjustn 2.8 — 15.2
Net incurred medical claim
Current yea 47,315.: 47,940.¢ 46,366.:
Prior years redundanci (807.2) (263.2) (332.7)
Total net incurred medical clain 46,507 47,677 46,033.!
Net payments attributable t
Current year medical clain 42,056. 42,020. 40,765.
Prior years medical clairn 5,157.¢ 5,259.¢ 4,795.(
Total net payment 47,214 47,280.t 45,560.
Net medical claims payable, end of per 5,420.¢ 6,124. 5,727.:
Ceded medical claims payable, end of pe 29.€ 60.2 60.7
Gross medical claims payable, end of pe $ 5,450.! $ 6,184. $ 5,788.(
Current year medical claims paid as a percent okatiyear net incurred medical
claims 88.£% 87.1% 87.%%
Prior year redundancies in the current period esreent of prior year net medic
claims payable less prior year redundancies irctinesnt perioc 15.2% 4.£% 6.8%
Prior year redundancies in the current period psreent of prior year net incurr
medical claims 1.7% 0.€% 0.8%

Amounts incurred related to prior years vary fromavously estimated liabilities as the claims atanately settled. Liabilities at any
period end are continually reviewed and re-estithaginformation regarding actual claims paymemtsunout, becomes known. This

information is compared to the originally estabdidtyear end liability. Negative amounts reportadriourred related to prior years result from
claims being settled for amounts less than oriyredtimated. The prior year redundancy of $807ilian shown above for the year ended
December 31, 2009 represents an estimate baseaidnlaim activity from January 1, 2009 to DecemB®&r2009. Medical claim liabilities a
usually described as having a “short tail”, whichans that they are generally paid within severaithmof the member receiving service from
the provider. Accordingly, the majority of the $8RTillion redundancy relates to claims incurre@¢atendar year 2008.
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The following table provides a summary of the costiph and trend factor assumptions, which had thstmignificant impact on the
actual development of our incurred but not paidhesaliability estimates for the years ended Decendtie 2009, 2008 and 2007. As discussed
above, these two key assumptions can be influebgedher operational variables, including systermnges, provider submission patterns and
business combinations.

Favorable (Unfavorable) Developments by
Changes in Key Assumptions

2009 2008 2007
(in millions)
Assumed trend factol $ 466.1 $ 383: $ 350.2
Assumed completion facto 341.1 (120.9 (17.¢)
Total $ 807.2 $ 263.C $ 332.%

The favorable development in 2009 resulted from @etion factors developing more favorably than thased at December 31, 2008
due to recognition of faster claims processing, taead factors for the most recent two months dmpialy lower than initially anticipated. The
key factors driving the favorable developmentshiese key assumptions are below:

» The receipt cycle time (date of service to dateec€ipt) declined by 5% and the payment cycle {idate of receipt to date of
payment) declined by 11%, for an overall declinelaims payment cycle times of 7% in 2009;

* More favorable claims recovery activity than améatied.

The prior year redundancy in 2008 and 2007 wasaiiyndriven by the favorable development of thentt factor assumption used for
establishing the December 31, 2007 and 2006 med&iahs payable, respectively, partially offsetebgleficiency in the development of the
completion factor assumption.

The ratio of current year medical claims paid aeent of current year net medical claims incumed 88.9% for 2009, 87.7% for 20!
and 87.9% for 2007. Comparison of these ratiogcteflthe acceleration in processing that has oedurr

We calculate the percentage of prior year redunidaric the current period as a percent of prior yed incurred claims payable less p
year redundancies in the current period in ordeletmonstrate the development of the prior yearveseThis metric was 15.2% for 20(
4.8% for 2008, and 6.8% for 2007. The 1,040 bagistpncrease in 2009 from 2008 resulted from datoanpletion factors and claims trends
differing from the assumptions used, with the imsein 2009 resulting from the factors noted above.

The following table shows the variance between to¢hincurred medical claims as reported in thevattable for each of 2008 and 2007
and the incurred claims for such years had it lsetarmined retrospectively (computed as the diffeeecbetween “net incurred medical
claims—current year” for the year shown and “netimed medical claims—prior years redundancies’tierimmediately following year):

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007
(In millions)
Total net incurred medical claims, as repol $47,677. $46,033.!
Retrospective basis, as described at 47,133, 46,103.(
Variance $ 544.( $ (699
Variance to total net incurred medical claims,egorted 1.1% (0.2%
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Given that our business is primarily short taildw variance to total net incurred medical claiassreported above, is used to assess the
reasonableness of our estimate of ultimate incumredical claims for a given calendar year withlibaefit of one year of experience. We
expect that substantially all of the developmerthef2009 estimate of medical claims payable vélkbhown during 2010.

The 2008 variance to total net incurred medicahtaas reported of 1.1% is higher than 2007 duefavorable developments
impacting the 2007 reported incurred medical claémd the acceleration of claims processing thatiwed during 2008 and 2009.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with FABBance, which requires, among other thingss#éparate recognition of deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities. Such defetax assets and deferred tax liabilities repriethe tax effect of temporary differences
between financial reporting and tax reporting meadat tax rates enacted at the time the defeareddset or liability is recorded. A valuation
allowance must be established for deferred taxtsiffséis “more likely than not” that all or a pion may be unrealized. Our judgment is
required in determining an appropriate valuatidoveince.

At each financial reporting date, we assess thquaty of the valuation allowance by evaluating eafobur deferred tax assets based on
the following:

» the types of temporary differences that createdidierred tax asset;
» the amount of taxes paid in prior periods and atddl for a carr-back claim;
» the forecasted future taxable income, and therehtedy future deduction of the deferred tax iteamd

» any significant other issues impacting the likedglization of the benefit of the temporary differes.

We, like other companies, frequently face challesnfgem tax authorities regarding the amount of sackee. These challenges include
guestions regarding the timing and amount of dedastthat we have taken on our tax returns. Inugatailg any additional tax liability
associated with various positions taken in ourréamrn filings, we record additional liabilitiesrfpotential adverse tax outcomes. Based on our
evaluation of our tax positions, we believe we happropriately accrued for uncertain tax benefissrequired by the guidance. To the extent
we prevail in matters we have accrued for, ourriuffective tax rate would be reduced and netrimeavould increase. If we are required to
pay more than accrued, our future effective tag veduld increase and net income would decreaseefirative tax rate and net income in any
given future period could be materially impacted.

In the ordinary course of business, we are reguéartlited by federal and other tax authorities, fanch time to time, these audits resul
proposed assessments. We believe our tax posgamply with applicable tax law and intend to defennl positions vigorously through the
federal, state and local appeals processes. Wevbelie have adequately provided for any reasorialdeeeable outcome related to these
matters. Accordingly, although their ultimate regmn may require additional tax payments, we dbamticipate any material impact on our
results of operations from these matters. As ofdbdwer 31, 2009, the examinations of our 2008, 2R20@6, 2005 and 2004 tax years are b
concluded by the IRS. In addition, we have seviavalears for which there are ongoing disputededlto pre-acquisition companies that are
being concluded by the IRS. We joined the IRS Cdemgple Assurance Process, or CAP, in 2007 and aeetmremain a participant. The
objective of CAP is to reduce taxpayer burden amzkutainty while assuring the IRS of the accuraitiar returns prior to filing, thereby
reducing or eliminating the need for post-filingaexinations. Administrative tax appeals and proaggsialso continue for certain subsidiaries
for tax years prior to being included in our comndated tax return.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, we costblbie sale of our PBM business and recorded tparese of $1.4 hillion related to
this sale.
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During the year ended December 31, 2008, we setitguites with the IRS relating to certain tax geand involving industry issues
which we had been discussing with the IRS for sswerars. For certain years, tax positions have besolved but the overall tax year may
require additional approval from the Joint Comnaitten Taxation before it can be finalized in tobaladdition, tax litigation in the U.S. Tax
Court concluded adversely to us during 2008. Thse tes been appealed to the Federal Circuit Colpmeals and oral arguments are
scheduled for February 2010.

While it is difficult to determine when a tax settient will actually occur, it is reasonably possitilat one could occur in the next twelve
months and our unrecognized tax benefits could ghavithin a range of approximately $0.0 million$0.0) million.

For additional information, see Note 7 to our aeditonsolidated financial statements as of anthfoyear ended December 31, 2009,
included in this Form 10-K.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Our consolidated goodwill at December 31, 2009 $&&3 billion and other intangible assets were $8l®n. The sum of goodwill and
other intangible assets represented 41% of ourdotesolidated assets and 87% of our consoliddiatesolders’ equity at December 31, 2009.

We follow FASB guidance for business combinationd goodwill and other intangible assets, which Bpescthe types of acquired
intangible assets that are required to be recodrand reported separately from goodwill. Underghielance, goodwill and other intangible
assets (with indefinite lives) are not amortizedt dme tested for impairment at least annually. fklemrhore, goodwill and other intangible assets
are allocated to reporting units for purposes efgdhnual impairment test. Our impairment testsireqs to make assumptions and judgments
regarding the estimated fair value of our reportings, which include goodwill and other intangilalgsets. In addition, certain other intangible
assets with indefinite lives, such as trademaniesatso tested separately.

We completed our annual impairment tests of exgsgioodwill and other intangible assets with indiéiives during the fourth quarters
of 2009, 2008 and 2007. These tests involved theotisstimates related to the fair value of thedyalh reporting unit and other intangible
assets with indefinite lives, and required a sigaift degree of management judgment and the usebpdctive assumptions. Certain interim
impairment tests were performed in 2009 and 20@8tdwchanges in our business.

As a result of our annual and interim impairmestgeluring 2009, 2008 and 2007, we recorded impaitraf goodwill and other
intangible assets of $262.5 million, $141.4 milliamd $0.0 million, respectively.

Fair value is estimated using the income and maptoaches for our goodwill reporting units anelitttome approach for our indefir
lived intangible assets. The income and marketagares for our goodwill impairment test reflects wiew that both valuation methodologies
provide a reasonable estimate of fair value.

The income approach is developed using assumpaiomst future revenue, expenses and net incomeedefiiom our internal planning
process. These estimated future cash flows aredisenunted. Our assumed discount rate is basedoindustry’s weighted average cost of
capital. The discount rate used in the 2009 vaduatiad increased from the discount rate used i8,20Bich reflects an increase in stock
volatility and higher risk and uncertainty relatechealth care reform.

Market valuations are based on observed multiglegidain measures including membership, revenBETBA (earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization) and bookesakiwell as market capitalization analysis of Weilhit and other comparable companies.
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While we believe we have appropriately allocategighrchase price of our acquisitions, this allasatequires many assumptions to be
made regarding the fair value of assets and lteslacquired. In addition, estimated fair valuesedoped based on our assumptions and
judgments might be significantly different if othrerasonable assumptions and estimates were tcele lfiestimated fair values are less |
the carrying values of goodwill and other intanggivith indefinite lives in future annual impairniéests, or if significant impairment
indicators are noted relative to other intangildsets subject to amortization, we may be requobeddord impairment losses against future
income.

For additional information, see Note 9 to our aeditonsolidated financial statements as of anthiyear ended December 31, 2009,
included in this Form 10-K.

Investments

Current and long-term available-for-sale investrrsaaurities were $17.0 billion at December 31, 2808 represented 33% of our total
consolidated assets at December 31, 2009. In smooedvith FASB guidance for debt and equity investts, we classify fixed maturity and
equity securities in our investment portfolio agd#able-for-sale” or “tradingand report those securities at fair value. Prigch@April 1, 200!
adoption of FASB guidance for recognition and pnégton of other-than-temporary impairment, or FASBTI guidance, as discussed below,
we classified our fixed maturity securities as eatror noncurrent based on their contractual mi#ariln connection with the adoption of
FASB OTTI guidance on April 1, 2009, we have detieed that certain of these fixed maturity secusitiee available to support current
operations and, accordingly, have classified sngbhstments as current assets as of December 34 wAidut regard to their contractual
maturities. Investments used to satisfy contracteglulatory or other requirements are classifeetbag-term, without regard to contractual
maturity.

Investment income is recorded when earned, anzeeladjains or losses, determined by specific ifieation of investments sold, are
included in income when securities are sold.

We review investment securities to determine iflides in fair value below cost are other-than-terapg. This review is subjective and
requires a high degree of judgment. We conductréhiiew on a quarterly basis, using both qualitnd quantitative factors, to determine
whether a decline in value is other-than-tempor8nch factors considered include the length of tme the extent to which a security’s
market value has been less than its cost, themedsothe decline in value (i.e., credit event paned to liquidity, general credit spread
widening, currency exchange rate or interest r@tofs), financial condition and near term prospetthe issuer, including the credit ratings
and changes in the credit ratings of the issuegmenendations of investment advisors, and foreecdstssonomic, market or industry trends. In
addition, for equity securities, we determine wieetlve have the intent and ability to hold the siégtior a period of time to allow for a
recovery of its fair value above its carrying amioufany declines of equity securities are detedito be other-thatemporary, we charge tl
losses to income when that determination is made.

In April 2009, the FASB issued its OTTI guidancéigh applies to fixed maturity securities only grdvides new guidance on the
recognition and presentation of other-than-tempoirapairments. Furthermore, the FASB OTTI guidareguires additional disclosures
related to other-than-temporary impairments. Urnidisrrevised guidance, if a fixed maturity securityn an unrealized loss position and we
have the intent to sell the fixed maturity secyrityit is more likely than not that we will hawe gell the fixed maturity security before recovery
of its amortized cost basis, the decline in vafuddemed to be other-than-temporary and is recdodether-than-temporary impairment losses
recognized in income in our consolidated incom&satants. For impaired fixed maturity securitied thia do not intend to sell or it is more
likely than not that we will not have to sell susgcurities, but we expect that we will not fullgoger the amortized cost basis, the credit
component of the other-than-temporary impairmené@®gnized in other-than-temporary impairmentdgsgcognized in income in our
consolidated income statements and the non-crediponent of the other-than-temporary impairmemneé®gnized in other comprehensive
income.
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The credit component of an other-than temporaryaimpent is determined by comparing the net pregaloie of projected future cash
flows with the amortized cost basis of the fixedtumidly security. The net present value is calcudig discounting our best estimate of
projected future cash flows at the effective interate implicit in the fixed maturity securitythie date of acquisition. For mortgalgaeked an
asset-backed securities, cash flow estimates aedlan assumptions regarding the underlying colbbtecluding prepayment speeds, vintage,
type of underlying asset, geographic concentratidefault rates, recoveries and changes in valorealFother debt securities, cash flow
estimates are driven by assumptions regarding pilityeof default, including changes in credit rags, and estimates regarding timing and
amount of recoveries associated with a defaultheamore, unrealized losses entirely caused byesteate and other namedit factors relate
to fixed maturity securities for which we expecfudly recover the amortized cost basis continubagaecognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income.

Upon adoption of FASB OTTI guidance on April 1, 20@ve recorded a cumulative-effect adjustmentofitdxes, of $88.9 million as of
the beginning of the period of adoption, April D0®, to reclassify the non-credit component ofevjmusly recognized other-than-temporary
impairment from retained earnings to accumulatéerotomprehensive income.

The unrealized gains or losses on our equity atetifmaturity securities classified as availabledale are included in accumulated other
comprehensive income as a separate component rehstders’ equity. We have a committee of certaicoanting and investment associates
and management that is responsible for managingrtbairment review process. The current economidrenment and volatility of securities
markets increase the difficulty of assessing inmesit impairment and the same influences tend t@ase the risk of potential impairment of
these assets. Other-than-temporary impairmentdase®gnized in income totaled $450.2 million, $ilkon and $259.7 million, respectively,
for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and. Z0@&re were no individually significant other4th'mporary impairment losses on
investments by issuer during the years ended Deeef1h 2009 or 2007. The significant other-thangerary impairments recognized during
2008 primarily related to our investments in Fredidliac, Fannie Mae, and Lehman (or their respestilsidiaries, as appropriate), as
discussed below.

Our equity securities at December 31, 2008 includeedstments in stock, largely preferred stockhefU.S. government-sponsored
enterprises Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae. Marketeroscduring the third quarter of 2008 related tisthentities’ financial condition and
liquidity prompted the U.S. government to seizetodrof Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae. Any potentidavery of the fair value of these
securities was dependent on a number of factorsvaschot expected in the near term. These fagsther with the significant declines in the
fair value of these securities, led us to conclilnde they were other-than-temporarily impaired. éxwingly, during 2008, we recorded $135.0
million and $106.6 million of realized losses fraher-than-temporary impairments related to ouitgcecurity investments in Freddie Mac
and Fannie Mae, respectively.

Our fixed maturity securities included investmenttehman at December 31, 2008. On September T8, 2&hman filed for
bankruptcy protection under Chapter 11 of the Wh&éates Bankruptcy Code. Accordingly, recovergufinvestments, if any, was deemed
remote and we recognized an other-than-temporgpgiimment of $90.2 million during 2008.

In addition, other-than-temporary impairments retngd in 2008 included charges for fixed maturégurities and equity securities for
which, due to credit downgrades and/or the extedtduration of their decline in fair value in lighitthe then current market conditions, we
determined that the impairment was deemed othertraporary. These securities covered a numberdefsiries, led by the banking and
financial services sectors.

As of December 31, 2009, we had approximately $L84llion of gross unrealized losses on investmeatsgnized in accumulated
other comprehensive income, $173.4 million of whielated to fixed maturity securities and $11.2lioml of which related to equity securities.
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We believe we have adequately reviewed our investisecurities for impairment and that our investthegrturities are carried at fair
value. However, over time, the economic and magketronment may provide additional insight regagdine fair value of certain securities,
which could change our judgment regarding impainméhis could result in other-than-temporary impant losses on investments being
charged against future income. Given the curremketaonditions and the significant judgments iweal, there is continuing risk that further
declines in fair value may occur and additionalterial other-than-temporary impairment losses aestments may be recorded in future
periods.

A primary objective in the management of fixed migguand equity portfolios is to maximize total weth relative to underlying liabilities
and respective liquidity needs. In achieving thislgassets may be sold to take advantage of meokelitions or other investment
opportunities as well as tax considerations. Salkgenerally produce realized gains and losseshé ordinary course of business, we may
securities at a loss for a number of reasons, @iy but not limited to: (i) changes in the invastt environment; (ii) expectation that the fair
value could deteriorate further; (i) desire toluee exposure to an issuer or an industry; (ivhgha in credit quality; or (v) changes in
expected cash flow.

We maintain various rabbi trusts to account forahgets and liabilities under certain deferred emaation plans. Under these deferred
compensation plans, the participants can defeaicettpes of compensation and elect to receiveuarr®n the deferred amounts based on the
changes in fair value of various investment optigmenarily a variety of mutual funds. We also geally purchase corporate-owned life
insurance policies on participants in the defeo@thpensation plans. The cash surrender value afditporate-owned life insurance policies is
reported in “Other invested assets, long-term’himm ¢consolidated balance sheets. The change irscasinder value is reported as an offset to
the premium expense of the policies, classifiedeareral and administrative expenses.

In addition to available-for-sale investment setiesi we held additional long-term investments 6f%.3 million, or 1% of total
consolidated assets, at December 31, 2009. Thegeadom investments consist primarily of real estaash surrender value of corporate-
owned life insurance policies and certain otheegtments. Due to their less liquid nature, thegestments are classified as long-term.

We participate in securities lending programs whgmarketable securities in our investment portfalie transferred to independent
brokers or dealers based on, among other things,dteditworthiness in exchange for cash colldteitally equal to at least 102% of the
value of the securities on loan and is thereaf@ntained at a minimum of 100% of the market vaitithe securities loaned (calculated as the
ratio of initial market value of cash collateraldarrent market value of the securities on loamecdkdingly, the market value of the securities
on loan to each borrower is monitored daily anditbwrower is required to deliver additional cashateral if the market value of the securities
on loan exceeds the initial market value of cadlatal delivered. Under FASB guidance for transfand servicing, we recognize the
collateral as an asset, which is reported as “#&esitending collateral” on our consolidated balsheets and we record a corresponding
liability for the obligation to return the collatdrto the borrower, which is reported as “secusitending payable”. The securities on loan are
reported in the applicable investment categoryhenconsolidated balance sheets.

Through our investing activities, we are exposefinancial market risks, including those resultingm changes in interest rates and
changes in equity market valuations. We managentimiet risks through our investment policy, whishablishes credit quality limits and
limits of investments in individual issuers. Ineffee management of these risks could have an itrgraour future earnings and financial
position. Our investment portfolio includes fixediturity securities with a fair value of $15.9 oli at December 31, 2009. The weighted-
average credit rating of these securities was “A8’0f December 31, 2009. Included in this balamegéravestments in fixed maturity securities
of states, municipalities and political subdivisspmortgage-backed securities and corporate sesuoit $2.4 billion, $57.1 million and $4.3
million, respectively, that are guaranteed by tlpedties. With the exception of 15 securities vaitfair value of $54.9 million, these securities
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are all investment-grade and carry a weighted-aescaedit rating of “AA” as of December 31, 2003wa guarantee by a third party. The
securities are guaranteed by a number of diffeyaatantors and we do not have any significant axgot® any single guarantor (neither
indirect through the guarantees, nor direct thronghstment in the guarantor). Further, due tohtilgl underlying credit rating of the issuers,
the weighted-average credit rating of these saeantithout the guarantee was “AA” as of Decemler2909 for the securities for which such
information is available.

At December 31, 2009, we owned $3.5 billion of gage-backed securities and $304.0 million of akaeked securities out of a total
available-for-sale investment portfolio of $17.0ibh. These securities included sub-prime andARecurities with fair values of $107.5
million and $285.9 million, respectively. These quime and Alt-A securities had net unrealized ésssf $14.8 million and $38.1 million,
respectively. The average credit rating of the gritme and Alt-A securities was “A” and “BBB”, resptévely.

Fair values of available-for-sale fixed maturitydaaquity securities are based on quoted market¢qrighere available. These fair values
are obtained primarily from third party pricing gees, which generally use Level | or Level Il inpuin accordance with FASB guidance, for
the determination of fair value to facilitate failue measurements and disclosures. We obtainam@yguoted price for each security from t
party pricing services, which are derived througbtently reported trades for identical or similagigéties making adjustments through the
reporting date based upon available market obskrwatormation. For securities not actively trad#ée third party pricing services may use
guoted market prices of comparable instrumentssmodnted cash flow analyses, incorporating inthas are currently observable in the
markets for similar securities. Inputs that areoftised in the valuation methodologies include gbeitnot limited to, broker quotes, benchmark
yields, credit spreads, default rates and prepayspaeds. As we are responsible for the deternoimati fair value, we perform month
analysis on the prices received from third patiledetermine whether the prices are reasonablmass of fair value. Our analysis includes a
review of month to month price fluctuations. If wual fluctuations are noted in this review, we robtain additional information from other
pricing services to validate the quoted price. Eheere no adjustments to quoted market pricesmdaddrom third party pricing services dur
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 thatmegerial to the consolidated financial statements

In certain circumstances, it may not be possibléetdve pricing model inputs from observable madetvity, and therefore, such inputs
are estimated internally. Such securities are deségl Level Il in accordance with FASB guidancec@&ities designated Level Il at
December 31, 2009 totaled $351.3 million and regmesd 2% of our total assets measured at fair vaiwee recurring basis. Our Level llI
securities primarily consist of certain mortgageksl, asset-backed and corporate inverse floagitegsecurities that were thinly traded or not
traded at all due to concerns in the securitiekatarand the resulting lack of liquidity. In additi one or more of the inputs used to determine
the securities’ fair value, including, but not lked to, prepayment speeds, credit spreads, deédeft and benchmark yields, became
unobservable, and the fair values of those seeanitiere estimated using internal estimates forthosbservable inputs.

For additional information, see Part Il, Item 7Aydptitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MaRisk, of this Form 10k, and Note:!
4 and 6 to our audited consolidated financial statets as of and for the year ended December 33, 2@fuded in this Form 10-K.

Retirement Benefit:
Pension Benefits

We sponsor defined benefit pension plans for sohoeioemployees. These plans are accounted fazdardance with FASB guidance
for retirement benefits, which requires that ameurtognized in financial statements be determamedn actuarial basis. As permitted by the
guidance, we calculate the value of plan assatesaribed below. Further, the difference betweeregpected rate of return and the actual
performance of plan assets, as well as certainggdsaim pension liabilities, are amortized over fatperiods.
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An important factor in determining our pension exgeis the assumption for expected long-term redarplan assets. As of our
December 31, 2009 measurement date, we selected)dadrm rate of return on plan assets of 8.00%ligslans, which is consistent with our
prior year assumption of 8.00%. We use a totalfplastreturn analysis in the development of ounuasption. Factors such as past market
performance, the long-term relationship betweeadimaturity and equity securities, interest ratdttion and asset allocations are considered
in the assumption. The assumption includes an agtiof the additional return expected from actianagement of the investment portfolio.
Peer data and an average of historical returnalacereviewed for appropriateness of the selecdedraption. We believe our assumption of
future returns is reasonable. However, if we loaar expected long-term return on plan assets, dutantributions to the pension plan and
pension expense would likely increase.

This assumed longerm rate of return on assets is applied to a tatled value of plan assets, which recognizes clsaimgihe fair value ¢
plan assets in a systematic manner over three, ymaxducing the expected return on plan assetssliatluded in the determination of pension
expense. The difference between this expectedrand the actual return on plan assets is defamddamortized over the average remaining
service of the workforce as a component of pensigrense. The net deferral of past asset gainssedoaffects the calculated value of plan
assets and, ultimately, future pension expense.

The discount rate reflects the current rate at Wwktie pension liabilities could be effectively sdtat the end of the year based on our
most recent measurement date (December 31, 2008)sdlected discount rate for all plans is 5.36%¢ckwwas developed using a yield curve
approach. Using yields available on high-qualitefl maturity securities with various maturity datbe yield curve approach provides a
“customized” rate, which is meant to match the expe cash flows of our specific benefit plans. Tibeeffect of changes in the discount rate,
as well as the net effect of other changes in aiefiuassumptions and experience, have been defanm@@mortized as a component of pension
expense in accordance with the guidance.

In managing the plan assets, our objective is ta Esponsible fiduciary while minimizing financiék. Plan assets include a diversified
mix of investment grade fixed maturity securitieguity securities and alternative investments acaosnge of sectors and levels of
capitalization to maximize the long-term return éoprudent level of risk. In addition to producimgeasonable return, the investment strategy
seeks to minimize the volatility in our expense aadh flow. The target allocation for pension bénmén assets is 54% equity securities, 35%
fixed maturity securities, and 11% to all otherggmf investments. No plan assets were invest&deiiPoint common stock as of the
measurement date.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, no matenefibutions were required to meet the Employeér&eaent Income Security Act, or
ERISA, minimum required funding levels; however, made tax deductible discretionary contributiortaltog $103.6 million to the defined
benefit pension plans during the year ended DeceBhe2009.

At December 31, 2009 our consolidated net penséadnilities were $48.0 million, including liabilitseof $65.2 million for certain
supplemental plans. For the years ended Decemb@&089, 2008, and 2007, we recognized consolidatethx pension credit of $27.8 millic
$27.0 million, and $12.9 million, respectively.

Other Postretirement Benefits

We provide most associates with certain life, maldicision and dental benefits upon retirement. e various actuarial assumptions
including a discount rate and the expected trerftealth care costs to estimate the costs and hedfjations for our retiree benefits. We
recognized a postretirement benefit liability 0B84 million at December 31, 2009.

We recognized consolidated pre-tax other postragre expense of $33.8 million, $30.7 million, ar86$8 million for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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At our December 31, 2009 measurement date, thetsdldiscount rate for all plans was 5.79% (congbéoea discount rate of 5.73% for
2009 expense recognition). We developed this rsitggua yield curve approach as described above.

The assumed health care cost trend rates usedasuneethe expected cost of other benefits at oaelber 31, 2009 measurement dates
was 8.50% for 2010 with a gradual decline to 5.08#the year 2017. These estimated trend rateubject to change in the future. The health
care cost trend rate assumption has a signifidéettteon the amounts reported. For example, areas® in the assumed health care cost trend
rate of one percentage point would increase thagtasment benefit obligation as of December INPby $45.8 million and would increase
service and interest costs by $2.6 million. Conelgrsa decrease in the assumed health care codtriage of one percentage point would
decrease the postretirement benefit obligation38:Gmillion as of December 31, 2009 and would dase service and interest costs by $2.2
million.

We made tax deductible discretionary contributitmialing $85.0 million to the other postretirembenefit plans during the year ended
December 31, 2009.

For additional information regarding retirement éf#s, see Note 10 to our audited consolidatedhfired statements as of and for the y
ended December 31, 2009, included in this Form 10-K

New Accounting Pronouncemen

In June 2009, the FASB established #SB Accounting Standards Codificatipor Codification, as the source of authoritativ& U
generally accepted accounting principles, or GA#epgnized by the FASB to be applied by nongovemadentities in the preparation of
financial statements. This guidance was includetiénCodification under Accounting Standards Cadifion, or ASC, Topic 105. Rules and
interpretive releases of the U.S. Securities anthBrge Commission, or SEC, under authority of faldgecurities laws are also sources of
authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants. The Codifion became effective for us on September 30, 20@9supersedes all then-existing non-
SEC accounting and reporting standards. All otleer-grandfathered non-SEC accounting literaturamadtided in the Codification became
non-authoritative. The Codification does not chaagalter existing GAAP, and, therefore, did notda material impact on our consolidated
financial position and results of operations.

In June 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC paragrafBsl®-30-7 and 810-10-30-8 through -8ynsolidation—Initial Measurement-
Variable Interest Entitiesor FASB ASC paragraphs 810-10-30-7 through -885B ASC paragraphs 810-10-30-7 throu§®-amends FASI
ASC Section 810-10-2%;0onsolidation—RecognitiofiFASB Interpretation No. 46(R)) to require an gntd perform an analysis to determine
whether the entity’s variable interest or interggte® it a controlling financial interest in a valie interest entity. FASB ASC paragraphs 810-
10-30-7 through -8D were effective for us beginnimgJanuary 1, 2010. The adoption of FASB ASC payats 810-10-30-7 through -8D
effective January 1, 2010 did not have a matemglaict on our consolidated financial position oufesof operations.

In June 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC paragrapfsl®-40-5 and 860-10-40-6Aransfers and Servicing-Derecognition—Criteria
for Sale of Financial Asse, or FASB ASC paragraphs 860-10-40-5 and -6A. FASKE paragraphs 860-10-40-5 and -6A is intended to
improve the relevance, representational faithfltdnasd comparability of the information that anitgrgrovides in its financial statements ab
a transfer of financial assets; the effects ohadfer on its financial position, financial perf@nte, and cash flows; and a transferor’s
continuing involvement, if any, in transferred firtdal assets. FASB ASC paragraphs 860-10-40-5 @Advere effective for us beginning on
January 1, 2010. The adoption of FASB ASC paragr@fi®-10-40-5 and -6A effective January 1, 2010ndidhave a material impact on our
consolidated financial position or results of opierss.

In May 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC Topic 856bsequent Eventer FASB ASC Topic 855, which establishes stansiaifd
accounting for and disclosure of events that oefter the balance sheet date but before
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financial statements are issued. Entities are reduo disclose the date through which subsequemite have been evaluated and the basis for
that date. FASB ASC Topic 855 was effective foonsa prospective basis for interim and annual perending after June 15, 2009. We
adopted FASB ASC Topic 855 on June 30, 2009. Tlptamh of FASB ASC 855 did not have a material ietgan our consolidated financial
statements and required disclosures.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC paragragb-80-65-4,Transition Related to FASB Staff Position FAS 15Determining
Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activitytii@ Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decredsand Identifying Transactions That /
Not Orderly, or FASB ASC paragraph 820-10-65-4. FASB ASC paaply 820-10-6%t provides additional authoritative guidance tasadsott
issuers and users of financial statements in dét@rgwhether a market is active or inactive, arftether a transaction is distressed. FASB
ASC paragraph 820-10-65-4 was effective for us pnlA, 2009. The adoption of FASB ASC paragrapB-8P-65-4 did not have a material
impact on our consolidated financial position aesults of operations.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC paragragbh-80-65-1Transition Related to FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 128i&rim
Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instrunte, or FASB ASC paragraph 825-10-65-1. FASB ASC paply 825-10-65-1 requires
disclosures about fair value of financial instrunsdior interim reporting periods of publicly tradedmpanies as well as in annual financial
statements. FASB ASC paragraph 825-10-65-1 wastaféefor us on June 30, 2009. The adoption of FASEC paragraph 825-10-65-1 did
not have an impact on our consolidated financiaitfmn and results of operations.

In March 2008, the FASB issued FASB ASC paragralB0-65-1,Transition and Effective Date Related to FASB Nid,, Disclosures
about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities FASB ASC paragraph 815-10-65-1. FASB ASC paxply 815-10-65-1 requires
expanded disclosures regarding the location anduate®f derivative instruments in an entity’s fic&l statements, how derivative
instruments and related hedged items are accototechder FASB ASC Topic 81®erivatives and Hedgingor FASB ASC Topic 815, and
how derivative instruments and related hedged iteifest an entitys financial position, operating results and castvél. FASB ASC Topic 81
was effective for us on January 1, 2009. The adamf FASB ASC Topic 815 did not have an impacban consolidated financial position or
results of operations. For additional informatiegarding our disclosures about derivative instrusiand hedging activities, see Note 5 to our
audited consolidated financial statements as offanthe year ended December 31, 2009, includedignForm 10-K.

There were no other new accounting pronouncemssied during the year ended December 31, 2009 dldaas material impact on our
financial position, operating results or disclosure

X. Liquidity and Capital Resources
Introduction

Our cash receipts result primarily from premiuntimaistrative fees, investment income, other reegmuoceeds from the sale or
maturity of our investment securities, proceedsflbrrowings, and proceeds from exercise of st@tlons and our employee stock purchase
plan. Cash disbursements result mainly from clgimgments, administrative expenses, taxes, purclidsegsestment securities, interest
expense, payments on long-term borrowings, capipénditures and repurchases of our common stagh Gutflows fluctuate with the
amount and timing of settlement of these transastiény future decline in our profitability woulikély have some negative impact on our
liquidity.

We manage our cash, investments and capital steustuwe are able to meet the short and long-téligations of our business while
maintaining financial flexibility and liquidity. Wéorecast, analyze and monitor our cash flows ahéninvestment and financing within the
overall constraints of our financial strategy.
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A substantial portion of the assets held by ouulegd subsidiaries are in the form of cash antl egsiivalents and investments. After
considering expected cash flows from operatingvdiets, we generally invest cash that exceeds ear term obligations in longer term
marketable fixed maturity securities, to improve ouerall investment income returns. Our investngtritegy is to make investments
consistent with insurance statutes and other regylaequirements, while preserving our asset b@se.investments are generally available-
for-sale to meet liquidity and other needs. Oursadibries pay out excess capital annually in thienfof dividends to their respective parent
companies for general corporate use, as permittegbplicable regulations.

The availability of financing in the form of debt equity is influenced by many factors including puofitability, operating cash flows,
debt levels, debt ratings, contractual restrictisagulatory requirements and market conditioned@markets have experienced a tightenir
available liquidity, primarily as a result of untanty surrounding the economic crisis and thelteguvolatility experienced in the debt and
equity markets. Beginning in October 2008, the Faldgovernment and various governmental agencies teken a number of steps to restore
liquidity in the financial markets and to help esle the credit crisis and strengthen the regulaifahe financial services market. In addition,
governments around the world have developed thairans to provide liquidity and security in thedit markets and to ensure adequate
capital in certain financial institutions.

We have a $2.5 billion commercial paper program.ddtginue to monitor the commercial paper markets th recent volatility and
disruption in the markets and will act in a pruderanner. Should commercial paper issuance be Uablgiwe intend to use a combination of
cash on hand and/or our $2.4 billion senior cridiility to redeem our commercial paper when itunas. While there is no assurance in the
current economic environment, we believe the lesgarticipating in our credit facility will be witig and able to provide financing in
accordance with their legal obligations. In additto the $2.4 billion senior credit facility, wepect to receive approximately $2.3 billion of
ordinary dividends from our subsidiaries during @0Which also provides further operating and finahitexibility.

The table below outlines the cash flows providedbysed in operating, investing and financing\aiitis for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007:

Years ended December 3

2009 2008 2007
(In millions)

Cash flows provided by (used it

Operating activitie! $ 3,038.¢ $2,535. $4,344.¢
Investing activities 3,002.¢ 616.2 (768.9
Financing activitie: (3,402.9 (3,735.6 (3,409.9
Effect of foreign exchange rates on cash and casivaents (6.7) — —
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiv: $2,632.c $ (584.0 $ 165.¢

Liquidity—Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to Year Bridecember 31, 2008

During 2009, net cash flow provided by operatingivittes was $3.0 billion, compared to $2.5 billion2008, an increase of $0.5 billion.
This increase in operating cash flow compared @820as driven primarily by the favorable net chaimgprovider advances, decreased tax
payments, lower experiencated refunds to certain large customers and dsedeiacentive compensation payments. These favoogarating
cash flow drivers were partially offset by unfavioleaoperating cash flows related to the transitibthe PBM business to Express Scripts,
higher discretionary benefit plan contributions démel delay in receipt of certain State-Sponsoreginsss premiums until early 2010.

Net cash flow provided by investing activities vi&80 billion in 2009, compared to $616.2 millionZ008. The increase in cash flow
provided by investing activities of $2.4 billiorofn 2008 primarily resulted from the
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cash proceeds from the sale of our PBM busineExpoess Scripts and decreases in purchases ofigaries, partially offset by increases in
net purchases of investments, decreases in sesudtiding collateral and increases in net purchasproperty and equipment.

Net cash flow used in financing activities was $3illon in 2009 compared to $3.7 billion in 200Bhe decrease in cash flow used in
financing activities of $332.8 million primarily salted from decreases in the repurchase of comtosk and decreases in securities lending
payable, partially offset by increases in the epaiyments of borrowings and an increase in banideafs.

Liquidity—Year Ended December 31, 2008 Compared to Year Bridecember 31, 2007

During 2008, net cash flow provided by operatintivities was $2.5 billion, compared to $4.3 billion2007, a decrease of $1.8 billion.
This decrease resulted primarily from lower nebime in 2008 compared to 2007, increases in accoeoédvables and lower tax deductions
related to reduced stock option exercises. Thease in accounts receivable was due to self-furdadbership growth and higher amounts
due from providers. The reduction in net incoméed$ higher medical costs.

Net cash flow provided by investing activities vi&&16.2 million in 2008, compared to $768.9 millimincash used in 2007. The increase
in cash flow provided by investing activities of.4billion between the two periods primarily regdlfrom decreases in net purchases of
investments, decreases in purchases of subsidiaridglecreases in securities lending collateeatiglly offset by increases in net purchase
property and equipment.

Net cash flow used in financing activities was $3illion in 2008 compared to $3.4 billion in 200he increase in cash flow used in
financing activities of $325.7 million primarily salted from increases in net repayments of borrgsimcluding commercial paper, a decre
in securities lending payable, a decrease in pascfem the exercise of employee stock optionsstock purchase plan and a decrease in
excess tax benefits from share-based compensatotiglly offset by decreases in the repurchasmofmon stock and an increase in bank
overdrafts.

Financial Condition

We maintained a strong financial condition anditiéy position, with consolidated cash, cash egl@rts and investments, including
long-term investments, of $22.6 billion at DecemberZ109. Since December 31, 2008, total cash, cashaents and investments, includi
long-term investments, increased by $5.2 billioimjarrily due to cash proceeds from the sale of @¥Musiness to Express Scripts, net
change in provider advances, decreased tax paynents experience-rated refunds to certain largetamers and decreased incentive
compensation payments.

Many of our subsidiaries are subject to variousegoment regulations that restrict the timing anadant of dividends and other
distributions that may be paid to their respecpigeent companies. In addition, we have agreedrtainaundertakings to regulatory authorities,
including the requirement to maintain certain cagdévels in certain of our subsidiaries.

At December 31, 2009, we held at the parent compapyoximately $4.5 billion of cash and cash edems and investments, which is
available for general corporate use, including gtreent in our businesses, acquisitions, share ebdrdpurchases and interest payments.

Our consolidated debt-to-total capital ratio (cédoed as the sum of debt divided by the sum of galst shareholders’ equity) was 25.3%
as of December 31, 2009 and 29.2% as of Decemb@088.

Our senior debt is rated “A-" by Standard & Poot’;” by Fitch, Inc., “Baal” by Moody’s Investor $eéce, Inc. and “bbb+” by AM
Best Company, Inc. We intend to maintain our sed@it investment grade ratings. A significant doraag in our debt ratings could adversely
affect our borrowing capacity and costs.
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Future Sources and Uses of Liquidity

On December 1, 2009, we sold our PBM business prdss Scripts and received $4.7 billion in cash.eéifgect to pay cash tax payme
of approximately $1.2 billion during the first qoer of 2010 related to the PBM sale, which willibeluded in our net cash flows provided by
operations for the quarter ending March 31, 2010.

On December 12, 2008, we filed an updated sheistragjon statement with the SEC to register aimmitgéd amount of any combination
of debt or equity securities in one or more offganSpecific information regarding terms and se@sbeing offered will be provided at the
time of an offering. Proceeds from future offerirage expected to be used for general corporateopasp including the repayment of debt,
capitalization of our subsidiaries, repurchasesusfcommon stock or the financing of possible asijons or business expansion.

We are a member of the Federal Home Loan Bankdirapolis and the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cimtiin collectively, the
FHLBs, and as a member we have the ability to alitash advances subject to certain requirementsdir to obtain cash advances, we are
required to pledge securities as collateral toRHEBS, initially equal to a certain percentagelaf tash borrowings, depending on the type of
securities pledged as collateral. The market vafube collateral is monitored daily by the FHLBsd if it falls below the required percentage
of the cash borrowings, we are required to pledigktianal securities as collateral or repay a portf the outstanding cash advance balant
addition, our borrowings may be limited based anamount of our investment in the FHLBS' commorckt®ur investment in the FHLBS’
common stock at December 31, 2009 totaled $9.4amjlvhich is reported in “Investments available-fale—Equity securities” on the
consolidated balance sheets. At December 31, 2002@08, $0.0 million and $98.0 million, respeclyy®f cash advances from the FHLBs
was outstanding and is reported in “Short-termdaings” on the consolidated balance sheets. Seyrigrimarily certain U.S. government
sponsored mortgage-backed securities, with a firevof $230.5 million at December 31, 2009 hawnlygledged as collateral. The securities
pledged are reported in “Investments availablestde—Fixed maturity securities” on the consoliddtathnce sheets.

On November 29, 2005, we entered into a seniorvangcredit facility, or the facility, with certailenders for general corporate
purposes. The facility, as amended, provides crguib $2.4 billion and matures on September 3Q12The interest rate on this facility is
based on either: (i) the LIBOR rate plus a predeiieed percentage rate based on our credit ratittgeadate of utilization, or (ii) a base rate as
defined in the facility agreement. Our ability tortow under this facility is subject to compliangih certain covenants. There were no
amounts outstanding under this facility as of Delsen81, 2009 or during the year then ended. At Bibe 31, 2009, we had $2.4 hillion
available under this facility.

We have our Board of Directors’ approval to bornagvto $2.5 billion under our commercial paper pewgr Proceeds from any issuance
of commercial paper may be used for general cotpgnarposes, including the repurchase of our detbtammon stock. Commercial paper
notes are shoterm senior unsecured notes, with a maturity nextteed 270 days from date of issuance. When isthedotes bear interest
the then current market rates. We had $0.5 billibborrowings outstanding under this commercialgrgpogram as of December 31, 2009. As
previously discussed in “Introduction to Liquidiyd Capital Resources”, the commercial paper mati@te experienced increased volatility
and disruption. We will continue to monitor the aoercial paper markets and will act in a prudent mesnWe continue to classify our
commercial paper as long-term debt given our intemtsue commercial paper or our ability to redeemcommercial paper using our $2.4
billion senior credit facility.

As discussed in “Financial Condition” above, mafipor subsidiaries are subject to various goverrtmegulations that restrict the
timing and amount of dividends and other distribngi that may be paid. Based upon these requirenveaitare currently estimating
approximately $2.3 billion of ordinary dividendshe paid to the parent company during 2010. Du?id@9, we received $5.7 billion of
dividends from our subsidiaries.
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We regularly review the appropriate use of capAatordingly, under our Board of Directolithorization, we maintain a common st
repurchase program. Repurchases may be made franditime at prevailing market prices, subjeatddain restrictions on volume, pricing
and timing. The repurchases are effected from tortene in the open market, through negotiatedsaations and through plans designed to
comply with Rule 10b5-1 under the Exchange Act.ibgithe year ended December 31, 2009, we repurdtastretired approximately
57.3 million shares at an average per share pfi§d@02, for an aggregate cost of $2.6 billion. @arch 5, 2009, our Board of Directors
authorized an increase of $1.5 billion in our stogurchase program. On October 23, 2009, our BofaDdrectors authorized an additional
increase of $0.5 billion in our stock repurchasegpam, subject to completion of the Express Sctipissaction and pending current market
conditions and industry issues. As of Decembe2809, $0.4 billion remained authorized for futuepurchases. On January 26, 2010 our
Board of Directors increased the share repurchattmazation by $3.5 billion. Subsequent to Decen8ie 2009, we repurchased and retired
approximately 6.5 million shares for an aggregats of approximately $0.4 billion, leaving approxitely $3.5 billion for authorized future
repurchases at February 10, 2010. Our stock repsecprogram is discretionary as we are under rigailan to repurchase shares. We
repurchase shares when we believe it is a prudenoiicapital.

Our current retirement benefits funding strategipifund an amount at least equal to the minimuguired funding as determined under
ERISA with consideration of maximum tax deductibfaounts. We may elect to make discretionary camiobs up to the maximum amount
deductible for income tax purposes. For the yededecember 31, 2009, no contributions were reduis meet ERISA required funding
levels; however, we made tax deductible discretiprantributions totaling $188.6 million to our ireiment benefit plans during the year en
December 31, 2009.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

Our estimated contractual obligations and commitsias of December 31, 2009 are as follows:

Payments Due by Perioc

More than
Less than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
(In millions)
Long-term debt, including capital leas? $13,570.0 $1,042.¢ $3,094.¢ $1,568.& $7,864.(
Operating lease commitmet 695.¢ 126.¢ 207.: 165.4 196.:
Projected other postretirement bene 710.2 41.C 142.¢ 147.2 379.¢
Purchase obligation
IBM outsourcing agreemern? 671.¢ 248.¢ 391t 31.¢€ —
Other purchase obligatio 1,477.: 514.¢ 588.: 293.t 80.4
Other lon¢-term liabilities4 924.¢ — 361.: 355.7 207.¢
Venture capital commitmen 179.2 69.¢ 81.2 28.1 —
Total contractual obligations and commitme $18,228.¢ $2,043.! $4,867.. $2,590.¢ $8,727.

1

, Includes estimated interest exper

Relates to agreements with International Busineashifies Corporation, or IBM, to provide informati@ehnology infrastructur
services. See Note 13 to the audited consolid&teddial statements as of and for the year ende@mber 31, 2009 included in this
Form 1(-K for further information

Includes obligations related to r-IBM information technology service agreements alddommunication contract

Estimated future payments for funded pension benkéive been excluded from this table as we hddmding requirements under
ERISA at December 31, 2009, as a result of theevafuhe assets in the plal

The above table does not contain $144.5 milliogross liabilities for uncertain tax positions fohish we cannot reasonably estimate the
timing of the resolutions with the respective taxauthorities. See Note 7 to the audited consd@itifihancial statements as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2009 included in this Form X¥0rKurther information.
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In addition to the contractual obligations and cdtnmants discussed above, we have a variety of athetractual agreements related to
acquiring materials and services used in our ojmeratHowever, we do not believe these other agee¢sicontain material noncancelable
commitments.

We believe that funds from future operating casw$, cash and investments and funds available undegenior credit facility or from
public or private financing sources will be suféiot for future operations and commitments, andégmital acquisitions and other strategic
transactions.

For additional information on our debt and leasegitments, see Notes 12 and 17, respectively, taodited consolidated financial
statements as of and for the year ended Decemb@089, included in this Form 10-K.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangemieatsvill require funding in future periods.
Risk-Based Capital

Our regulated subsidiaries’ states of domicile heteg¢utory risk-based capital, or RBC, requiremémtdealth and other insurance
companies largely based on the National Associatfdnsurance Commissioners’, or NAIC's, RBC Modeit. These RBC requirements are
intended to measure capital adequacy, taking iotount the risk characteristics of an insurer’'sstments and products. The NAIC sets forth
the formula for calculating the RBC requirementhjak are designed to take into account asset risgsrance risks, interest rate risks and
other relevant risks with respect to an individmalurance company’s business. In general, unde@tt, an insurance company must submit a
report of its RBC level to the state insurance d@peant or insurance commissioner, as appropriatideaend of each calendar year. Our risk-
based capital as of December 31, 2009, which wagibst recent date for which reporting was requines in excess of all mandatory RBC
thresholds. In addition to exceeding the RBC rezqunts, we are in compliance with the liquidity @agital requirements for a licensee of the
BCBSA and with the tangible net worth requiremeagplicable to certain of our California subsidiarie

XIl. Safe Harbor Statement under the Private Seaities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

This document contains certain forward-looking miation about us that is intended to be coverethbysafe harbor for “forward-
looking statements” provided by the Private Se@sit.itigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-lookis@tements are statements that are not
generally historical facts. Words such“expect(s)”, “feel(s)”, “believe(s)”, “will”, “may” , “anticipate(s)”, “intend”, “estimate”, “project”
and similar expressions are intended to identifylrd-looking statements, which generally are nigtdrical in nature. These statements
include, but are not limited to, financial projemtis and estimates and their underlying assumptistagements regarding plans, objectives and
expectations with respect to future operationsdpigis and services; and statements regarding fyteréormance. Such statements are subject
to certain risks and uncertainties, many of whicé difficult to predict and generally beyond oumtml, that could cause actual results to
differ materially from those expressed in, or iraglor projected by, the forward-looking informatiand statements. These risks and
uncertainties include: those discussed and idexatifn our public filings with the SEC; increasedsgmment participation in, or regulation or
taxation of health benefits and managed care of@nat trends in health care costs and utilizati@tes; our ability to secure sufficient
premium rates including regulatory approval for aintblementation of such rates; our ability to camfr with providers consistent with pz
practice; competitor pricing below market trendsrmdreasing costs; reduced enroliment, as well agative change in our health ce
product mix; risks and uncertainties regarding Mzdie and Medicaid programs, including those relateaor-compliance with the complex
regulations imposed thereon, funding risks wittpees to revenue received from participation ther@id CMS sanctions; a downgrade in our
financial strength ratings; litigation and investtjons targeted at health benefits companies arrchbility to
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resolve litigation and investigations within estiies; our ability to meet expectations regardingueghases of shares of our common

stock; decreased revenues, increased operating emst potential customer and supplier losses arginess disruptions that may be greater
than expected following the close of the ExpresptSdransaction; events that result in negatiwelicity for us or the health benefits indust
failure to effectively maintain and modernize aufiormation systems an«business organization and to maintain good relagtups with third
party vendors for information system resourcesnevéhat may negatively affect our license withBhee Cross and Blue Shield Associati
possible impairment of the value of our intangiaésets if future results do not adequately supgoodwill and other intangible assets; intet
competition to attract and retain employees; unatitted disclosure of member sensitive or confidgitformation; changes in the economic
and market conditions, as well as regulations thaly negatively affect our investment portfolios bguidity; possible restrictions in the
payment of dividends by our subsidiaries and insesan required minimum levels of capital and theeptial negative effect from o
substantial amount of outstanding indebtednesseggmisks associated with mergers and acquisitimasious laws and our governing
documents may prevent or discourage takeovers agithéss combinations; future bio-terrorist activitlyother potential public health
epidemics; and general economic downturns. Reaalersautioned not to place undue reliance on ttiesgard-looking statements that speak
only as of the date hereof. Except to the extédrgratise required by federal securities law, we doundertake any obligation to republish
revised forward-looking statements to reflect es@mtcircumstances after the date hereof or tcefthe occurrence of unanticipated events.
Readers are also urged to carefully review and wersthe various disclosures in our SEC repa

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK.

As a result of our investing and borrowing actgsti we are exposed to financial market risks, tholy those resulting from changes in
interest rates and changes in equity market valositiPotential impacts discussed below are baseul sgnsitivity analyses performed on our
financial position as of December 31, 2009. Acteallts could vary from these estimates. Our pynodjectives with our investment portfo
are to provide safety and preservation of cagstaficient liquidity to meet cash flow requiremeritse integration of investment strategy with
the business operations and an attainment of a etitinp after-tax total return.

Investments
Our investment portfolio is exposed to three prigresurces of risk: credit quality risk, interesteraisk and market valuation risk.

The primary risks associated with our fixed magusiécurities are credit quality risk and interegéerisk. Credit quality risk is defined as
the risk of a credit downgrade to an individuakfixmaturity security and the potential loss attable to that downgrade. Credit quality risk is
managed through our investment policy, which efghbk credit quality limitations on the overall ffolio as well as diversification and
percentage limits on securities of individual igsud@he result is a well-diversified portfolio akéd maturity securities, with an average credit
rating of approximately “AA”. Interest rate risk defined as the potential for economic losses xedfimaturity securities due to a change in
market interest rates. Our fixed maturity portfaidnvested primarily in U.S. government secusitieorporate bonds, asset-backed bonds,
mortgage-related securities and municipal bondisfabhich represent an exposure to changes ifethed of market interest rates. Interest rate
risk is managed by maintaining asset duration withband based upon our liabilities, operatingqgrerdnce and liquidity needs. Additionally,
we have the capability of holding any security tatamity, which would allow us to realize full paalue.

Our portfolio includes corporate securities (apjpmately 41% of the total fixed maturity portfolid Becember 31, 2009), which are
subject to credit/default risk. In a declining eooric environment, corporate yields will usuallyriease prompted by concern over the abilit
corporations to make interest payments, thus cgusithecrease in the price of corporate securdigs the decline in value of the corporate
fixed maturity portfolio. This risk is managed thgh fundamental credit analysis, diversificationssuers and industries and an average credit
rating of the corporate fixed maturity portfolio approximately “A-".
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Our equity portfolio is comprised of large capitalion and small capitalization domestic equitiesgign equities and index mutual
funds. Our equity portfolio is subject to the vdigtinherent in the stock market, driven by cormteover economic conditions, earnings and
sales growth, inflation, and consumer confidendesE systematic risks cannot be managed throughsification alone. However, more
routine risks, such as stock/industry specificgjskre managed by investing in a diversified equitstfolio.

As of December 31, 2009, approximately 94% of auatilable-for-sale investments were fixed maturigsrities. Market risk is
addressed by actively managing the duration, dilmcand diversification of our investment porttnlWe have evaluated the impact on the
fixed maturity portfolios fair value considering an immediate 100 basiatpddiange in interest rates. A 100 basis poinease in interest rat
would result in an approximate $691.4 million desein fair value, whereas a 100 basis point deergsinterest rates would result in an
approximate $707.4 million increase in fair vallhile we classify our fixed maturity securities“asailable-for-sale” for accounting
purposes, we believe our cash flows and duratiauofortfolio should allow us to hold securitiesmaturity, thereby avoiding the recognition
of losses should interest rates rise significantly.

Our available-for-sale equity securities portfolig, of December 31, 2009, was approximately 6%pfrivestments. An immediate 10%
decrease in each equity investmemalue, arising from market movement, would resu#t fair value decrease of $104.3 million. Al&tinely,
an immediate 10% increase in each equity investsigatue, attributable to the same factor, woukliein a fair value increase of $104.3
million.

Long-Term Debt

Our total long-term debt at December 31, 2009 v&4 Billion, and included $500.6 million of commigdgaper and $433.1 million
outstanding on a senior term loan. The carryingeslof the commercial paper and senior term lognoxpmate fair value as the underlying
instruments have variable interest rates at masdeie. The remainder of the debt is subject tar@sterate risk as these instruments have fixed
interest rates and the fair value is affected lynges in market interest rates.

At December 31, 2009, we had $7.4 billion of seniosecured notes with fixed interest rates. Thesesnat par value, included $700.0
million at 5.000% due 2011, $350.0 million at 6.378ue 2012, $800.0 million at 6.80% due 2012, $50dllion at 5.00% due 2014, $400.0
million at 6.00% due 2014, $1,100.0 million at D26 due 2016, $700.0 million at 5.875% due 2017 08Bnillion at 7.000% due 2019,
$500.0 million at 5.950% due 2034, $900.0 milliarba850% due 2036, and $800.0 million at 6.375% 2&7. These notes had combined
carrying and estimated fair value of $7.4 billiovd&7.6 billion, respectively, at December 31, 2009

Our subordinated debt includes surplus notes isbyamhe of our insurance subsidiaries. Par valueadunts outstanding at
December 31, 2009 included $42.0 million of 9.12&%plus notes due 2010 and $25.1 million of 9.0G2%plus notes due 2027. Any payrr
of interest or principal on the surplus notes mayrtade only with the prior approval of the Indi@epartment of Insurance. The carrying
value and estimated fair value of the surplus net® $66.8 million and $73.4 million at Decembér 3009.

Should interest rates increase or decrease irutheef the estimated fair value of our fixed ragbtdwvould decrease or increase
accordingly.

Derivatives

We use derivative financial instruments, specificaiterest rate swap agreements, to hedge exposuméesrest rate risk on our
borrowings. These derivatives are also subjectaditquality risk from the counterparty. Our detive use is generally limited to hedging
purposes and we generally do not use derivativteliments for speculative purposes.
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During the year ended December 31, 2009, we enisted fair value hedge with a total notional weahf $600.0 million. The hedge is
interest rate swap agreement to receive a fixed08@rate and pay a LIBOR-based floating rate ampirex on January 15, 2011.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, we tetedrsvo interest rate swaps of our fixed rate debwhich the counterparty was
Lehman. Lehman filed for bankruptcy protection @p®mber 15, 2008. We recognized a $2.1 millionaimpent of these fair value hedges as
net realized losses on investments during the geded December 31, 2008.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, we entetedwo fair value hedges with a total notionalue of $440.0 million. The first
hedge is a $240.0 million notional amount interatt swap agreement to receive a fixed 6.800%aradepay a LIBOR-based floating rate and
expires on August 1, 2012. The second hedge i9@.§2nillion notional amount interest rate swapeagnent to receive a fixed 5.000% rate
and pay a LIBOR-based floating rate and expireBecember 15, 2014.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, we entetedwo fair value hedges with a total notionalue of $660.0 million. The first
hedge is a $360.0 million notional amount interag swap agreement to exchange a fixed 6.800%aatel IBOR-based floating rate and
expires on August 1, 2012. The second hedge i9@.@3nillion notional amount interest rate swapeagnent to exchange a fixed 5.000% rate
for LIBOR-based floating rate and expires Deceniier2014.

Changes in interest rates will affect the estiméa@dvalue of these swap agreements. As of Dece®ibe2009, we recorded an asset of
$84.8 million, the estimated fair value of the swapthat date. We have evaluated the impact omtéeest rate swap’s fair value considering
an immediate 100 basis point change in interessrat 100 basis point increase in interest ratagdvesult in an approximate $39.7 million
decrease in fair value, whereas a 100 basis pearedse in interest rates would result in an apprate $39.7 million increase in fair value.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, we entetea series of forward starting pay fixed swajith total outstanding notional
amounts of $295.0 million. The objective of thesdes of hedges is to eliminate the variabilitytted cash flows in the interest payments on
senior term loan. We agreed to receive a LIBOR-thélsating rate and pay a fixed rate. The swapsbeg expire on a monthly basis on
December 31, 2009; the final swap in the seriegrexpn June 30, 2010.

In January 2009, we entered into forward startiag fixed swaps with an aggregate notional amou®860.0 million. The objective of
these hedges was to eliminate the variability shddows in the interest payments on the debt sesiissued in February 2009. These swaps
were terminated in February 2009, and we paid 3& million, the net fair value at the time ofrtgénation. In addition, we recorded a loss of
$2.1 million, net of tax, in other comprehensivedme. Following the February 5, 2009 issuance bf decurities, the unamortized fair value
of the forward starting pay fixed swaps include@datumulated other comprehensive income began &ngrinto earnings, as an increase to
interest expense. In addition, we have amountsdecdoin accumulated other comprehensive incomeddrin forward starting pay fixed
swaps that were terminated in prior years. The dedigbt securities have maturity dates ranging 26+ to 2036.

The unrecognized loss for all cash flow hedgeauhetl in accumulated other comprehensive incomeeémber 31, 2009 was $10.8
million. As of December 31, 2009, the total amoohamortization over the next twelve months forcash flow hedges will decrease interest
expense by approximately $0.9 million.
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Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

Shareholders and Board of Directors
WellPoint, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of WellPoint, Inc. (the “Company”) aPetember 31, 2009 and 2008, and the
related consolidated statements of income, shatelsilequity, and cash flows for each of the thyea&rs in the period ended December 31,
2009. Our audits also included the financial staenschedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a).sEhfénancial statements and schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Oupaasibility is to express an opinion on these foiahstatements and schedule based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether the finestatements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of WellPoint,
Inc. at December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the catadeli results of its operations and its cash flimvgach of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2009, in conformity with U.Sagally accepted accounting principles. Also, in opinion, the related financial statem
schedule, when considered in relation to the fasgmcial statements taken as a whole, presentyg faiall material respects the information
set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrste&iements, during 2009, the Company changedeétsod of accounting for the recognition
of other-than-temporary impairments related tdixsd maturity securities.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), WellPoint, Inc.’'s
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2009, based on criteria establishedt@rial Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission and our report datdauzey 18, 2010 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

/s ERNST& Y OUNGLLP

Indianapolis, Indiana
February 18, 2010

91



Table of Contents

(In millions, except share data)

Assets
Current asset
Cash and cash equivalel
Investments availak-for-sale, at fair value

Fixed maturity securities (amortized cost of $13,20and $1,538.¢

Equity securities (cost of $799.1 and $1,29:
Other invested assets, curr
Accrued investment incorr
Premium and se-funded receivable
Other receivable
Income tax receivabl
Securities lending collater
Deferred tax assets, r
Other current asse
Total current asse
Long-term investments availal-for-sale, at fair value
Fixed maturity securities (amortized cost of $228had $12,401.2
Equity securities (cost of $33.4 and $3¢
Other invested assets, lc-term
Property and equipment, r
Goodwill
Other intangible asse
Other noncurrent asse
Total assets

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Policy liabilities:
Medical claims payabl
Reserves for future policy benef
Other policyholder liabilitie!
Total policy liabilities
Unearned incom
Accounts payable and accrued expet
Income tax payabl
Security trades pending payal
Securities lending payab
Shor-term borrowings
Current portion of lon-term debt
Other current liabilitie:
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, less current porti
Reserves for future policy benefits, noncurt
Deferred tax liabilities, ne
Other noncurrent liabilitie

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingenc—Note 13

Shareholders equity

Preferred stock, without par value, shares autac—100,000,000; shares issued and outsta—none
Common stock, par value $0.01, shares authc—900,000,000; shares issued and outstanding: 448,78@and 503,230,517

Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive income (I«

Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

See accompanying notes.

WellPoint, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31

2009 2008
$ 4816 $ 2,183
15,696.¢ 1,564.¢
1,010.; 1,088.(
26.5 23.€
172.¢ 172.¢
3,281.( 3,042.¢
879.F 1,373.¢
= 159.¢
394.¢ 529.(
523.¢ 779.0
1,268.¢ 1,212,
28,070  12,130.(
2304  11,808.
32.% 30.7
775. 703.
1,099.¢ 1,054.t
13264.(  13,461.
8,259.1 8,827..
393.( 387.¢
$52,125.. $48,403.;
$ 5450f $ 6,184.
62.€ 4.
1,617.¢ 1,626.¢
7,130 7,876.(
1,050.( 1,087.;
2,994.: 2,856.¢
1,228 —
37.€ 5.8
396.¢ 529.(
— 98.C
60.€ 909.7
1,775.; 1,657.¢
14,673  15,020.
8,338.0 7,833.¢
664.¢ 664.7
2,470.¢ 2,098.¢
1,115 1,353.]
27,262  26,971!
45 5.
15,192  16,843.(
9,598.¢ 5,479.:
68.1 (895.7)
24,863 21431,
$52,125.. $48,403.;
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WellPoint, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income

(In millions, except per share data)

Revenues
Premiums
Administrative fee:
Other revenui
Total operating revent
Net investment incom
Gain on sale of busine
Net realized gains on investme|
Other-thar-temporary impairment losses on investme
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment losses on investme
Portion of othe-thar-temporary impairment losses recognized in otherprehensive
income
Otherthar-temporary impairment losses recognized in inc
Total revenue

Expenses
Benefit expens
Selling, general and administrative exper
Selling expens
General and administrative expel
Total selling, general and administrative expe
Cost of drugs
Interest expens
Amortization of other intangible asst
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible ass
Total expense
Income before income tax expens
Income tax expens
Net income

Net income per share
Basic

Diluted

See accompanying notes.
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Years ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
$56,382.(  $57,101.0  $55,865.
3,840.: 3,836.¢ 3,673.¢
606. 641.¢ 617.(
60,828.( 61,579.. 60,155.
801.( 851.1 1,001.:
3,792.: — —
56. 28.7 270.¢
(538.9) (1,207.9 (259.7)
88.: — —
(450.2) (1,207.9 (259.7)
65,028. 61,251.. 61,167.¢
46,571.; 47,742. 46,037..
1,685.k 1,778.c 1,716.¢
7,973.¢ 7,242 6,984’
9,659.: 9,020.! 8,701.f
419.C 468.F 432.
447 .4 469.¢ 447 €
266.( 286.1 290.7
262.F 141.¢ —
57,625.: 58,128." 55,910.(
7,403.( 3,122.¢ 5,257.¢
2,657. 631.7 1,912.f
$4,745¢  $2490.  $ 3,345.
$ 996 $ 47¢ $ 56/
$ 098 $ 476 $ b55¢
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WellPoint, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In millions) Years ended December 31
2009 2008 2007
Operating activities
Net income $4,745.¢ $ 2,490 $3,345.¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:
Net realized gains on investme (56.9) (28.7) (270.9
OtheK-thar-temporary impairment losses recognized in inci 450.2 1,207.¢ 259.7
Loss on disposal of asst 16.4 7.2 11.2
Gain on sale of busine (3,792.) — —
Deferred income taxe 61.2 (481.9 (105.5)
Amortization, net of accretio 446.¢ 466.2 466.(
Depreciation expens 107.1 105.4 120.2
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible ass 262.t 141.¢ —
Shar-based compensatic 153.¢ 156.( 177.1
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic (9.6) (16.0 (153.9)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffett of business combinations and divestitu
Receivables, n¢ (484.2) (558.7) (448.¢)
Other invested assets, curr (62.5) 103.c 3.0
Other asset (119.9) (340.2 174.¢
Policy liabilities (748.2) 194.¢ 257.7
Unearned incom (27.9) (26.7) 125.¢
Accounts payable and accrued expel 952.¢ (106.9) (235.9)
Other liabilities (248.¢) (797.0) 176.5
Income taxe: 1,391.« (47.9) 447.%
Other, ne! (0.1) 64.€ —
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,038.¢ 2,535.¢ 4,344.¢
Investing activities
Purchases of fixed maturity securit (7,186.9) (5,691.9) (8,512.0)
Proceeds from fixed maturity securiti
Sales 4,096.¢ 5,194.¢ 6,709.(
Maturities, calls and redemptio 1,551.7 1,669.¢ 1,618.¢
Purchases of equity securiti (318.9 (1,327.9) (1,389.)
Proceeds from sales of equity securi 577.% 1,083.: 1,411.°
Purchases of other invested as (49.0 (145.0 (102.4)
Proceeds from sales of other invested as 315 32.¢ 10.4
Changes in securities lending collate 132.¢ 325.1 50.€
Purchases of subsidiaries, net of cash acq! (66.%) (197.%) (298.5)
Proceeds from sales of subsidiaries, net of cast 4,672.: 5.0 —
Purchases of property and equipm (378.9) (345.6) (322.0
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn 0.4 12.7 57.2
Other, ne! (32.0 — (2.2)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 3,002.¢ 616.2 (768.9)
Financing activities
Net (repayments of) proceeds from commercial phpeaowings (397.0 (900.€) 502.¢
Proceeds from lor-term borrowings 990.2 525.( 1,978.¢
Net (repayments of) proceeds from s-term borrowings (98.0 98.C —
Repayment of lor-term borrowings (919.9) (38.7) (509.7%)
Changes in securities lending paya (132.9) (325.)) (50.€)
Changes in bank overdra (344.7) 44.€ (117.7)
Repurchase and retirement of common s (2,638.9) (3,276.9) (6,151.9)
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock optiodseamployee stock purchase p 126.5 121.2 784.k
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic 9.€ 16.C 153.%
Net cash used in financing activities (3,402.9 (3,735.9 (3,409.9
Effect of foreign exchange rates on cash and casivalents (6.7) — —
Change in cash and cash equivals 2,632. (584.0) 165.¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 2,183.¢ 2,767.¢ 2,602..
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ye: $4,816.. $2,183.¢ $2,767.¢

See accompanying notes.
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WellPoint, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Accumulated

(In millions) Common Stock Other Total
Additional Comprehensive Shareholders’
Number Paid-in Retained
of Share: Par Value Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity

January 1, 200 615.k $ 6.1 $19,863.! $ 4,656.. $ 50.1 $ 24,575.1
Net income — — — 3,345.¢ — 3,345..
Change in net unrealized gains/losses on invesy — — — — 2.2 2.2
Change in net unrealized gains/losses on cash flow

hedges — — — — (2.9 (2.9
Change in net periodic pension and postretiremests — — — — 106.Z 106.Z
Comprehensive incorr 3,451.
Repurchase and retirement of common s (76.9 (0.9 (2,538.9) (3,612.9) — (6,151.9
Issuance of common stock under employee stock f

net of related tax bene 17.€ 0.2 1,115.¢ — — 1,116.:
Adoption of FASB guidance on uncertain tax posisi — — — (1.6) — (1.€)
December 31, 200 556.2 5.€ 18,441.: 4,387.¢ 156.1 22,990.:
Net income — — — 2,490.7 — 2,490.
Change in net unrealized gains/losses on invess — — — — (662.9) (662.9)
Change in net unrealized gains/losses on cash flow

hedges — — — — (0.5 (0.5
Change in net periodic pension and postretiremests — — — — (388.7) (388.7)
Adoption of FASB measurement date provisi — — — — (0.8) (0.9
Comprehensive incorr 1,438.¢
Repurchase and retirement of common s (56.4) (0.€) (1,879.) (1,396.5 — (3,276.7)
Issuance of common stock under employee stock plans

net of related tax bene 34 — 281.( — — 281.(
Adoption of FASB retirement benefits guidar — — — 1.3 — 1.3
Adoption of FASB measurement date provisi — — — (1.1 — (1.7)
December 31, 200 503.2 5.C 16,843.( 5,479.¢ (895.7%) 21,431,
Cumulative effect of adoption of FASB OTTI guidan

net of taxe: — — — 88.¢ (88.9) —
Net income — — — 4,745.¢ — 4,745.¢
Change in net unrealized gains/losses on invesy — — — — 1,055.: 1,055.:
Non-credit component of other-than-temporary

impairment losses on investments, net of t — — — — (20.7) (20.7)
Change in net unrealized gains/losses on cash

hedge: — — — — (2.3 (2.9
Change in net periodic pension and postretiremests — — — — 19.c 19.c
Foreign currency translation adjustme — — — — 1.2 1.2
Comprehensive incorn 5,798.¢
Repurchase and retirement of common s (57.9) (0.5) (1,922.9) (715.%) — (2,638.9)
Issuance of common stock under employee stock f

net of related tax bene 3.9 — 271.¢ — — 271
December 31, 200 449.¢ $ 4F $15,192.. $9,598.! $ 68.1 $ 24,863..

See accompanying notes.
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WellPoint, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2009
(In Millions, Except Per Share Data)
1. Organization

References to the terms “we”, “our”, “us”, “WellPi or the “Company” used throughout these Note€dosolidated Financial
Statements refer to WellPoint, Inc., an Indiangoaation, and unless the context otherwise requitedirect and indirect subsidiaries.

We are the largest health benefits company in tefreemmercial membership in the United Statesjisgr33.7 medical members as of
December 31, 2009. We offer a broad spectrum efarétbased managed care plans to large and smplbgar, individual, Medicaid and
senior markets. Our managed care plans includéenpegl provider organizations, or PPOs; health teaignce organizations, or HMOs; point-
of-service, or POS, plans; traditional indemnitsinsd and other hybrid plans, including consumeredirikealth plans, or CDHPs; and hospital
only and limited benefit products. In addition, prvide a broad array of managed care servicesltdunded customers, including claims
processing, underwriting, stop loss insurance,a@liservices, provider network access, medical octanagement, disease management,
wellness programs and other administrative servMésalso provide an array of specialty and otmedpcts and services such as life and
disability insurance benefits, dental, vision, badbeal health benefit services, radiology benefégmagement, analytics-driven personal health
care guidance, long-term care insurance and flexdpending accounts. We are licensed to conduatainee operations in all 50 states through
our subsidiaries.

We are an independent licensee of the Blue Crad8are Shield Association, or BCBSA, an associatbmdependent health benefit
plans. We serve our members as the Blue Crossskeefor California; the Blue Cross and Blue ShietdBCBS, licensee for Colorado,
Connecticut, Georgia, Indiana, Kentucky, Maine, #digri (excluding 30 counties in the Kansas Cityaardlevada, New Hampshire, New Y1
(as the BCBS licensee in 10 New York City metrojamliand surrounding counties and as the Blue GnoBEBS licensee in selected upstate
counties only), Ohio, Virginia (excluding the Ncetin Virginia suburbs of Washington, D.C.) and Wissia. In a majority of these service
areas we do business as Anthem Blue Cross, AntHeenx®@oss Blue Shield or Empire Blue Cross Blueesh{in our New York service aree
We also serve customers throughout much of thetopas UniCare.

2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountin@olicies

Basis of PresentationThe accompanying consolidated financial statemiatade the accounts of WellPoint and its subsid&and
have been prepared in conformity with U.S. gengiaticepted accounting principles, or GAAP. All sfgant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Certain of our subsidiaries operate outside olthied States and have functional currencies dtfeer the U.S. dollar, or USD. We
translate the assets and liabilities of those slidosés to USD using the exchange rate in effetht@end of the period. We translate the
revenues and expenses of those subsidiaries tousBD the average exchange rates in effect duniegériod. The net effect of these
translation adjustments is included in “Foreignreacy translation adjustments” in our consolidatedements of shareholders’ equity.

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardsrécor FASB, established tRASB Accounting Standards Codificatioor
Cadification, as the source of authoritative GAARagnized by the FASB to be applied by nongovernaiemtities in the preparation of
financial statements. Rules and interpretive relead
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu
2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountin@olicies (continued)

the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, or, 8B@er authority of federal securities laws asd a@ources of authoritative GAAP for
SEC registrants. The Codification became effeditivais on September 30, 2009, and supersedesalekisting non-SEC accounting and
reporting standards. All other non-grandfathered-8&C accounting literature not included in the ication became non-authoritative. The
Coadification does not change or alter existing GAgfel, therefore, the adoption of the Codificatiachrtbt have any impact on our
consolidated financial position and results of agiens.

Use of EstimatesThe preparation of consolidated financial statemé@ntonformity with GAAP requires us to make esties and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported irconsolidated financial statements and accompanyates. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Cash EquivalentsAll highly liquid investments with maturities ofriée months or less when purchased are classifiedsisequivalents.

Investmentsin April 2009, the FASB issued guidance for rectigni and presentation of other-than-temporary impant, or FASB
OTTI guidance. FASB OTTI guidance applies to fixedturity securities only and provides new guidamaehe recognition and presentation
of other-than-temporary impairments. In additioASB OTTI guidance requires additional disclosuedated to other-than-temporary
impairments. Under this revised guidance, if adixeaturity security is in an unrealized loss positand we have the intent to sell the fixed
maturity security, or it is more likely than noathwe will have to sell the fixed maturity secutitgfore recovery of its amortized cost basis, the
decline in value is deemed to be other-than-tempamad is recorded to other-than-temporary impairnh@sses recognized in income in our
consolidated income statements. For impaired firaturity securities that we do not intend to selt @ more likely than not that we will not
have to sell such securities, but we expect thawillenot fully recover the amortized cost baslse tredit component of the other-than-
temporary impairment is recognized in other-th@mporary impairment losses recognized in incon@uinconsolidated income statements
the non-credit component of the other-than-tempgoirapairment is recognized in other comprehenaio®ine. Furthermore, unrealized losses
entirely caused by non-credit related factors eeldb fixed maturity securities for which we expexfully recover the amortized cost basis
continue to be recognized in accumulated other celgnsive income.

The credit component of an other-than-temporaryainmpent is determined by comparing the net pregeluie of projected future cash
flows with the amortized cost basis of the fixedtumidly security. The net present value is calcudig discounting our best estimate of
projected future cash flows at the effective interate implicit in the fixed maturity securitythie date of acquisition. For mortgalgaeked an
asset-backed securities, cash flow estimates aedlan assumptions regarding the underlying colbbtecluding prepayment speeds, vintage,
type of underlying asset, geographic concentratidefault rates, recoveries and changes in valorealFother debt securities, cash flow
estimates are driven by assumptions regarding pilityeof default, including changes in credit rags, and estimates regarding timing and
amount of recoveries associated with a default.

Upon adoption of the FASB OTTI guidance on AprikD09, we recorded a cumulative-effect adjustmmeeitpf taxes, of $88.9 as of the
beginning of the period of adoption, April 1, 2088 reclassify the non-credit component of previpuscognized other-than-temporary
impairments from retained earnings to accumulatbdracomprehensive income.

We classify the fixed maturity and equity secusitie our investment portfolio as “available-foresabr “trading” and report those
securities at fair value. Prior to the adoptionief FASB OTTI guidance, we classified our fixed anéy securities as current or noncurrent
based on their contractual maturities. In
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu
2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountin@olicies (continued)

connection with the adoption of the FASB OTTI guida on April 1, 2009, we have determined that aedéthese fixed maturity securities
are available to support current operations anchralingly, have classified such investments asecurassets as of December 31, 2009 without
regard to their contractual maturities. Investmesisd to satisfy contractual, regulatory or otleguirements are classified as long-term,
without regard to contractual maturity.

The unrealized gains or losses on our current@amg-term equity securities classified as availdbtesale are included in accumulated
other comprehensive income as a separate compohsimareholders’ equity, unless the decline in #atdudeemed to be other-than-temporary
and we do not have the intent and ability to heidhsequity securities until their full cost canreeovered, in which case such equity securities
are written down to fair value and the loss is gldrto other-than-temporary impairment losses neizeg in income.

We maintain various rabbi trusts to account forahsets and liabilities under certain deferred eamation plans. Under these plans, the
participants can defer certain types of compensatia elect to receive a return on the deferrecuamsdased on the changes in fair value of
various investment options, primarily a varietynafitual funds. Rabbi trust assets are classifigdading, which are reported in other invested
assets, current in the consolidated balance shdgtschange in the fair value of the trading pdidfoabbi trust assets during 2009, 2008 and
2007, which together with net investment incomeyiisem trading portfolio rabbi trust assets, tada®d.5, $(6.5) and $2.4, respectively, is
classified in general and administrative expengbenconsolidated statement of income, consistéhttive related deferred compensation
expense.

We use the equity method of accounting for investisien companies in which our ownership interestbdes us to influence the
operating or financial decisions of the investempany. Our proportionate share of equity in nebime of these unconsolidated affiliates is
reported with net investment income.

For asset-backed securities included in fixed nitgtsecurities, we recognize income using an efffectield based on anticipated
prepayments and the estimated economic life o$d¢warrities. When estimates of prepayments chahgeftective yield is recalculated to
reflect actual payments to date and anticipatagtéupayments. The net investment in the secuigtiadjusted to the amount that would have
existed had the new effective yield been appliadesihe acquisition of the securities. Such adjastsiare reported with net investment
income.

All securities sold resulting in investment gaimsl dosses are recorded on the trade date. Regl@ed and losses are determined on the
basis of the cost or amortized cost of the spesditurities sold.

We participate in securities lending programs whgmarketable securities in our investment portfalie transferred to independent
brokers or dealers based on, among other things,dteditworthiness in exchange for cash colldtaitially equal to at least 102% of the
value of the securities on loan and is thereaft@intained at a minimum of 100% of the market valtithe securities loaned (calculated as the
ratio of initial market value of cash collateraldorrent market value of the securities on loamcdkdingly, the market value of the securities
on loan to each borrower is monitored daily anditberower is required to deliver additional cashiateral if the market value of the securities
on loan exceeds the initial market value of cadlateral delivered. The fair value of the collatlexceived amounted to $396.6 and $529.0 at
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The valtiee cash collateral delivered represented 1088e market value of the securities on
loans at both December 31, 2009 and 2008. UndefAlSB guidance related to accounting for transéers servicing of financial assets and
extinguishments of liabilities, we recognize theltaollateral as an asset, which is reported azutigees lending collateraldn our consolidate
balance sheets and we record a
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2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountin@olicies (continued)

corresponding liability for the obligation to retuthe cash collateral to the borrower, which isoregd as “securities lending payable.” The
securities on loan are reported in the applicablestment category on the consolidated balancessHéerealized gains or losses on securities
lending collateral are included in accumulated ptdemprehensive income as a separate componehadlders’ equity.

Premium and Self-Funded ReceivableBremium and self-funded receivables include thelected amounts from insured and self-
funded groups, and are reported net of an allowércdgoubtful accounts of $174.9 and $160.7 at Demer 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
The allowance for doubtful accounts is based ototical collection trends and our judgment regagdime ability to collect specific accounts.

Other ReceivablesDther receivables include pharmacy sales, proddeances, claims recoveries, reinsurance, govelrpnegrams,
proceeds due from brokers on investment trade®#red miscellaneous amounts due to us. These adileivare reported net of an allowance
for uncollectible amounts of $174.9 and $176.0 eténber 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, whictaget on historical collection trends and
our judgment regarding the ability to collect sfie@mounts.

Federal Income TaxesWe file a consolidated income tax return. Defeirebme tax assets and liabilities are recognizedeimporary
differences between the financial statement anddaxn bases of assets and liabilities based aoted tax rates and laws. The deferred tax
benefits of the deferred tax assets are recogmiztte extent realization of such benefits is mikedy than not. Deferred income tax expense
or benefit generally represents the net changefierced income tax assets and liabilities durirgytéar. Current income tax expense repre:
the tax consequences of revenues and expensenttutagable or deductible on various income tawmes for the year reported.

We account for income tax contingencies in accardamith FASB guidance that contains a model to esikluncertainty in tax positions
and clarifies the accounting for income taxes Bspribing a minimum recognition threshold, whichirdome tax positions must achieve
before being recognized in the financial statements

Property and EquipmentProperty and equipment is recorded at cost, natofimulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed
principally by the straight-line method over esttethuseful lives ranging from 15 to 39 years foitdings and improvements, three to seven
years for furniture and equipment, and three te figars for computer software. Leasehold improveésn@re depreciated over the term of
related lease. Certain costs related to the denedapor purchase of internal-use software are aégt and amortized.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset$ASB guidance requires business combinations tcbeunted for using the acquisitions method
of accounting and it also specifies the types gu&ed intangible assets that are required to beg@ized and reported separately from
goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of cosagfuisition over the fair value of net assets aequ Other intangible assets represent the
values assigned to subscriber bases, provider @suithl networks, Blue Cross and Blue Shield ameiotrademarks, licenses, non-compete
and other agreements. Goodwill and other intangibiets are allocated to reportable segments basbe relative fair value of the
components of the businesses acquired.

FASB guidance requires that if the initial accongtfor an acquisition is incomplete by the endhef teporting period in which the
acquisition occurs, provisional amounts will beaepd in the financial statements for the itemsvibich the accounting is incomplete. During
the measurement period, the provisional amountsyrézed at the acquisition date will be retrospetyi adjusted to reflect the new
information obtained about
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facts and circumstances that existed as of theigitiqgn date that, if known, would have affected theasurement of the amounts recognized a:
of that date. During the measurement period, we \&l8 recognize additional assets or liabiliti€sméw information is obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisitide tfeat, if known, would have resulted in the rettign of those assets and liabilities as of
date. The measurement period ends as soon as @reer¢ite information about facts and circumstaniasexisted as of the acquisition date or
learn that more information is not obtainable. Heere the measurement period shall not exceed osefs@m the acquisition date.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indeéHrives are not amortized but are tested for inmpaitt at least annually. Furthermore,
goodwill and other intangible assets are alloc&e@porting units for purposes of the annual impant test. Our impairment tests require us
to make assumptions and judgments regarding timaatst fair value of our reporting units, includiggodwill and other intangible assets with
indefinite lives. In addition, certain other intdblg assets with indefinite lives, such as traddaare also tested separately. Fair value is
calculated using a blend of a projected incomeraarket valuation approach. The income approackvgldped using assumptions about
future revenue, expenses and net income derived dur internal planning process. Our assumed ditaate is based on our industry’s
weighted average cost of capital and reflects ilityaassociated with the cost of equity capitalaiet valuations are based on observed
multiples of certain measures including membersigpenue, EBITDA (earnings before interest, tadegreciation and amortization) and net
income as well as market capitalization analysig/eflPoint and other comparable companies. Estidhfatie values developed based on our
assumptions and judgments might be significanfifecent if other reasonable assumptions and estisnatre to be used. If estimated fair
values are less than the carrying values of goddwd other intangibles with indefinite lives intdwe annual impairment tests, or if significant
impairment indicators are noted relative to otimangible assets subject to amortization, we mayeqeired to record impairment losses
against future income.

Derivative Financial Instrumentsin March 2008, the FASB issued additional guidaiocelisclosures about derivative instruments and
hedging activities. The additional guidance reqguigpanded disclosures regarding the location araliats of derivative instruments in an
entity’s financial statements, how derivative ingtients and related hedged items are accountechfier @existing FASB derivatives and
hedging guidance, and how derivative instrumentsratated hedged items affect an enstffhancial position, operating results and castvél
We adopted the additional disclosure guidance analy 1, 2009 and its adoption did not have an ohpa our consolidated financial position
and results of operations.

All investments in derivatives are recorded astasseliabilities at fair value. A derivative isfiteed as an instrument whose value is
“derived” from an underlying instrument, index ate, has a notional amount, requires little ornitiail investment and can be net settled. We
typically invest in the following types of derivaé financial instruments: interest rate swaps, fodicontracts, call options, credit default
swaps, embedded derivatives and warrants. Deresatwmbedded within non-derivative instruments (ficbptions embedded in convertible
fixed maturity securities) are bifurcated from tiest instrument when the embedded derivative icleairly and closely related to the host
instrument.

Our use of derivatives is limited by statutes agglitations promulgated by the various regulatoyiémto which we are subject, and by
our own derivative policy. Our derivative use isgeally limited to hedging purposes and we gengddl not use derivative instruments for
speculative purposes.

We have exposure to economic losses due to intextestisk arising from changes in the level oratitity of interest rates. We attempt to
mitigate our exposure to interest rate risk throagtive portfolio management,
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which includes rebalancing our existing portfoladsassets and liabilities, as well as changingctieracteristics of investments to be purchased
or sold in the future. In addition, derivative fir@al instruments are used to modify the interats exposure of certain liabilities or forecasted
transactions. These strategies include the ustereist rate swaps and forward contracts, whiclused to lock-in interest rates or to hedge (on
an economic basis) interest rate risks associaitbdvariable rate debt. We have used these typestiiments as designated hedges against
specific liabilities.

If certain correlation, hedge effectiveness ankl mesluction criteria are met, a derivative may pectfically designated as a hedge of
exposure to changes in fair value or cash flow. 8¢@unting for changes in the fair value of a\dgive depends on the intended use of the
derivative and the nature of any hedge designaliereon. Amounts excluded from the assessmentdafeheffectiveness, if any, as well as the
ineffective portion of the gain or loss, are repdrin results of operations immediately. If theikgive is not designated as a hedge, the gain or
loss resulting from the change in the fair valu¢hef derivative is recognized in results of operatiin the period of change.

We discontinue hedge accounting prospectively whisndetermined that one of the following has aced: (i) the derivative is no long
highly effective in offsetting changes in the faiue or cash flows of a hedged item; (ii) the detive expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised; (iii) the derivative is no longer desitgd as a hedge instrument because it is unlikallya forecasted transaction will occur; (iv) a
hedged firm commitment no longer meets the definitif a firm commitment; or (v) we otherwise detarenthat the designation of the
derivative as a hedge instrument is no longer gpjate.

If hedge accounting is discontinued, the derivatisecontinue to be carried on our consolidatethhae sheets at its fair value. When
hedge accounting is discontinued because the dieevao longer qualifies as an effective fair vahezlge, the related hedged asset or liability
will no longer be adjusted for fair value chang&en hedge accounting is discontinued becauseiblsable that a forecasted transaction will
not occur, the accumulated unrealized gains arsgtomcluded in accumulated other comprehensiaieowill be recognized immediately in
results of operations. When hedge accounting odisnued because the hedged item no longer meetdefinition of a firm commitment, any
asset or liability that was recorded pursuant &fthn commitment will be removed from the balasbeet and recognized as a gain or loss in
current period results of operations. In all otsiewations in which hedge accounting is discontihwhanges in the fair value of the derivative
are recognized in current period results of openasti

From time to time, we may also purchase derivatisdsedge (on an economic basis) our exposureréigio currency exchange
fluctuations associated with the operations ofaserdf our subsidiaries. We generally use futurewvard contracts for these transactions.
generally do not designate these contracts as kedgecordance with the guidance and, accorditigb/changes in fair value of these
derivatives are recognized in income immediately.

Credit exposure associated with noerformance by the counterparties to derivativerimsents is generally limited to the uncollaterad
fair value of the asset related to instrumentsgazed in the consolidated balance sheets. We pttemmitigate the risk of non-performance
by selecting counterparties with high credit rasimgnd monitoring their creditworthiness and by diifging derivatives among multiple
counterparties. At December 31, 2009, we belieeeetvere no material concentrations of credit witk any individual counterparty.
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Our derivative agreements do not contain any cegiport provisions that require us to post colidtié there are declines in the
derivative value or our credit rating.

The contractual or notional amounts for derivatises used to calculate the exchange of contraptyahents under the agreements and
are not representative of the potential for gaifoss on these instruments. Interest rates andyepuces may affect the fair value of
derivatives. The fair values generally represeatestimated amounts that we would expect to rea@ipay upon termination of the contract
the reporting date. Fair values of options embeddednvertible debt securities are generally baseduoted market prices in active markets.
Fair values of interest rate swaps are based ogubted market prices by the financial instituttbat is the counterparty to the swap. We
independently verify prices provided by the coupdgties using valuation models that incorporateketambservable inputs for similar interest
rate swaps.

Retirement BenefitsWe recognize the funded status of pension and pibsretirement benefit plans on the consolidatddrite sheets.
Furthermore, for fiscal years ending after Decenit®er2008, FASB guidance requires fiscal-year-eedsurements of plan assets and benefit
obligations, eliminating the use of earlier meament dates. We adopted the measurement date mmowish December 31, 2008, using the
alternative transition method. In lieu of re-measgiplan assets at the beginning of 2008, theratare transition method allows for the use of
the September 30, 2007 measurement date with netmebenefit costs for the period from Octobe@07 to December 31, 2008 allocated
proportionately between an adjustment of retairegdiags and accumulated other comprehensive in¢tonéne period from October 1, 2007
to December 31, 2007) and net periodic benefit fmrys2008 (for the period from January 1, 2008 &cBmber 31, 2008). Accordingly, at
December 31, 2008 we recorded reductions of $1d1$8r8 to retained earnings and accumulated otiraprehensive income, respectively, to
adopt the measurement date provisions of the FAS#agce. Prepaid pension benefits represent prepatd related to defined benefit pen:
plans and are reported with other noncurrent asBettretirement benefits represent outstandinigatibns for retiree medical, life, vision and
dental benefits. Liabilities for pension and othestretirement benefits are reported with curredt @oncurrent liabilities based on the amount
by which the actuarial present value of benefitgabée in the next 12 months included in the bergdfilgation exceeds the fair value of plan
assets.

In September 2006, the FASB issued guidance retatadcounting for deferred compensation and ptx&neent benefit aspects of
endorsement split-dollar life insurance arrangesiemhich requires that a liability be recorded dgrihe service period when a split-dollar life
insurance agreement continues after participamgl@yment or retirement. The required accrued liigtis based on either the post-
employment benefit cost for the continuing lifedrsnce or the future death benefit depending ordnéractual terms of the underlying
agreement. We adopted the FASB guidance on Jadu2B808 and recorded a cumulative effect adjustrok#if.3 as a reduction of retained
earnings effective January 1, 2008.

Medical Claims PayableLiabilities for medical claims payable include estited provisions for incurred but not paid claimsan
undiscounted basis, as well as estimated providmmaxpenses related to the processing of clainesirred but not paid claims include (1) an
estimate for claims that are incurred but not regzhras well as claims reported to us but not yetgssed through our systems; and (2) claims
reported to us and processed through our systetmobyet paid.

Liabilities for both claims incurred but not repedtand reported but not yet processed throughysterss are determined in aggregate
employing actuarial methods that are commonly uselealth insurance actuaries and meet Actuaraidétrds of Practice. Actuarial
Standards of Practice require that the claim litiod be
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adequate under moderately adverse circumstancede¥enine the amount of the liability for incurredlt not paid claims by following a
detailed actuarial process that entails using bitorical claim payment patterns as well as enmgrgiedical cost trends to project our best
estimate of claim liabilities.

We regularly review and set assumptions regardis) trends and utilization when initially estabirgnclaim liabilities. We continually
monitor and adjust the claims liability and benefipense based on subsequent paid claims activityr assumptions regarding cost trends
and utilization are significantly different thantaal results, our income statement and financialtfpm could be impacted in future periods.

Premium deficiencies are recognized when it is pbbdthat expected claims and administrative exgendll exceed future premiums on
existing medical insurance contracts without comigition of investment income. Determination of premdeficiencies for longer duration li
and disability contracts includes consideratiome&stment income. For purposes of premium defaies) contracts are deemed to be either
short or long duration and are grouped in a manaesistent with our method of acquiring, servicamgl measuring the profitability of such
contracts. Once established, premium deficiengiesedeased commensurate with actual claims expegiever the remaining life of the
contract.

Reserves for Future Policy BenefitReserves for future policy benefits include ligi@k for life and long-term disability insurance
policy benefits based upon interest, mortality ematbidity assumptions from published actuarialéabmodified based upon our experience.
Future policy benefits also include liabilities fosurance policies for which some of the premiueteived in earlier years are intended to pay
anticipated benefits to be incurred in future yektgure policy benefits are continually monitosed reviewed, and when reserves are
adjusted, differences are reflected in benefit azpe

The current portion of reserves for future poli@nbfits relates to the portion of such reserveswiesexpect to pay within one year. We
believe that our liabilities for future policy bditg, along with future premiums received are adgguo satisfy our ultimate benefit liability;
however, these estimates are inherently subjexttamber of variable circumstances. Consequemidyattual results could differ materially
from the amounts recorded in our consolidated fiferstatements.

Other Policyholder Liabilities:Other policyholder liabilities include rate stab#tion reserves associated with retrospectivebdrat
insurance contracts as well as certain case-speeserves. Rate stabilization reserves representraulated premiums that exceed what
customers owe us based on actual claim experigmtara paid based on contractual requirements.

Revenue RecognitionPremiums for fully-insured contracts are recogniaedevenue over the period insurance coveragevided.
Premiums applicable to the unexpired contractue¢rage periods are reflected in the accompanyingaaated balance sheets as unearned
income. Premiums include revenue from retrospelgtireged contracts where revenue is based on titeaged ultimate loss experience of the
contract. Premium revenue includes an adjustmenmefoospectively rated refunds based on an estimiaincurred claims. Premium rates for
certain lines of business are subject to approydhe Department of Insurance of each respectate st

Administrative fees include revenue from certaiougr contracts that provide for the group to besktfor all, or with supplemental
insurance arrangements, a portion of their clairpegence. We charge these self-funded groups ministrative fee, which is based on the
number of members in a group or the group’s claim
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experience. In addition, administrative fees inelagdnounts received for the administration of Mestiaa certain other government programs.
Under our self-funded arrangements, revenue iggrézed as administrative services are performeldbédefit payments under these programs
are excluded from benefit expense.

Other revenue principally includes amounts fromlroader prescription drug sales, which are recogghias revenue when we ship
prescription drug orders.

Share-Based Compensatio@ur compensation philosophy provides for sharedbasenpensation, including stock options and resiic
stock awards, as well as an employee stock purgilase Stock options are granted for a fixed nundfeshares with an exercise price at least
equal to the fair value of the shares at the ditleeogrant. Restricted stock awards are issuditeafiair value of the stock on the grant date.
Through December 31, 2007, the employee stock psechlan allowed for a purchase price per sharehnfi85% of the lower of the fair
value of a share of common stock on (i) the firatling day of the plan quarter, or (ii) the lasting day of the plan quarter. Beginning
January 1, 2008, the employee stock purchase ptamsafor a purchase price per share which is 8%%h@fair value of a share of common
stock on the last trading day of the plan quakdirshare-based payments to employees, includiagtgrof employee stock options and
discounts associated with employee stock purchasesgcognized as compensation expense in thenmstatement based on their fair values.
Additionally, excess tax benefits, which resultnfractual tax benefits exceeding deferred tax benpfeviously recognized based on grant
fair value, are recognized as additional paid-ipiedand are reclassified from operating cash fidavfinancing cash flows in the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Our share-based employ@@ensation plans and assumptions are describ¢dtn14.

Advertising costs We use print, broadcast and other advertising @mpte our products. The cost of advertising is aspd as incurred
and totaled $309.8, $216.3 and $219.5 for the yerled December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, resplgctive

Earnings per ShareEarnings per share amounts, on a basic and dihasid, have been calculated based upon the weighitgedge
common shares outstanding for the period.

Basic earnings per share excludes dilution andnspaited by dividing income available to common shatders by the weightealrerage
number of common shares outstanding for the pebddted earnings per share includes the dilutiffect of stock options and restricted stc
using the treasury stock method. The treasury stoethod assumes exercise of stock options andchgestirestricted stock, with the assumed
proceeds used to purchase common stock at thegaverarket price for the period. The difference lewthe number of shares assumed
issued and number of shares assumed purchasedaeisr¢he dilutive shares.

ReclassificationsCertain prior year amounts have been reclassifiembhform to the current year presentation.
3. Business Combinations and Divestitures

In December 2007, the FASB issued guidance fomiessi combinations and noncontrolling interestomsolidated financial statements.
We adopted the FASB guidance simultaneously onalgriy 2009. Adoption of the FASB guidance did imate an impact on our consolida
financial statements; however, these new standdgdgficantly change the accounting for and repgrof business combinations and
noncontrolling
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(minority) interest transactions completed afterutay 1, 2009. In addition, some of the provisiohthe FASB guidance also impact the
prospective accounting for business combinatiomisrexmcontrolling interest transactions completédrgo January 1, 2009. Significant
changes from prior practice include the requirentieait the fair value of the acquirer’s equity sétes transferred as consideration be
determined on the acquisition date; the requirertieakpense acquisition related transaction anduasiring costs; the requirement that
changes in acquired deferred tax valuation allowarand income tax uncertainties after the measuniepeeiod be expensed; and the need to
recognize contingent consideration at its fair eadm the acquisition date. The FASB guidance agaires certain financial statement
disclosures to enable users to evaluate and uadergte nature and financial effects of the busimesnbination.

Acquisition of DeCare Dental, LL

On April 9, 2009, we completed our acquisition @@are Dental, LLC, or DeCare, a wholly-owned subsydof DeCare
International. DeCare is one of the country’s latgglministrators of dental benefit plans and plesiservices directly and through
partnerships and administrative agreements witlilégmal insurance brands, primarily as a thirdypadministrator. DeCare manages benefits
for approximately four million people and is expegtto provide our customers with innovative deptaducts and enhanced customer service.

The acquisition was accounted for using the actimismethod of accounting. Accordingly, the resolt®perations of DeCare have been
included in our consolidated results for periodtfeing April 9, 2009.

Sale of PBM Business

On December 1, 2009, we sold our pharmacy bemefitsagement subsidiaries, or PBM business, to Exi@espts, Inc., or Express
Scripts, and received $4,675.0 in cash, subjectistomary working capital adjustments. The pregiaix on the sale was $3,792.3. We also
entered into a 1§ear contract for Express Scripts to provide PBMises to our members. The results of operatioreuofPBM business ha
been included in our consolidated results througlkigshber 30, 2009.

Components of the gain on sale are as follows:

Proceed: $ 4,675.(
Book value of PBM busine: (696.€)
Other transaction cos (186.7)
Pre-tax gain on sal 3,792
Tax expens: (1,431.)
Net gain on sal $2,361.:

Other transaction costs include charges for systamsgersions, investment banking, legal and acdogrservices and employee related
costs.
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A summary of current and long-term investmentsjlalske-for-sale, is as follows:

December 31, 200¢
Fixed maturity securities
United States Government securi
Government sponsored securit
States, municipalities and politic
subdivision—tax-exempt
Corporate securitie
Options embedded in convertible d
securities
Residential mortgac-backed securitie
Commercial mortga-backed securitie
Other debt obligation

Total fixed maturity securitie
Equity securitie:
Total investments, availal-for-sale

December 31, 200¢
Fixed maturity securities
United States Government securi
Government sponsored securit
States, municipalities and politic
subdivision—tax-exempt
Corporate securitie
Options embedded in convertible d
securities
Residential mortgac-backed securitie
Commercial mortga¢-backed securitie
Other debt obligation
Total fixed maturity securitie
Equity securitie:
Total investments, availal-for-sale

Gross Unrealized Losses

Gros_,s

Cost or Unrealized 12 Months

Amortized
Cost Gains or Less
$ 7154 $ 148 $ (29
632.¢ 8.3 (0.4)
4,019.¢ 167.( (5.7)
6,219.: 352.: (12.9)
88.< — —
3,295.( 120.( (7.9
137.¢ 3.6 (0.2)
318.: 8.7 (1.2)
15,426. 674.€ (30.5)
832.f 221.¢ (11.2)
$16,258.4 $ 896.F $ (41.7)
$ 544F $ 46z $ (1.3
205.2 10.4 —
3,880.¢ 78.¢ (86.1)
5,193.( 58.2 (355.7)
39.¢ — —
3,527.: 114.1 (114.9)
169.t — (9.2
379.¢ 0.2 (23.7)
13,939.¢ 308.1 (590.4)
1,327. 25.€ (234.9)
$15,267.0  $ 333.¢  $(825.0)
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Greater than

12 Months

$ (0.2

(34.49)
(34.5)

(47.0)
4.9
(21.9)
(142.9)

$ (142.9

$ —

(58.€)
(121.9)

43.9)
(7.9
(53.9
(284.2)

$ (284.9)

Estimated
Fair Value

Non-Credit
Component o

Other-Than-
Temporary
Impairments
Recognized ir

AOCI

$ T727.¢
640.7

4,146.:
6,524..

88.%
3,360.:
136.2
304.C

(0.5)
(3.9

©.0)

(5.

15,927.:
1,043.:
$16,970.!

$ 589.
215.¢

3,815.:
4,773.

39.¢
3,483.¢
152.¢
302.¢
13,373.:
1,118."
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At December 31, 2009, we owned $3,496.3 of mortdzgked securities and $304.0 of asset-backedigeswut of a total available-
for-sale investment portfolio of $16,970.5. Theseuwsities included sub-prime and Alt-A securitieihwfair values of $107.5 and $285.9,
respectively. These sub-prime and Alt-A securitiad net unrealized losses of $14.8 and $38.1, cégply. The average credit rating of the
sub-prime and Alt-A securities was “A” and “BBB’gspectively.

The following table summarizes for fixed maturigcarities and equity securities in an unrealizesd lposition at December 31, the
aggregate fair value and gross unrealized lossfyth of time those securities have been contifyausn unrealized loss position.

12 Months or Less Greater than 12 Months
Gross Gross
Unrealized Number of Unrealized
Number of
Securities Fair Value Loss Securities  Fair Value Loss
(Securities are whole amount:
December 31, 2009
Fixed maturity securitie:
United States Government securi 18 $ 286.6 $ (2.4 3 $ 31 %$ (0.9
Government sponsored securi 17 149.: (0.9 — — —
States, municipalities and political subdivisi—tax-exempt 162 417.¢ (5.7 18t 314.¢ (34.9
Corporate securitie 462 914.t (12.9) 238 404.: (34.5)
Residential mortga-backed securitie 21¢ 439.( (7.9 12¢ 256.1 (47.0
Commercial mortgac-backed securitie 7 9.8 (0.2 14 39.¢ (4.9
Other debt obligation 24 112.F (1.7) 49 61.C (21.9)
Total fixed maturity securitie 90¢ 2,329 (30.5) 61z 1,079.. (142.9)
Equity securitie: 78¢ 99.C (11.2) — — —
Total fixed maturity and equity securiti 1,69 $2,428¢ $ (41.9) 61z $1,079.. $ (142.9
December 31, 200¢
Fixed maturity securities
United States Government securi 8 $ 50 $ (1.9 - $ — $ —
Government sponsored securit 3 8.1 — 1 — —
States, municipalities and political subdivisi—tax-exempt 447 1,212 (86.7) 132 200.¢ (58.6)
Corporate securitie 1,68¢ 2,899. (355.7) 32t 450.4 (121.9
Residential mortgac-backed securitie 247 514.¢ (114.9 24¢ 103.¢ (43.2)
Commercial mortga-backed securitie 53 104.: (9.2 26 48.F (7.5
Other debt obligation 57 155./ (23.7) 53 137.1 (53.2)
Total fixed maturity securitie 2,501 4,944 (590.9) 783 940.4 (284.9)
Equity securitie: 2,09¢ 633.] (234.9) — — —
Total fixed maturity and equity securiti 459¢ $5577.¢ $ (825.7) 78 $ 940.. $ (284.9)

The weighted average credit rating of our fixedumét securities was “AA” as of December 31, 200 continue to review our
investment portfolios under our impairment reviesligy. Given the significant judgments involvedeth is a continuing risk that further
declines in fair value may occur and additionalenat other-than-temporary impairments may be réedrin future periods.
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The amortized cost and fair value of fixed matusiggurities at December 31, 2009, by contractualinty, are shown below. Expected
maturities may be less than contractual maturitexzsause the issuers of the securities may hawégtiteto prepay obligations without

prepayment penalties.

Amortized Estimated
Cost Fair Value
Due in one year or let $ 1,161« $ 1,168.
Due after one year through five ye 4,866.( 5,099.(
Due after five years through ten ye 3,515.¢ 3,676.¢
Due after ten yeal 2,450.: 2,487.:
Mortgage-backed securitie 3,432.¢ 3,496.:
Total availabl-for-sale fixed maturity securitie $15,426..  $15,927..
The major categories of net investment incomeHentears ended December 31 are as follows:
2009 2008 2007
Fixed maturity securitie $796.( $805.2 $ 852.¢
Equity securitie: 25.¢€ 60.¢ 59.C
Cash and cash equivalel 15.C 69.4 128.¢
Other (2.7 (55.0) (2.6
Investment incom 834.2 880.< 1,038.(
Investment expens (33.9) (29.9) (36.9
Net investment incom $801.( $851.1 $1,001.
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Net realized investment gains/losses and net changmrealized appreciation/depreciation in investts for the years ended
December 31, are as follows:

2009 2008 2007
Net realized gains/losses on investme
Fixed maturity securities
Gross realized gains from sa $ 158.: $ 37.7 $ 71t
Gross realized losses from sa (135.5 (84.6) 60.C
Net realized gains/losses from sales of fixed nigtsecurities 22.¢ (46.9 11.F
Equity securities
Gross realized gains from sa 116.5 143.1 277.€
Gross realized losses from sa (81.5) (114.%) (23.9
Net realized gains from sales of equity secur 35.C 28.2 254.2
Other realized gains/losses on investm: (1.9 47.3 5.2
Net realized gains on investme| 56.4 28.7 270.¢
Otherthar-temporary impairment losses recognized in incc
Fixed maturity securitie (217.¢) (479.9) (154.))
Equity securitie: (232.6) (728.7) (105.9
Othel-thar-temporary impairment losses recognized in inci (450.2) (1,207.9 (259.%)
Change in net unrealized gains/losses on invessr
Cumulative effect of adoption of FASB OTTI guidar (143.)) — —
Fixed maturity securitie 1,209.: (669.5) 151.1
Equity securitiet 419.7 (371.%) (155.6)
Total change in net unrealized gains/losses orsinvents 1,485." (1,041.9 (4.5)
Deferred income tax (expense) ben (540.7) 378.¢ 6.7
Net change in net unrealized gains/losses on imeyds 945.¢ (662.9) 2.2
Net realized gains/losses on investments, -thar-temporary impairment losses recognize:
income and net change in net unrealized gainsAamsénvestment $ 551.¢ $(1,841.6 $ 13.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, we sqki7849 of fixed maturity and equity securities whiesulted in gross realized losses
of $217.0. In the ordinary course of business, vag gell securities at a loss for a number of ressioeluding, but not limited to: (i) changes
the investment environment; (ii) expectation tinat tair value could deteriorate further; (iii) desio reduce exposure to an issuer or an
industry; (iv) changes in credit quality; or (v)astges in expected cash flow.

A significant judgment in the valuation of investmt®is the determination of when an other-ttemporary decline in value has occurt
We follow a consistent and systematic processdoognizing impairments on securities that susttierethantemporary declines in value. V
have established a committee responsible for tipaimment review process. The decision to impag@usty incorporates both quantitative
criteria and qualitative information. The impairnhegview process considers a number of factorsidio, but not limited to: (i) the length of
time and the extent to which the fair value hasmtess than book value, (i) the financial conditend near term prospects of the issuer,
(iii) our intent and ability to retain impaired iestments for a
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period of time sufficient to allow for any anticiga recovery in value, (iv) whether the debtorusrent on interest and principal payments,

(v) the reasons for the decline in value (i.e.ditrevent compared to liquidity, general creditest widening, currency exchange rate or int
rate factors) and (vi) general market conditiond Emalustry or sector specific factors. For secesitihat are deemed to be other-tkemporarily
impaired, the security is adjusted to fair valud #re resulting losses are recognized in realizédsgor losses in the consolidated statements of
income. The new cost basis of the impaired seesrifi not increased for future recoveries in falug.

Other-than-temporary impairments recorded in 2092007 were primarily the result of the contingeedit deterioration on specific
issuers in the bond markets and certain equityrgesgi fair value remaining below cost for an exted period of time. There were no
individually significant other-than-temporary impaient losses on investments by issuer during 202907 .

The changes in the amount of the credit componfenther-than-temporary impairment losses on fixedurity securities recognized in
income, for which a portion of the other-than-temgrg impairment losses was recognized in other celgmsive income, was not material for
the year ended December 31, 2009.

The significant other-than-temporary impairmentognized during 2008 primarily related to our inwesnts in Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation, or Freddie Mac, Federal NeticMortgage Association, or Fannie Mae, and LehBwmhers Holdings Inc., or Lehmi
(or their respective subsidiaries, as appropria}liscussed below.

Our equity securities at December 31, 2008 includedstments in stock, largely preferred stockhefU.S. government-sponsored
enterprises Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae. Marketeroisaduring the third quarter of 2008 related twsthentities’ financial condition and
liquidity prompted the U.S. government to seizetowrof Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae. Any potentidavery of the fair value of these
securities was dependent on a number of factorsvaschot expected in the near term. These fagsther with the significant declines in the
fair value of these securities, led us to conclilndé they were other-than-temporarily impaired. éwingly, during 2008, we recorded $135.0
and $106.6 of realized losses from other-than-teargampairments related to our equity securityesivnents in Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae,
respectively.

Our investments in fixed maturity securities inaddnvestments in Lehman at December 31, 2008.&ptehber 15, 2008, Lehman fi
for bankruptcy protection under Chapter 11 of thrétéH States Bankruptcy Code. Accordingly, recovargur investments, if any, was
deemed remote and we recognized an other-than-tamypmpairment of $90.2 during 2008.

In addition, other-than-temporary impairments retpgd in 2008 included charges for fixed maturiggurities and equity securities for
which, due to credit downgrades and/or the extedtcduration of their decline in fair value in lighitthe then current market conditions, we
determined that the impairment was deemed othert@porary. These securities covered a numberdofsiries, led by the banking and
financial services sectors.

A primary objective in the management of the fixedturity and equity portfolios is to maximize totaturn relative to underlying
liabilities and respective liquidity needs. In ahing this goal, assets may be sold to take adgarddmarket conditions or other investment
opportunities as well as tax considerations. Salkgenerally produce realized gains and losses.
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Investment securities are exposed to various rigks) as interest rate, market and credit. Dubedetvel of risk associated with certain
investment securities and the level of uncertaiatgted to changes in the value of investment #&esirit is possible that changes in these risk
factors in the near term could have an adverseriabt@pact on our results of operations or shalddis’ equity.

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, no investmentsy ditfad investments in U.S. government agency stiesirexceeded 10% of
shareholders’ equity.

The carrying value of fixed maturity investmentatttid not produce income during 2009 and 2008$22s4 and $0.0 at December 31,
2009 and 2008, respectively.

As of December 31, 2009 we had committed approxin&t197.8 to future capital calls from variougdhparty investments in exchange
for an ownership interest in the related entity.

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, securities withyagrvalues of approximately $230.4 and $241.peetvely, were deposited by our
insurance subsidiaries under requirements of régylauthorities.

During 2009, 2008 and 2007, we entered into seeatiénding programs. Securities on loan are ireduid the investment captions
shown on the accompanying consolidated balancesshéeder these programs, brokers and dealers wiiov securities are required to
deliver substantially the same security upon cotigieof the transaction. The fair value of the atdral at December 31, 2009 and 2008 was
$394.8 and $529.0, respectively. Income earneceourgy lending transactions for the years endecebder 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 was
$1.8, $4.9 and $2.2, respectively.

5. Derivative Financial Instruments

A summary of the aggregate contractual or notianabunts and estimated fair values related to déré&zéinancial instruments is as
follows:

December 31, 2009

Contractual/ Estimated
Fair Value
Notional Balance Sheet
Amount Location Asset (Liability)
Hedging instruments
Swaps $ 1,775.( Other noncurrent assets/Other noncurrent  $ 851 $ (0.9)
liabilities
Non-hedging instruments
Derivatives embedded in convertible debt secu 359.t Fixed maturity securitie 88.: —
Credit default swap 19.c Equity securitie: — (0.2
Options — Equity securitie: — —
Futures — Equity securitie: — —
Foreign currency derivative — Other current asse — —
Subtotal no-hedging 378.¢ 88.: (0.2
Total derivatives $ 2,153.¢ $173«4 $ (0.5

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 ar] 2@recognized net realized gains (losses) tlateerivative financial
instruments of $41.9, $(3.2) and $10.4, respegtivel
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Fair Value Hedge:

During the year ended December 31, 2009, we enisted fair value hedge with a total notional wahf $600.0. The hedge is an inte
rate swap agreement to receive a fixed 5.000%aradepay a LIBOR-based floating rate and expire3amuary 15, 2011.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, we tetedrtsvo interest rate swaps of our fixed rate debwhich the counterparty was
Lehman. As described in Note 4, Lehman filed fankvaptcy protection on September 15, 2008. We meizegl a $2.1 impairment of these fair
value hedges as net realized losses on investrderitg) the year ended December 31, 2008, whiahcisided in the total net realized losses
related to derivative financial instruments of $3.2

During the year ended December 31, 2006, we enitstedwo fair value hedges with a total notionalue of $440.0. The first hedge is a
$240.0 notional amount interest rate swap agreetoaeteive a fixed 6.800% rate and pay a LIBORebdtating rate and expires on
August 1, 2012. The second hedge is a $200.0 radtaonount interest rate swap agreement to receiixe@5.000% rate and pay a LIBOR-
based floating rate and expires on December 154.201

During the year ended December 31, 2005, we entetedwo fair value hedges with a total notionalue of $660.0. The first hedge is a
$360.0 notional amount interest rate swap agreetoexkchange a fixed 6.800% rate for a LIBOR-bdkeating rate and expires on August 1,
2012. The second hedge is a $300.0 notional aniotamest rate swap agreement to exchange a fix@@0% rate for LIBOR-based floating
rate and expires December 15, 2014.

A summary of the effect of fair value hedges oniaaome statement for the year ended December(®B, & as follows:

Income Statement Hedge Income Statement Hedged ltem
Location of Gain (Loss; Location of
Derivative Hedged Item Gain (Loss)
Type of Fair Value Hedge Gain (Loss) Recognizec Hedged ltem Gain (Loss) Recognized
Swaps Interest expen: $  38.C Fixed rate del Interest expen:  $  (38.0)

Cash Flow Hedges

During the year ended December 31, 2009, we entetead series of forward starting pay fixed swajith total outstanding notional
amounts of $295.0. The objective of these seridgedfes is to eliminate the variability of the clielvs in the interest payments on our senior
term loan. We agreed to receive a LIBOR-basedifigatite and pay a fixed rate. The swaps begarpiveeon a monthly basis on
December 31, 2009; the final swap in the seriesrexn June 30, 2010.

In January 2009, we entered into forward startiag fixed swaps with an aggregate notional amou®i860.0. The objective of these
hedges was to eliminate the variability of caskwvfian the interest payments on the debt secuigmsed in February 2009. These swaps were
terminated in February 2009, and we paid a net, $8e2net fair value at the time of terminationabidition, we recorded a loss of $2.1, net of
tax, in other comprehensive income. Following tebrary 5, 2009 issuance of debt securities, tlenontized fair value of the forward
starting pay fixed swaps included in accumulatéediotomprehensive income began amortizing into
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earnings, as an increase to interest expensediticag we have amounts recorded in accumulatedratbmprehensive income for certain
forward starting pay fixed swaps that were terngdah prior years. The hedged debt securities haaterrity dates ranging from 2014 to 2036.

The unrecognized loss for cash flow hedges includestcumulated other comprehensive income at DbeeBil, 2009 was $10.8. As of
December 31, 2009, the total amount of amortizaticer the next twelve months for all cash flow heslgiill decrease interest expense by
approximately $0.9.

A summary of the effect of cash flow hedges onfmancial statements for the year ended Decembge2@19 is as follows:

Effective Portion

Income Statement Hedge Ineffective Portion
Pretax Hedge Location of Gain (Loss) Income
Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss) Reclassified fron Statement
Recognized Reclassified from Location of
in Other Accumulated Accumulated Hedge
Comprehensive Other Other Gain (Loss; Gain (Loss,
Comprehensive Comprehensive
Type of Cash Flow Hedge Income Income Income Recognize Recognize
Forward starting pay fixed swa $ 3.5 Interest expen: $ — None $ —
Other fixed pay swag $ — Interest expen: $ 0.2 None $ —

We test for cash flow hedge effectiveness at haumgption and re-assess at the end of each reggérnod. No amounts were excluded
from the assessment of hedge effectiveness.

Nor-Hedging Derivatives
A summary of the effect of non-hedging derivatieesour income statement for the year ended DeceBhe2009 is as follows:

Income Statement Location of

Type of Non-hedging Derivatives Gain (Loss) Recognized 2009
Derivatives embedded in convertible debt secur Net realized gain on investmel $44.C
Credit default swap Net realized loss on investmel (2.0
Options Net realized loss on investmel (5.6)
Futures Net realized gain on investmet 3.2
Foreign currency derivative Net realized gain on investmel 1.2
Total $41.¢
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Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value ia donsolidated balance sheets are categorized bpsedhe level of judgment associated
with the inputs used to measure their fair valuevdl inputs, as defined by FASB guidance for faiue measurements and disclosures, are as
follows:

Level Input: Input Definition:
Level | Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices for identsakts or liabilities in active markets at the raemsent date
Level Il Inputs other than quoted prices included in Lewvbit are observable for the asset or liabilitptigh corroboration with mark
data at the measurement d:
Level I Unobservable inputs that reflect manager's best estimate of what market participants wosklin pricing the asset

liability at the measuremedate.

The following methods and assumptions were usekktermine the fair value of each class of assetdiabilities recorded at fair value
the consolidated balance sheets:

Cash equivalentsCash equivalents primarily consist of highly ratedney market funds with maturities of three morahkess, and are
purchased daily at par value with specified yigtks. Due to the high ratings and short-term naifitke funds, we consider all cash
equivalents as Level | inputs.

Fixed maturity securities, available-for-saleair values of available-for-sale fixed maturitggsties are based on quoted market prices,
where available. These fair values are obtainedamily from third party pricing services, which geally use Level | or Level Il inputs, in
accordance with FASB guidance, for the determimadibfair value to facilitate fair value measurengeand disclosures. United States
Government securities represent Level | securitidndle Level 1l securities primarily include corgie securities, securities from states,
municipalities and political subdivisions and resitlal mortgage-backed securities. We obtain onky guoted price for each security from
third party pricing services, which are derivedtigh recently reported trades for identical or Einsecurities making adjustments through the
reporting date based upon available market obskratormation. For securities not actively traddw third party pricing services may use
guoted market prices of comparable instrumentssmodnted cash flow analyses, incorporating inghas are currently observable in the
markets for similar securities. Inputs that arepftised in the valuation methodologies include gbetnot limited to, broker quotes, benchmark
yields, credit spreads, default rates and prepayspreds. We also have certain fixed maturity seesirprimarily corporate debt and ott
fixed maturity securities, that are designated LéVsecurities. For these securities, the valmatmnethodologies may incorporate broker qu
or assumptions for benchmark yields, credit spre@delfawlt rates and prepayment speeds that amgbsetvable in the markets. As we are
responsible for the determination of fair value, peeform monthly analysis on the prices receivednfthird parties to determine whether the
prices are reasonable estimates of fair value.aDalysis includes a review of month to month pfigetuations. If unusual fluctuations are
noted in this review, we may obtain additional mfiation from other pricing services to validate thuwted price. There were no adjustmen
guoted market prices obtained from third partyipgcservices during the years ended December 39 2Ad 2008 that were material to the
consolidated financial statements.

Equity securities, available-for-sal&air values of equity securities are generally gleasied as Level | and are based on quoted market
prices. For certain equity securities, quoted migpkiees for the identical security are not alwaysilable and the fair value is estimated by
reference to similar securities for which quoteidgs are available. These securities are desighatesl |I. We also have certain equity
securities, including private equity securities, idnich the fair value is estimated based on eachrity’s current condition and future cash
flow projections. Such securities are designategeLHI.
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Other invested assets, currefther invested assets, current include securitésih rabbi trusts that are classified as tradiajr values
are based on quoted market prices.

Securities lending collateraFair values of securities lending collateral aredabon quoted market prices, where available. Tiadse
values are obtained primarily from third party prig services, which generally use Level | or LeNé@hputs, in accordance with FASB
guidance, for the determination of fair value toilitate fair value measurements and disclosures oltain only one quoted price for each
security from third party pricing services, whiate @erived through recently reported trades fontidal or similar securities making
adjustments through the reporting date based upaifable market observable information.

Derivatives—interest rate swapsair values are based on the quoted market pric#isebfinancial institution that is the counteryax
the swap. We independently verify prices providgdhe counterparties using valuation models thedriporate market observable inputs for
similar interest rate swaps.

In addition, the following methods and assumptimese used to determine the fair value of each déggnsion benefit plan assets and
other benefit plan assets not defined above:

Mutual funds Fair values are based on quoted market priceishwhpresent the net asset value, or NAV, of shhedd.

Common and collective trustgair values of common/collective trusts that iegik traded money market funds are based onwhbgth

approximates fair value. Fair values of commonggile trusts that invest in securities are valaetthe NAV of the shares held, where the
applies fair value measurements to the underlyimgstments to determine the NAV.

Partnership interestsFair values are estimated based on the planjsoptionate share of the undistributed partnersitabps reported in
audited financial statements of the partnership.

Contract with insurance companyrair value of the contract in the insurance comypgeneral investment account is determined by the
insurance company based on the fair value of tldenying investments of the account.

Investment in DOL 103-12 trudtair value is based on the plan’s proportionateesbhthe fair value of investments held by thestyu
qualified as a Department of Labor Regulation 25@8-12 entity, or DOL 103-12 trust, as reportedudited financial statements of the trust,
where the trustee applies fair value measuremeriteetunderlying investments of the trust.
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A summary of fair value measurements by level &weds and liabilities measured at fair value oecanring basis is as follows:

December 31, 200
Assets:
Cash equivalent
Investments availat-for-sale:
Fixed maturity securities
United States Government securit
Government sponsored securit
States, municipalities and political subdivisi— tax-exempt
Corporate securitie
Options embedded in convertible debt secur
Residential mortga¢-backed securitie
Commercial mortga¢-backed securitie
Other debt obligation
Total fixed maturity securitie
Equity securitiet
Other invested assets, curn
Securities lending collater
Derivatives excluding embedded options (reportett wiher noncurrent asse
Total
Liabilities:
Derivatives (reported with other noncurrent liaigk)
December 31, 2008
Cash equivalent
Investments availat-for-sale:
Fixed maturity securities
United States Government securit
Government sponsored securit
States, municipalities and political subdivisi— tax-exempt
Corporate securitie
Options embedded in convertible debt secur
Residential mortgac-backed securitie
Commercial mortga¢-backed securitie
Other debt obligation
Total fixed maturity securitie
Equity securitie:
Other invested assets, curn
Securities lending collater
Derivatives excluding embedded options (reporteti wiher noncurrent asse
Total
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Level | Level ll Level Ill Total

$4,461.( $ — $ — $ 4,461.(
727.¢ — — 727.¢
— 640.7% — 640.7

— 4,146.: — 4,146.:

— 6,292.¢ 231.% 6,524..

— 88.< — 88.:

— 3,358.! 2.C 3,360.:

— 129.1 7.1 136.2

— 198.( 106.( 304.(
727.¢ 14,852.! 346.¢ 15,927.
980.¢ 58. 4.5 1,043.:
26.5 — — 26.t
305.¢ 89.5 — 394.¢
— 85.1 — 85.1
$6,500.¢ $15,085.¢ $351.: $21,937.!
$ — $ (0.3 $ — $ (0.9)
$1,544.( $ = $ — $ 1,544.(
309.¢ 279.t — 589.¢
— 215.¢ — 215.¢

— 3,815.; — 3,815.;

— 4,582.¢ 191.1 4,773."

— 39.¢€ — 39.¢

— 3,476.¢ 7.C 3,483.¢

— 143.1 9.7 152.¢

— 164.2 138.7 302.¢
309.¢ 12,716.¢ 346.t 13,373..
1,029.° 77.¢ 11.2 1,118.°
23.€ — — 23.€
235.k 293.k — 529.(
— 122.1 — 122.1
$3,142.7  $13,210.; $357.7  $16,710.(
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending baksof assets measured at fair value on a recusesg using Level Il inputs for the
years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 is as fl

States,
Municipalities
Residentia Commercial
and Political
Corporate Mortgage- Mortgage- Other Debt Subdivisions-
backed backed tax-
Securities Securities Securities Obligations exempt Equity Securities Total

Year Ended December 31, 2009:
Beginning balance at January 1, 2( $ 1911 $ 7.C $ 9.7 $ 138.% $ — $ 112 $ 357.7
Total gains (losses

Recognized in net incon (4.6) 2.7 0.2 (50.7) — 1.2 (58.0)

Recognized in accumulated oth

comprehensive incorr 30.1 1.2 (2.5 46.5 — 0.3 76.C

Purchases, sales, issuances and

settlements, ne¢ (11.9 (4.5) (1.3 (29.6) — (5.2 (52.0
Transfers into Level Il 48.7 — — 48 — — 53.€
Transfers out of

Level lI (22.9) — — (3.8) — — (26.0)
Ending balance at December 31, 2 $ 2315 $ 2.C $ 7.1 $ 106.( $ — $ 4.5 $ 351.¢
Change in unrealized losses included

in net income related to assets

held for the year ended

December 31, 200 $ (3.4) $ — $ — $ (39.9) $ — $ — $ (43.9)
Year Ended December 31, 200¢
Beginning balance at January 1, 2( $ 0.8 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 6.1 $ 7.C
Total gains (losses

Recognized in net incon (20.0) — — (25.9) — 0.3 (45.€)

Recognized in accumulated oth

comprehensive incorr (0.9 3.3 0.3 (33.0 — 0.7 (37.6)

Purchases, sales, issuances and

settlements, ne¢ (6.8) — (3.1 (22.9) (10.9 0.1 (43.0)
Transfers into Level Il 270.5 13.€ 12t 221.1 109.C 6.0 632.7
Transfers out of Level I (52.9 (3.3 — (1.8) (98.) — (155.¢)
Ending balance at December 31, 2 $ 1911 $ 7.C $ 9.7 $ 138.7 $ — $ 11.2 $ 357.7
Change in unrealized losses included

in net income related to assets

held for the year ended

December 31, 200 $ (200 $ — $ — $ (24.3) $ — $ — $ (449
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During 2009 and 2008, certain securities, primagéytain mortgage-backed, asset-backed and coepioradrse floating rate securities,
were thinly traded or not traded at all due to @ns in the securities markets and resulting lddiqoidity. In addition, one or more of the
inputs used to determine the securities’ fair valoeluding, but not limited to, prepayment speeniedit spreads, default rates and benchmark
yields, became unobservable, and the fair valuéisasfe securities were estimated using internahagts for those unobservable inpi

Certain assets and liabilities are measured avédire on a nonrecurring basis; that is, the imséunts are not measured at fair value on an
ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjestsionly in certain circumstances. We completedaoquisition of DeCare on April 9, 2009.
On that date, we acquired net assets with a féirevaf $82.8 and recorded goodwill with a fair valof $15.0, which was subsequently reduced
to $14.4 resulting from purchase accounting adjests The net assets acquired and resulting golodesie recorded at fair value using Level
Il inputs. The fair value of the net assets acegiiwas internally estimated based on a blend oihttm@me approach and market value appro
The income approach estimates fair value basedlonolations of discounted future cash flows usimgrinal estimates for inputs, including,
not limited to, revenue and expense projectionscascbunt rates. The market value approach estgrfaievalue based on the market prices of
actual sales of similar assets and on asking pficesmilar assets available for sale. Refer taeN&y Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, for
disclosure of additional assets measured at féilevan a nonrecurring basis during the year endsceber 31, 2009.

In April 2009, the FASB issued guidance to detemrfair value when the volume and level of actifidythe asset or liability have
significantly decreased and guidance to assistilsetrers and users of financial statements in ohéténg whether a market is active or inact
and whether a transaction is distressed. The go@ams effective for us on April 1, 2009. The admpbf this guidance did not have a mate
impact on our consolidated financial position aesults of operations.

We attempt to obtain quoted market prices for tlieselosures whenever possible. Where quoted mariags are not available, fair
values are estimated using present value or otllaation techniques. These techniques are signtficaffected by our assumptions, including
discount rates and estimates of future cash fl®wential taxes and other transaction costs hat/been considered in estimating fair values.

Non-financial instruments such as real estate,gntg@and equipment, other current assets, defémoeane taxes and intangible assets,
and certain financial instruments such as poliahilities are excluded from the fair value disclesu Therefore, the fair value amounts cannot
be aggregated to determine our underlying econealice.

The carrying amounts reported in the consolidatddrte sheets for cash, accrued investment ingoraium and self-funded
receivables, other receivables, unearned inconweuats payable and accrued expenses, income tayablp, security trades pending payable,
securities lending payable and certain other ctifi@bilities approximate fair value because of shert term nature of these items. These a
and liabilities are not listed in the table below.

The following methods and assumptions were usedtimate the fair value of each class of finanicistrument:

Other invested assets, long-teri@ther invested assets, long-term include primanir investments in limited partnerships, joinbteges
and other non-controlled corporations, as welhascash surrender value of
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corporate-owned life insurance policies. Investraémiimited partnerships, joint ventures and otian-controlled corporations are carried at
our share in the entities’ undistributed earningsich approximates fair value. The carrying valfiearporateewned life insurance policies ¢
the cash surrender value as reported by the régpéasurer.

Short-term borrowings The fair value of our shoterm borrowings is based on quoted market pricethBdsame or similar debt, or, if
guoted market prices were available, on the cumates estimated to be available to us for dektroflar terms and remaining maturities.

Long-term debt—commercial papéihe carrying amount for commercial paper approx@sdair value as the underlying instruments
have variable interest rates at market value.

Long-term debt—notes, term loan and capital leagéee fair value of notes and amounts due undesenior term loan is based on
guoted market prices for the same or similar dehtf no quoted market prices were available, l@durrent rates estimated to be available to
us for debt of similar terms and remaining matesitiCapital leases are carried at the unamortimskpt value of the minimum lease paym
which approximates fair value.

The carrying values and estimated fair valuesraritial instruments not recorded at fair value mnomnsolidated balance sheets at
December 31 are as follows:

2009 2008
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Assets:
Other invested assets, lc-term $ 775. $ 775.2 $ 703. $ 703.;
Liabilities:
Debt:
Shor-term borrowings — — 98.C 98.C
Commercial pape 500.¢ 500.¢ 897.¢ 897.¢
Notes, term loan and capital lea: 7,898.! 8,128.¢ 7,846.( 7,133.(
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The components of deferred income taxes at DeceB1ibare as follows:

2009 2008
Deferred tax assets relating
Retirement benefit $ 425.¢ $ 470.C
Accrued expense 551.t 485.k
Alternative minimum tax and other cred 5.6 5.€
Insurance reserve 2275 284.2
Net operating loss carryforwar 42.¢ 52.¢
Bad debt reserve 110.C 96.5
Depreciation and amortizatic 4.4 14.£
State income ta 51.t 56.£
Deferred compensatic 78.€ 88.¢
Investment basis differen: 179.2 376.:
Unrealized losses on securit — 277.5
Other 58.E 317
Total deferred tax asse 1,735.% 2,239.¢
Valuation allowanct (11.2) (12.§)
Total deferred tax assets, net of valuation alloe: 1,724t 2,227.:
Deferred tax liabilities relating tc
Unrealized gains on securiti 263.1 —
Acquisition related
Goodwill and other acquisition related liabiliti 30.5 33.C
Trademarks and other n-amortizable intangible 2,236.¢ 2,336.(
Subscriber base, provider and hospital netw 623.2 731.(
Internally developed software and other amortizatisferences 150.4 120.(
Investment basis differen: 1.8 6.8
Retirement benefit 197.¢ 153.:
State deferred ta 43.C 46.1
Other 124.¢ 120.¢
Total deferred tax liabilitie 3,671.. 3,547.(
Net deferred tax liabilit $(1,946.6) $(1,319.9
Deferred tax ass—current $ 523.¢ $ 779.(
Deferred tax liabilit—noncurren (2,470.9 (2,098.9
Net deferred tax liabilit $(1,946.6 $(1,319.9
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The valuation allowance is primarily attributabdethe uncertainty of alternative minimum tax credihd net operating loss
carryforwards. As deferred tax assets relatedeeghypes of deductions are recognized in theetaxm, the valuation allowance is no longer
required and is reduced.

Significant components of the provision for incotares for the years ended December 31, consibedbtlowing:

2009 2008 2007
Current tax expens:
Federal $2,516.. $1,506. $1,963.:
State and loce 87.1 125.¢ 116.¢
Total current tax expen: 2,603.: 1,632.¢ 2,080.(
Deferred tax expense (bene 53.¢ (1,000.9 (167.5
Total income tax expen: $2,657.. $ 6315 $1,912.!

A reconciliation of income tax expense recordeth@consolidated statements of income and amoomguated at the statutory federal
income tax rate for the years ended December 3 fsllows:

2009 2008 2007

Amount Percen Amount Percen Amount Perceni
Amount at statutory rai $2,591.( 35.(% $1,092.¢ 35.(% $1,840. 35.(%
State and local income taxes net of federal taxetie 82.4 11 36.2 1.2 86.2 1.6
Tax exempt interest and dividends received dedu (51.9) (0.7) (54.¢ (1.9 (49.9) (0.9
Audit settlement: (12.9) (0.2 (480.€ (15.9 (10.0 (0.2
Sale of PBM 73.4 1.C — — — —
Other, ne (25.) (0.9 37.€ 1.2 45.7 0.9
Total income tax expen: $2,657.. 35.% $ 631.% 20.2% $1,912.! 36.4%

During the year ended December 31, 2009, we costplbe sale of our PBM business and recorded toarese of $1,431.1 related to
this sale. The components of the tax on the safe §&,327.3 computed at the statutory federal §#@,4 for state and local taxes and $73..
other tax adjustments.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, we setitgnites with the Internal Revenue Service, or, iREating to certain tax years and
involving industry issues which we had been disitgswith the IRS for several years. The industsuiss primarily related to the deduction of
intangible assets provided in the Tax Reform Act@86 and the special deduction allowable to Blues€ Blue Shield plans under certain
circumstances. As a result of these settlementssgrnrecognized tax benefits were reduced by $381d the consolidated results of
operations were benefited by $289.5 through a témluin income tax expense.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, our dftrred tax liabilities decreased by $49.7, rasylin a tax benefit, net of federal
taxes of $32.3. This resulted from a lower effextiax rate due to changes in the composition o&fiportionment factors in our combined s
income tax returns.

The 2007 effective tax rate was favorably impadtgdarious audit settlements.
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We account for income tax contingencies in accardamith FASB guidance related to uncertainty ingasitions, which clarifies the
accounting for income taxes by prescribing a minimmecognition threshold which income tax positiomsst achieve before being recognized
in the financial statements.

The change in the carrying amount of gross unreizedrtax benefits from uncertain tax positionstfar years ended December 31, is as
follows:

2009 2008
Balance at January $159.] $647.(
Additions for tax positions related t
Current yea 6.3 10.2
Prior years 2.9 13.1
Reductions related t
Tax positions of prior yez (20.9) (120.7)
Settlements with taxing authoriti (31.€) (391.0)
Balance at December : $116.¢ $159.]

The table above excludes interest, net of relaedéenefits, which is treated as income tax expéveseefit) under our accounting policy.
The interest is included in the amounts describetié following paragraph.

As of December 31, 2009, $102.6 of unrecognizedtmnefits would impact our effective tax rate itufe periods, if recognized. Also
included is $3.4 that would be recognized as anstdlient to additional paid-in capital and would afféct our effective tax rate. The
December 31, 2009 balance includes $2.8 of taxiposifor which ultimate deductibility is highly ieain but for which there is uncertainty
about the timing of such deductibility. Excludidgetimpact of interest and penalties, the disall@measf the shorter deductibility period would
not affect our effective tax rate, but would accafe the payment of cash to the taxing authoritgrtearlier period.

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 ard] 2@0recognized approximately $(0.9), $(139.3) $f&¥.8) in interest,
respectively. The interest in 2009 is comprisethtdrest recorded in the income statement of $8Mimterest reclassified to a liability account
of $(9.3). We had accrued approximately $28.1 &2@iGbfor the payment of interest at December 3092dhd 2008, respectively.

As of December 31, 2009, as further described betewain tax years remain open to examinatiorhByiIRS and various state and local
authorities. In addition, we continue to discusdaia industry issues with the IRS. As a resulthafse examinations and discussions, we have
recorded amounts for uncertain tax positions. #nisicipated that the amount of unrecognized tarefits will change in the next twelve mon
due to possible settlements of audits and chamgiesriporary items. However, the ultimate resolutibthese items is dependent on a number
of factors, such as completion of negotiations watking authorities, the outcome of litigation asedtlement of industry issues. While it is
difficult to determine when other tax settlementh actually occur, it is reasonably possible thae could occur in the next twelve months and
our unrecognized tax benefits could change withiarge of approximately $0.0 to $(50.0).

We joined the IRS Compliance Assurance Prograr@AfP, in 2007 and continue to remain a participhe objective of CAP is to
reduce taxpayer burden and uncertainty while asgthe IRS of the accuracy of tax returns pridiilbog, thereby reducing or eliminating the
need for post-filing examinations.
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As of December 31, 2009, the examinations of o@82@007, 2006, 2005 and 2004 tax years are neaoingjusion. In addition, there
are several years with ongoing disputes relatgnte@eacquisition companies that are nearing conmfud¥iany of the issues in open tax years
have been resolved; however, several of the exdinisastill require approval from the Joint Commétton Taxation before they can be
finalized.

During 2007, pre-acquisition tax litigation for thiear 1987 was settled favorably to us. As a redlie settlement, we were also able to
settle with the IRS for the years 1991-2003. We aksttled with the IRS in another pre-acquisitimaraination for the years 1995-1999. In all
cases, the resultant tax and piuisition interest were recorded as an adjusttoeegodwill. In 2008, the U.S. Tax Court ruled Exga us. Thi
case is currently pending in the Federal Courtgbdals and oral arguments are scheduled for FgbR0410.

In certain states, we pay premium taxes in liestafe income taxes. Premium taxes are reportedgeitiral and administrative expense.

At December 31, 2009, we had unused federal tappetating loss carryforwards of approximately $¥2® offset future taxable
income. The loss carryforwards expire in the y@&5 through 2027. During 2009, 2008 and 2007 tddecome taxes paid totaled $1,194.2,
$1,700.2 and $1,587.4, respectively.

8. Property and Equipment

A summary of property and equipment at Decembeés 2% follows:

2009 2008
Land and improvemen $ 51¢ $ 521
Building and componen 384.2 388.t
Data processing equipment, furniture and otherpmeant 706.¢ 734.5
Computer software, purchased and internally dewsl 1,055.¢ 936.¢
Leasehold improvemen 161.€ 169.7

2,360.: 2,282.!
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (1,260.5 (1,228.()
Property and equipment, r $ 1,099.¢ $1,054.!

Property and equipment includes assets purchagsbat noncancelable capital leases of $50.1 and $&@&cember 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. Total accumulated amortization osdgbassets at December 31, 2009 and 2008 was &#d $48.1, respectively. Depreciation
expense for 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $107.1, $H0mI4120.2, respectively. Amortization expenseeaiséd assets, computer software and
leasehold improvements for 2009, 2008 and 2007$484.3, $172.0 and $146.7, respectively, whichuides amortization expense on
computer software, both purchased and internaxglbped, for 2009, 2008 and 2007 of $158.8, $146d.$130.2, respectively. Capitalized
costs related to the internal development of saftved $820.2 and $656.0 at December 31, 2009 a8, 2@spectively, are reported with
computer software.
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9. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

A summary of the change in the carrying amountaafdyvill by reportable segment (see Note 19) for®280d 2008 is as follows:

Commercial Consumer Other Total
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 9,946.¢ $3,321.( $ 167.¢ $13,435.
Goodwill acquirec 126.5 35.C — 161.t
Purchase price allocation adjustme (98.9) (34.5 (2.7) (135.6
Balance as of December 31, 2( 9,974.7 3,321.F 165.1 13,461.:
UniCare goodwill impairmer (41.0 — — (41.0
Sale of PBM busines — — (165.7) (165.7)
Goodwill acquirec 14.4 — — 14.¢
Purchase price allocation adjustme (4.0 (1.0) — (5.0
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 9,944.. $3,320. $ — $13,264.(

As required by FASB guidance, we completed our ahimpairment tests of existing goodwill and othrgangible assets with indefinite
lives during the fourth quarters of 2009, 2008 26@7. The guidance also requires interim impairntesting to be performed when there is
existence of potential impairment indicators. Theests involve the use of estimates related tdaievalue of the goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives. These tests requarstgnificant degree of management judgment anddkeof subjective assumptions. The fair
values were estimated using the income and magteéwaluation methods, incorporating Level llleimtal estimates for inputs, including, but
not limited to, revenue projections, income prdfats, cash flows and discount rates. The annuahimyent tests are performed in the fourth
guarter and, thus, are performed after the reciognitf the impairments discussed in the followiragggraphs.

As a result of a strategic action, on October 2B we announced that we entered into a memhwsitien agreement with Health Care
Service Corporation, or HCSC, which operates ag Bltoss and Blue Shield in Illinois and Texas. Unbis agreement, HCSC offered
guaranteed replacement coverage to our UniCare esamhgroup and individual members in those stdtethe fourth quarter of 2009,
commensurate with the expected transition of dimois and Texas UniCare commercial group and iidial members to HCSC, we identifi
and recorded a pre-tax goodwill impairment charig®4d..0.

The goodwill in our Other segment related entitelpur PBM business that was sold to Express ScoptDecember 1, 2009. Goodwill
acquired in 2009 included $14.4 related to the De@aquisition. Goodwill adjustments in 2009 in@ddh reduction of $3.6 related to the tax
benefit on the exercise of stock options issuegaasof various acquisitions and a decrease of fglated to other purchase accounting
adjustments.

Goodwill acquired in 2008 included $161.5 relatedrarious acquisitions that were not material ifdtlially or in aggregate for separate
disclosure in our consolidated financial stateme@tsodwill adjustments for 2008 included a redutid $3.2 related to the tax benefit on the
exercise of stock options issued as part of varamagiisitions. Goodwill adjustments for 2008 alsdided a decrease of $133.9 due to tax
refunds and adjustments on pre-acquisition comgaarid an increase of $1.5 related to other purches®aunting adjustments.
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The components of other intangible assets as oémber 31 are as follows:

2009 2008
Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accumulated Net
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Intangible assets with finite live
Subscriber bas $3,128.¢ $ (1,394.§) $1,733.¢ $ 3,208.¢ $ (1,195.)0 $2,013.
Provider and hospital networ 137.Z (35.]) 102.1 158.1 (48.5) 109.¢
Other 54.C (17.9) 36.€ 32.C (12.6) 19.4
Total 3,319.¢ (1,447.9) 1,872.F 3,398t (1,256.) 2,142
Intangible assets with indefinite lif
Blue Cross and Blue Shield and other tradem 5,998." — 5,998." 6,296." — 6,296.°
Provider relationship 271t — 271t 271t — 271t
Licenses 116.€ — 116.€ 116.€ — 116.€
Total 6,386.¢ — 6,386.¢ 6,684.¢ — 6,684.¢
Other intangible asse $9,706.¢ $ (1,447.) $8,259.. $10,083.. $ (1,256.) $8,827.:

Our PBM business, together with other businessupdrtially supported our UniCare tradenamesahatecognized as indefinite lived
intangible assets. These tradenames were not sttidhe PBM business. Accordingly, after the sdléhe PBM business, a portion of these
tradenames was impaired as the cash flows frometihaining business units were not sufficient tdyfalipport the carrying value of these
intangible assets.

In addition, the UniCare tradenames are also pigrdapported by revenues generated from our UréGabsidiaries, which among other
products and services, sell health insurance ptsdacommercial customers, as well as Medicardymts to our Senior membership across
the United States. We expect future revenues fl@se business units to decline in 2010, primarky t a decline in our low margin auto-
assigned membership associated with Medicare Past\@ell as the transition of our Illinois and TexaniCare commercial group and
individual members to HCSC beginning on Janua3010.

During 2009, the PBM business sale, the expectelingden 2010 Medicare Part D auto-assigned menhiigend the member transition
agreement with HCSC, triggered an impairment rexdéaur UniCare tradenames, which are includethén@ommercial and Consumer
segments. As a result, we identified and recordeiedax impairment charge relating to our UniCaaglenames of $219.6, the majority of
which was driven by the loss of the 2010 Medicaag P auto-assigned membership. The valuation densd the expected future cash flows
of all business units that support the affecteddnames.

During the third quarter of 2008, due to ongoingradies in the economic and regulatory environmeatimState-Sponsored business,
including California budgetary cuts, we revised outlook for this business in certain states. Taigsion triggered an interim impairment test
of our indefinite lived intangible assets relatecstate-Sponsored licenses in those states, aikewefied and recorded a pre-tax impairment
charge of $141.4 during the third quarter of 2008 se intangible assets are included in the Conssegnent and were valued using the
income approach valuation method.
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In addition, during the first quarter of 2008, vexised our earnings guidance for 2008 primarilgtesd to higher than anticipated medical
costs, lower than expected fully-insured enrollmeemd the changing economic environment. As a resulhis revised outlook, we performed
an impairment test of our goodwill balances. Nodinments were noted and no impairment charges reegrded.

As of December 31, 2009, estimated amortizatioreegp for each of the five years ending Decembeis3ks follows: 2010, $242.5;
2011, $224.7; 2012, $204.9; 2013, $186.0; and 26147.8.

10. Retirement Benefits
We sponsor various non-contributory employee definenefit plans through certain subsidiaries.

The WellPoint Cash Balance Pension Plan, or thdRigilt Plan, is a cash balance pension plan coyegntain eligible employees of t
affiliated companies that participate in the WeltR®lan. Effective January 1, 2006, benefits wandailed, with the result that most
participants stopped accruing benefits but contiousarn interest on benefits accrued prior toctitailment. Certain participants subject to
collective bargaining and certain other particiganho met grandfathering rules continue to accereefits. Several pension plans acquired
through various corporate mergers and acquisiti@ve been merged into the WellPoint Plan.

The UGS Pension Plan is a defined benefit pendexmpith a cash balance component. The UGS Peid@ncovers eligible employees
of the affiliated companies that participate in @S Pension Plan. Effective January 1, 2004, litsngére curtailed, with the result that most
participants stopped accruing benefits but contiougarn interest on benefits previously accruesitan employees subject to collective
bargaining and certain other employees who metdfatimering rules continue to accrue benefits.

The Employees’ Retirement Plan of Blue Cross off@alia, or the BCC Plan, is a defined benefit penplan which covers eligible
employees of Blue Cross of California who are ceddry a collective bargaining agreement. Effecliaeuary 1, 2007, benefits were curtailed
under the BCC Plan with the result that no BluesSrof California employees hired after December2B06 are eligible to participate in the
BCC Plan.

All of the plans’ assets consist primarily of commrsiocks, fixed maturity securities, investmentdsiand short-term investments. The
funding policies for all plans are to contributeamts at least sufficient to meet the minimum fugdiequirements set forth in the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amende&RISA, including amendment by the Pension Rtaie Act of 2006, and in
accordance with income tax regulations, plus sulthiti@anal amounts as are necessary to providesasaéficient to meet the benefits to be
to plan participants.

We use a December 31 measurement date for detagrienefit obligations and fair value of plan asset

The following tables disclose consolidated “penddenefits”, which include the defined benefit pemsplans described above, and
consolidated “other benefitsiyhich include postretirement health and welfaredbigmincluding life, medical, vision and dentahledits offerec
to certain employees. Calculations were computémjusssumptions at the December 31 measuremerst date
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The reconciliation of the benefit obligation isfadows:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2009 2008 2009 2008
Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $1,688.¢ $1,761.( $575.¢ $560.7
Net effect of adoption of the ye-end measurement date provisit — 32.4 — 9.7
Service cos 22.2 30.1 7.2 5.8
Interest cos 91.£ 99.¢ 31.¢ 33.C
Actuarial loss (gain 67.¢ (40.0) 31.¢ 12.¢
Benefits paic (140.5 (194.¢) (28.0 (46.5)
Business combinatior 21.¢ — 1.8 —
Benefit obligation at end of ye $1,751.! $1,688.¢ $619.¢ $575.3
The changes in the fair value of plan assets afellasvs:
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2009 2008 2009 2008
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y $1,456.( $2,081.: $ 35.2 $ 46.5
Actual return on plan asse 268.1 (465.2) 12.4 (13.0
Employer contribution: 103.¢ 32.¢ 114t 50.2
Benefits paic (140.5 (192.9 (29.9) (48.5)
Business combinatior 16.2 — — —
Fair value of plan assets at end of y $1,703.! $1,456.( $132.4 $ 35.2
The net amount included in the consolidated balaheets is as follows:
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2009 2008 2009 2008
Noncurrent asse $ 20.¢ $ — $ — $ —
Current liabilities 4.9 (2.9 — 3.2
Noncurrent liabilities (63.9) (229.9) (487.9) (536.9)
Net amount at December $(48.0) $(232.¢) $(487.4) $(540.0)

The net amounts included in accumulated other cehmgsive loss (income) that have not been recog@igeomponents of net period
benefit costs are as follows:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2009 2008 2009 2008
Net actuarial los $555.1 $614.¢ $162.¢ $ 148.1
Prior service credi (6.9 (7.2 (91.0 (100.%)
Net amount at December : $548.¢ $607.¢ $ 71.¢ $ 47.2
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The estimated net actuarial loss and prior semiedit for the defined benefit pension plans thiithe amortized from accumulated otl
comprehensive income into net periodic benefitcoser the next year are $21.3 and $0.8, respéctiVke estimated net actuarial loss and
prior service credit for postretirement benefitqdahat will be amortized from accumulated othenpoehensive income into net periodic
benefit costs over the next year are $7.8 and $8spectively.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defibedefit pension plans was $1,742.8 and $1,68@>e¢mber 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2009, certain pension plansacadmulated benefit obligations in excess of pksets. For those same plans, the
projected benefit obligation was also in excesglafh assets. Such plans had a combined projectegfibebligation, accumulated benefit
obligation and fair value of plan assets of $988Y%.8 and $23.2, respectively.

The assumptions used in calculating the benefigatbns for all plans are as follows:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2009 2008 2009 2008
Discount rate 5.3t% 5.64% 5.7<% 5.7%
Rate of compensation incree 4.0(% 4.0(% 4.0(% 4.0(%
Expected rate of return on plan as: 8.0(% 8.0(% 7.0(% 7.25%

The components of net periodic benefit (credit} @osluded in the consolidated statements of incaneeas follows:

2009 2008 2007
Pension Benefits
Service cos $ 22.2 $ 30.1 $ 36.¢
Interest cos 91.4 99.€ 102.t
Expected return on asst (142.9 (154.¢) (153.2)
Recognized actuarial lo: 2.2 0.1 (A5
Amortization of prior service co: (0.8 (0.9 0.2
Curtailment (gain) los — (1.4) 0.2
Net periodic benefit cred $ (27.9) $ (27.0) $ (12.€
Other Benefits
Service cos $ 7.2 $ 5.8 $ 7.2
Interest cos 31.€ 33.C 33.¢
Expected return on asst (2.5 (3.5 (3.2
Recognized actuarial lo: 7.C 5.2 3.9
Amortization of prior service co: (9.8 (9.8 (5.9
Net periodic benefit co: $ 33.t $ 30.7 $ 36.C
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The assumptions used in calculating the net peribenefit cost for all plans are as follows:

2009 2008 2007

Pension Benefits

Discount rate 5.64% 6.0(% 5.9(%
Rate of compensation incree 4.0(% 4.5(% 4.5(%
Expected rate of return on plan as 8.0(% 8.0(% 8.0(%
Other Benefits

Discount rate 57% 6.1(% 5.9(%
Rate of compensation incree 4.0(% 4.5(% 4.5(%
Expected rate of return on plan as 7.25% 7.25% 7.11%

The assumed health care cost trend rate to befoisadxt year to measure the expected cost of dibeefits is 8.50% with a gradual
decline to 5.00% by the year 2017. These estimated rates are subject to change in the future.liEalth care cost trend rate assumption has
a significant effect on the amounts reported. Kangple, an increase in the assumed health caréreastrate of one percentage point would
increase the postretirement benefit obligationfd3ezember 31, 2009 by $45.8 and would increasécgeand interest costs by $2.6.
Conversely, a decrease in the assumed health astrérend rate of one percentage point would dseréze postretirement benefit obligatior
$39.0 as of December 31, 2009 and would decreagies@and interest costs by $2.2.

An important factor in determining our pension enxgeis the assumption for expected long-term ratetorn on plan assets. We use a
total portfolio return analysis in the developmehbur assumption. Factors such as past markednpesice, the long-term relationship
between fixed maturity and equity securities, iagtrates, inflation and asset allocations areideredd in the assumption. The assumption
includes an estimate of the additional return etgubfrom active management of the investment pliotf@eer data and an average of histol
returns are also reviewed for appropriatenesseo$éthected assumption.

In managing the plan assets, our objective is ta tEsponsible fiduciary while minimizing financi&@k. We attempt to mitigate risk to
the pension plan assets through our investmentypalihich places limits on the overall mix, qualityinvestments, and concentrations in
individual investments. Treasury futures in thetfmio are sometimes used as a substitute for ghysecurities. In addition to producing a
reasonable return, the investment strategy seakénimize the volatility in employer expense angltélow.

Plan assets include a diversified mix of investngrate fixed maturity securities, equity securiiesl alternative investments across a
range of sectors and levels of capitalization taim&e the long-term return for a prudent leveligk. The target allocation for pension benefit
plan assets is 54% equity securities, 35% fixeduritgtsecurities, and 11% to all other types ofdstments. Equity securities primarily include
a mix of domestic securities, foreign securitied arutual funds invested in equities. Fixed matusigurities primarily include treasury
securities, corporate bonds, and asset backedtimeats issued by corporations and the U.S. govanhrgher types of investments include
partnership interests and investments in trustigded specifically for employee benefit plans. ADecember 31, 2009, there were no
significant concentrations of investments in thagien benefit assets or other benefit assets. Alo g@dsets were invested in WellPoint com:
stock as of the measurement date.

Pension benefit assets and other benefit assetsieztat fair value are categorized based upoletted of judgment associated with the
inputs used to measure their fair value.
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The fair values of our pension benefit assets a@herdenefit assets at December 31, 2009 by agssjary and level inputs, as defined
by FASB guidance regarding fair value measuremamtisdisclosures (see Note 6 for additional inforamategarding the definition of level
inputs) are as follows:

Level | Level Il Level Ill Total

Pension Benefit Assets
Cash and cash equivale! $ — $ — $ — $ —
Equity securities

U.S. securitie! 140.1 — 425.¢ 565.k

Foreign securitie 146.¢ — — 146.¢
Fixed maturity securities

Government securitie 61.2 18.: — 79.t

Corporate bond — 166.5 0.5 167.C

Asse-backed securitie — 142, 6.C 148.7
Other types of investment

Mutual funds 22.1 — — 22.1

Common and collective trus — 89.t 115.% 205.2

Partnership interes — — 161.7 161.7

Contract with insurance compa — — 204.: 204.:

Other plan asse — — 2.7 2.7
Total pension benefit ass¢ $370.2  $417.C $916.5  $1,703.!
Other Benefit Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $70C $ — $ — $ 70.C
Equity securities

U.S. securitie! 12.7 — 10.€ 23.€

Foreign securitie 3.8 — — 3.8
Fixed maturity securitie:

Government securitie 1.6 0.4 — 2.C

Corporate securitie — 4.3 — 4.3

Asse-backed securitie — 3.7 0.1 3.8
Other types of securitie

Common and collective trus — 2.3 3.C 5.3

Partnership interes — — 4.2 4.2

Investment in DOL 1C-12 trust — 15.4 — 15.4
Total other benefit asse $88.1 $26.1 $ 18z $ 132«
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending baksof plan assets measured at fair value usingl Lkweputs for the year ended
December 31, 2009 is as follows:

Corporate Common/ Insurance o
Other
US Equity Fixed Asset Collective Partnership Company
Maturity Backed Plan
Securities Securities Securities Trusts Interests Contracts Asset: Total
Beginning balance at January 1, 2! $313¢ $ 01 $ 6EF $ 96.C $ 93¢ $241c $— $751.7
Actual return on plan asse
Relating to assets still held at the
reporting date 122.¢ — 0.7 22.7 23.4 (17.5) (1.6 150.1
Purchases, sales, issuances
settlements, ne — 0.4 (1.3 — 48.€ (19.5) 4.3 32.t
Transfers into Level I — — 0.2 — — — — 0.2
Ending balance at December 31, 2I $436. $ 05 $ 61 $1185 $ 165.¢ $ 204.: $2.7 $934.5

Our current funding strategy is to fund an amou¢ast equal to the minimum required funding aeeined under ERISA with
consideration of maximum tax deductible amounts.riég elect to make discretionary contributionsathe maximum amount deductible for
income tax purposes. For the year ended Decemb&089, no material contributions were necessamgaet ERISA required funding levels;
however, we made tax deductible discretionary doutions totaling $188.6 to the retirement benglins. Employer contributions related to
other benefits represent discretionary contribitiand payments to retirees for current benefits.

Our estimated future payments for pension benafitspostretirement benefits, which reflect expefitare service, as appropriate, are
as follows:

Pension Other

Benefits Benefits
2010 $172.¢ $ 41.C
2011 181.¢ 42.5
2012 185.1 44
2013 179.¢ 45.£
2014 159.¢ 46.C
2015- 2019 768.t 248.(

In addition to the defined benefit plans, we madmtae WellPoint 401(k) Retirement Savings Plagualified defined contribution plan
covering substantially all employees. Voluntary égpe contributions are matched by us subject ttaelimitations. Contributions made by
us totaled $111.0, $104.3 and $95.2 during 20098 2d 2007, respectively.
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11. Medical Claims Payable

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending bakstor medical claims payable is as follows:

Years Ended December 3

2009 2008 2007
Gross medical claims payable, beginning of pe $ 6,184.° $ 5,788.( $ 5,290.:
Ceded medical claims payable, beginning of pe (60.9 (60.7) (51.0
Net medical claims payable, beginning of pei 6,124.. 5,727.: 5,239.:
Business combinations and purchase adjustn 2.8 — 15.2
Net incurred medical claim
Current yea 47,315.: 47,940.¢ 46,366..
Prior years redundanci (807.2) (263.9) (332.7%)
Total net incurred medical clain 46,507 47,677 46,033.!
Net payments attributable t
Current year medical clain 42,056.! 42,020. 40,765.
Prior years medical clain 5,157.¢ 5,259.¢ 4,795.(
Total net payment 47,214 47,280.t 45,560.
Net medical claims payable, end of per 5,420.¢ 6,124.. 5,727.:
Ceded medical claims payable, end of pe 29.€ 60.2 60.7
Gross medical claims payable, end of pe $ 5,450.t $ 6,184 $ 5,788.(

Amounts incurred related to prior years vary frorayiously estimated liabilities as the claims atenately settled. Liabilities at any ye
end are continually reviewed and re-estimated fasrimation regarding actual claims payments becdknesvn. This information is compared
to the originally established year end liabilityedtive amounts reported for incurred claims reladeprior years result from claims being
settled for amounts less than originally estimated.

The following table provides a summary of the tvey lkassumptions having the most significant impacdar incurred but not paid
liability estimates for the years ended Decembe2809, 2008 and 2007, which are the completiontesrd! factors. These two key
assumptions can be influenced by utilization levetst costs, mix of business, benefit plan designsvider reimbursement levels, processing
system conversions and changes, claim inventosideelaim processing patterns, claim submissidtepe and operational changes resulting
from business combinations.

Favorable (Unfavorable)
Developments by Changes in
Key Assumptions

2009 2008 2007
Trend Factor: $466.1 $383. $350.1
Completion Factor 341.1 (120.9) (17.6)
Total $807.2 $263.C $332.7
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The favorable development in 2009 resulted from @etion factors developing more favorably than thased at December 31, 2008
due to recognition of faster claims processing, taeadd factors for the most recent two months dmpialy lower than initially anticipated. The
key factors driving the favorable developmentshiese key assumptions are below:

» The receipt cycle time (date of service to dateec€ipt) declined by 5% and the payment cycle {idate of receipt to date of
payment) declined by 11%, for an overall declinelaims payment cycle times of 7% in 2009;

* More favorable claims recovery activity than amtétied.

The prior year redundancy in 2008 and 2007 wasaiiyndriven by the favorable development of thentt factor assumption used for
establishing the December 31, 2007 and 2006 medaiahs payable, respectively, partially offsetebgleficiency in the development of the
completion factor assumption.

12. Debt
Short-term Borrowings

We are a member of the Federal Home Loan Bankdi&iapolis and the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cimatiin collectively, the
FHLBs, and as a member we have the ability to altash advances subject to certain requirementsdir to obtain cash advances, we are
required to pledge securities as collateral toRHEBS, initially equal to a certain percentagelwd tash borrowings, depending on the type of
securities pledged as collateral. The market vafube collateral is monitored daily by the FHLBs\d if it falls below the required percentage
of the cash borrowings, we are required to pledigktimnal securities as collateral or repay a portf the outstanding cash advance balant
addition, our borrowings may be limited based anamount of our investment in the FHLBsS’ commorckt®ur investment in the FHLBS’
common stock at December 31, 2009 totaled $9.4;wikireported in “Investments available-for-saleguy securities” on the consolidated
balance sheets. At December 31, 2009 and 2008 a9@d.$98.0, respectively, of cash advances fronfFHieBs was outstanding and is repoi
in “Short-term borrowings” on the consolidated Iala sheets. Securities, primarily certain U.S. gowent sponsored mortgage-backed
securities, with a fair value of $230.5 at Decentiier2009, have been pledged as collateral. Theities pledged are reported imestment
available-for-sale—Fixed maturity securities” oe tonsolidated balance sheets.
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Long-term Debt

The carrying value of long-term debt at Decembec@isists of the following:

2009 2008
Senior unsecured note
4.250%, face amount of $300.0, due 2 $ — $ 299.t
5.000%, face amount of $700.0, due 2 698.7 697.:
6.375%, face amount of $350.0, due 2 358.t 362.2
6.800%, face amount of $800.0, due 2! 846.2 856.F
5.000%, face amount of $500.0, due 2 396.¢ 557.¢
6.000%, face amount of $400.0, due 2 532.¢ —
5.250%, face amount of $1,100.0, due 2 1,092.: 1,090.¢
5.875%, face amount of $700.0, due 2 692.1 691.1
7.000%, face amount of $600.0, due 2 594 —
5.264%, face amount of $1,090.0, due 2 — 526.7
5.950%, face amount of $500.0, due 2 4947 494.F
5.850%, face amount of $900.0, due 2 889.< 889.(
6.375%, face amount of $800.0, due 2 789.4 789.2
Surplus notes
9.125%, face amount of $42.0, due 2! 42.C 41.¢
9.000%, face amount of $25.1, due 2! 24.¢ 24.¢
Variable rate deb
Commercial paper progra 500.¢ 897.¢
Senior term loal 433.1 498.¢
Capital leases, stated or imputed rates from 4.86026.030% due through 20 13.2 26.C
Total lon¢-term debt 8,399.! 8,743.¢
Current portion of lon-term deb! (60.€) (909.7)
Long-term debt, less current porti $8,338.1 $7,833.¢

In July 2009, May 2009 and March 2009, we repureti&390.0, $300.0 and $400.0, respectively, ofd,090.0 face value due at
maturity zero coupon notes. The notes were issuédigust 2007 in a private placement transactioa.pafd cash totaling $553.8 to
repurchase the notes, which had a remaining carmatue of zero at December 31, 2009.

On February 5, 2009, we issued $400.0 of 6.000%sndtie 2014 and $600.0 of 7.000% notes due 201 andupdated shelf
registration statement filed with the U.S Secusitead Exchange Commission, or SEC, on Decemb&008. The proceeds from this debt
issuance were used for general corporate purpioedsding, but not limited to, repayment of shatrh debt and repurchasing shares of our
common stock. The notes have a call feature thawalus to repurchase the notes at anytime atptizroand a put feature that allows a note
holder to require us to repurchase the notes up@odcurrence of both a change of control eventaasowngrade of the notes.

On December 12, 2008, we filed an updated shei$tragion statement with the SEC to register afmitéd amount of any combination
of debt or equity securities in one or more offgenSpecific information
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regarding terms and securities being offered vélpbovided at the time of an offering. Proceedmffature offerings are expected to be used
for general corporate purposes, including the repyt of debt, capitalization of our subsidiariepurchases of our common stock or the
financing of possible acquisitions or business egjm.

On April 29, 2008, we borrowed $525.0 under a threar senior term loan agreement, the proceed$imhwvere used for general
corporate purposes. The interest rate on this keamis based on either (i) the LIBOR rate plusedptermined percentage rate based on our
credit rating, or (ii) the base rate as definethmterm loan agreement, which was 3.250% at DeeeBih 2009.

We have a senior revolving credit facility, or flagility, with certain lenders for general corp@a@urposes. The facility, as amended,
provides credit up to $2,392.0 and matures on &amte 30, 2011. The interest rate on this faciktypased on either: (i) the LIBOR rate plus a
predetermined percentage rate based on our cagiig rat the date of utilization, or (ii) a basteras defined in the facility agreement. Our
ability to borrow under this facility is subject tompliance with certain covenants. Commitment feeshe facility were $1.5, $1.6 and $1.8 in
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and there ae®onditions that are probable of occurring undeiciihe facility may be withdrawn. There
were no amounts outstanding under the facilityfd3ezember 31, 2009 or 2008, or during the yeaza #imded. At December 31, 2009, we
$2,392.0 available under this facility.

Surplus notes are unsecured obligations of Anthesarance Companies, Inc., or Anthem Insurance,dlybwned subsidiary, and are
subordinate in right of payment to all of Anthensunance’s existing and future indebtedness. Anynaay of interest or principal on the
surplus notes may be made only with the prior aygdrof the Indiana Department of Insurance, or IP&Id only out of capital and surplus
funds of Anthem Insurance that the IDOI determitoelse available for the payment under Indiana iaisce laws.

We have an authorized commercial paper progranp @6 $2,500.0, the proceeds of which may be useddberal corporate purposes.
The weighted-average interest rate on commerci@plorrowings at December 31, 2009 and 2008 va®and 5.33%, respectively.
Commercial paper borrowings have been classifiddraggterm debt at December 31, 2009 and 2008 apragtice and intent is to replace
short-term commercial paper outstanding at expinatvith additional short-term commercial paperdaruninterrupted period extending for
more than one year or our ability to redeem ourmencial paper with borrowings under the senior itrfiadility described above.

Interest paid during 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $4@@.23.4 and $417.1, respectively.
We were in compliance with all applicable covenamtder our outstanding debt agreements.

Future maturities of debt, including capital leases as follows: 2010, $603.4; 2011, $1,079.32261,204.7; 2013, $0.0; 2014, $929.7
and thereafter, $4,582.0.

13. Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation

Prior to the acquisition of WellPoint Health Netwsrnc., or WHN, the group benefit operations, & of John Hancock Mutual Life
Insurance Company, or John Hancock, entered intazber of reinsurance arrangements, including weigipect to personal accident insurance
and the occupational accident component of

135



Table of Contents

WellPoint, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu
13. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

workers’ compensation insurance, a portion of whigts originated through a pool managed by Unic@nagers, Inc. Under these
arrangements, John Hancock assumed risks as anegimsd transferred certain of such risks to otlenpanies. Similar reinsurance
arrangements were entered into by John Hancoabwiolh WHN's acquisition of the GBO of John Hancotkese various arrangements have
become the subject of disputes, including a nurobggal proceedings to which John Hancock is &yp&ve were in arbitration with John
Hancock regarding these arrangements. The arbitraginel’s Phase | ruling addressed liability. brirR2007, the arbitration panel issued a
Phase Il ruling stating the amount we owe to Johnddck for losses and expenses John Hancock paiagt June 30, 2006. The panel furt
outlined a process for determining our liability fosses and expenses paid after June 30, 2006hWability has not yet been determined. We
filed a Petition to Confirm, which was granted bg Court. John Hancock filed an appeal with theeB#vCircuit Court of Appeals. The
Seventh Circuit upheld the order from the disttiatirt confirming the arbitration awards. John Havkcthen filed a petition for rehearing en
banc, which was unanimously denied by the Seveirtui We reached a commutation and settlemergeagent with John Hancock that
resolves all past and potential future liabilitheTsettlement did not have a material effect onconsolidated cash flows, financial condition or
results of operations.

In various California state courts, we are defegdimumber of individual lawsuits, including onledi by the Los Angeles City Attorney,
and four purported class actions alleging the whaingscission of individual insurance policies.eT$uits name WellPoint as well as Blue
Cross of California, or BCC, and BC Life & Healtiislirance Company, or BCL&H (which name changedrithém Blue Cross Life and
Health Insurance Company in July 2007), both WéfiPsubsidiaries. The lawsuits generally allegeabheof contract, bad faith and unfair
business practices in a purported practice of nd#ng new individual members following the submigsof large claims. The parties agreed to
mediate most of these lawsuits and the mediatisuited in the resolution of some of these lawslitsddition, the California Department of
Managed Health Care and California Department sfilance conducted investigations of the allegationdune 2007, the California
Department of Insurance issued its final repoxt/irich it issued a number of citations alleging at@ns of fair-claims handling laws.

On July 17, 2008 a settlement was reached witiCdidornia Department of Managed Health Care reiggrthe Department’s
investigation of rescission practices. Pursuati¢osettiement, BCC offered prospective coveragowt medical underwriting, to
approximately 1,770 rescinded members. BCC alseealjto a procedure whereby these individuals cauider certain circumstances, be
reimbursed for past medical expenses. BCC alseddrepay a $10.0 fine, which was paid on August2D®8. On February 10, 2009, a
settlement was reached with the California DepantroéInsurance regarding its audit of rescissimacpices. Pursuant to the settlement,
BCL&H will offer prospective coverage, without medl underwriting, to approximately 2,330 formerurexds. BCL&H also agreed to
reimburse eligible out of pocket medical expenddh@former insureds. BCL&H also agreed to payl ®$ine, which was paid on May 28,
2009. None of these settlements, individually dlectively, have had or are expected to have a netadverse effect on our consolidated
financial condition or results of operations.

On February 12, 2008, Empire Blue Cross Blue Shalthg with 15 other health benefit companies, sexsed with a subpoena by the
New York Attorney General. The subpoena was paanahdustr-wide investigation of how insurance companiesdetabases maintained by
Ingenix, Inc., or Ingenix, a wholly-owned subsigiaf UnitedHealth Group, in determining out-of netlk reimbursement. Since the beginning
of the investigation, we have been cooperating fwith the Attorney General’s office and have coiglwith the Attorney General’s requests
for information regarding out-afetwork reimbursement in New York. On February 28)9, we announced that we reached an agreemér
the New York Attorney General regarding
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the manner in which out-of-network reimbursememrmviders will be determined. We agreed to disicnrg the use of the Ingenix database,
which some of our subsidiaries use in determiningad-network reimbursement for certain productd ancertain states. We also agreed to
contribute $10.0 towards the funding of a not-fafit entity that will develop a database of prafidcharges that can be accessed both by
health care plans and their members. This paymastmade on October 2, 2009. The settlement dilanst a material effect on our
consolidated financial position or results of opierss.

We are currently defending several putative clasigas filed as a result of the 2001 Anthem Insaea@ompanies, Inc., or
AICI, demutualization. The suits name AICI as wadlAnthem, Inc., or Anthem, n/k/a WellPoint, Int\eTsuits are captioned Benald Gold,
et al. v. Anthem, Inc. et al.; Mary E. Ormond, etva Anthem, Inc,. et al.; Ronald E. Mell, Sr.aktv. Anthem, Inc., et al; and Jeffrey D.
Jorling, et al., v. Anthem, Inc. (n/k/a WellPoilmig.) et al.AICI's 2001 Plan of Conversion, or the Plan, praddor the conversion of AICI
from a mutual insurance company into a stock instgacompany pursuant to Indiana law. Under the, A0l distributed the fair value of the
company at the time of conversion to its Eligibtat8tory Members, or ESMs, in the form of cash athem common stock in exchange for
their membership interests in the mutual compaime lawsuits generally allege that AICI distributedue to the wrong ESMs or distributed
insufficient value to the ESMs. IBold, cross motions for summary judgment were gramguhit and denied in part with regard to the issfue
sovereign immunity asserted by co-defendant, thee$if Connecticut (the “State”). The State hasafgal this denial to the Connecticut
Supreme Court. We filed a cross-appeal. Oral arginves held in November 2008 and the parties aggteng a ruling. In thedrmondsuit,
the company’s Motion to Dismiss was granted in pad denied in part on March 31, 2008. The cowrndised the claims for violation of
federal and state securities laws, for violationhaf Indiana Demutualization Law and for unjusti@ment. On September 29, 2009, a class
was certified in th@®©rmondsuit. The class consists of all ESMs residing indQmdiana, Kentucky or Connecticut who receivedtt
compensation in connection with the demutualizatidre class does not include employers locatedhin @nhd Connecticut that received
compensation under the Plan. On November 4, 2@0&sa was certified in thdell suit. That class consists of persons who were eyapkor
retirees who were continuously enrolled in the thelaénefit plan sponsored by the City of Cincinetiween the dates of June 18, 2001 and
November 2, 2001. We are seeking an appeal otthss certification order to the Sixth Circuit Coof Appeals. We intend to vigorous
defend these suits; however, their ultimate outcoamot be presently determined.

We are currently a defendant in a putative clatisracelating to Out-of-Network, or OON, reimbursent of dental claims called
American Dental Association v. WellPoint Healthwatks, Inc. and Blue Cross of Califorr. The lawsuit was filed in March 2002 by the
ADA and three dentists who are suing on behalhefriselves and are seeking to sue on behalf ofi@madle class of all non-participating
dental providers who were paid less than theiraatharges for dental services provided to WellPdental members. The complaint alleges
that WellPoint Health Networks Inc., Blue CrosGaflifornia and other WellPoint affiliates and sutiafies (collectively, WellPoint)
improperly set usual, customary and reasonable patyfor OON dental services based on HIAA/Ingeraxad The plaintiffs claim, among
other things, that the HIAA/Ingenix databases taidccount for differences in geography, providezcalty, outlier (high) charges, and
complexity of procedure. The complaint further géle that WellPoint was aware that this data wasprapriate to set usual, customary and
reasonable rates. The dentists sue as assigntesrgiatients’ rights to benefits under WellPasndlental plans and assert that WellPoint
breached its contractual obligations in violatidrE®ISA by routinely paying OON dentists less thheir actual charges and representing that
its OON payments were properly determined usuatornary and reasonable rates. The suit is currgetigling in the United States District
Court for the Southern District of Florida. We @lla motion for summary judgment, which is pendWg intend to vigorously defend this
lawsuit; however, its ultimate outcome cannot bespntly determined.

137



Table of Contents

WellPoint, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu
13. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

We currently are a defendant in eleven putativescktions relating to out-oetwork reimbursement. The cases have been matefa
WellPoint-only multi-district litigation calledh re WellPoint, Inc. Out-of-Network “UCR” Ratestigation and are pending in the United States
District Court for the Central District of Califon The first lawsuit Darryl and Valerie Samsell v. WellPoint, Inc., Viealint Health Network:
Inc. and Anthem, In¢) was filed in February 2009 by two former membmisehalf of a putative class of members who reckout-of-
network services for which the defendants paid flean billed charges. The plaintiffs in that cabege that the defendants violated RICO, the
Sherman Antitrust Act, ERISA, and federal regulasidoy relying on databases provided by Ingenixetednining out-of-network
reimbursement. The second lawsutNIA et al. v. WellPoint, Incyas brought in March 2009 by the American Medicasdciation, or AMA,
four state medical associations and two indivighglsicians on behalf of a putative class of outetiwork physicians. The third lawsuit
( Roberts v. UnitedHealth Group, Inc. et alids brought in March 2009 by a WellPoint membea asitative class action on behalf of all
persons or entities who have paid premiums forofutetwork health insurance coverage. The founyslat (JBW v. UnitedHealth Group, Ir
et al.) was brought in April 2009 by a WellPoint membesraaputative class action on behalf of all perseins have paid premiums for out-of-
network health insurance coverage. The fifth lat§@'Brien, et al. v. WellPoint, Inc., et dlwas brought in May 2009 by three WellPoint
members as a putative class action on behalf gieations who received out-of-network services. dikih lawsuit (Higashi, D.C. d/b/a Mar
Vista Institute of Health v. Blue Cross of Califiarl/b/a WellPoint, Inc) was brought in June 2009 by an out-of-netwotikogtactor as a
putative class action on behalf of all out-of-netivohiropractors. The seventh sulérth Peninsula Surgical Center v. WellPoint,Iret.al .)
was brought in June 2009 by an out-of-network saigienter as a putative class action on behalfl afut-of-network surgical centers. The
eighth lawsuit (American Podiatric Medical Association, et al. veN#oint, Inc.) was brought in June 2009 by the American Paddisedical
Association, California Chiropractic Associatiorglifornia Psychological Association and an out-efwork clinical psychologist as a putative
class action on behalf of out-of-network podiagiisthiropractors and psychologists. The ninth lai8dichael Pariser, et al. v. WellPoint,

Inc.) was brought in July 2009 by an out-of-network p®jobist as a putative class action on behalf obattof-network providers who are

not medical doctors or doctors of osteopathy. Bmeht lawsuit Harold S. Bernard, Ph.D., et al. v. WellPoint, Ifavas brought in July 2009

by an out-of-network psychologist as a putativeslaction on behalf of all non-medical doctor Headtre providers. The eleventh lawsuit

( Ken Unmacht, Psy.D., et al. v. WellPoint, Ihevas brought in August 2009 by an out-of-netwackhsed psychotherapist as a putative class
action on behalf of all non-medical doctor heakthecproviders. A consolidated complaint has beed for the eleven cases. We filed a motion
to dismiss, which is pending, and a motion to enfbe claims brought by the M.D.s and D,O.s basegrior litigation releases. We intend to
vigorously defend these suits; however, their wdtienoutcomes cannot be presently determined.

Other Contingencies

From time to time, we and certain of our subsidisudre parties to various legal proceedings, mamhich involve claims for coverage
encountered in the ordinary course of business.IM&eHMOs and health insurers generally, excluegain health care and other services t
coverage under our HMO, PPO and other plans. Weratkee ordinary course of business, subject éocthims of our enrollees arising out of
decisions to restrict or deny reimbursement foroweced services. The loss of even one such claitreisults in a significant punitive damage
award, could have a material adverse effect onusddition, the risk of potential liability undpunitive damage theories may increase
significantly the difficulty of obtaining reasonabéettlements of coverage claims.
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In addition to the lawsuits described above, weadse involved in other pending and threatenegddiion of the character incidental to
our business, arising out of our operations andewision of earnings guidance in 2008, and ammftie to time involved as a party in vari
governmental investigations, audits, reviews andiaitrative proceedings. These investigationsjtapceviews and administrative
proceedings include routine and special inquiriestate insurance departments, state attorneysajetie U.S. Attorney General and
subcommittees of the U.S. Congress. Such invegtiggtaudits, reviews and administrative proceeslomuld result in the imposition of civil
or criminal fines, penalties, other sanctions additzonal rules, regulations or other restrictiamsour business operations. Any liability that
may result from any one of these actions, or inapgregate, could have a material adverse effeotioconsolidated financial position or
results of operations.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

On March 31, 2009, we entered into an agreemeht Affiliated Computer Services, Inc. to providetedn print and mailroom services
that were previously performed in-house. Our commaiit under this agreement at December 31, 200%88&9 over a six year period. We
have the ability to terminate this agreement ufrendccurrence of certain events, subject to eartypination fees.

We have entered into agreements with InternatiBoainess Machines Corporation to provide informatechnology infrastructure
services. Our remaining commitment under theseraotst at December 31, 2009 was approximately $654eBa five year period. We have
the ability to terminate these agreements upomticarrence of certain events, subject to early iteation fees.

Vulnerability from Concentrations

Financial instruments that potentially subjectaisancentrations of credit risk consist primarifycash equivalents, investment securit
premium receivables and instruments held througlying activities. All investment securities are mgad by professional investment
managers within policies authorized by our Boar®wéctors. Such policies limit the amounts thatyrba invested in any one issuer and
prescribe certain investee company criteria. Comagans of credit risk with respect to premiumeiables are limited due to the large nun
of employer groups that constitute our customee lashe geographic regions in which we conductriass. As of December 31, 2009, there
were no significant concentrations of financialtinments in a single investee, industry or geogralgitation.

14. Capital Stock
Stock Incentive Plars

On March 15, 2006, our Board of Directors adopteiWellPoint 2006 Incentive Compensation PlanherRlan, which was approved
our shareholders on May 16, 2006. On March 4, 2008Board of Directors approved an amendment asthtement of the Plan to increase
the number of shares available by 33.0 sharegname the plan as the WellPoint Incentive Compams&an, or Incentive Plan, and to
extend the term of the plan such that no awardsheayranted on or after May 20, 2019, which was@md by our shareholders on May 20,
2009.

The Incentive Plan gives authority to the Compeaosaommittee of the Board of Directors to makeeintive awards to our non-
employee directors, employees and consultantsjstorgsof stock options, stock, restricted sto@stricted stock units, cash-based awards,
stock appreciation rights, performance shares anfpnance units. The Incentive Plan, as amendddesiated, increases the number of
available shares for issuance to 60.1 shares,dubjadjustment as set forth in the Incentive Plan
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Stock options are granted for a fixed number ofehavith an exercise price at least equal to thievédue of the shares at the grant date.
Stock options granted in 2009 and 2008 vest oveetliears in equal semi-annual installments andrgéip have a term of seven years from
the grant date. The stock options granted in 2@3ielly vest over three years in equal semi-aningtdliments and have a term of ten years
from the grant date.

Certain option grants contain provisions wherelgygmployee continues to vest in the award subsétuégrmination due to retirement.
Our attribution method for newly granted awardssiders all vesting and other provisions, includietirement eligibility, in determining the
requisite service period over which the fair vatfi¢he awards will be recognized.

Restricted stock awards are issued at the fairevaiuhe stock on the grant date. The restrictiapse in three equal annual installments.
Beginning with the 2007 grants, restricted stoclals may also include a performance measure thstt lneumet for the restricted stock award
to vest.

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 ard] 2@0recognized share-based compensation codb8i& $156.0 and $177.1,
respectively, as well as related tax benefits &.85$53.6 and $65.1, respectively.

A summary of stock option activity for the year edddecember 31, 2009 is as follows:

. Aggregate
Number of Weighted-Average ngztriiﬁnzage
Option Price Contractual Life Intrinsic
Shares per Share (Years) Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2C 24.2 $ 62.3¢
Granted 6.8 30.3:
Exercisec (2.5) 32.3:
Forfeited or expires (2.0 61.71
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 26.5 56.9¢ 5.C $ 273.¢
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 18.1 62.3:2 4.6 $ 121

The intrinsic value of options exercised during years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 @etbtn$40.4, $54.4 and $609.6,
respectively. We recognized tax benefits of $1822.0 and $240.3 in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respdygtifirem option exercises and
disqualifying dispositions. The total fair valuegifares vested during the years ended Decemb2083, 2008 and 2007 was $21.5, $44.8 and
$72.3, respectively. During the years ended Dece®be2009, 2008 and 2007 we received cash of $3I@5 and $723.7, respectively, from
exercises of stock options.

A summary of the status of nonvested restrictedksaativity, including restricted stock units, e year ended December 31, 2009 is as
follows:

Weighted-
Average

Grant

) Date
Stook Share Fair Value
and Units per Share
Nonvested at January 1, 20 1.3 $ 71.1f
Granted 3.9 30.52
Vested (0.6) 31.2¢
Forfeited (0.9 40.3¢
Nonvested at December 31, 2C 4.2 36.0z
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Fair Value

During the year ended December 31, 2009, we grapptbximately 0.7 restricted stock units underltteentive Plan that were
contingent upon us achieving specified operating gagets for 2009. We did not fully meet the sfied operating targets and, accordingly,
only 0.6 restricted stock units were issued unldisrgerformance plan.

As of December 31, 2009, the total remaining ungacced compensation cost related to nonvested stptiéns and restricted stock
amounted to $38.1 and $60.8, respectively, whidhbgiamortized over the weighted-average remaingogiisite service periods of 11 and 13
months, respectively.

As of December 31, 2009, there were 38.5 sharesramon stock available for future grants underltieentive Plan.

We use a binomial lattice valuation model to estarthe fair value of all future stock options gehtExpected volatility assumptions
used in the binomial lattice model are based oarelysis of implied volatilities of publicly tradexptions on our stock and historical volatility
of our stock price. The risk-free interest ratdasived from the U.S. Treasury strip rates at iime tof the grant. The expected term of the
options was derived from the outputs of the bindhaitice model, which incorporates post-vestingdaure assumptions based on an analysis
of historical data. The dividend yield was basedonestimate of future dividend yields. Similaogps of employees that have dissimilar
exercise behavior are considered separately foatiah purposes. We utilize the “multiple-grant’papach for recognizing compensation
expense associated with each separately vestitigporf the share-based award.

The following weightedaverage assumptions were used to estimate theafaies of options granted during the years endestber 31

2009 2008 2007
Risk-free interest rat 1.7% 3.3t% 4.5€%
Volatility factor 37.0(% 26.0(% 22.0(%
Dividend yield — — —
Weightec-average expected li 4.0 year 4.0 year 4.4 year

The following weighted-average fair values weresdgined for the years ending December 31:

2009 2008 2007
Options granted during the ye $9.44 $18.6: $21.8¢
Restricted stock and stock awards granted duriaydar 30.52 66.57 80.64
Employee stock purchases during the ) 7.0¢ 6.7¢€ 14.7:

The binomial lattice option-pricing model requitée input of highly subjective assumptions inclglthe expected stock price volatility.
Because our stock option grants have charactexisigmificantly different from those of traded apts, and because changes in the subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the falugaestimate, in our opinion, existing models domecessarily provide a reliable single
measure of the fair value of our stock option ggant
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Employee Stock Purchase Ple

We have registered 14.0 shares of common stodkéEmployee Stock Purchase Plan, or the StockhBsecPlan, which is intended to
provide a means to encourage and assist employeesjiliring a stock ownership interest in WellPod employee will be permitted to
purchase more than $25,000 (actual dollars) wdrttazk in any calendar year, based on the fauiealf the stock at the end of each plan
guarter. Employees become participants by eleg@agoll deductions from 1% to 15% of gross compgasaPayroll deductions are
accumulated during each quarter and applied totrergurchase of stock on the last trading day ol earter. Once purchased, the stock is
accumulated in the employsdhvestment account. Through December 31, 20@7Stbck Purchase Plan allowed for a purchase pecehar
of 85% of the lower of the fair value of a sharecofmmon stock on (i) the first trading day of tharpquarter, or (ii) the last trading day of the
plan quarter. Beginning January 1, 2008, the SRagkchase Plan allowed for a purchase price peesif&85% of the fair value of a share of
common stock on the last trading day of the plaarigu. During 2009, 2008, and 2007, 1.2, 1.3 aAdsbares of common stock, respectively,
were purchased under the Stock Purchase Plantingsinl $8.2, $9.0 and $13.3 of related compensatist, respectively. As of December 31,
2009, there were approximately 7.1 shares of comstack available for issuance under the Stock Ragelrlan.

Stock Repurchase Progral

We regularly review the appropriate use of capAatordingly, under our Board of Directo@uthorization, we maintain a common st
repurchase program. Repurchases may be made frantditime at prevailing market prices, subjeatddain restrictions on volume, pricing
and timing. The repurchases are effected from tortene in the open markets through negotiatedsaations and through plans designed to
comply with Rule 10b5-1 under the Securities Exg@Act of 1934, as amended. During the year endsziber 31, 2009, we repurchased
and retired approximately 57.3 shares at an averagshare price of $46.02, for an aggregate dd&2,638.4. During the year ended
December 31, 2008, we repurchased and retired @ippaitely 56.4 shares at an average per share @iri8®8.07, for an aggregate cost of
$3,276.2. During the year ended December 31, 2087epurchased and retired approximately 76.9 stetran average per share price of
$79.99, for an aggregate cost of $6,151.4. Thessxotcost of the repurchased shares over par isbtifarged on a pro rata basis to additional
paid-in capital and retained earnings. On March(®9, our Board of Directors authorized an incressgl1,500.0 in our stock repurchase
program. On October 23, 2009, our Board of Directarthorized an additional increase of $500.0 imstack repurchase program, subject to
completion of the Express Scripts transaction, gerting current market and industry conditionsoABecember 31, 2009, $383.8 remained
authorized for future repurchases. On January @B) 2our Board of Directors increased the sharaersyase authorization by $3,500.0.
Subsequent to December 31, 2009, we repurchasecttired] approximately 6.5 shares for an aggregase of approximately $415.8, leaving
approximately $3,468.0 for authorized future repases at February 10, 2010. Our stock repurchaggagm is discretionary as we are under
no obligation to repurchase shares. We repurchiemes under the program when we believe it is dgruuse of capital.
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15. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

A reconciliation of the components of accumulatéteocomprehensive income (loss) at December 34 fsllows:

Investments
Gross unrealized gait
Gross unrealized loss

Net pretax unrealized gains (loss
Deferred tax (liability) asse
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investm
Non-credit component of OTTI on investmer
Unrealized losse
Deferred tax asst

Net unrealized nc-credit component of OTTI on investme!

Cash flow hedges
Gross unrealized loss
Deferred tax assi

Net unrealized losses on cash flow hec

Defined benefit pension plar
Deferred net actuarial lo:
Deferred prior service credi
Adoption of FASB measurement date provisi
Deferred tax asst

Net unrecognized periodic benefit costs for defibhedefit pension plar

Postretirement benefit plar
Deferred net actuarial lo:
Deferred prior service credi
Adoption of FASB measurement date provisi
Deferred tax asst

Net unrecognized periodic benefit costs for postetent benefit plan

Foreign currency translation adjustme
Gross unrealized gait
Deferred tax liability

Net unrealized gains on foreign currency transtaéidjustmen
Accumulated other comprehensive income (i
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2009 2008
$ 896.F $ 333.¢
(153.7) (1,109.6)
742.¢ (775.7)
(274.9) 277.:
467.¢ (498.)
(32.9) —
12.1 —
(20.7) —
(16.5) (13.2)
5.7 4.7
(10.9) (8.5)
(555.1) (614.6)
6.2 7.2
— (0.2
222.1 247.1
(326.7) (360.5)
(162.9) (147.0
91.( 100.7
— (1.1)
29.1 19.1
(42.9) (28.9)
1.6 —
(0.4) —
1.2 —
$ 68.1 $ (895.7)
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15. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Lossy¢ntinued)

Other comprehensive income (loss) reclassificaidjnstments for the years ended December 31 doi@ss:

2009 2008 2007
Investments
Net holding gain (loss) on investment securitiésiag during the period, net of tax expense
(benefit) of $690.8, $40.8 and $(10.6), respeci' $1,310.¢ $ 97.C $ (5.9
Reclassification adjustment for net realized (I@ssh on investment securities, net of tax
(benefit) expense of $(138.6), $(419.6) and $&8pectively (255.79) (759.9) 7.3
Total reclassification adjustment on investme 1,055.: (662.9
Non-credit component of OTTI on investmer
Cumulative effect of adoption of FASB OTTI guidanoet of tax benefit of $54. (88.9) — —
Non-credit component of OTTI on investments, net ofliarefit of $12.. (20.7) — —
Cash flow hedge:
Holding loss, net of tax benefit of $1.0, $0.2 &1d6, respectivel (2.3 (0.5) (2.4)
Other:
Net change in unrecognized periodic benefit castsl&éfined benefit pension and postretiren
benefit plans, net of tax expense (benefit) of 81$(266.1) and $67.4, respectiv: 19.5 (388.9) 106.2
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net ofetgense of $0. 1.2 — —
Net gain (loss) recognized in other comprehensigere, net of tax expense (benefit) of $50
$(645.1) and $59.1, respective $ 963.¢ $(1,051.)  $106.(

16. Reinsurance

We reinsure certain risks with other companiesasslime risk from other companies. We remain priynkaible to policyholders under
ceded insurance contracts and are contingentlielfalb amounts recoverable from reinsurers in trenéthat such reinsurers do not meet their
contractual obligations.

We evaluate the financial condition of our reinsar@nd monitor concentrations of credit risk agsirom similar geographic regions,
activities, or economic characteristics of the saners to minimize our exposure to significant éssBom reinsurer insolvencies.

A summary of direct, assumed and ceded premiunttewrand earned for the years ended December 34 fidlows:

2009 2008 2007

Written Earned Written Earned Written Earned
Direct $56,518. $56,416.! $57,235.. $57,177.¢ $56,021. $55,957.!
Assumec 84.¢ 76.% 51.7 50.7 47.2 47.F
Cedec (110.0 (110.9 (128.9) (127.5 (135.6 (140.0
Net premiums $56,493.. $56,382.( $57,158.: $57,101.( $55,933.: $55,865.(
Percentage of amount assumed to net prem 0.2% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
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A summary of net premiums written and earned byrseyg (see Note 19) for the years ended Decembisr &kl follows:

2009 2008 2007
Written Earned Written Earned Written Earned
Reportable segment
Commercial $ 34,147t $ 34,123t $ 34,957.( $ 34,917.¢ $ 35,093.! $ 35,105.
Consume 16,213.¢ 16,126.¢ 16,325.( 16,372. 15,348.: 15,249.!
Other 6,131.¢ 6,131.¢ 5,875.¢ 5,810.¢ 5,491 .« 5,510.¢
Net premiums $ 56,493 $ 56,382.( $ 57,158. $ 57,101.( $ 55,933. $ 55,865.

The effect of reinsurance on benefit expense feytars ended December 31 is as follows:

2009 2008 2007
Direct $46,652.: $47,866.. $46,145.
Assumec 40.C 27.1 29.¢
Ceded (121.0) (150.¢) (138.9)
Benefit expens $46,571.. $47,742. $46,037..
The effect of reinsurance on certain assets abdifias at December 31 is as follows:

2009 2008
Policy liabilities, assume $41.1  $97.t
Unearned income, assum 0.5 0.1
Premiums payable, ced 23.Z 41.7
Premiums receivable, assurnr 6.8 13.1

17. Leases

We lease office space and certain computer anteteéuipment using noncancelable operating leas¢d3ecember 31, 2009, future
lease payments for operating leases with initiakanaining noncancelable terms of one year or roonsisted of the following:

2010 $ 126.¢
2011 111.7
2012 95.€
2013 86.€
2014 78.¢
Thereaftel 196.1
Total minimum payments requirt $ 695.¢

We have certain lease agreements that containmnggemti payment provisions. Under these provisiogspay contingent amounts in
addition to base rent, primarily based upon anobahges in the consumer price index. The schedhaleeacontains estimated amounts for
potential future increases in lease payments basélde contingent payment provisions.

Lease expense for 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $22199,Fand $194.8, respectively.
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18. Earnings per Share

The denominator for basic and diluted earningsspare at December 31 is as follows:

2009 2008 2007

Denominator for basic earnings per s—weightecaverage share 476.2 519.6 593.¢
Effect of dilutive securitie—employee and director stock options and non veststticted stock awarc 4.2 3.2 8.€
Denominator for diluted earnings per sh 480.8 523.C 602.(

During the years ended December 31, 2009, 2002@0d, weighted average shares related to certaik siptions of 17.9, 17.5 and 4.8,
respectively, were excluded from the denominatodftuted earnings per share because the stockraptiere anti-dilutive.

19. Segment Information

Our organizational structure is comprised of thmegmortable segments: Commercial, Consumer and OtherCommercial and Consun
segments both offer a diversified mix of manage@ gaoducts, including PPOs, HMOs, traditional imidéty benefits and POS plans, as well
as a variety of hybrid benefit plans, including CP8; hospital only and limited benefit products. ¥feised our reportable segments during the
first quarter of 2008 in accordance with a new aigational structure implemented on January 1, 2@0tich reflects how the chief operating
decision maker evaluates the performance of otuinbss. Segment disclosures for 2007 have beerssifidal to conform to the 2009 and 2008
presentations.

Our Commercial segment includes Local Group (iniclgdUniCare), National Accounts and certain othezildary business operations
(dental, vision, life and disability and workergimpensation). Business units in the Commercial segmffer fully-insured products and
provide a broad array of managed care servicesltdunded customers, including claims processimglerwriting, stop loss insurance,
actuarial services, provider network access, médst management, disease management, wellnegsapre and other administrative
services.

Our Consumer segment includes Senior, State-Spesod Individual business. Senior business inslgdevices such as Medicare Part
D, Medicare Advantage, and Medicare SupplementienBtiateSponsored business includes our managed careait@s for the Medicaid al
State Children’s Health Insurance Plan programs.

Our Other segment includes the Comprehensive H&alliitions Business unit, or CHS, that brings tbgebur resources focused on
optimizing the quality of health care and costafecmanagement. CHS included our PBM businessitmshle to Express Scripts on
December 1, 2009, and also includes provider melaticare and disease management, employee assiptaigrams, including behavioral
health, radiology benefit management and analytiosen personal health care guidance. Our Othensegalso includes results from our
Federal Government Solutions, or FGS, business. fiGBiess includes the Federal Employee ProgranNatidnal Government Services,

Inc., which acts as a Medicare contractor in sdwvegions across the nation. The Other segmentiatéades other businesses that do not meet
the quantitative thresholds for an operating sedrasefined in FASB segment reporting guidanceyedkas intersegment sales and expense
eliminations and corporate expenses not allocateldet other reportable segments.

We define operating revenues to include premiurorime, administrative fees and other revenues. Gpgregvenues are derived from
premiums and fees received primarily from the salé administration of
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19. Segment Information (continued)

health benefit products. Operating gain is caledats total operating revenue less benefit expsefizng, general and administrative expense
and cost of drugs.

Through our participation in various federal goveemt programs, we generated approximately 19%, 2084l7% of our total
consolidated revenues from agencies of the U.Semgovent for the years ended December 31, 2009,, 20@B2007, respectively. These
revenues are contained in the Consumer and Otheresgs.

As a result of cost-reduction initiatives implermeghtluring 2009, we recorded general and adminigtrakpenses of $127.0, $23.6 and
$21.0 for restructuring costs in the Commercialn§loner and Other segments, respectively, for altakality of $171.6, comprised of $123.7
and $47.9 for future payments of employee termiomatiosts and lease and other contract exit cestpectively. We made payments of $8.3
during the year ended December 31, 2009 relatduetoost-reduction initiatives implemented durif2.

As a result of costeduction initiatives implemented during 2008, wearded general and administrative expenses of $3.2 and $29.
for employee termination costs in the Commerciaingimer and Other segments, respectively, forah ltability of $36.7 for future payments
of employee termination costs. We released $11tbeofiability and made payments of $21.7 during year ended December 31, 2009 related
to the cost-reduction initiatives implemented dgr2008.

As of December 31, 2009, a liability of $166.8 rémed for future payments of employee terminatiostsplease exit costs and other
contract exit costs.

The accounting policies of the segments are camdistith those described in the summary of sigaiftcaccounting policies in Note 2
except that certain shared administrative expefmse=ach segment are recognized on a pro ratasdéiddasis, which in aggregate
approximates the consolidated expense. Any differdretween the allocated expenses and actual aetsol expense is included in other
expenses not allocated to reportable segmentsségment sales and expenses are recorded at dosliraimated in the consolidated financial
statements. We evaluate performance of the redersalgments based on operating gain or loss asedefibove. We evaluate investment
income, interest expense, amortization expensérmothe taxes, and asset and liability details ooresolidated basis as these items are
managed in a corporate shared service environnmehdu@ not the responsibility of segment operatirmgagement.
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Financial data by reportable segment for the yeaded December 31 is as follows:

Other and
Commercial Consumer Eliminations Total

Year ended December 31, 20C

Operating revenue from external custon $37,363..  $16,141.( $ 7,323.c $60,828.1
Intersegment revent — — 2,836.¢ 2,836.¢
Elimination of intersegment reven — — (2,836.6) (2,836.€)
Operating gait 2,430.1 1,279. 469.4 4,179.
Depreciation and lease amortization expe — — 291.¢ 291.¢
Year ended December 31, 20C

Operating revenue from external custon $38,009.:  $16,437.. $ 7,132.¢ $61,579.:
Intersegment revent — — 2,572.¢ 2,572.¢
Elimination of intersegment reven — — (2,572.9 (2,572.9
Operating gait 3,392.° 585.1 370.( 4,347.¢
Depreciation and lease amortization expe — — 277.¢ 277.¢
Year ended December 31, 20C

Operating revenue from external custon $38,133." $15,285." $ 6,736. $60,155.1
Intersegment revent — — 2,115.¢ 2,115.¢
Elimination of intersegment reven — — (2,115.9 (2,115.9
Operating gait 3,855.¢ 789.1 339.2 4,984.:
Depreciation and lease amortization expe — — 266.¢ 266.¢

The major product revenues from external custorfogrsach of the reportable segments for the yezile@ December 31, are as follows:

2009 2008 2007
Commercial
Managed care produc $32,955.. $33,676.. $33,853.
Managed care servic 3,167.¢ 3,078.: 3,011.:
Dental/Vision products and servic 831.t 827.¢ 840.%
Other 408.¢ 427.( 428.¢
Total Commercia 37,363.: 38,009.. 38,133
Consumer
Managed care produc 16,126. 16,372.! 15,249.!
Managed care servic 15.C 64.t 36.2
Total Consume 16,141.¢ 16,437.. 15,285."
Other
Government service 6,465.¢ 6,222.! 5,945.¢
Pharmacy products and servit 681.: 716.2 674.5
Other 176.2 193.¢ 115.¢
Total Othet 7,323. 7,132.¢ 6,736.:
Total revenues from external custom $60,828.¢  $61,579.. $60,155.
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The classification between managed care productsremmaged care services in the above table priyrdistinguishes between the level
of risk assumed. Managed care products repressmtance products where we bear the insurancewlseas managed care services repr
product offerings where we provide claims adjudaratind other administrative services to the customout the customer principally bears the
insurance risk.

Asset and equity details by reportable segment hatéeen disclosed, as we do not internally repach information.

A reconciliation of reportable segment operatingereies to the amounts of total revenues includéddtonsolidated statements of
income for the years ended December 31, is asafsllo

2009 2008 2007
Reportable segments operating rever $60,828.¢ $61,579.: $60,155.1
Net investment incom 801.C 851.1 1,001.:
Gain on sale of busine 3,792.: — —

Net realized gains on investme! 56.4 28.7 270.¢
Other-thar-temporary impairment losses recognized in inci (450.2) (1,207.9) (259.7)
Total revenue $65,028.. $61,251.. $61,167.!

A reconciliation of reportable segment operatindndga income before income taxes included in thesctidated statements of income for
the years ended December 31 is as follows:

2009 2008 2007
Reportable segments operating ¢ $4,179. $ 4,347.¢ $4,984..
Net investment incom 801.( 851.1 1,001.:
Gain on sale of busine 3,792.: — —

Net realized gains on investme! 56.4 28.7 270.¢
Otherthar-temporary impairment losses recognized in inci (450.2) (1,207.9 (259.%)
Interest expens (447.9) (469.9) (447.9
Amortization of other intangible asst (266.0) (286.7) (290.7)
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible as: (262.5) (141.9 —

Income before income tax $7,403.( $3,122.¢ $5,257.¢

20. Related Party Transactions

WellPoint Foundation, Inc., or the Foundation,isiadiana non-profit organization exempt from feddeéaxation under Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code. The Foundation wasdd to conduct, support and assist charitabldttheslated, educational, and other
community-based programs and projects. The offiaatsdirectors of the Foundation are also our efficThese officers and directors receive
no compensation from the Foundation for the manageservices performed for the Foundation but meayeimbursed by the Foundation for
any cash expenditures incurred on behalf of thenBation. We received $0.6 from the Foundation tbmiistrative services provided by our
associates in 2009. The Foundation is not a swgidif ours and the financial results of the Fotiotheare not consolidated with our financial
statements. A contribution of $10.0 was made td=tnendation in 2009; no contributions were mad#aé&Foundation in 2008 or 2007. We
have no current legal obligations for future conmaits to the Foundation.
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21. Statutory Information (Unaudited)

Our insurance and HMO subsidiaries, excluding Bluess of California, report their accounts in canfity with accounting practices
prescribed or permitted by state insurance regylatothorities, or statutory, which vary in certa@spects from GAAP. Blue Cross of
California is regulated by the California DepartmehManaged Health Care and reports its accountsmnformity with GAAP. Typical
differences of GAAP reporting as compared to stayuteporting are the inclusion of unrealized gainfosses relating to fixed maturity
securities in shareholders’ equity, recognitioralbfissets including those that are non-admittedtitutory purposes and recognition of all
deferred tax assets without regard to statutoritdinthe National Association of Insurance Comnaissis, or NAIC, developed a codified
version of the statutory accounting principles,igiesd to foster more consistency among the statescicounting guidelines and reporting.

Our insurance and HMO subsidiaries that are subjestatutory reporting are domiciled in variousgdictions. These subsidiaries
prepare statutory financial statements in accorelavith accounting practices prescribed or permitiethe respective jurisdictions’ insurance
regulators. Prescribed statutory accounting prestére set forth in a variety of publications & MAIC as well as state laws, regulations and
general administrative rules.

Our ability to pay dividends and credit obligatiossignificantly dependent on receipt of dividefidsn our subsidiaries. The paymen
dividends to us by our insurance and HMO subsielawiithout prior approval of the insurance depantsief each subsidiary’s domiciliary
jurisdiction is limited by formula. Dividends in egss of these amounts are subject to prior apphyvtile respective state insurai
departments or the California Department of Manddedith Care.

Our statutory basis insurance and HMO subsidianiesubject to risk-based capital requirementk-Riésed capital is a method
developed by the NAIC to determine the minimum antaf statutory capital appropriate for an insuenompany or HMO to support its
overall business operations in consideration ddiite and risk profile. The formula for determinithg amount of risk-based capital specifies
various factors, weighted based on the perceivgdegeof risk, which are applied to certain finahb@ances and financial activity. Below
minimum risk-based capital requirements are cleskifvithin certain levels, each of which requirpsdfied corrective action. Additionally,
Blue Cross of California is subject to capital @ativency requirements as prescribed by the Caldddepartment of Managed Health Care. As
of December 31, 2009 and 2008, all of our regulatdskidiaries exceeded the minimum risk-basedaagitjuirements and/or capital and
solvency requirements of their applicable governtaleregulator.

Statutory-basis capital and surplus of our insueaared HMO subsidiaries and capital and surplusiobther regulated subsidiaries,
excluding Blue Cross of California, was $7,659.8 &i,121.3 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respéctiStatutory-basis net income of our
insurance and HMO subsidiaries and net income obther regulated subsidiaries, excluding Blue €mfsCalifornia, was $4,643.6, $2,719.8
and $3,091.4 for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respecti@NAP equity of Blue Cross of California was $1,3¥@nd $1,217.8 at December 31, 2009
and 2008, respectively. GAAP net income of BluesSrof California was $450.5, $285.9 and $716.9Heryears ended December 31, 2009,
2008 and 2007, respectively.
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22. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Selected quarterly financial data is as follows:

For the Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 3( December 3
2009
Total revenue $15,143.  $15,413.. $15,425.. $19,046.!
Income before income tax 893.¢ 1,052.! 1,117.: 4,339.°
Net income 580.¢ 693.t 730.z 2,741.¢
Basic net income per she 1.17 1.44 1.5t 6.02
Diluted net income per sha 1.1€ 1.4% 1.5z 5.9t
2008
Total revenue $15,553." $15,666.f $ 14,961.( $15,069.!
Income before income tax 879.2 1,186.( 549.¢ 507.¢
Net income 588.1 750.5 820.7 331.¢
Basic net income per she 1.0¢ 1.44 1.61 0.6t
Diluted net income per sha 1.07 1.44 1.6C 0.6%

23. Subsequent Events

In May 2009, the FASB issued subsequent eventsagu&l which establishes general standards of atinguor and disclosure of events
that occur after the balance sheet date but béfarcial statements are issued. We have evalsatieskquent events for recognition or
disclosure through the time of filing these cordaied financial statements on Form 10-K with th€®& February 18, 2010 and no events,
other than those described in these notes, haveredcthat require disclosure pursuant to suchagnae.

151



Table of Contents

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

There have been no changes in or disagreement®witindependent registered public accounting filmaccounting or financial
disclosures.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation as of December 319 200der the supervision and with the participatbour management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officef the effectiveness of the design and operaifosur disclosure controls and procedure
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Securities Excleafgt of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Actedapon that evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer comdéd that our disclosure controls and proceduregfective in timely alerting them to
material information relating to us (including aonsolidated subsidiaries) required to be disclasedir reports under the Exchange Act. In
addition based on that evaluation, the Chief Exeeu®fficer and Chief Financial Officer concluddtht our disclosure controls and procedures
were effective in ensuring that information reqdite be disclosed by us in the reports that wediilsubmit under the Exchange Act is
accumulated and communicated to our managemehiding the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Fina©fficer, as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management, under the supervision and with théqigation of the principal executive officer andrmuipal financial officer, of
WellPoint, Inc., or the Company, is responsibledstablishing and maintaining effective internaitcol over financial reporting, or Internal
Control, as such term is defined in the Securlieshange Act of 1934, as amended. The Companyesriat Control is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilith@Qompany’s financial reporting and the preparatibfinancial statements for external
reporting purposes in accordance with U.S. geneaaitepted accounting principles, or GAAP. The Canys Internal Control includes those
policies and procedures that (i) pertain to thentesiance of records that in reasonable detail atelyrand fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (ii¥j@e reasonable assurance that transactions avalegtas necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with GAAP, dad teceipts and expenditures of the Company ang lmeade only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of thve@any; and (iii) provide reasonable assurancerdagaprevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of@menpany’s assets that could have a material efiethe financial statements.

Because of inherent limitations in any Internal €okno matter how well designed, misstatementstduerror or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Accordingly, even effective Inééi@ontrol can provide only reasonable assurangardéng the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetméor external purposes in accordance with GAAP.

Management, under the supervision and with theqgjaation of the principal executive officer andrmipal financial officer, assessed "
effectiveness of the Company’s Internal ControbBecember 31, 2009. Management’s assessmentagasl lon criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued byGloenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TweadCommission.

Based on management’s assessment, managemeninkagled that the Company’s Internal Control wasdfie as of December 31,
2009 to provide reasonable assurance regardinghkiagility of financial reporting and the prepacsatt of financial statements for external
reporting purposes in accordance with GAAP.

152



Table of Contents

Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s independent registi public accounting firm, has audited the cddatéd financial statements of
the Company for the year ended December 31, 20@Phas also issued an audit report dated Febr@rgQ10, on the effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2009, which is included in Arisual Report on Form 10-K.

/s/ ANGELAF. BRALY Is/ WAYNE S. DEV EYDT
President and Executive Vice President and
Chief Executive Office Chief Financial Office

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

We have implemented certain enhancements to aennigit controls over financial reporting within dsenior business partly in response
to CMS’ requests for corrective action plans inmeetion with the marketing of and enroliment in Medicare Advantage and Medicare Part
D prescription drug plans. On September 9, 20095Cidtified us that the sanctions have been liftemlvever, we are not currently eligible to
receive auto-enrollment or reassignment of Medi€ae D Low Income Subsidy, or LIS, beneficiarid&e continue to work with CMS to
demonstrate that our operations related to the déeeiPart D LIS programs have been corrected sovihavill again be allowed to participate
in the Medicare Part D LIS auto-assignment procé8sle we have enhanced certain internal contrelksted to our Senior business, there have
been no changes in our internal control over fifgmeporting that occurred during the year endeddnber 31, 2009 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf, our internal control over financial reporting

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

Shareholders and Board of Directors
WellPoint, Inc.

We have audited WellPoint, Inc.’s internal contekr financial reporting as of December 31, 20@&€al on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued byGoenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TweadCommission (the “COSO
criteria”). WellPoint, Inc.’s management is respbfesfor maintaining effective internal control avimancial reporting, and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over fingh reporting included in the accompanying Managetis Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to exggen opinion on the company’s internal controlrdvencial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightq&@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg®@feness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsreg considered necessary in the circumstanceseliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablezassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thgté€ttain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@éawith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabsurance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzareaterial effect on the financial statements.
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, WellPoint, Inc. maintained, in adbterial respects, effective internal control diileaincial reporting as of December 31,
2009, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of WellPoint, Incf&@ecember 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related tidased statements of income,
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each efttinee years in the period ended December 31, @00&IIPoint, Inc. and our report dated
February 18, 2010 expressed an unqualified opitiiereon.

/s/  ERNST& Y OUNGL LP
Indianapolis, Indiana
February 18, 2010
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item concerning Buecutive Officers, Directors and nominees forebtor, Audit Committee members
and financial expert(s) and concerning disclosti@etinquent filers under Section 16(a) of the Exoge Act and our Standards of Business
Conduct is incorporated herein by reference fromdadinitive Proxy Statement for our 2010 Annualé¥lag of Shareholders, which will be
filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A withi20 days after the end of our last fiscal year.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item concerninmtmeration of our Executive Officers and Directonsiterial transactions involving
such Executive Officers and Directors and Compaéms&ommittee interlocks, as well as the Compensaliommittee Report, are
incorporated herein by reference from our defieitiRroxy Statement for our 2010 Annual Meeting ddr8holders, which will be filed with the
SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 daysrdfie end of our last fiscal year.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item concerning ftock ownership of management and five percemgfimal owners and securities
authorized for issuance under equity compensatamsgs incorporated herein by reference from @&finitive Proxy Statement for our 2010
Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which will be fileith the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within H2§s after the end of our last fiscal
year.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item concerningt@@ relationships and related person transactmlsdirector independence is
incorporated herein by reference from our defieitiRroxy Statement for our 2010 Annual Meeting ddr8holders, which will be filed with the
SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 daysrdfie end of our last fiscal year.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item concerningpipal accounting fees and services is incorparagzein by reference from our
definitive Proxy Statement for our 2010 Annual Megtof Shareholders, which will be filed with th&S pursuant to Regulation 14A within
120 days after the end of our last fiscal year.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@) 1. Financial Statements:
The following consolidated financial statementshaf Company are set forth in Part Il, Iten

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEimm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&002008
Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearseéibecember 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007
Consolidated Statements of Sharehol' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2009, 20082007
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeradled December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedule:

The following financial statement schedule of the@®any is included in Item 15(¢

Schedule —Condensed Financial Information of Registrant (Ra@ompany Only)

All other schedules for which provision is madehie applicable accounting regulations of the SECnat required under the
related instructions, are inapplicable, or the megliinformation is included in the consolidatedincial statements, and therefore
have been omitted.

3. Exhibits:
A list of exhibits required to be filed as parttbfs report is set forth in the Index to Exhibitd)ich immediately precedes st
exhibits, and is incorporated herein by reference.
(b) Exhibits
The response to this portion of Item 15 is submiitie a separate section of this report.
(c) Financial Statement Schedule
Schedule —Condensed Financial Information of Registrant (Ra@ompany Only)
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant
WellPoint, Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Balance Sheet:

(In millions, except share dat

Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Investments availak-for-sale, at fair value
Fixed maturity securities (amortized cost of $1,06d $28.0
Equity securities (cost of $23.4 and $4¢
Other invested assets, curr
Other receivable
Income taxes receivab
Net due from subsidiarie
Securities lending collater
Deferred tax assets, r
Other current asse
Total current asse
Long-term investments availal-for-sale, at fair value
Fixed maturity securities (amortized cost of $hd 282.3’
Equity securities (cost of $7.1 and $7
Other invested assets, Ic-term
Property and equipment, r
Deferred tax assets, net, I-current
Investment in subsidiarie
Other noncurrent asse

Total assets

Liabilities and shareholders equity

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expel
Securities trades pending paya
Securities lending payab
Current portion of lon-term debt
Other current liabilitie:

Total current liabilities

Long-term debi

Other noncurrent liabilitie

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenc—Note 5

Shareholders equity

Preferred stock, without par value, shares autec—100,000,000; shares issued and outsta—none

Common stock, par value $0.01, shares authc—900,000,000; shares issued and outstanding: 448,783anc
503,230,57¢

Additional paic-in capital

Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive income (i

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

See accompanying notes.
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December 31
2009 2008
$ 3,318.: $ 362.7
1,169.¢ 17.:
27.1 45.2
9.3 7.1
179.( 11.C
93.t 177.2
420.( 1,123.-
32.¢ 18.2
105.C 28.C
98.1 85.1
5,453.: 1,875..
— 258.1
7.1 7.3
394.2 340.7
3.3 4.
277.5 385.t
27,492.¢ 27,318.i
95.: 131.7
$33,723.. $30,322.:
$ 358.1 $ 222t
36.1 —
32.¢€ 18.2
52.t 892.¢
232.¢ 116.€
712.4 1,249.°
7,908.: 7,396.:
239.¢ 244t
8,859.¢ 8,890.¢
4.5 5.C
15,192.. 16,843.(
9,598.! 5,479..
68.1 (895.%)
24,863.. 21,431,
$33,723.. $30,322.:
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant—(continued)

WellPoint, Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Statements of Income

(In millions)

Revenues
Net investment incom
Net realized (losses) gains on investme

Othel-thar-temporary impairment losses on investme
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment losses on investme
Portion of othe-thar-temporary impairment losses recognized in otherprefrensive incom
Otherthar-temporary impairment losses recognized in inci
Other revenu:
Total revenue
Expenses
General and administrative expel
Interest expens
Total expense
Loss before income tax credits and equity in net tome of subsidiaries
Income tax credit
Equity in net income of subsidiari
Net income

See accompanying notes.
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Years ended December 3

2009 2008 2007

$ 356 $ 83z $ 110
(1.6) (6.9 13.2
(47.9) (306.) (32.2)

6.€ — —
(41.2) (306.7) (32.2)
0.4 0.4 0.4
(6.6) (229.5) 91.¢
116.4 106.¢ 183.
419. 440§ 415.¢
535.¢ 547. 599.
(542.5) (777.2) (507.2)
(227.9) (359.9) (179.9)
5,060.: 2,908.¢ 3,673.!
$4,745.¢  $2,490..  $3,345.
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant—(continued)

WellPoint, Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In millions)

Operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:
Distributed earnings of subsidiari
Net realized gains (losses) on investm:
Othel-thar-temporary impairment losses recognized in inc
Loss on disposal of ass¢
Deferred income taxe
Amortization, net of accretio
Depreciatior
Shar-based compensatic
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffett of business combinatior
Receivables, ne
Other invested assets, curr
Other asset
Amounts due to (from) subsidiari
Accounts payable and accrued expet
Other liabilities
Income taxe:

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities

Purchases of investmer

Proceeds from sales, maturities and redemptioimssetments
Capitalization of subsidiarie

Payment for settlement of cash flow hes

Change in securities lending collate

Other, ne

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activitie

Financing activities

Net (payment) proceeds from commercial paper barmgs
Proceeds from lor-term borrowings

Repayment of lor-term borrowings

Changes in securities lending paya

Change in bank overdral

Repurchase and retirement of common s

Proceeds from exercise of employee stock optiodsamployee stock purchase p
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic

Net cash used in financing activitie:

Change in cash and cash equivalt

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of yei

See accompanying notes.
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Year ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

$4,745¢  $2490.  $3,345.
602. 973.F 772.¢
1.6 6.9 (13.49)
41.: 306.: 32.2

1.3 — —
11.2 (3.9) (136.9)
(1.6) 11.2 16.€
0.3 0.4 0.2
153.¢€ 156.( 177.1
(9.6) (16.0) (153.9)
(62.2) 5.2 12.
2.2) 1.9 21.:
(13.5) (68.4) (32.5)
949. (859.) (155.5)
144.¢ 55.¢ (33.6)
124.¢ (506.9) (55.4)
84.( (94.5 58.¢
6,771.( 2,450 ¢ 3,856.(
(1,052  (1,155.  (1,704.)
144.F 2,363.. 1,275.¢
(6.4) (88.7) (12.7)

(3.2) — —
(14.7) 190. 69.¢
(65.2) 84.F (40.2)
(997.9) 1,393.¢ (411.)
(397.0 (900.6) 502.¢
990.: 525.( 1,978.
(906.7) (26.9) (500.0)
14.7 (190.9) (69.9)
17.9) (35.9) (70.5)
(2,638.) (3,276  (6,151.)
126.F 121. 784.F
9.6 16.C 153.7
(2,817.)  (3,766.)  (3,372.9
2,955.¢ 87.1 72.E
362.7 275.¢ 203.1
$3318. $ 3627 $ 275¢
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant—(continued)

WellPoint, Inc.
(Parent Company Only)
Notes to Condensed Financial Statements

December 31, 200!
(In Millions, Except Per Share Data)

1. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountingolicies

In the parent company only financial statementé/eflPoint, Inc., or WellPoint, WellPoint’s investmisin subsidiaries is stated at cost
plus equity in undistributed earnings of the sulasids. WellPoint's share of net income of its umealidated subsidiaries is included in income
using the equity method of accounting.

Certain amounts presented in the parent comparyyfimincial statements are eliminated in the cadatéd financial statements of
WellPoint.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiedhform to the current year presentation.

WellPoint’'s parent company only financial statensestiould be read in conjunction with WellPoint'slid consolidated financial
statements and the accompanying notes includédsifrorm 10-K.

2. Subsidiary Transactions
Dividends
WellPoint received cash dividends from subsidiac£$5,662.7, $3,882.1, and $4,446.4 during 200982and 2007, respectively.
Investment in Subsidiarie
Capital contributions to subsidiaries were $6.48.$8and $12.7 during 2009, 2008, and 2007, resadet
Amounts Due to and From Subsidiarie

At December 31, 2009 and 2008 WellPoint reporte2Ddtand $1,123.4 due from subsidiaries, respédgtif@ese amounts consisted
principally of administrative expenses and areiraly settled, and as such, are classified as otuassets.

Sale of PBM Busines

On December 1, 2009, certain subsidiaries of WeitPsmld their pharmacy benefits management sudsédi, or PBM business, to
Express Scripts, Inc., or Express Scripts, andvedeb4,675.0 in cash, subject to customary worlkiagjtal adjustments. The pre-tax and after-
tax gains on the sale were $3,792.3 and $2,36dspectively. The after-tax gain of $2,361.2 isuideld as equity in net income of subsidiaries
in WellPoint's parent company only income statement

3. Derivative Financial Instruments

The information regarding derivative financial inshents contained in Note 5 of the Notes to Codatdid Financial Statements of
WellPoint and its subsidiaries is incorporated lebg reference.

160



Table of Contents

Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant—(continued)

WellPoint, Inc.
(Parent Company Only)
Notes to Condensed Financial Statements

4. Long-Term Debt
The carrying value of long-term debt at Decembec@isists of the following:

December 31

2009 2008
Senior unsecured note
4.250%, face amount of $300.0, due 2! $ — $ 299:
5.000%, face amount of $700.0, due 2 698.7 697.:
6.800%, face amount of $800.0, due 2/ 846.2 856.F
5.000%, face amount of $500.0, due 2! 532.¢ 557.¢
6.000%, face amount of $400.0, due 2 396.¢ —
5.250%, face amount of $1,100.0, due 2 1,092.: 1,090.¢
5.875%, face amount of $700.0, due 2 692.1 691.1
7.000%, face amount of $600.0, due 2! 594 —
5.264%, face amount of $1,090.0, due 2 — 526.7
5.950%, face amount of $500.0, due 2! 4947 494.F
5.850%, face amount of $900.0, due 2 889.< 889.(
6.375%, face amount of $800.0, due 2/ 789.4 789.2
Variable rate deb
Commercial paper progra 500.¢ 897.¢
Senior term loal 433.1 498.¢
Total debi 7,960.¢ 8,288."
Current portion of det (52.5) (892.9)
Long-term debt, less current portii $7,908.: $7,396.:

In July 2009, May 2009 and March 2009, we repureti&390.0, $300.0 and $400.0, respectively, ofsdy090.0 face value due at
maturity zero coupon notes. The notes were issuédigust 2007 in a private placement transactioa.paid cash totaling $553.8 to
repurchase the notes, which had a remaining carmatue of zero at December 31, 2009.

On February 5, 2009 we issued $400.0 of 6.000%sroie 2014 and $600.0 of 7.000% notes due 2019 andgpdated shelf registrati
statement filed with the U.S Securities and Excleagmmission, or SEC, on December 12, 2008. Theepds from this debt issuance were
used for general corporate purposes, includingnbutimited to, repayment of short-term debt agpurchasing shares of our common stock.
The notes have a call feature that allows us tarsase the notes at anytime at our option and &pture that allows a note holder to require
us to repurchase the notes upon the occurrencetlofabchange of control event and a downgradeeohtites.

On December 12, 2008, we filed an updated sheiétragion with the SEC to register an unlimited amioof any combination of debt or
equity securities in one or more offerings. Spedifformation regarding terms and securities beifigred will be provided at the time of an
offering. Proceeds from future offerings are expddb be used for general corporate purposes,dimguhe repayment of debt, capitalization
of our subsidiaries, repurchases of our commorkstothe financing of possible acquisitions or Inesis expansion.
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant—(continued)

WellPoint, Inc.
(Parent Company Only)
Notes to Condensed Financial Statements
4. Long-Term Debt (continued)

On April 29, 2008, we borrowed $525.0 under a thyear senior term loan agreement, the proceed$imhwwere used for general
corporate purposes. The interest rate on this keamis based on either (i) the LIBOR rate plusedptermined percentage rate based on our
credit rating, or (ii) the base rate as definethmterm loan agreement, which was 3.250% at DeeeBih 2009.

We have a senior revolving credit facility, or flagility, with certain lenders for general corp@&a@urposes. The facility, as amended,
provides credit up to $2,392.0 and matures on &ame 30, 2011. The interest rate on this faciltypased on either (i) the LIBOR rate plus a
predetermined percentage rate based on our cagiig rat the date of utilization, or (ii) a basteras defined in the facility agreement. Our
ability to borrow under the facility is subject¢ompliance with certain covenants. Commitment feeshe facility were $1.5, $1.6 and $1.8 in
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and there amnditions that are probable of occurring undeictvithe facility may be withdrawn. There
were no amounts outstanding under the facilityfd3ezember 31, 2009 or 2008, or during the yeaza #imded. At December 31, 2009, we
$2,392.0 available under this facility.

We have an authorized commercial paper progranp @6 $2,500.0, the proceeds of which may be useddberal corporate purposes.
The weighted-average interest rate on commerc@plorrowings at December 31, 2009 and 2008 va0and 5.33%, respectively.
Commercial paper borrowings have been classifiddragsterm debt at December 31, 2009 and 2008 mpraatice and intent is to replace
short-term commercial paper outstanding at expinatvith additional short-term commercial paperdaruninterrupted period extending for
more than one year or our ability to redeem ourmencial paper with borrowings under the senior itrfiadility described above.

Interest paid during 2009, 2008, and 2007 was $368l08.5, and $388.7, respectively.
We were in compliance with all applicable covenamtder our outstanding debt agreements.

Future maturities of long-term debt are as follo2&10, $553.1; 2011, $1,079.3; 2012, $846.2; 2603); 2014, $929.7; and thereafter,
$4,552.3.

5. Commitments and Contingencies

The information regarding commitments and contirmgesicontained in Note 13 of the Notes to Const#idi&kinancial Statements of
WellPoint and its subsidiaries is incorporated heby reference.

6. Capital Stock

The information regarding capital stock containe®bte 14 of the Notes to Consolidated Financiatédhents of WellPoint and its
subsidiaries is incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

W ELL PoINT, INC.

By: /s|  ANGELAF. BRALY

Angela F. Braly
President and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: February 18, 2010

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ites indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/  ANGELAF. BRALY President and Chief Executive Officer and Dires February 18, 201
Angela F. Braly (Principal Executive Officer
/s/  WAYNE S. DEV EYDT Executive Vice President aithief Financial Office February 18, 2010
Wayne S. DeVeydt (Principal Financial Officer
/s/  MARTINL. M ILLER Senior Vice President, Controller, Chief Accounting February 18, 2010
Martin L. Miller Officer and Chief Risk Officer (Principal
Accounting Officer)
/sl LARRY C. GLASSCOCK Chairman of the Boar February 18, 201
Larry C. Glasscock
/s| LENOxD. B AKER, JR., M.D. Director February 18, 201
Lenox D. Baker, Jr., M.D.
/s/  SusaNB. B AYH Director February 18, 201
Susan B. Bayh
/s| SHEILA P. BURKE Director February 18, 2010
Sheila P. Burke
/sl WiLLiAM H.T. BusH Director February 18, 2010
William H.T. Bush
/sl JuLie A. HiLL Director February 18, 2010
Julie A. Hill
/s/  WARRENY. JOBE Director February 18, 2010
Warren Y. Jobe
/s|  VICTORS. Liss Director February 18, 2010
Victor S. Liss
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Signature
/s  WiLLiam G. M AYs

William G. Mays

/s/ RaAMIRO G. PERU

Ramiro G. Peru

/s/  JaNE G. PisaNo, PH.D.

Jane G. Pisano, Ph.D.

/s/  SENATORD onNALD W. RIEGLE, JR.

Senator Donald W. Riegle, Jr.

/s/  WiLLiam J. RYAN

William J. Ryan

/s/ GEORGEA. S CHAEFER, JR.

George A. Schaefer, Jr.

/s/ JackiE M. W ARD

Jackie M. Ward

/s/ JoHNE. ZuccoTTl

John E. Zuccotti

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Date

February 18, 201
February 18, 201
February 18, 201
February 18, 201
February 18, 201
February 18, 201
February 18, 201

February 18, 201
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Exhibit

Number
2.1
3.1
3.2

4.1
4.2
4.3

4.4

4.€

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Stock and Interest Purchase Agreement dated Ap2i0Q9, by and between the Company and Expresgt§dmc.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the @amy’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed April 13, 2009.

Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amehdgfective May 17, 2007, incorporated by referetacExhibit 3.1 to the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on May 18, 2007

By-laws of the Company, amended effective Octol3er2B09, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 8.zhe Company’s
Current Report on Fornm-K filed on October 28, 200!

Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amehdffective May 17, 2007 (Included in Exhibit 3.
By-laws of the Company, amended and restated effeCttteber 23, 2009 (Included in Exhibit 3.

Specimen of Certificate of the Company’s commorelst$0.01 par value per share, incorporated byeatse to Exhibit 4.1
to the Compar’s Registration Statement on Fori-8 filed on December 28, 2005 (Registration N0.-130743).

Indenture, dated as of July 31, 2002, between tmpgany and The Bank of New York, as trustee, inoated by referenc
to Exhibit 4.13 to the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

(a) First Supplemental Indenture, dated as lgf Ji, 2002, between the Company and The Bank @f Nerk, Trustee
establishing 6.800% Notes due 2012, incorporatectfgrence to Exhibit 4.14 to the Company’s QuértReport on
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

(b) Form of 6.800% Note due 2012 (Included imiBK 4.4(a)), incorporated by reference to Exhibit4 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

Amended and Restated Indenture, dated as of JB@08&, by and between WellPoint Health Networks (as predecess
by merger to Anthem Holding Corp., “WellPoint Hééljtand The Bank of New York, as trustee, incorpordtgdeference 1
Exhibit 4.3 to WellPoint Heal’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on June 12, 200:

(&) First Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofeNtber 30, 2004, between Anthem Holding Corp. almel Bank of New
York, as trustee, incorporated by reference to kikHil1(a) to the Company’s Annual Report on FAOK for the
year ended December 31, 20

(b) Form of Note evidencing WellPoint Health’$ /g % Notes due 2012, incorporated by referencextotit 4.1 to
WellPoint Healtl's Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 16, 200

Indenture, dated as of December 9, 2004, betwee@dmpany and The Bank of New York Trust Company.Nas trustee
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the @am’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on December 15, 200

(@) Form of the Compa’s 5.000% Notes due 2014 (included in Exhibit 4
(b) Form of the Compar’s 5.950% Notes due 2034 (included in Exhibit 4

Indenture, dated as of January 10, 2006, betwee@dmpany and The Bank of New York Trust Compan.Nas trustee
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the @am’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 11, 200

(@) Form of 5.00% Notes due 2011, incorporateceference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Comp’s Current Report on Form-K
filed on January 11, 200
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Exhibit
Number

4.8

10.1*

10.2*

Exhibit

(b)
(c)
(d)
()
(f)
(9)

Form of 5.25% Notes due 2016, incorporatgdetierence to Exhibit 4.3 to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-K
filed on January 11, 200

Form of 5.85% Notes due 2036, incorporatgdeference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-K
filed on January 11, 200

Form of 5.875% Notes due 2017, incorporétedeference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s CuriReport on Form 8-
K filed on June 8, 200°

Form of 6.375% Notes due 2037, incorporatedeference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Curfeeport on Form 8-
K filed on June 8, 200°

Form of 6.000% Notes due 2014, incorpordigdeference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s CutrfReport on Form 8-
K filed on February 5, 200!

Form of 7.000% Notes due 2019, incorporétedeference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-
K filed on February 5, 200!

Upon the request of the Securities and Exchangen@ission, the Company will furnish copies of anyestmstrument:
defining the rights of holders of lo-term debt of the Company or its subsidiar

Anthem 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, amended andtesktes of January 1, 2003, incorporated by referém&xhibit 10.1(iii)
to the Compar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

(@)

(b)

(€)

(d)

()

Form of Stock Incentive Plan General Stogki@h Grant Agreement as of March 1, 2006, incoapent by reference to
Exhibit 10.1(b) to the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20

Form of Stock Incentive Plan Stock Optiora@rAgreement with Larry Glasscock as of March@Q&, incorporated t
reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) to the Comp’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20

Form of Stock Incentive Plan General RestdcStock Award Agreement as of March 1, 2006, ipeated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) to the Comp’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20

Form of Stock Incentive Plan Restricted &tdward Agreement for Annual Bonus over two timaget as of March
2006, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1¢the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qtti@r quarter
ended March 31, 200

Form of Stock Incentive Plan Restricted 8tAward Agreement with Larry Glasscock as of Mat¢t2006,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(e) to@umpany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thartgr ended
March 31, 2006

WellPoint Incentive Compensation Plan as amendéddestated effective May 20, 2009, incorporatededfgrence to Exhik
99 to the Compar's Registration Statement on For-8 filed June 8, 200¢

(@)

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan NondjegaiStock Option Award Agreement under the 200&htive
Compensation Plan, incorporated by reference takixt0.58(a) to the Company’s Quarterly Reportramm 106 for
the quarter ended June 30, 2C
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit

(b)

(©)

(d)

()

(f
(9)
(h)

(i)

1)

(k)

0

(m)

(n)

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan NondigaliStock Option Award Agreement for Larry C. Glasck under th
2006 Incentive Compensation Plan, incorporatedefgrence to Exhibit 10.58 (b) to the Compan@uarterly Repo
on Form 1-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Restd$tock Award Agreement under the 2006 Incentivm@ensation
Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.58¢c¢he Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qtti@ quarter
ended June 30, 200

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Restdc$tock Award Agreement for Annual Bonus over tines targe
under the 2006 Incentive Compensation Plan, incatpd by reference to Exhibit 10.58 (d) to the Camyps
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Regtd&@tock Award Agreement with Larry C. Glasscoclanthe 2006
Incentive Compensation Plan, incorporated by refegdo Exhibit 10.58(e) to the Company’s Quart&gport on
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2C

Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement under th@@hcentive Compensation Plan, incorpor:
by reference to Exhibit 10.58(f) to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on November 2, 200!

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreementemithe 2006 Incentive Compensation Plan, incorpdray reference
to Exhibit 10.58(g) to the Compa’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed on November 2, 200t

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Regtdc$tock Unit Award Agreement under the 2006 Ingent
Compensation Plan, incorporated by reference toldixt0.2(i) to the Company’s Quarterly Report aora 10-Q
for the quarter ended March 31, 20

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Nondieal Stock Option Award Agreement under the 200éehtive
Compensation Plan, incorporated by reference todixt0.2(j) to the Company’s Quarterly Report aorfa 10-Q
for the quarter ended March 31, 20

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Nondigal Stock Option Award Agreement for 2008 undez 2006
Incentive Compensation Plan, incorporated by refegeo Exhibit 10.2(k) to the Company’s Annual Repm Form
1C-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Grant Agreernfem 2008 under the 2006 Incentive Compensati@m Hhcorporated
by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on March 7, 200¢

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Nondigal Stock Option Award Agreement for 2009 undez 2006
Incentive Compensation Plan, incorporated by refegdo Exhibit 10.2(m) to the CompasyAnnual Report on For
1C-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Grant Agreemiant2009 under the 2006 Incentive Compensation,Rifecorporates
by reference to Exhibit 10.2(n) to the Company’'18al Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Decerbe
2008.

Form of Performance Share Award Agreemen2@®9 under the 2006 Incentive Compensation Raoyporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.2(0) to the Comp’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C
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Number

10.z*

10.4*

10.5*

10.€*

10.7

10.&

10.¢*

Exhibit

WellPoint, Inc. Comprehensive Non-Qualified Defer@ompensation Plan, effective January 1, 200@rpuarated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Comp’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

WellPoint, Inc. Executive Agreement Plan, amendedi r@stated effective January 1, 2009, incorporhyectference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the Compa’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

(&) Amendment to the WellPoint, Inc. Executivgréement Plan effective as of April 1, 2009, inaogted by reference

Exhibit 10.4(a) of the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20

WellPoint, Inc. Executive Salary Continuation P&ffective January 1, 2006, incorporated by refezend=xhibit 10.59 t
the Compan's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

WellPoint Directed Executive Compensation Plan asedreffective January 1, 2009, incorporated byresiee to Exhibi
10.6 to the Compar's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

WellPoint, Inc. Board of Directors Compensationdein, as amended March 1, 2010, incorporated leyaete to Exhibit
10.7 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K filed on February 3, 201(

WellPoint Board of Directors’ Deferred CompensatiRlan, as amended and restated effective Janu2609, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Comp’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 1999 Stock Incenti®an (as amended through December 6, 2000), incatgd by
reference to Exhibit 10.37 to WellPoint Heis Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

(€)

Form of WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 198fbck Incentive Plan Notice of Grant of Stock Optamd Stock Option
Agreement, revised December 2001, incorporatect®rence to Exhibit 10.01 to WellPoint Health’s @ady Report
on Form 1-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

Form of WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 198fbck Incentive Plan Notice of Grant of Stock Optand Stock Option
Agreement, revised September 2003, incorporatagfeyence to Exhibit 10.02 to WellPoint HeadtlQuarterly Repo
on Form 1-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

Form of WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 199fbck Incentive Plan Restricted Share Right Gragre@ment (Non-
Officers), as of January 26, 2004, incorporateddbgrence to Exhibit 10.05 to WellPoint Health’sa@erly Report on
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

Form of WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 198fbck Incentive Plan Restricted Share Right GragreAment (Officers’
as of January 26, 2004, incorporated by referem&xhibit 10.06 to WellPoint Health’s Quarterly Repon Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

Form of WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 198&@ck Incentive Plan Notice of Automatic Grant éé¢k Option, Notice
of Annual Automatic Grant of Stock Option, Notick@rant of Stock Option and Automatic Stock Optisgreement
for Non-Employee Directors, incorporated by refeeto Exhibit 10.09 to WellPoint Health’s QuarteRgport on
Form1C-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2
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10.1¢*

10.1%

10.12

10.1%

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.13

Exhibit

RightCHOICE Managed Care, Inc. Supplemental ExgeuRetirement Plan as restated effective Octobg2Q@1,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.06 to Weil? Health's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thearter ended March
31, 2002.

Employment Agreement between WellPoint, Inc. ang&a F. Braly, dated as of February 24, 2007, ipoated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on February 26, 200

(@) Amendment to Employment Agreement betweeliRimt, Inc. and Angela F. Braly effective as ahdiary 1, 2009,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12(a) ® @ompany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeraded
December 31, 200t

Employment Agreement by and between Anthem Ins@&umpanies, Inc. and Samuel R. Nussbaum, M.Dedds o
January 2, 2001 (with respect to Section 5(c) omhgorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to @@npany’s Registration
Statement on Form-1 (Registration No. 3:-67714).

(&) Form of Employment Agreement between the @aomg and each of the following: Randal Brown; Ker®ulet; and
Samuel R. Nussbaum, M.D., incorporated by referém&xhibit 10.43 to the Company’s Annual ReportFamm 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2C

(b) Form of Employment Agreement between the @amy and each of the following: Lori Beer; Waynéb@Veydt; and
Brian Sassi, incorporated by reference to ExhibibA&xhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Current Reportcamm 8-K filed
on November 2, 200t

(c) Form of Employment Agreement between the gamy and each of the following: John Cannon; Braile Fluegel,
Dijuana Lewis; Cynthia S. Miller; and, Martin L. NMér, incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to ibih10.41 to the
Compan’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

Blue Cross License Agreement by and between Blos<Blue Shield Association and the Company, inotwdevisions, if
any, adopted by the Member Plans through Novembe2d05 meeting, incorporated by reference to Exhi45 to the
Compan’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

Blue Shield License Agreement by and between Blws€£Blue Shield Association and the Company, tioly revisions, it
any, adopted by the Member Plans through Novembg2d05 meeting, incorporated by reference to Exhih46 to the
Compan’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

Undertakings to California Department of Insurardaed November 8, 2004, delivered by WellPointlthe®C Life,
Anthem, Inc. and Anthem Holding Corp., incorporabgdreference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s €ntiReport on Form
8-K filed on November 10, 200

Undertakings to California Department of ManagedltteCare, dated November 23, 2004, delivered bilRmt Health,
Golden West, Anthem, Inc. and Anthem Holding Campprporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to thenpany’s Current
Report on Form-K filed on November 30, 200
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10.1¢

10.1¢*

21
23
31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

101

Exhibit

Undertakings, dated July 31, 1997, by WellPointIthedlue Cross of California and WellPoint Califieet Services, Inc. to tl
California Department of Corporations, incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 99.12 to WellPoint HeadtiCurrent Report on
Form &K filed on August 5, 1997

2009 Annual Salary Information for Chief Execut®icer and Named Executive Officel
Subsidiaries of the Compar
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13-14(a) and Rule 1:-14(a) of the Exchange Act Rules, as ado|
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaotRule 13-14(a) and Rule 1:-14(a) of the Exchange Act Rules, as ado|
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiio8e906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaat18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantctioBe906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

The following materials from WellPoint, Ir's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2009, formz
in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Languagg)the Consolidated Balance Sheets; (ii) the Cadatdd Statements of
Income; (iii) the Consolidated Statements of CaslwE; (iv) the Consolidated Statements of SharedrsidEquity; (v) the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemetagged as blocks of text; and (vi) Financial Staenschedule II, tagged as
blocks of text

Indicates management contracts or compensatorg plaarrangement
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Exhibit 10.18

SALARY INFORMATION FOR CEO, CFO
AND NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table sets forth as of February 101@, the current annual salary of WellPoint, In¢tfe “Company”) Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer and each of theamed Executive Officersivho were employed by the Company as of Decembe2(B19.
The Named Executive Officers are as determinethi®Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2009 Annuakblihg of Shareholders, which was
based on total compensation for 2008 (less the ah@iuChange in Pension Value and Nonqualified Drefe Compensation Earnings) as
required by the Instructions to Item 402(a)(3) ebRlation S-K, because the Company has not yetrdited the amount of non-equity
incentive plan compensation for 2009 and therefioeddentities of the other Named Executive Officier the Company’s Proxy Statement for
its 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders are nokyetvn.

Named Executive Officer Salary

Angela F. Braly $1,144,00!
Wayne S. DeVeyc $ 700,00(
Ken R. Goule $ 700,00(
Dijuana K. Lewis $ 650,00(

Bradley M. Fluege $ 550,00(



SUBSIDIARIES OF WELLPOINT, INC.

A s orFD EcemMBER31, 2009

Company Name
Affiliated Healthcare, Inc

AHI Healthcare Corporatio

American Imaging Management Connecticut, L.L
American Imaging Management East, L.L
American Imaging Management Services, L.L
American Imaging Management, Ir

American Managing Compar

Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plan Administratd C
Anthem Blue Cross Life and Health Insurance Comg
Anthem Credentialing Services, Ir

Anthem Financial, Inc

Anthem Health Insurance Company of Nev
Anthem Health Plans of Kentucky, Ir

Anthem Health Plans of Maine, Ir

Anthem Health Plans of New Hampshire, |
Anthem Health Plans of Virginia, In

Anthem Health Plans, In

Anthem HMO of Nevad

Anthem Holding Corp

Anthem Insurance Companies, i

Anthem Life & Disability Insurance Compal
Anthem Life Insurance Compal

Anthem Southeast, In

Anthem UM Services, Inc

Arcus Bank

Arcus Enterprises, In

Arcus Financial Holding Corg

ARCUS Financial Services, In

ARCUS HealthyLiving Services, In

Associated Group, In

ATH Holding Company, LLC

Behavioral Health Network, In

Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Georgia, |

Blue Cross Blue Shield Healthcare Plan of Geollgia,

Jurisdiction of Incorporation

Texas

Texas
Delaware (LLC)
Delaware (LLC)
Delaware (LLC)
lllinois

Texas

Indiana (LLC)
California
Delaware
Delaware
Nevads
Kentucky
Maine

New Hampshire
Virginia
Connecticui
Nevads
Indiana

Indiana

New York
Indiana

Indiana

Indiana

Utah

Delaware
Indiana

Indiana

Indiana

Indiana

Indiana (LLC)
New Hampshire
Georgia

Georgia

Exhibit 21



Company Name
Blue Cross Blue Shield of Wiscons

Blue Cross of Californi

Blue Cross of California Partnership Plan, |
Cerulean Companies, Ir

Claim Management Services, It
Community Insurance Compa

Compcare Health Services Insurance Corpor:
Crossroads Acquisition Cor

DeCare Analytics, LLC

DeCare Dental Health International, LI
DeCare Dental Insurance Ireland, L
DeCare Dental Networks, LL

DeCare Dental, LL(C

DeCare Operations Ireland, Limit

DeCare Systems Ireland, Limit

Dental Claims Administrative Services, I
Designated Agent Company, Ir

EHC Benefits Agency, Inc

Empire HealthChoice Assurance,

Empire HealthChoice HMO, Ini

Forty-Four Fort-Four Forest Park Redevelopment C¢

Golden West Health Plan, In
Government Health Services, LL
Greater Georgia Life Insurance Comp:
Health Core, Inc

Health Management Corporati

Health Ventures Partner, L.L.!
HealthKeepers, Inc

HealthLink HMO, Inc.

HealthLink, Inc.

HealthReach Services, Ir

Healthy Alliance Life Insurance Compa
HMO Colorado, Inc

HMO Missouri, Inc.

Imaging Management Holdings, L.L.
Imaging Providers of Tex

IMASIS, L.L.C.

Jurisdiction of Incorporation

Wisconsin
California
California
Georgia
Wisconsin

Ohio

Wisconsin
Delaware
Minnesota (LLC)
Minnesota (LLC)
Ireland
Minnesota (LLC)
Minnesota (LLC)
Ireland

Ireland
Minnesots
Kentucky

New York

New York

New York
Missouri
California
Wisconsin (LLC)
Georgia
Delaware
Virginia

lllinois (LLC)
Virginia

Missouri

lllinois
Connecticul
Missouri
Colorado
Missouri
Delaware (LLC)
Texas

Delaware (LLC)



Company Name
Insurance4 Agency, In

Landmark Solutions, LL(

Lease Partners, In

Matthew Thornton Health Plan, In

Meridian Resource Company, LL

Monticello Service Agency, Int

National Capital Preferred Provider Organizatiomc.
National Government Services, It
OneNation Benefit Administrators, In
OneNation Insurance Compa

Park Square Holdings, In

Park Square I, Inc

Park Square I, Inc

Peninsula Health Care, Ir

Priority Health Care, Inc

Priority, Inc.

R & P Realty, Inc

Resolution Health, Inc

RightCHOICE Insurance Compa
RightCHOICE Managed Care, Ir

Rocky Mountain Hospital and Medical Service, |
SellCore, Inc

Southeast Services, Ir

Summit Administrative Services, L.L.¢

The WellPoint Companies, In
TrustSolutions, LLC

UNICARE Health Insurance Company of Te:
UNICARE Health Insurance Company of the Midw
UNICARE Health Plan of Kansas, Ir
UNICARE Health Plan of West Virginia, In
UNICARE Health Plans of Texas, Ir
UNICARE Health Plans of the Midwest, Ir
UNICARE lllinois Services, Inc

UniCare Life & Health Insurance Compa
UNICARE National Services, Ini

UNICARE of Texas Health Plans, Ir

Jurisdiction of Incorporation

Delaware

New Hampshire (LLC
Delaware

New Hampshire
Wisconsin
Virginia
Maryland
Indiana

Ohio

Indiana
California
California
California
Virginia
Virginia
Virginia
Missouri
Delaware
lllinois
Delaware
Colorado
Delaware
Virginia
Missouri (LLC)
Indiana
Wisconsin (LLC)
Texas

lllinois

Kansas

West Virginia
Texas

lllinois

lllinois

Indiana
Delaware

Texas



Company Name Jurisdiction of Incorporation

UNICARE Specialty Services, In Delaware
United Government Services, LL Wisconsin (LLC)
UtiliMed IPA, Inc. New York
WellPoint Acquisition, LLC Indiana (LLC)
WellPoint Behavioral Health, Ini Delaware
WellPoint California Services, In Delaware
WellPoint Dental Services, In Delaware
WellPoint Holding Corp Delaware
WellPoint Insurance Services, Ir Hawaii
WellPoint Partnership Plan, LL Illinois (LLC)
WPMI (Shanghai) Enterprise Consulting and Serviog Ctd. China (LLC)

WPMI, LLC Delaware (LLC)



Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference ifdllewing Registration Statements:

Form £-8 No. 33:-73516 and Form-8 No. 33:-110503 pertaining to the Anthem 2001 Stock Incenklan;

Form S-8 No. 333-84906 and Form S-8 No. 333-12988tining to the WellPoint 401(k) Retirement Sgsiflan (formerly
Anthem 401(k) Lon-term Savings Investment Plai

Form S-8 No. 333-97423 pertaining to the Trigon Itheare, Inc. 1997 Stock Incentive Plan; Trigon ltezare, Inc. NorEmployee
Directors Stock Incentive Plan; and Certain OptiGnanted to Consultants to Trigon Healthcare, |

Form £-8 No. 33:-120851 pertaining to the WellPoint Health Netwaliks. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan; WellPoint Healthterks
Inc. 2000 Employee Stock Option Plan; WellPoint iebBletworks Inc. Comprehensive Executive Non-(fieadi Retirement Plan;
Cobalt Corporation Equity Incentive Plan; RightCHIBl Managed Care, Inc. 2001 Stock Incentive Plagh®&IHOICE Managed
Care, Inc. 1994 Equity Incentive Plan; RightCHOIMEBnaged Care, Inc. Nonemployee Direc’ Stock Option Plan

Form &8 No. 33-121596 pertaining to the 2005 Comprehensive ExeeMNbr-Qualified Retirement Plat
Form £-8 No. 33:-130743 pertaining to the WellChoice, Inc. 2003 Oousilncentive Plar

Form -8 No. 33:-134253 pertaining to the WellPoint 2006 Incentivarensation Plar

Form £-8 No. 33:-156099 pertaining to the WellPoint, Inc. Employeéec® Purchase Plal

Form &3 No. 33-156098 pertaining to the WellPoint, Inc. automatielf registration; an

Form £-8 No. 33:-159830 pertaining to the WellPoint Incentive Congadion Plar

of our report dated February 18, 2010, with respeethe consolidated financial statements and sdkeaf WellPoint, Inc., and our report dated
February 18, 2010, with respect to the effectiveredsnternal control over financial reporting oféiPoint, Inc. included in this Annual Report
(Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2009.

/s ERNST & Y OUNGLLP

February 18, 2010
Indianapolis, Indiana



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) AND RULE 15d-14(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT RULES,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Angela F. Braly, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Weiht, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahedporting to be designed unc
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséantbis report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repost) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors parsons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weals®es in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 18, 2010 /s/ ANGELA F. BRALY
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) AND RULE 15d-14(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT RULES,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Wayne S. DeVeydt, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Weiht, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahedporting to be designed unc
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséantbis report our conclusions abc

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repost) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors parsons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsssehe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which au
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’'s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelmeanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 18, 2010 /s| WAYNE S. DEV EYDT
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial €xf




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of WellPoilmg. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the perioddex December 31, 2009 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ortéte hereof (the “Report”), Angela F. Braly, President and Chief Executiviid@r of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135Gdapted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleypA2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
the Company

/s ANGELA F. BRALY

Angela F. Braly

President and Chief Executive Offic
February 18, 201




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of WellPoilmtc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the perioddexd December 31, 2009 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ordéte hereof (the “Report”), I, Wayne S. DeVeydteEixtive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuémtl8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 9@t Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementseétion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of
the Company

/s/ WAYNE S. DEV EYDT

Wayne S. DeVeyc

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Office

February 18, 201




